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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31t MARCH, 2024

(% in thousands)

STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31¢ MARCH, 2024
(X in thousands)

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%* MARCH, 2024
(% in thousands)

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024 (Continued)

(X in thousands)

As at As at Year Ended Year Ended
Schedule | 31 March, 2024| 31* March, 2023 Schedule| 31 March, 2024| 31+ March, 2023
I. [ INCOME
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Interest Earned 13 457,989,110 342,508,509
Capital 1 9,939,604 14,932,783 Other Income 14 102,731,007 70,830,509
Employee’s Stock Options Total 560,720,117 413,339,018
(Grants) Outstanding 792,938 603,058 II. | EXPENDITURE
Interest Expended 15 198,057,109 126,989,356
Reserves and Surplus 2 956,455,026 819,666,658 Operating Expenses 16 166,788,460 137,869,937
) Provisions and Contingencies 58,058,724 39,086,774
Deposits 3 | 4,489,537 451 3:630,960,526 (Refer Note 10 -Schedule18 B)
Borrowings 4 283,680,956| 234,162,684 Total 422,904,293| 303,946,067
IIl.| PROFIT
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 263,164,482 198,299,064 Net Profit for the year (1 - Il) 137,815,824 109,392,951
Total 6,003,570,457| 4,898,624,773 Add: Balance in Profit and Loss Account 377,600,930 304,558,535
brought forward from previous year
ASSETS Total 515,416,754| 413,951,486
. IV.[| APPROPRIATIONS
Cash and Bal th 6 362,520,376 199,655,575
ash and Baances wi Transfer to Statutory Reserve 34,454,000| 27,348,300
Reserve Bank of India -
Transfer to Capital Reserve - 9,900
Balances with Banks and Money 7 165,363,645 125,767,503 Transfer to Special Reserve 1.250.000 1.150.000
at Call and Short Notice uls 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 R T
Investments 8 1,554,037,587| 1,214,037,287 irans;er:o :nves:men: IF:ilesctarvi Account 8,316,321 -
ransfer to Investment Fluctuation 12,000,000 5,253,150
Advances 9 3,760,752,659| 3,198,612,074 Reserve Account
. 21,552,965 19,203,232 Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve 5,000,000 -
Fixed Assets 10 Dividend 3.366,210| 2,589,206
Other Assets 1 139,343,225 141,349,102 Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 451,030,223 377,600,930
Total 6,003,570,457| 4,898,624,773 Total 515,416,754 413,951,486
V. | EARNINGS PER SHARE
Contingent Liabilities 12 7,172,811,816| 4,556,937,357 (Face value of X 5/-)
Bills for Collection 474,677,060| 446,552,442 gﬁj{gd 69.15 54.89
Significant accounting policies and |17 & 18 (Refer Note 1 - Schedule 18 B) 69.15 54.87
notes to accounts forming part of Significant accounting policies and notesto | 17 & 18
financial statements accounts forming part of financial statements

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of this Balance Sheet.

The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘A’ of the
Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of this Profit and Loss Account.

The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘B’ of the
Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Year Ended
31% March, 2024

Year Ended
31 March, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit after tax 137,815,824 109,392,951

Add: Provision for tax 42,321,343| 34,516,910

Net Profit before taxes 180,137,167 143,909,861

Adjustments for :-

Employee Stock Options Expense 254,406 241,886

Depreciation on Bank's Property 6,147,920 4,617,270

Diminution in the value of Investments 792,218 (210,499)

Dividend from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures (3,089,012)| (2,422,740)

Amortization of Premium on HTM Investments 3,613,242 5,258,387

(Profit)/Loss on revaluation of Investments (net) (14,817,762) 2,210,847

Provision for Non Performing Assets, Standard 14,945,163 4,780,363

Assets and Other Provisions

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets (30,256) (75,091)
187,953,086 158,310,284

Adjustments for :-

(Increase) in Investments (other than Subsidiaries, | (354,952,676)| (225,477,641)

Joint Ventures, Associates and Other HTM

Investments)

(Increase) in Advances (577,005,271)| (491,152,921)

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets 3,559,820 (11,285,411)
Increase in Deposits 858,576,925| 514,119,392
Increase in Other Liabilities and Provisions 67,027,511 6,572,093
(2,793,691)| (207,224,488)
Direct Taxes Paid (46,151,531)| (34,777,571)
NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) 139,007,864 | (83,691,775)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (8,847,258)| (7,698,023)
Sale of Fixed Assets 277,290 200,140
Investments in Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures (7,331,239)| (2,242,200)
Decrease in Investments in HTM securities 33,027,233| 12,225,987
Dividend from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures 3,089,012 2,422,740
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 20,215,038 4,908,644

Year Ended Year Ended

31 March, 2024 | 31+ March, 2023
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Decrease) in Subordinated Debt - (3,060,000)
Increase in Refinance 40,751,200 22,290,600
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings [other than 8,767,072 (44,739,085)
Refinance and Sub-ordinated debt]
Money received on exercise of Stock Options 1,992,348 2,678,633
Redemption of Perpetual Non Cumulative (5,000,000) _
Preference Shares
Dividend paid (3,366,210)| (2,589,206)
NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING 43,144,410| (25,419,058)
ACTIVITIES (C)
Increase in Foreign Currency Translation 93,631 385,916
Reserve (D)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 202,460,943 | (103,816,273)
CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B + C +D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 325,423,078 429,239,351
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (Refer Note below)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END 527,884,021| 325,423,078
OF THE YEAR (Refer Note below)
Note:
Balance with Banks in India in Fixed Deposit 11,733 11,733
(As per Sch 7 1 (i) (b))
Balance with Banks in India in Current Account 3,266,665 3,758,533
(As per Sch 7 1 (i) (a))
Money at Call and Short Notice in India (as per 114,806,705 78,969,813
Sch 7 1 (ii))
Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) 19,910,301 18,823,722
(As per Sch 6 1.)
Balance with RBI in Current Account 192,100,075 180,831,853
(As per Sch 6 1l (a))
Balance with RBI in other account 150,510,000 -
(As per Sch 6 11 (b))
Balance with Banks Outside India:
(i) In Current Account (As per Sch 7 1l (i)) 27,895,220 23,528,483
(ii) In other Deposit Accounts (As per Sch 7 Il (ii)) 19,383,322 19,498,941
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 527,884,021 325,423,078
END OF THE YEAR

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

(X in thousands)

(R in thousands)

(% in thousands) As at As at Year ended | Year ended
As at As at 31t March, [ 31t March, 31t March, | 31t March,
31st March,| 31t March, 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023 SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES
. IniIndia isi
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL (i) Govemment Securities 1133,950,690| 897,060,582 I Payments to and provision for employees 68,926,322 55,477,845
Authorised Capital (i) Other Approved Securities _ - (Refer Note 9 - Schedule 18 B)
2,800,000,000 Equity Shares of X 5/- each (iit) Shares 12,245,800 12,302,210 Il Rent, taxes and lighting 8,336,698 8,254,684
2,800,000,000 (31¢t March, 2023: " (Refer Note 3 - Schedule 18 B)
h (iv) Debentures and Bonds 168,493,691 189,697,809
?'888'888'888 g“#}‘,{,lfrhcf{e;o‘g 5- each) 14,000,000 14,000,000 (v) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 39,020,133| 31,688,894 Il Printing and Stationery 1,944,074| 1,686,785
POSeed R . . (vi) Others [Units, Certificate of Deposits (CD), 183,138,405 71,092,790 IV.  Advertisement, Publicity and Promotion 9,709,109 6,326,413
1,000,000,000) Perpetual Non Cumulative b ial P CP) Security Receint
Preference Shares of % 5/- each 5,000,000 5,000,000 ommercial Paper (CP), Security Receipts, V. Depreciation on Bank's property 6,147,920 4,617,270
19.000.000 19.000.000 Pass Through Certificates(PTC)] 3
. . . , 00U, , 00U, Total 1.536.848.719| 1,201,842.285 VI. Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses* 57,440 35,675
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital II. Outside India e e VIl Auditors' fees and expenses 41,619 38,840
1,987,920,898 (31¢' March, 2023: 1,986,556,582) (i) Government Securities 2,777,753 1,464,844 (Refer Note 14 - Schedule 18 B)
Equity Shares of Z 5/- each fully paid-up 9,939,604 9,932,783 (i) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 383,242 383,242 VIll. Law Charges 317,976 435,680
Nil (31¢t March, 2023: 1,000,000,000) (iii) Other Investments IX. Postage, telephone etc. 4.178.355 3.665.394
Perpetual Non Cumulative a) Shares 18,040 12,460 g ) Peee on
Preference Shares of 2 5/- each fully paid-up - 5,000,000 %b; Debentures and Bonds 14,009,833 | 10,334,456 X. Repairs and maintenance 11,026,629\ 9,293,498
Total 9,939,604 14,932,783 Total 17,188,868 | 12,195,002 XL Insurance 4,688,982\ 3,907,174
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS Total Investments (I and Il) 1,554,037,587 [ 1,214,037,287 XIl. Other Expenditure (Refer Note 45 - 51,946,459 44,570,879
I.  Statutory Reserve SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES Schedule 18 A and Note 12 - Schedule 18 B)
Opening Balance 148,317,983 120,969,683 + p . # 167,321,583 138,310,137
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 34,454,000 27,348,300 A E:l)) CB:ILI:hpggé?ts;(é)\a/gtridtri;csoggée%ans 12(733%?‘35 Qggfgg?gi Less: Reimbursement of Costs from Group Companies 533,123 440,200
Total 182,771,983 | 148,317,983 repayable on demand" Total 166,788,460 | 137,869,937
IIl.  Capital Reserve (iii) Term Loans@ 2,480,164,071| 2,155,977,108 - —— -
Opening Balance 3,531,886 3,521,986 Total 3.760.752.659 | 3.198.612,074 * - Pertains to non-executive directors remuneration.
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account = 9.900 — — SCHEDULE 17 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Total 3,531,886 3,531,886 #Bills purchased and discounted is net of Bills -
lll.  General Reserve Rediscounted ¥ 2,723.66 crore A BACKGROUND
Opening Balance ) 6,425,304 6,404,249 (Previous Year X 1,475.84) crore In February 2003, Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited was given a license to
';\fd'kAcr)”"tF”' "aé’Sfet”e%"? tEmg."’yele S 69,716 21,055 A net of borrowings under Inter Bank Participatory carry out banking business by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI). It was the first
o(igl ptions (Grants) Outstanding lapse 6.495.020 6425304 certificates of X 2.54 crore Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC) in India to be converted into a Bank.
IV. Investment Reserve Account . — (Previous Year ¥ 220.00 crore) B Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (‘Kotak Mahindra Bank’, “Kotak” or “the Bank")
Openi _ _ net of borrowings under Inter Bank Participatory provides a full suite of banking services to its customers encompassing Consumer
pening Balance certificates of ¥ 12,927.26 crore i i i ina i i
Add: Transfer from/(to) Profit and Loss Account 8,316,321 - (Previous Year ¥ 3.986.26) Blank;]ng, Commercnil ?anklgg, Tre%sugya?ﬂ l’«‘lf?z’rpf;ratet Bankmdg in India ang
Total 8,316,321 — : 19543 N also has a representative office in Dubai. The Bank set up and commence:
V. S:eacial Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of & EI)) gzc:rrezdbbthaanr;gllzi Zf:ni:esnt arantees 282;2%3% 2422‘;2(2)332 operations in May 2016, at s International Financial Services Center Banking
. ii Vi Ve u ,513, ,720, SRl f ) - ; -
Income Tax Act, 1961 i) Unsecure{i 9 875737501| 663489936 Unit ("IBU") in Gujarat International Finance Tec (GIFT) City, Gujarat. The Bank
Opening Balance 8,942,000 7,792,000 Total 3 760'752 501 3196.612.074 has cpmmencgd operations in October 201? atits fI!’S\ overseas branch at the
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 1,250,000 1,150,000 *9a| X . ‘ dAL 1o LA Dubai International Financial Centre (“DIFC”), Dubai, UAE.
Total 10,192,000 8,942,000 ¢, andluding advances against book debrs. B BASIS OF PREPARATION
VI Securities Premium Account b (i) Priority Sector 1,677,430,941 | 1,471,534,973 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with statutory
Opening Balance 249,839,331 247,024,798 (i) Public Sector 23.509.188 4,093,487 requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The
ﬁd:sz.Rsehcaeri;/efgscljjl;riggpt;\:;g;ar 2,175,407 2,814,533 (iii) Banks 13:6501218 Y 2:077 accounting and reporting policies of Kotak Mahindra Bank used in
oSS — — (iv) Others 1,985,655,735 | 1,674,439,675 the preparation of these financial statements is the accrual method of
Tota.l . 252,014,738] 249,839,331 Total 3:700;246:082 3:150;0701212 accounting and historical cost convention unless stated otherwise and it
VIl Capital Redemption Reserve C.II. Advances outside India conforms with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian
gggﬁ+ﬂg B?la?ce Profit and L - - (i) Due from banks - - GAAP”), the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 and the
Accbur:?ns er from Profit and Loss 5,000,000 - (ii) Due from others ) relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
Total 5,000,000 = 33 gy:d?;;tcgg Z?m(cjj Tgfmdfiiﬁimed 60,506,577 48541862 thg Zc’u“ic?iﬁﬁeit;i';ﬂiﬁj?yiﬂfs' 2021 in so far as they apply to banks and
Vill. Amalgamation Reserve ¢) Others RN o A :
Opening Balance 1,224,046 1,224,046 Total) 60,506,577 | 48,541,862 Use of estimates
Add: Additions — — Grand Total (C.I. and C.IL) 3.760.752.659 | 3.198.612.074 The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make
Total 1,224,046 1,224,046 SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS —_ e estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets
IX. Investment Allowance (Utilised) Reserve A. Premises (Including Land) and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial
Opening Balance 500 500 " Gross Block statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account — — At cost on 315tMarch of the preceding year 10,577,170 10,570,977 period. The Bank's Management believes that the estimates used in
X ;I;?\::Istment Fluctuation Reserve 500 500 Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year 2,240 11,562 preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 12,000,000 5,253,150 Depreciation E— E— :
Total 35,000,000] 23,000,000 As at 31% March of the preceding year 2,364,590 2,191,672| C SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Xl Foreign Currency Translation Reserve Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year "174.346 '174113| 1 Investments
ggghigg Balance/ | during th 73;22? ggg;% Less: Deductions during the year - 195 Classification:
: (Decrease) / Increase during the year . * Depreciation to date 2,538,936 2,364,590 In accordance with the RBI guidelines on investment classification and
Total 878,309 784,678 Net Block 8,040,461 8,212,580 valuation, investments are classified on the date of purchase into “Held for
XIl. Balance in the Profit and Loss Account B y R N H A A » (s ) orp o e s
h 9 - Other Fixed Assets . Trading” (‘HFT’), “Available for Sale” (‘AFS’) and “Held to Maturity” (HTM’)
Balance in the Profit and Loss Account 451,030,223 377,600,930 (including furniture and fixtures) X . B o A
Total 451,030,223 | 377,600,930 Gross Blick categories '(he'relnaﬁelf called categorlles ). Subseq'uerjt shifting amongst
Total (I to XII) 956,455,026 | 819,666,658 At cost on 31% March of the preceding year 32,549,618 28,763,074 the categlolnles is done in acclordance with the RBI guidelines at the lower of
" ; : the acquisition cost or carrying value and market value on the date of the
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year 8,742,449 7,496,819 transfer, and depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided
A. |I. Demand Deposits Less: Deductions during the year 869,110 3,710,275 Und | h of th " R ¢ ¢ further classif .d d
i. From Banks 3,068,958 2,435,164 Total 40,422,957 | 32,549,618 ;ncer each of tnese calegories, investments are Turiher cassitiec uncer
i. From Other 749013.968| 697 867 219 Depreciation six groups (hereinafter called “group/groups”) - Government Securities,
f tal 752’082Y926 700’302’333 As at 31t March of the preceding year 21,715,950 20,862,194 Other Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures and Bonds, Investments
° a. . —= —= Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year 5,973,574 4,443,157 in Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and Other Investments for the purposes of
II. Savings Ban.k Deposits 1,290,951,628 | 1,217,850,232 Less: Deductions during the year 779,07 3,589,401 disclosure in the Balance Sheet.
lll. Term Deposits Depreciation to date 26,910,453 21,715,950 The Bank follows ‘Settlement Date’ accounting for recording purchase and
i. From Banks 96,581,087 26,074,227 Net Block (Refer Note 6 - Schedule 18 B) 13,512,504 10,833,668 sale transactions in securities, except in the case of equity shares where
ii. From Other 2,349,921,810| 1,686,733,684 C. Leased Fixed Assets ‘Trade Date’ accounting is followed
Total 2,446,502,897 | 1,712,807,911 Gross Block Basis of classification:
8 At cost on 31t March of the preceding year 1,540,585 1,540,585 .
Total Deposits (ito ll) 4,489,537,451| 3,630,960,526 Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year _ _ Investments that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date
B. (i) Deposits of branches in India 4,461,142,550 | 3,612,850,670 Less: Deductions during the year 1,540,585 _ of purchase are classified under HFT category. As per the RBI guidelines,
(i) Deposits of branches outside India 28,394,901 18,109,856 Total — 1,540,585 HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified
Total (i and ii) 4,489,537,451 | 3,630,960,526 Depreciation as AFS securities as on that date. Investments which the Bank intends to
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS As at 315 March of the preceding year 1,383,601 1,383,601 hold till maturity are classified as HTM securities. The Bank has classified
. . . Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year - - investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under HTM
I. Borrowings in India X N : t | " ts which t classified in either of the ab
() Reserve Bank of India _ 47,000,000 Less: Deductions during the year 1,383,601 - category. Investments which are not classified in either of the above two
S ea Depreciation to date — 1,383,601 categories are classified under AFS category.
(i) Other Banks - 2,259,792 Net Block — 156.984 Acquisition Cost
iii) Other Institutions and Agencies : cquisition Cost:
@ (Refer Note 13 - SchedSle 18 B) 209,701,800{ 140,000,600 Total (A)+(B)+(C) 21,552,965 19,203,232 The cost of investments is determined on weighted average basis. Broken
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS period interest on debt instruments and government securities are considered
Total 209,701,800 | 189,260,392 . Interest accrued 44126279 38,950,762 - . g o
Il B . tside Indi Ii Ad t t of ision for t 1'938'700 IO, as a revenue item. The transaction costs including brokerage, commission,
- Dorrowings outsice Incia . vance tax (net of provision for tax) o " etc. paid at the time of acquisition of investments is recognised in Profit and

Banks & Other Institutions 73,979,156 44,902,292 ll. Stationery and Stamps 14,768 27,038 Loss Account

(Refer Note 13 - Schedule 18 B) V. Others (Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A 93,263,478 102,371,302 - N

Total 73,979,156] 44,902,202 and Note 4 - Schedule 18 B)* Disposal of investments: )

Total Borrowings (I and Il) 283,680,956 234,162,684 Total 139,343,225 141,349,102 . Investm_ent_s classi_fied_as HFT or AFS - Profit or loss on sale or

Secured Borrowings other than CBLO and — — *Includes deposits placed with NABARD/SIDBI redemption is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

Repo Borrowings included in | above ¥ 3,253.85 crore (Previous year X 4,544.48 crore) * Investments classified as HTM - Profit on sale or redemption of

Tier Il Bonds included in | (iii) above _ _ SCHEQULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES investments is regognised in the Prgfit and Loss Account and is

Tier Il Bonds included in Il above _ _ I.  Claims not acknowledged as debts 5,537,058 4,911,365 appropriated to Capital Reserve after adjustments for tax and transfer to

Il Liability on account of outstanding 5,019,139,271| 2,991,342,115 Statutory Reserve. Loss on sale or redemption is recognised in the Profit
iﬁgEPDRUA_\ﬁélbg;HER LIABILITIES Forward Exchange Contracts and Loss Account.
1. Bills Payable 36.051 339 30.880 206 lll. - Guarantees on behalf of Constituents Short Sale:
POy Poes i) InIndia 319,446,355| 268,102,384 The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated
Il. Interest Accrued 22,336,906 11,966,131 ii) Outside India - = securities in accordance with RBI guidelines. The short position is categorised
III. Provision for tax (net of advance tax and tax . 2,378,818 IV. Acceptances, Endorsements and other obligations |  266,940,082| 244,570,188 under HET category and netted T o o the Dol ohoot
deducted at source) . V. Other Items for which the Bank is contingently liable : The short position is marked to market and loss, if any, is charged to the Profii
IV. Standard Asset provision 16,256,473 15,172,925 a. Liability in respect of interest rate and currency | 1,432,586,428| 996,439,662 and Loss Account while gain, if any, is ignored. Gain or loss on settlement
V. Others (including provisions) 188,519,764 | 137,900,984 swaps and forward rate agreements of the short position is recogr;ised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A b.  Liability in respect of Options Contracts 116,319,586 | 31,806,455 o

and Note 11 - Schedule 18 B) ¢, Capital commitments not provided 8723.033| 16,200,945 Valuation: _ _ _

Total 263,164,482 198,299,064 d.  Unclaimed Customer balances transferred to 4,120,003 3,564,243 Thg vgluatlon of mv_estments is performed in accordance with the RBI
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RBI DEAF Scheme guidelines as follows: ) _ o
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA Total 7,172,811,816 [ 4,556,937,357 a) Investments classified as HTM — These are carried at their acquisition

I. Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) | 19,910,301| 18,823,722 ®in thousands) cost. Any premium on acquisition of debt instruments / government

Total 19,910,301 18.823.722 securities is amortised over the balance maturity of the security on a

Il. Balances with RBI — — SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE | Year ended| Year ended straight line basis. Any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of
. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARENDED | 31t March,| 31stMarch, such securities is provided.

(a) In Current Account 192,100,075| 180,831,853 o

(b) In Other Deposit Account 150,510,000 _ 31 MARCH, 2024 2024 2023 b) Investments classified as HFT or AFS — Investments in these

Total 342.610,075| 180,831,853 SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED categories are marked to market and the net depreciation, if any,

"520. '655. I Interest / discount on Advances / Bills 356,579,938 | 269,784,462 within each group is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Net

Total (I+I1) 362,520,376 199,655,575 Income on Investments 88980 830 64 586,500 gf P g o Furth e th

v ! . g ’ 1900, appreciation, if any, is ignored. Further, provision other than temporary
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS |

AND MONEY AT GALL AND SHORT NOTICE L. }m‘edr:st on balances with RBI and other inter-bank 7,793,843 5,502,956 dimif]ultion is made at individual s',ecluril'y Ieyel. Except in cases where
I. InIndia IV. Others 4,634,499 2,634,582 provision other than temporary diminution is made, the book value of
(i) (Ba)llanges witrz\Banks 3.266.665 3758 533 Total 457,989,110 | 342,508,509 the individual securities is not changed as a result of periodic valuations.

a) In Current Accounts ,£00, 1190, SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME i i i i ¢ g
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 11,733 11,733 I, Commission, exchange and brokerage 70,485,388 | 54,400,095 €) The market or fair value of quoted investments included in the 'AFS’ and
Total 3,278,398 3,770,266 Il Profit/ (Loss) on sale of Investments (net) (5,597,936) (7,557,133) HFT cgtegorles is measured with respect to the market price of the scrip
" : Il Profit/ (Loss) on revaluation of Investments (net) 14,817,762 | (2,210,847) as available from the trades or quotes on the stock exchanges, SGL

(ii) Money at Call and Short Notice Lo . L . -

(a) With Banks _ 77.469.813 IV.  Profit/ (Loss) on sale of building and other assets (net) 30,256 75,091 account transactions, price list of RBI or prices declared on Fixed Income
(b) With Other Institutions 114.806.705 1'500000 ¥I |Proﬂt on exchgné;e transefx(ijtjogs (r(]jet)t(in?\udinsg %e[i(;{aﬂyes/) 1202%832 12222323 Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (‘FIMMDA') website
.09, 2009, . Income eamed by way of dividend, etc. from Subsidiaries 1560, 646, y ; o Pri i
Total 114,806,705 78,969,813 Associates and / or Joint Venture in / outside India by Flnancwlll Benchmark India ana.te Limited (F?IL) asatthe year‘ ?nd.
Total (i and ii) 118,085,103 82,740,079 VL. Profit on recoveries of non-performing assets acquired 3,031,033 3,109,786 d) Treasury Bills, Exchange Funded Bills, Commercial Paper and Certificate
II. Outside India VIII. Miscellaneous Income (Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A) 1,370,849 3,000,870 of Deposits being discounted instruments, are valued at carrying cost.

(i) In Current Accounts 27,895,220 23,528,483 Total 102,731,007 70,830,509 e) Market value of units of mutual funds is based on the latest net asset

(i) In other Deposit Accounts 19,383,322| 19,498,941 Isc"l'lﬁge‘é"-; 1D5ep'o's’i‘fsTEREST EXPENDED 183267206 | 117 982,582 value declared by the mutual fund.

(iii) Money at call and short notice - - II. Interest on RBI/ Inter-Bank Borrowings 3.666.491 2.505.371 f) Investments in subsidiaries / joint ventures (as defined by RBI) are

Total (i, ii and iii) 47,278,542 43,027,424 Il Others (Refer Note 13(c) - Schedule 18 B) 11,123,412 6,501,403 categorised as HTM and assessed for impairment to determine other

Total (I and II) 165,363,645| 125,767,503 Total 198,057,109 | 126,989,356 than temporary diminution, if any, in accordance with RBI guidelines.

g) Market value of investments where current quotations are not available
are determined as per the norms prescribed by the RBI as under:

+ In case of unquoted bonds, debentures and preference shares where

interest / dividend is received regularly (i.e. not overdue beyond 90
days), the market price is derived based on the Yield to Maturity
for Government Securities as published by FIMMDA / FBIL and
suitably marked up for credit risk applicable to the credit rating of the
instrument. The matrix for credit risk mark-up for each category and
credit rating along with residual maturity issued by FIMMDA / FBIL is
adopted for this purpose;
In case of bonds and debentures (including Pass Through Certificates)
where interest is not received regularly (i.e. overdue beyond 90 days),
the valuation is in accordance with prudential norms for provisioning
as prescribed by the RBI. Interest on such securities is not recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account until received;
Equity shares, for which current quotations are not available or
where the shares are not quoted on the stock exchanges, are valued
at break-up value (without considering revaluation reserves, if any)
which is ascertained from the company’s latest Balance Sheet. In
case the latest Balance Sheet is not available, the shares are valued
at X 1 per investee company;

Units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) held under AFS category

where current valuations are not available are marked to market

based on the Net Asset Value (NAV) shown by VCF as per the latest
audited financials of the fund. In case the audited financials are not
available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued

at ¥ 1 per VCF. Investment in unquoted VCF after 23 August, 2006

are categorised under HTM category for the initial period of three

years and valued at cost as per RBI guidelines. Such investments
are required to be transferred to AFS thereafter;

Security receipts are valued as per the Net Asset Value (NAV)

obtained from the issuing Asset Reconstruction Company or

Securitisation Company or estimated recovery whichever is lower.

The Bank has classified Security Receipts whose tenure has

exceeded 8 years, as “Non Performing investments”.

The Bank provides for investments in Alternate Investments Funds

(AIF) in accordance with RBI circular dated 19" December, 2023 and

27" March 2024.

h) Non-performing investments are identified and depreciation / provision
are made thereon based on RBI guidelines. The depreciation /
provision on such non-performing investments are not set off against
the appreciation in respect of other performing securities. Interest on
non-performing investments is not recognized in the Profit & Loss
Account until received.

i) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions - Securities sold
under agreements to repurchase (Repos) and securities purchased
under agreements to resell (Reverse Repos) are accounted as
collateralised borrowing and lending transactions respectively. The
difference between the consideration amount of the first leg and the
second leg of the repo is recognised as interest income or interest
expense over the period of the transaction.

2 Advances

Classification:

Advances are classified as performing and non-performing advances
(‘NPAs’) based on RBI guidelines and are stated net of bills rediscounted,
inter-bank participation with risk, specific provisions, interest in suspense,
claims received from Export Credit Guarantee Corporation and Emergency
Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) with respect to non-performing
advances, provisions for funded interest term loan and provisions in lieu of
diminution in the fair value of restructured assets. Also, NPAs are classified
into sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets as required by RBI guidelines.
Interest on NPAs remaining uncollected is transferred to an interest suspense
account and not recognised in the Profit and Loss Account until received.
Amounts paid for acquiring non-performing asset(s) from other banks and
NBFCs are considered as advances. Actual collections received on such
non-performing asset(s) are compared with the cash flow(s) estimated
while purchasing the asset to ascertain overdue(s). If such overdue(s) is/
are in excess of 90 days, then this/these asset(s) are classified into sub-
standard, doubtful or loss as required by the RBI guidelines on purchase of
non-performing asset(s).

The Bank transfers advances through inter-bank participation with and without
risk. In accordance with the RBI guidelines, in the case of participation with risk,
the aggregate amount of the participation issued by the Bank is reduced from
advances and where the Bank is participating, the aggregate amount of the
participation is classified under advances. In the case of participation without
risk, the aggregate amount of participation issued by the Bank is classified
under borrowings and where the Bank is participating, the aggregate amount
of participation is shown as due from banks under advances,

Provisioning:

The Bank classifies its advances, investments and overdues from crystallised
derivatives including those at overseas branches into performing and non
performing in accordance with guidelines issued by the RBI. Provision
for NPAs comprising sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets is made in
accordance with RBI guidelines. In addition, the Bank considers accelerated
specific provisioning that is based on past experience, evaluation of
security and other related factors. Specific loan loss provision in respect of
non-performing advances are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. Any
recoveries made by the Bank in case of NPAs written off are recognised in
the Profit and Loss Account.

The Bank considers a restructured account as one where the Bank, for
economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, grants
to the borrower concessions that the Bank would not otherwise consider.
Restructuring would normally involve modification of terms of the advance
|/ securities, which would generally include, among others, alteration of
repayment period / repayable amount / the amount of installments / rate of
interest (due to reasons other than competitive reasons).

Restructured accounts are classified as such by the Bank only upon approval
and implementation of the restructuring package. Necessary provision for
diminution in the fair value of a restructured account is made.

In respect of borrowers restructured under the Resolution Framework — 1.0
and Resolution Framework 2.0 for COVID-19 related stress the Bank holds
provisions higher than the provisions as required by the RBI guidelines based
on the estimates made by the Bank.

In accordance with RBI guidelines the Bank has provided general provision
on standard assets including credit exposures computed as per the current
marked to market values of interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
contracts, and gold at levels stipulated by RBI from time to time. Additional
standard asset provision is done for overseas stepdown subsidiaries of Indian
corporates. Standard provision is also made at higher than the prescribed
rates in respect of advances to stressed sectors as per the framework
approved by the Board of Directors. In case of Frauds, the Bank makes
provision for amounts it is liable for in accordance with the guidelines issued
by RBI. Ageneral provision on the entire amount outstanding from borrowers
who had an overdue on February 29, 2020 and to whom moratorium was
given is also made.

Further to provisions required as per the asset classification status, provisions
are held for individual country exposure (except for home country) as per
the RBI guidelines. Exposure is classified in the seven risk categories as
mentioned in the Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited
(‘ECGC’) guidelines and provisioning is done for that country if the net funded
exposure is one percent or more of the Bank’s total assets based on the
rates laid down by the RBI.

Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of borrowers is made
as per the RBI guidelines.

Loss on Sale of Advances to Asset Reconstruction Company

Loss on sale of Advances sold to Asset Reconstruction Company are
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

4 Securitisation

The Bank enters into purchase/sale of corporate and retail loans through
direct assignment/Special Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’). In most cases, post
securitisation, the Bank continues to service the loans transferred to the
assignee/ SPV. The Bank also provides credit enhancement in the form
of cash collaterals and/or by subordination of cash flows to Senior Pass-
Through Certificate holders. In respect of credit enhancements provided or
recourse obligations (projected delinquencies, future servicing etc.) accepted
by the Bank, appropriate provision/disclosure is made at the time of sale in
accordance with AS-29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets as specified under section 133 and the relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021.




Business Standard MUMBAI | THURSDAY, 20 JUNE 2024

@ kotak"

In accordance with the RBI guidelines on Securitisation of Standard
Assets dated 24 September 2021, the profit, loss or premium on account
of securitisation of assets at the time of sale is computed as the difference
between the sale consideration and the book value of the securitised asset.
Any resultant profit, loss or premium realised on account of securitisation is
recognised to the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which the sale is
completed.

The Bank invests in instruments of other SPVs which are accounted for at
the deal value and are classified under Investments.

Fixed assets (Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible) and
depreciation / amortisation.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets have been stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and adjusted for impairment,
if any. Cost includes cost of purchase inclusive of freight, duties, incidental
expenses and all expenditure like site preparation, installation costs and
professional fees incurred on the asset before it is ready to put to use.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only
when it increases the future benefit / functioning capability from / of such
assets. Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of a Property
Plant and Equipment / Intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and
recognised as income or expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on
sale of premises of the Bank, net of taxes and transfer to statutory reserve
is appropriated to Capital Reserve as per RBI guidelines.

Depreciation / Amortisation - Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis
on a Straight Line Method over the estimated useful life of the assets at
rates which are equal to or higher than the rates prescribed under Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the
assets. The estimated useful lives of assets based on technical evaluation
by management are as follows

Asset Type
Premises
Leasehold Land

Improvement to leasehold premises

Estimated Useful life in years
58
Over the lease period
Over the period of lease subject
to a maximum of 6 years.

Office equipments

(High capacity chillers, Transformers,
UPS, DG set, Fire Suppression,
HVAC, PAC & Elevators)

Office equipments (other than above)
Computers

Furniture and Fixtures

Motor Vehicles

ATMs

Software (including development)
expenditure

10
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Used assets purchased are depreciated over the residual useful life from
the date of original purchase.

Items costing less than ¥ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve
Bank of India and Balances with Other Banks / institutions and money at
Call and Short Notice (including the effect of changes in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency).

Bullion

The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis
for selling to its wholesale customers. The difference between the sale price to
customers and actual price quoted by supplier is reflected under other income.
The Bank also borrows and lends gold, which is treated as borrowings or
lending as the case may be in accordance with the RBI guidelines and the
interest paid or received is classified as interest expense or income and is
accounted on an accrual basis.

Revenue recognition
Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.

Interest income in respect of retail advances is accounted for by using the
internal rate of return method to provide a constant periodic rate of return.
Interest income on investments in PTCs and loans bought out through the
direct assignment route is recognised at their effective interest rate.
Interest income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure
of the instruments so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return.
Service charges, fees and commission income are recognised when due
except for guarantee commission and letter of credit which is recognised
over the period of the guarantee / letter of credit. Syndication / arranger
fee is recognised as income as per the terms of engagement.

Upon an asset becoming NPA the income accrued gets reversed, and is
recognised only on realisation, as per RBI guidelines.

Penal interest is recognised as income on realisation other than on
running accounts where it is recognised when due.

Other fees are recognised when due, where the Bank is reasonably
certain of ultimate collection.

Dividend income is accounted on an accrual basis when the Bank’s right
to receive the dividend is established.

Gain on account of securitisation of assets is amortised over the life of
the securities issued in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI.
Loss on account of securitisation of assets is recognised immediately in
Profit and Loss account.

In respect of non-performing assets acquired from other Banks / Fls and
NBFCs, collections in excess of the consideration paid at each asset level
or portfolio level is treated as income in accordance with RBI guidelines
and clarifications.

Fees received on sale of Priority Sector Lending Certificates is considered
as Miscellaneous Income, while fees paid for purchase is recognised as
expense under other expenses in accordance with the guidelines issued by
the RBI.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

Contribution as required by the statute made to the government provident
fund or to a fund set up by the Bank and administered by a board of trustees
is debited to the Profit and Loss Account when an employee renders the
related service. The Bank has no further obligations.

Superannuation Fund

The Bank makes contributions in respect of eligible employees, subject to a
maximum of 0.01 crore per employee per annum to a Fund administered by
trustees and managed by Life Insurance Companies. The Bank recognises
such contributions as an expense in the year when an employee renders
the related service. The Bank has no further obligations.

New Pension Scheme

The Bank contributes up to 10% of eligible employees’ salary per annum,
to the New Pension Fund administered by a Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (PFRDA) appointed pension fund manager. The Bank
recognises such contributions as an expense in the year when an employee
renders the related service.

DIFC Employee Workplace Savings Scheme (DEWS)

The Bank’s branch in Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC) contributes
up to 8.33% of eligible branch employees’ salary per annum to the DIFC
Employee Workplace Savings Scheme (DEWS). The Bank recognises such
contributions as an expense in the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Bank has no further obligation.

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The Bank provides for Gratuity, covering employees in accordance with
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, service regulations and service awards
as the case may be. The Bank’s liability is actuarially determined (using
Projected Unit Credit Method) at the Balance Sheet date. The Bank makes
contribution to Gratuity Funds administered by trustees and managed by
Life Insurance Companies.

Pension Scheme

In respect of pension payable to certain erstwhile ING Vysya Bank Limited
(“elVBL”) employees under Indian Banks’ Association (“IBA”) structure, the
Bank contributes 10% of basic salary to a pension fund and the difference
between the contribution and the amount actuarially determined by an
independent actuary is trued up based on actuarial valuation conducted as
at the Balance Sheet date. The Pension Fund is administered by the Board
of Trustees and managed by Life Insurance Company. The present value
of the Bank’s defined pension obligation is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method as at the Balance Sheet date.

Employees covered by the pension plan are not eligible for employer’s
contribution under the provident fund plan

The contribution made to the Pension fund is recognised as planned
assets. The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced
by the fair value of the plan assets.

Actuarial gains or losses in respect of all defined benefit plans are
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which
they are incurred.

Compensated Absences — Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Bank accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial
valuation as at the Balance Sheet date conducted by an independent actuary
which includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary
increases, interest rates and leave utilisation. The net present value of the
Banks’ obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at
the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account in the year in which they arise.

Other Employee Benefits

As per the Bank’s policy, employees are eligible for an award after completion
of a specified number of years of service with the Bank. The obligation is
measured at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised
during the period when the employee renders the service. These benefits
include performance incentives.

Employee share based payments
Equity-settled scheme:

The Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOSs) of the Bank are in accordance
with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021. The schemes provide for grant of options to employees of the Group to
acquire the equity shares of the Bank that vest in cliff vesting or in a graded
manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period.

RBI, vide its clarification dated 30" August, 2021 on Guidelines on
Compensation of Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Material
Risk Takers and Control Function Staff, advised Banks that the fair value
of share-linked instruments on the date of grant should be recognised as
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an expense for all instruments granted after the accounting period ending
31st March, 2021.

In accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 and the Guidance Note on “Accounting for
Employee Share-based payments” issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using
the intrinsic value method for all options granted on or before 31t March,
2021. The intrinsic value being the excess, if any, of the fair market price of
the share under ESOSs over the exercise price of the option is recognised as
deferred employee compensation with a credit to Employee’s Stock Option
(Grant) Outstanding account.

The Bank has changed its accounting policy from intrinsic value method to
fair value method for all share-linked instruments granted after 31t March,
2021 in accordance with the RBI guidance. The fair value of the option is
estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model and is recognised
as deferred employee compensation with a credit to Employee’s Stock Option
(Grant) Outstanding account.

The deferred employee compensation cost is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period of the option. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the number of equity instruments that are outstanding.

The options that do not vest because of failure to satisfy vesting condition
are reversed by a credit to employee compensation expense in “Payment
to and provision for employee”, equal to the amortised portion of the cost of
lapsed option and credit to deferred employee compensation equal to the
unamortised portion. In respect of the options which expire unexercised
the balance standing to the credit of Employee’s Stock Option (Grant)
Outstanding account is transferred to General Reserve. The fair market
price is the latest available closing price, preceding the date of grant of the
option, on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Bank are listed.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised in ‘Payments to and provision for employees’ is the
expense as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification which increases the total intrinsic/ fair value
of the share—based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

In respect of options granted to employees of subsidiaries, the Bank recovers
the related compensation cost from the respective subsidiaries.
Cash-settled scheme:

The cost of cash-settled transactions, stock appreciation rights (SARs) having
grant date on or before 31¢*March 2021 is measured initially using intrinsic
value method at the grant date taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the instruments were granted. Similar to Equity settled options,
SARs granted after 31 March, 2021 are measured on fair value basis.
The intrinsic / fair value is amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period with a recognition of corresponding liability. This liability is remeasured
at each balance sheet date up to and including the vesting date with changes
in intrinsic / fair value recognised in the profit and loss account in ‘Payments to
and provision for employees’. The SARs that do not vest because of failure to
satisfy vesting conditions are reversed by a credit to employee compensation
expense, equal to the amortised cost in respect of the lapsed portion.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency monetary assets and monetary liabilities are translated as
at the Balance Sheet date at rates notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’
Association of India (FEDAI) and the resultant gain or loss is accounted in
the Profit and Loss Account.

Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transactions except in respect of representative
office (which are integral in nature) expenses, which are translated at monthly
average exchange rates.

Outstanding forward (other than deposit and placement swaps) and spot
foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are
revalued at rates notified by FEDAI for specified maturities and at the
interpolated rates of interim maturities. In case of forward contracts of greater
maturities where exchange rates are not notified by FEDAI, are revalued
at the forward exchange rates implied by the swap curves in respective
currencies. The forward profit or loss on the forward contracts are discounted
using discount rate and the resulting profits or losses are recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account as per the regulations stipulated by the RBI.
Foreign exchange swaps “linked” to foreign currency deposits and placements
are translated at the prevailing spot rate at the time of swap. The premium
or discount on the swap arising out of the difference in the exchange rate
of the swap date and the maturity date of the underlying forward contract
is amortised over the period of the swap and the same is recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account.

Contingent liabilities on account of letters of credit, bank guarantees and
acceptances and endorsements outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date
denominated in foreign currencies and other foreign exchange contracts are
translated at year-end rates notified by FEDAI.

The financial statements of IBU and DIFC which are in the nature of non-
integral overseas operations are translated on the following basis: (a)
Income and expenses are converted at the average rate of exchange during
the period and (b) All assets and liabilities are translated at closing rate as
on Balance Sheet date. The exchange difference arising out of year end
translation is debited or credited as “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”
forming part of “Reserves and Surplus”.

Derivative transactions

Notional amounts of derivative transactions comprising of swaps, futures
and options are disclosed as off Balance Sheet exposures. The Bank
recognises all derivative contracts (other than those designated as hedges)
at fair value, on the date on which the derivative contracts are entered into
and are re-measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet or reporting
date. Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive
(positive marked to market) or as liabilities when the fair value is negative
(negative marked to market). Changes in the fair value of derivatives other
than those designated as hedges are recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account.

Outstanding derivative transactions designated as “Hedges” are accounted
in accordance with hedging instrument on an accrual basis over the life of
the underlying instrument. Option premium paid or received is recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account on expiry of the option. Option contracts are
marked to market on every reporting date.

Lease accounting

Leases where all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs in respect of operating leases such as legal
costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised as expense immediately in the
Profit and Loss Account.

Accounting for provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Bank has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of
business, including pending litigations, proceedings pending with tax
authorities and other contracts including derivative and long term contracts.
In accordance with Accounting Standard - 29 on ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, the Bank recognises a provision for
material foreseeable losses when it has a present obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are measured based
on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the
contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be
reasonably estimated, a disclosure to this effect is made as contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. The Bank does not expect the outcome
of these contingencies to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
results. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
if there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors.
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss Account to the extent
carrying amount of assets exceeds their estimated recoverable amount.

Taxes on income

The Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current
tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable
income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of
timing differences being the difference between the taxable income and the
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets on account of timing differences are recognised only to the
extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In case
of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, under tax laws, all the
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date, based upon
the Management’s judgement as to whether realisation is considered as
reasonably certain.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.
Changes in deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted
tax rates are given effect to in the Profit and Loss Account in the period of the
change.

Current tax assets and liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities are
off-set when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,
when the Bank has a legal right to off-set and when the Bank intends to settle
on a net basis.

Accounting for Dividend

As per AS 4 (Revised), with effect from April 2016, the Bank is not required to
provide for dividend proposed / declared after the Balance Sheet date. The
same shall be appropriated from next year amount available for appropriation.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, and share split.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or
loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted earnings per share reflect the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
equity shares were exercised or converted during the year.
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Share issue expenses Available for Sale
Shar(_a issue expenses are adjusted fro_m Securities Premium Account as Gross 57,266.95 -] 1,272.83| 18,848.68 —|6,877.86| 84,266.32
permitted by Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. Less: Provision for 1,239.08 - 4261 218.55 —| 468.23| 1,968.47
Credit cards reward points depreciation and NP
The Bank estimates the liability for credit card reward points and cost per Net - 56,027.87 - 11,230.22] 18,63013 - |6,409.63] 82,297.85
point using actuarial valuation conducted by an independent actuary, which Held for Trading
includes assumptions such as mortality, redemption and spends. Gross 1,496.40 = - 339.65 -1 699.65| 2,535.70
: Less: Provision for - - - - - - -
S t ti
egment repor .|ng - . . depreciation and NPI
In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI and Accounting Standard 17
(AS-17) on “Segment Reporting”, the Banks’ business has been segregated Net 1,496.40 - —| 339.65 - | 699.65| 253570
into the following segments whose principal activities were as under: Total Investments | 90,945.14 - | 1,272.83] 19,188.33| 3,179.02|7,577.51| 122,162.83
— — Less: Provision for 1,239.08 - 4261 218.55 10.13| 468.23| 1,978.60
Segment Principal activity — depreciation and NPI
Creasury BIU and | Money market, forex markel, deriatives, Net 89,706.06] | 1,230.22] 18.969.78] 3,168.89]7,109.28] 120,184.23
orporate Centre investments and primary dealership of
government se(?urities and Ba!ance Sheet ® in crore)
Management Unit (BMU) responsible for Asset I n t tside Indi
Liability Management and Corporate Centre nvestments outside 'ncia
which primarily comprises of support functions.. As at Government | Subsidiaries| Others Total Total
- - 31 March, 2023 | securities | and/ or joint investments | investments
Corpgrate/WhoIesale Wholesale t{orrowmgs and lendings and other (including ventures outside India
Banking related services to the corporate sector which local
are not included under retail banking. authorities)
Retail Banking Comprises of: Held to Maturity
Digital Banking Business involving digital banking products Gross - 38.33 - 38.33] 35,399.14
acquired by Digital Banking Unit including existing Less: Provision - - - - 10.13
digital banking products as identified by the for non-performing
Management in accordance with the instructions investments (NPI)
of the RBI vide its circular dated April 7, 2022. Net - 38.33 - 38.33|  35,389.01
Other Retail Banking | Includes (other than covered under Digital Available for Sale
Banking above): Gross 146.48 - 1,058.74 1,205.22|  85,471.54
I TLendin Less: Provision for - - 24.05 24.05 1,992.52
Commgrcial vehicle finance, personal loans depreciation and NP
home loans, agriculture fina;nce, other Ioané Net — 146.48 - 1,034.69 1,181.47 83,479.02
| services and exposures which fulfill the Held for Trading
four criteria for retail exposures laid down Gross - - - - 2,535.70
in Basel Committee on Banking Supervision Less: Provision for _ _ _ _ _
document ‘"International Convergence of depreciation and NPI
Capital Measurement and Capital Standards: Net - - - - 2,535.70
A Revised Framework". Total Invest 146.48 38.33 1,058.74 1,243.55| 123,406.38
Il | Branch Banking hess: P,r?,vision dfohrlpl - - 24,05 2405  2,002.65
Retail borrowings covering savings, current, epreciation an
term deposit accounts and Branch Banking Net 146.48 38.33| 1,034.69] 1,219.50] 121,403.73

network / services including distribution of
financial products.

Credit Cards

Receivables / loans relating to credit card
business.

Any other business not classified above.

Other Banking

business

A transfer pricing mechanism has been established by Asset Liability
Committee (ALCO) for allocation of interest cost to the above segments
based on borrowing costs, maturity profile of assets / liabilities etc. and which
is disclosed as part of segment revenue.

Segment revenues consist of earnings from external customers and
inter-segment revenues based on a transfer pricing mechanism. Segment
expenses consist of interest expenses including allocated operating expenses
and provisions.

Segment results are net of segment revenues and segment expenses
including interdivisional items.

Segment assets include assets related to segments and exclude tax related
assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities related to the segment excluding
net worth and employees’ stock option (grants outstanding).

Since the business operations of the Bank are primarily concentrated in
India, the Bank is considered to operate only in the domestic segment.

SCHEDULE 18 — NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

* Includes securities with face Value of X 8,447.61 crore pledged and encumbered for
availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility, margin requirements and with RBI

for LAF.
3. Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve:
(X in crore)
Particulars As at
31¢t March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
i) | Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments
a) | Opening balance 2,002.65 1,853.65
b) | Add: Provisions made during the year 0.64 237.22
c) | Less: Write-back of provisions during the year 1,435.99 88.22
d) | Closing balance 567.30 2,002.65
ii) | Movement of Investment Fluctuation
Reserve
a) | Opening balance 2,300.00 1,774.69
b) [ Add: Amount transferred during the year 1,200.00 525.31
c) | Less: Drawdown — —
d) | Closing balance 3,500.00 2,300.00
iii) | Closing balance in IFR as percentage of 2.85% 2.67%
closing balance of investments in AFS and
HFT / Current Category

A. DISCLOSURES AS LAID DOWN BY RBI CIRCULARS: 4. Details of Repo / Reverse Repo (excluding LAF and MSF transactions
1. Capital Adequacy Ratio: for the year) deals (in face value terms):
The Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratios as per Basel lll guidelines are as follows: Year ended 31t March, 2024:
(X in crore) ® in crore)
. As at — - - n
Particulars 315 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 Mlmm\fn Maxlmnjj_m Daily Averlage Out:;a::mg
Capital Ratios: : Particulars during | duing | during | 31%March,
(|) Common Equﬂy Tler.l C;apltal (CET 1) 87,991.19 77,036.40 the year the year the year 2024
(" A‘ddltlonaI.TlerlI C:apltal — 500.00 Securities sold under repos
(iii) |Tier | Capital (i + i) 87,991.19 | 77,536.40 i. [ Government securities - 896275 913.34 -
(iv) |[Tier Il Capital i 5,957.28 3,817.29 ii. [ Corporate debt securities - 185.71 11.05 -
(v) _|Total Capital (Tier | + Tier Il) 93,948.47 81,353.69 iii | Any other securities _ _ _ _
(vi) [Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 457,206.27 373,170.24 Securities purchased under reverse repos
(vii) |CET 1 Ratio (CET 1 as a percentage of RWAs) 19.25% 20.64% i [ Government securities —| 29,237.80 6,000.56 11,450.29
(viii) |Tier I Ratio (Tier | capital as a 19.25% 20.78% ii. | Corporate debt securities — 525.00 14.97 _
__|percentage of RWAs) _ iii | Any other securities - - - -
(ix) |Tier Il Ratio (Tier Il capital as a 1.30% 1.02%
percentage of RWAs) Year ended 31t March, 2023:
(x) |Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 20.55% 21.80% R in crore)
(Total Capital as a percentage of RWAs) Minimum | Maximum |Daily Average | Outstanding
(xi) |Leverage Ratio 13.12% 14.13% Particulars i i i as on
(xii) |Percentage of the shareholding of the Nil Nil during during during 31% March,
Government of India the year the year the year 2023
(xiii) |Amount of paid-up equity capital raised 218.22 282.40 Securities sold under repos
during the year # i.[ Government securities -] 15,355.95 1,862.17 170.20
(xiv) |Amount of non-equity Tier | capital ii.| Corporate debt securities - 253.57 14.81 -
raised during the year of which: iii] Any other securities - - - -
PNCPS Nil Nil Securities purchased under reverse repos
PDI Nil Nil .| Government securities -] 10,604.11 1,364.25 7,739.18
(xv) [Amount of Tier Il Capital raised during i.| Corporate debt securities - 500.00 7.70 -
the year of which: i Any other securities - - - -
PNCPS Nil Nil 5. Disclosure in respect of Non-SLR investments:
PDI Nil Ni (i) Non-performing Non-SLR investments:
#The Bank has allotted during the year 1,364,316 (previous year 1,894,822) equity
shares consequent to exercise of ESOPs vested. Accordingly, the share capital (X in crore)
further increased by ¥ 0.68 crore (previous year ¥ 0.95 crore) and share premium i Year ended
increased by ¥ 217.54 crore (previous year ¥ 281.45 crore), net of share issue Particulars 31% March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
expenses of T Nil (previous year T Nil). p
$The Bank has redeemed perpetual non-cumulative preference share capital /(333:!% bdala.nceth (7522: 153';8
(“PNCPS’) during the year. ||or.15 unng e year A .
2. Composition of Investment Portfolio RedLlJctlons during the year (19.58) (75.43)
® in crore) Closing bal.a?ce 124.00 78.67
- - Total provisions held 124.00 77.91
Investments in India
As at Government| Other | Shares | Debentures | Subsidiaries| Others Total (ii) Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at 31* March, 2024:
31¢t March, 2024 | Securities* | Approved and Bonds | andlor joint investments (X in crore)
- Securites ventures in India Extentof | Extentof | Extentof | Extentof
Held to Maturity Private | ‘Below | ‘Unrated’ | ‘Unlisted’
Gross 28,517.74 - - -| 3,.902.02 —| 32,419.76, No. Issuer Amount  |Placement I it iti
Less: Grade’
Provision for Qaeuritt
non-performin
e ente 1) @ @) & ) ) [
(NPI) - - - - - - - 1 | PSUs 608.27 [ 475.00 - - -
Net 28,517.74 - - [ 3,902.02 —[32,419.76 2 |Fls 9.441.36 | 8,065.55 - —| 753745
Available for Sale 3 | Banks 5,125.22| 2,390.08 —| 414.64| 4,531.24
Gross 77,485.52 - | 1,267.83| 14,524.76 -] 5,869.50( 99,147.61 4 | Private Corporates  [19,988.18 [16,064.18 | 244.58 | 866.78| 6,762.68
Less: Provision 5 | Subsidiaries, Associates | 3,940.34 | 2,036.58 —| 3,940.34| 3,940.34
for depreciation and Joint Ventures
|and NP1 242 o] 4325 M -| 17763 54848 6 | Others 3,178.38 | 2,668.54| 389.28| 363.57| 290060
Net 77,191.28 -| 1,224.58| 14,491.42 -| 5,691.87| 98,599.15 7 | Provision held
Held for Trading towards depreciation | (273.06) - - - -
Gross 7,686.05 - - | 2.357.94 - [ 12,621.97| 22,665.96 Total 42,008.69 [31,699.93 | 633.86 | 5,585.33 |25,672.31
Less: Provision Issuer also include investments held outside India.
for depreciation Amounts reported under column (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.
and NPI - - - - - - - . . o .
Net 7,686.05 — “| 23570 " 12,621.97| 22,66596 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at 31t Mar(fh, 2023:
Total | 113,689.31 — [ 1,267.83] 16,882.70] 3,902.02] 18,491.47] 154,233.33 R in crore)
Less: Provision Extent of | Extentof | Extentof | Extentof
for depreciation Private | ‘Below | ‘Unrated’ | ‘Unlisted’
and NPI 294.24 - 43.25 33.34 -| 17763 548.46 No. Issuer Amount | Placement |Investment | Securities | Securities
Net 113,395.07 -] 1,224.58) 16,849.36| 3,902.02| 18,313.84 153,684.87 '_G”"!?'
R in crore) () @ ®) “) ©) ©) U]
Investments outside India 1 |PSUs 672.88 566.50 - - -
As at Government | Subsidiaries| Others Total Total 2 |Fls 739.64 40.00 - —| 699.64
31 March, 2024 | ~securities | and/ or joint investments | investments 3 [ Banks 605.77| 397.65 —| 400.34| 20543
(mcluhdmsllocal ventures outside India 4 | Private Corporates [24,023.73[18,66349| 358.71|  901.20 | 6,248.50
_ authorities) 5 | Subsidiaries,
Held to Maturity Associates and
Gross - 38.32 - 38.32| 32,458.08 Joint Ventures 3,217.35| 1,850.71 -] 3217.35| 3,217.35
Less: Provision
for non-performing 6 | Others 3,201.87| 2,71858| 684.70 914.40| 3,055.38
investments (NPI) - - - - - 7 | Provision held
Net - 38.32 - 38.32| 32,458.08 towards
Available for Sale depreciation (763.57) - - - -
Gross 21778 -| 142163| 1,699.41] 100,847.02 Total 31,607.67 | 24,236.93| 1,043.41| 5433.29[13,42630
Less: Provision for I 1so include i tments held outside Indi
depreciation and NP - = 18.84 18.84 567.30 Ssuer also include investments held outside India.
Net 277.78 — 1,402.79 1,680.57| 100,279.72 Amounts reported under column (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.
Held for Trading During the year ended 31t March, 2024 and year ended 31 March, 2023,
Gross - - - —|  22,665.96 the value of sale / transfer of securities to / from HTM category (excluding
Less: Provision for one-time transfer of securities, permitted sales by RBI consequent to a
depreciation and NPI - - - - - downward revision in SLR requirements and sales to RBI under Open
Net - - - -|  22,665.96 Market Operation auctions/Switch/GSAP) was within 5% of the book value
Total I " 27778 38.32 142163 1,737.73| 155,971.06 of instruments in HTM category at the beginning of the year.
Less: Provision for 1884 18.84 567.30 Derivatives:
depreciation and NP _ _ . - . A. Forward Rate Agreements/ Interest Rate Swaps:
Net 277.78 38.32 1,402.79 1,718.89| 155,403.76 i crore)
*Includes securities with face Value of ¥ 4,327.45 crore pledged and encumbered for Asat
availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility, margin requirements and with RBI for LAF. i
v g facilly. marginreq ) Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
(R in crore) The notional principal of swap 134,487.28 91,083.25
Investments in India agreements
As at Government| Other | Shares | Debentures | Subsidiaries| Others Total Losses which would be incurred if 933.94 995.81
31t March, 2023 | Securities* | Approved and Bonds | andlor joint investments counterparties failed to fulfill their
TRETT ventures in India obligations under the agreements
eld to Maturity -
Gross 3218179 — — 317902 T 3536081 Colla?erall required by the Bank upon NA NA
— entering into swaps
Less: Provision " — —
for non-performing Concentration of credit risk arising 32.19%(Banks) | 56.47%(Banks)
investments (NPI) - - - - 10.13 - 10.13 from the swaps
Net 32,181.79 - - —| 3,168.89 —| 35,350.68 The fair value of the swap book 186.02 419.30
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B. Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives: 2 |Marked to Market Positions ** year Nil) in respect of the Bank’s asset classification and provisioning under Disclosure on Resolution of stressed assets:
 in crore) the extant prudential norms on income recognition asset classification and In terms of the RBI circular dated 7t June 2019 on Prudential Framework
a) Asset (+) 79.87 419.30 L c - - - , k ) !
Asat b) Liabilly (1) — — provisioning (IRACP) which require such disclosures. for Resolution of Stressed Assets, during the financial year ended
Particulars . . " 14. Sector-wise Advances and Gross NPAs 31stMarch 2024, the Bank has implemented Resolution plan (RP) for Nil
31"March, 2024 | 31+ March, 2023 3 |Credit Exposure 8,735.13 1,448.19 ® in crore) borrower (previous year one borrower), for which Inter Creditor Agreement
Notional principal amount of exchange - - 4 |Likely impact of one percentage change (ICA) was executed under consortium arrangement / multiple banking
traded interest rate derivatives in interest rate (100*PV01) * As at 31* March, 2024 arrangement. Borrowers for whom resolution plan is implemented under
undertaken during the year a) On hedging derivatives - - Pe;céntage sole banking arrangement are not included here as no ICA is required.
Notional principal amount of - - b) On trading derivatives 60.95 1,305.18 sl. Outstanding %PA's"ts: In respect of certain borrowers with banking system exposure of 1,500
exchange traded interest rate 5 | Maxi £100"PV01 ob d duri No Sector Total Gross Total crore or more, where RP formulation / implementation was pending,
derivatives outstanding thzx;:aurr? o observed during Advances® | NPAS | aqio es the required additional provision has been made as required by RBI
f stipulations.
Notional principal amount of NA NA a) On hedging derivatives _ _ in that pulatt
h ded i = — Sector 17. Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue:
exchange traded interest rate b) On trading derivatives 70.41 1,332.53 A | Priority Sect
derivatives outstanding and not — - : riority Sector (% in crore)
“highly effective” * 6 | Minimum of 1°°*PV01 observed 1 | Agricultural and Allied Activities 42,885.36 | 1,646.23 3.84% FYYT
Mark to market value of exchange NA NA du"gg :‘Zy.e il Sovat 2 | Advances to Industries Sector 50.274.69 | 24361 0.48% Particulars 31+ March, 2024] 31 March, 2023
traded interest rate derivatives a) Onhe ging e'rlva'tlves - - ?)hfgvlyr:ﬁ:ﬁseségg?nse’?(t)?‘/r lending, Total Assets 8,962.40 716817
outstanding and not “highly effective” * b) On trading derivatives 55.62 180.84 9 o - -
— - — - - — Textiles 7,856.83 14.15 Total NPAs Nil Nil
) Being trading ;?osmons ) o Currency interest rate swaps have been included under currency derivatives. _Rubber, Plastic and their Products 5213.98 557 Total Revenue 506.05 266.38
C Disclosures on risk exposures in derivatives: * Excludes PV01 on options. 3 [ Services Of which exceeding 10%: | 74,059.32 | 795.13 107% | 18, Disclosure of transfer of loan exposures
Qualitative disclosures: ** MTM has been considered at product level. -Whglgsale Trade _ 23,346.39 137.88 Details of loans transferred/acquired for the year ended 31st March, 2024
a) Structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading: ** The net position has been shown either under asset or liability, as the case -Logistics and Auxiliary transport 20,025.35 342.23 and 31t March, 2023 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of Loan
The Board of Directors, the Risk Management Committee (RMC), Board may be, for each type of derivatives. The MTM does not include MTM on Export activities Exposures dated 24" September, 2021 are given below:
Committee for Derivatives products, the Asset Liability Management Bills — Discounted, B{JLRETdea/s and Internal deals between KMBL and GIFT, 4 Persopal Loans elmd others, 2,490.25 12.79 0.51% (i) The Bank has not transferred any Loans not in default, Special Mention
Committee (ALCO), the Senior Management Committee for Derivatives where counterparty is Kotak Bank. Of which exceeding 10%: Account (SMA) and Non-performing Assets (NPAs). (previous year Nil).
(SMC) and the Risk Management Department are entrusted with the The nature and terms of the Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) as on 31%t March, 2023 -Home Loans 1,631.08 4.06 (ii) Details of Loans not in default acquired from eligible lenders through
management of risks in derivatives. are set out below: -Micro Loans 539.63 7.48 assignment:
The philosophy and framework for the derivative business is laid out in (X in crore) Sub-Total (A) 169,709.62 | 2,697.75 1.59% z -
the Board approved Investment and Derivative policies. The ALCO of Nature | No.* Notional |Benchmark Terms B | Non Priority Sector s cr:re texcep enor
the Bank is empowered to set the limit-framework for derivatives. It also Principal : n L 1,283.10 72.37 5.64% r. Particulars S a
reviews the market risk exposures of derivatives against the limits. The Tradin 1 4525 EURIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floatin 1 |Agricultural a”‘? Allied Actllvmes — TR Fvded . 020; No 31tMarch, 2024 | 31¢ March, 2023
Risk Management Committee reviews all risks on a consolidated basis T 3 1505 T EURBOR | Racove Fioatng Vo Ba Fires 2 |Industry, Of which exceeding 10%: 899 : ek 1 | Aggregate amount of loans acquired 1,784.43 404.97
and also defines the risk appetite. rading : eceive Floating Vs. Pay Fixe -Infrastructure 16,367.97 40.87 2 | Agareqate consideration paid 1843.61 371.08
Trading 19| 486.89 | LIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating : - - greg P 29, :
The Board Committee for Derivatives products and the Senior > : - — - 3 | Services, Of which exceeding 10%:| 49,540.84 | 576.36 1.16% 3 | Weighted average residual maturity 1.41 years 1.9 years
Management Committee for Derivatives (SMC) oversee the client Trad!ng 104 | 6,970.17 LIBOR Rece!ve Float!ng Vs. Pay F'Xed, -NBFC 7,219.02 - 4 | Weighted average holding period of 0.53 years 3.26 years
derivatives business. These committees are responsible for reviewing Trad!ng 1 164.34 LIBOR Rece!ve Float!ng Vs. Pay F!oatlng “Real Estate 5,063.79 0.00% originator ' '
and approving the derivative products that can be offered to clients (within Trading 65| 4,520.84 | SOFR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Wholesale Trade 936931 201.36 - — — -
the regulatory framework provided by the RBI). The Board approved Trading 22| 1,548.39 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating ~Financial Intermediation exciudin 6’668'08 . — 5 | Retention of beneficial economic interest 100% Nil
‘Customer Suitability and Appropriateness Policy for Derivatives’ lays Trading 1 73.95 SOFR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floating broking services 9 e 6 | Coverage of tangible security Nil 100%
dovyn Fhe risk management & governance framework for offering Trading 200 | 7,527.76 MIFOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating 9 o coverage(%)
derivatives. Trading 35| 2,235.00 | MIFOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed 4 g?ﬁﬁ;i' :;i";gi’r‘]d (;tgl;r_s, 105,721.41 | 1,380.52 1.31% 7 | Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Retail loans - NA| Retail loans — NA
The Bank has Operations and Risk Management functions - independent Trading 90 | 4,105.00 | Mod MIFOR| Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating E (i) Details of Special Mention Accounts (SMAs) acquired:
of the dealing function. The Market Risk Management & Counterparty Risk Trading 19 | 1,340.00 | Mod MIFOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed -Homg Loans 58,969.90 147.81
Management Departments are responsible for assessment, monitoring, Trading | 379 |14,983.87 | MIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating -Credit Cards 1483783 | 79222 X crore except tenor
measurement & reportmq of market & counterp:arty risks |.n derivati ¢ Trading | 1,133 |40,370.91 MIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed -Personal Loans 12,754.13 32115 From lenders listed in Clause 3 of the circular dated
b) Scoqs and nat:Jre Qf risk measurement, risk reporting and risk Trading | 194 | 6,664.23 FBILF Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Sub-Total (B) 210,380.61 | 2,577.03 1.22% ' . _ 24" September, 2021 .
:1"07“ O:INQ syskemfs.h s o g e Total 2,264 |91,083.25 Total (A+B) 380,090.23 | 5,274.78 1.39% P:rﬂollo ralcqulred Aggregate Prlnclfpal Aggregate Weighted ave;age
significant risks of the derivative portfolio are monitored, measure - - f uring the year tanding of i i residual tenor of loans
repoged to the senior management. 'IF')he Treasury Middle Office, on a daily *Benchmark FBIL pertains to trades done in Rates FRA product. *Amount s less than 50,000 es:ldedy loans acquired paid acquired (in Years)
bas?s, measures & reports risk-metrics like Value-at-Risk (VaR), PV01, The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Swaps (CCS) as on 315t March, 2023 (X in crore) 31st March, 2024 87.99 50.68 1.06
Option Greeks like Delta, Gamma, Vega, Theta, Rho etc. Counterparty are set out below: As at 31° March, 2023 315 March. 2023 176.79 110.87 1.89
Risk exposure of the derivatives portfolio is also monitored & reported  in crore) * Percentage : - - -
daily: The Treasury Middle Qfﬁce independently reports proﬂtabi'lity on Nature | No* | Notional Benchmark Terms of Grosg (iv) Details of Non-performing Assets (NPAs) acquired:
a dally_ basis. Rate reasonability tests are pgrformed on the Derivative Principal Sl Sector Outstanding G NPAs to  crore except tenor
portfolio to ensure that all trades are entered into at market rates. Stress - — n No Total ross Total
testing is performed to measure the impact of extreme market shifts on the Trading 3 289.18 EURIBOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Advances* | NPAS | Advances From lenders listed in Clause 3 of the circular dated
Bank’s portfolio (including derivatives). Suitability and Appropriateness Trading | 3| 289.18 EURIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed in that 24" September, 2021
assessment is performed before offering derivatives to clients. The Bank Trading 4 274.74 FIXED Pay Fixed Sector Portfolio acquired | Aggregate Principal |  Aggregate Weighted average
continuously invests in technology to enhance the Risk Management Trading 3 237.60 FIXED Receive Fixed i A [ Priority Sector during the year fing of iderati residual tenor of loans
architecture. Trading { 67 [ 2,329.25 FIXED Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed _ 1 | Agricultural and Allied Activities 39,696.68 | 1,496.95 3.77% ended loans acquired paid acquired (in Years) *
c) Policies for hedging and/ or mitigating risk and strategies and pr Egg:;g 12 7 72;23 EURlB?Eg;‘ LIBOR ;Zgz:zz E:g::rl?s\/;:al:ylojgstmg 2 | Advances to Industries Sector, 53,833.32 221.74 0.41% 31¢ March, 2024 1,979.11 76.00 1.53
for monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges / mitigants: n Ty - - Ys. ay roalng eligible as Priority sector lending 31¢t March, 2023 1,862.83 259.90 8.09
. > e . X X Trading 3 1,039.51 LIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Of which exceeding 10%: - .
The Board Approved ‘Hedging Policy’ details the hedging strategies, Trading 5 690.35 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating ol 757327 20.62 $- Weighted Average residual tenor of loans is excluding limit based facilities
hedging processes, accounting treatment, documentation requirements Tradi 18 1609.65| SOFR Vs. EURIBOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floati extiles 2919 -
and effectiveness testing for hedges. T:)atalrg 12318 5’60 ‘73 S. eceive Foaling Vs. Fay Floating -All Engineering 5,557.82 9.33 (v) Details of recovery ratings assigned for Security Receipts as :
Hedges are monitored for effectiveness periodically, in accordance with = 3 | Services, Of which exceeding 10%: 52,649.70 | 657.41 1.25% Y i : " ; "
the Board Approved Policy. *Above notional principal does not include trades done with GIFT-City branch -Wholesale Trade 15,947.33 76.69 Recovery Rating Q:ct::'s:;e:s Carry;nsga\tlalue Carry;nsga\tlalue
d) Accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; smce_rtgets zeroed atbajink level however, only count of trades done is specified. _LOIQiIS-ﬁCS and Auxiliary transport 12,734.47 259.38 per Recovery | 31% March, 2024 31 March, 2023
recognition of income, premiums and discounts; valuation of 8- Creditdefault swaps: ) ) ) activities Rating (R crore) R crore)
outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation: The Bank has not entered into any Credit Default Swap transactions (previous 4 | Personal Loans and others, 2,633.62 14.68 0.56% NR1/R1+/RR1+ >150% 176.51 114
Derivative transactions are segregated into trading or hedge year Nil). Of which exceeding 10%: NR2/R1/RR1 100% - 150% 208.79 447.04
transactions. Trading transactions outstanding as at the Balance Sheet ~ 9- Classification of advances and provisions held: -Home Loans 1,314.41 0.91 NR3/R2/RR2 75% - 100% 3553 36.12
dates are marked to market and the resulting profits or losses, are As at 31%t March, 2024 (X in crore) -Micro Loans 1,086.18 8.14 NR4/R3/RR3 50% - 75% 114.87 134.33
recorded in the Profit and Loss Account. Standard Non-Performing Sub-Total (A) 148,813.32 | 2,390.78 1.61% NR5/RA/RRA 25%-50% 001 209
— 6-50% . .
Derivative transactions designated as “Hedges” are accounted in . Total Sl TotalNon- [+ B | Non Priority Sector NRG/R5/RR5 0% - 25% Z _
accordance with hedging instruments on an accrual basis over the life Particulars Standard S(a:d:;rd Doubtful | Loss |Performing| "o 1| Agricultural and Allied Activities 566.95 65.93 11.63% Yot iobe rated™ 13460 5007
of the underlying instrument. Advances Advances 2 | Industry, Of which exceeding 10%: 40,064.46 | 878.23 2.19% Unrated — 0'27 0'09
Option premium paid / received is accounted for in the Profit and Loss Gross Standard Advances and NPAs _Chemicals and Chemical Products 5,640.31 3313 — - .
Account on expiry of the option. Opening Balance 318,695.94| 1,528.74/ 3,970.41|269.17| 5,768.32|324,464.26 Metal and Metal Products 5.047.08 23.81 Total 670.58 1,155.78
Pursuant to the RBI guidelines, any receivables as well positive Mark to Add: Additions during the year 5,001.11 Infrastructure 5'004 10 2087 A - Recovery Rating is as assigned by various external rating agencies.
Market (MTM) in respect of future receivable under derivative contracts Less: Reductions during the year (*) 549465 - - o - * - Net of Provisions.
- F N | . . P s -Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and 4,428.25 39.22 - .
comprising of crystallised receivables which remain overdue for more Closing Balance 374,815.45( 2,092.78| 2,979.65|202.35( 5,274.78(380,090.23 Transport Equipments - Recent purchases whose statutory period has not elapsed.
than 90 days are reversed through the Profit and Loss Account. Full ) Reductions n Gross NPAS due [0 — 19. Unsecured Advances
provision is made for the entire amount of overdue and future receivables P E e - AT RCREAT -All Er?glneenng 4,354.57 99.90 )
relating to positive marked to market value of non-performing derivative ') a . - (1.737.08)| (1,737.08) 3 —SerVIlces, ) 41,602.20 | 542.05 1.30% R in crore)
contracts. Limits for counterparty exposure (arising from derivative i) ?ecovenesd(e;clud\ngtre)coverles (1,499.65)| (1,499.65) Of which exceeding 10%: Particulars 31tMarch, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
trades) to Corporates are approved by the Credit Committee and for __| 1fom upgraded accounts) -NBFC 10,591.48 -
Banks by the ALCO. These limits are renewable annually and are duly i) Technical Prudentil Wife-ofs B - Real Estate 640068 |  43.00 ;0“"' ‘f‘”ﬁecuged advances °: thj bank - 8757375 | 66,348.92
supported by ISDA agreements. MTM breaches are monitored daily iv) | Write-offs other than those (2,257.92)| (2.257.92) Wholesale Trade 5.189.81 7171 ut of the above, amount of advances for - -
and are cash collateralised wherever necessary. Further, to mitigate _ covered under (i) above _ — “Financial Intermediation excluding 755522 178 which intangible securities such as charge
the current exposure in noncentrally cleared forex and derivative Pr { Floating Provisions) broking services gverthekrlghts, licenses, authority, etc. have
transactions, Bank has entered into Credit Support Annex (‘CSA) Opening balance of provisions held 28.03| 837.21| 3,468.64| 269.17| 4,575.02| 4,603.05 7 [Personal loans and ofhers, 93.417.34 | 1.891.33 2.02% een taken - .
agreements with some of the major international counterparty banks 'Add: Fresh provisions made 305516 Of which exceeding 10%: Ejzt:lg:i?it:: value of such intangible - -
an(_i fej/v Ind!an financial institutions. during the year _ “Home Loans 56.046.07 149.62
Quantitative Disclosures: Less: Exdc7wss_prov‘!fs||on (3,625.97) _Credit Cards 11,081.14 792.22 20. Business ratios / information:
31° March 2024: reversed MWite of loans -Personal Loans 10,987.58 | 549.89 Year ended
® in crore) Closing balance of provisions held 10.75| 1,069.71| 2,732.15(202.35| 4,004.21| 4,014.96 Sub-Total (B) 175’650l94 3 377'54 1.92% Particulars 31 March. 2024 | 31+ March, 2023
Sr. Particular Currency | Interest rate Net NPAs Total (A+B) 324,464.26 | 5,768.32 1.78% Interest income as a percentage of working 8.66% 7.72%
No. articulars Derivatives* | Derivatives Opening Balance 69153 501.77) | 1,193.30 " funds (A)
1 | Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Add: Fresh additions durin: Represents Gross Advances i
For hodai P 50 o0 the year g 1,945.95 The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal Nonk-'lntefresdt incoms as & percentage of 1.94% 1.60%
Z) For edgmg 522 317'25 134 487.28 Less: Reductions during the year (1,868.68) MIS system. ponme e
1 i . . . , A i 0, 0,
) For trading — - - i _ 15. Priority sector lending certificates Cost of deposits 477% 3.65%
2 [Marked to Market Positions ** Closing Balance 1,023.07| 247.50 1,270.57 - y o
) Asset (+) T86.02 Ratios The amount of PSLCs (category wise) Purchased and Sold during the year: Net Interest Margin (E) 5.32% 5.33%
a) Asse - . - - o 5
b) Liability () 521 Gross NPA to Gross Advances (%) 1.39% As at 31¢t March, 2024: 32rekriign%s&(;fl(tBa)s&a(ETrcentage of 3.71% 3.35%
. - > 5 .
3 | Credit Exposure 12,655.54 1,852.34 ;‘ZtNPAm Ne;Ad"a;m(;“), TSP p———— o O'f:/° - e (: in crore) Return on assets (average) (F) 261% 2.47%
- - ove numbers do not include standard asset provision on Advances (other than r.No Type of PSLCs Purchased old - -
4 !"k.EIy impact of one percentage change provision for country risk and unhedged foreign currency exposures) amounting to 1 PSLC — Agriculture 2.800.00 4.712.00 Business (deposit plus advance) per 9.63 8.73
in interest rate (100*PV01) # st Al 2L employee (X in crore) (C)
R 1,547.53 crore as at 315 March, 2024. 2 PSLC — SF/ MF 11.290.00 _
a) On hedging derivatives = = . - - — Profit per employee (X in crore) 0.18 0.15
b) On trading derivatives 5595|  1,418.33 As at 31* March, 2023 R in crore) 3| PSLC - Micro Enterprises -] 27,342.00 rmTr—
2 - — Standard Non-Performing 4 PSLC — General - 35,500.00 Definitions:
5 imum of 1.00*PV01. ob_served during the year Particul Total Sub- TotalNon- | o TOTAL 14,090.00 67,554.00 (A) | Working funds to be reckoned as average of total assets (excluding
a) On hedging derivatives - - articufars Standard |- | Doubtful | Loss | Performing As at 31 March. 2023: accumulated losses, if any) as reported to Reserve Bank of India in Form X,
b) On trading derivatives 63.82 1,549.01 Advances Advances ! ® in crore) during the 12 months of the financial year.
o * Gross Standard Advances and NPAs 0 ti fit = (Int t + Other | — Interest —
6 | Minimum of 100*PV01 observed | Gross Standard Advances : B perating profit = (Interest Income er Income — Interest expenses
during the year Opening Balance 269,556.47] 1,792.01] 4,397.42] 28031] _6469.74] 276,028.21 S'-1"° e ZVP_" ‘th PSLCs Purchased 59°:)d50 " ®) 1 Gperating oxpenses).
——— - — Agriculture - ,050. - - -
0 On o s = e - T Psle=F e O e o
i vati —— 60 3 PSLC — Micro Enterprises - 28,477.75 kil .
b) On trading derivatives s2.n 1:293.01 Closing 318,695.94| 1,52874] 3970.41( 269,17 5,768.32] 324464.26 TPl G 5035600 (D) | Productivity ratios are based on average number of employees.
Currency interest rate swaps have been included under currency derivatives. (*) Reductions in Gross NPAs due to: enera 2200 - —
# Excludes PVO1 on options. i | Upgradation 203 20H3) TOTAL 9,360.00 58,383.75 (E) | Net Interest Income/ Average Earning Assets. Net Interest Income=
. o . . - - Ty . | | _ Interest Income — Interest Expense.
*Forwards in currency derivatives includes TOM, Spot deal. i) | Recoveries (excluding (1,859.60)| (1,859.60) 16. Details of accounts subjected to restructuring* . .
- . ] N ies f ded (F) | Return on Assets would be with reference to average working funds
The net position has been shown either under asset or liability, as the case may recoveries from upgrade (i.e., total of assets excluding accumulated losses, if any)
be, for each type of derivatives.The MTM does not include MTM on Export Bills — accounts) (X in crore) — d -
Discounted, BULRET deals and Internal deals between KMBL and GIFT, where fi) | Technical / Prudential Wite-offs (9339)]  (93.39) Agriculture and|  Corporates Micro, Small and 21. Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:
counterparty is Kotak Bank. ) | Write-offs other than those (696.98))  (696.6) allied activities | (excluding Medium 31 March, 2024:
The nature and terms of the Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) as on 31% March, 2024 covered under (iii) above MSME) Enterprises (MSME) ’ i ® in crore)
are set out below: Provisions ( ding Floating Provisions) Particulars i
A A A A A A Particul Day1| 2to7| 8to14| 15to| 31d: Over2| Over3( Over6( Over1| Over3| Over5  Total
® in crore) Opening halance of provisions held | 4157 863.11] 350961 | 28031 4733.03] 477460 Al ROl Rl Rovhll RPN i TR Ss| | 30| 2| months| monts| months| years| yearss| yews|
Notional Add: Fresh provisions made 231356 March, | March, | March, | March, | March, | March, days | months & & &| upto3| upto5
Nature | No.* | b cipal |Benchmark Terms during the year A 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 wiod) uptf) ol years| - years
N ) months | months [  years
Trading | 2 874.96 | EURIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating oSS Ercese PO (A Number of borrowers 191 10f ! - 391 685 Advances" | 55022381238 46003866033 13.26050] a7nse] foga.0] s 0758 o[ mouaselfr ez weorsan
Trading |2 874.96 | EURIBOR | Receive Floating Vs, Pay Fixed reversed /Write-offloans Standard | Gross Amount  crore) | 12.45 | 1457 | 19.71 —| 31259 54650 onoes it ‘ s Rl R L
Trading | 158 | 11.059.48 | SOFR | Receive Floating Vs Pay Fixed Closing balance of 2803| 837.21 346864 | 26917 457502 4,603.05 Provsion heldf T core) | 131 138 — — 391 7199 74361323524 62| 23nesfasmman] asre2n| 74r072] oaase]1373235] 915t 27sa] osoa] sy
Trading | 48 2,746.86 SOFR__| Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating provisions held Number of borrowers 203 70 - - % 28 Deposits | 113530]1902538[ 12454 3 74068] 2070.62{20 98 38 73 6.2 1102181] a8 5] 1,13361]_366.98{ 48375
Trading | 1 431.34 | SONIA__| Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Net NPAs Sub- [ Gross Amount Rorore) | 571|766 = T mn | Fw IR I S R R S ) D I (S X
Trading |1 43134 | SONIA | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Opening Balance 92890 | 807.81| -] 173671 standard : : : :
| : , 1 Vs. ] ; ——— Provision held  crore) | 144 | 145 - | 49| 2547 Foreign | 115454 45080] 16007| 7418 oaasf 19143| ®4s62) 65b4B1| 63032 4mose| 57822| st
Trading 6 356.50 | SOFRVs. | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floating Add: Fresh additions during the year 1,676.36 Currenc
SOFR Less: Reductions during the year 221977) Number of borrowers 259| 18] M ! 663 603 Asses”
Trading | 311 | 13,781.10 | Mod MIFOR| Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Closing Balance 691.53 | 501.77 -] 1,193.30 Doubtiul [Gross Amount R crore) g;g; 1;?; 51133 lgggg 13;;2 12‘1552 Foreign | ST |1 Tss] 7] (et 2aea] S| 2iea| v ] A
Trading | 91 | 5,740.00 | Mod MIFOR | Receive Floating Vs, Pay Fixed Ratios :’°n‘:':°r" ';el‘)d S 3;"?) S T T Currency
0/ 0/ iabiliti
Trading | 919 | 30,612.29 | MIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Gross NPAto Gross Advances (1) 178% G" er o t‘; ers ot T T e T e Liabiiies
Trading | 1,889 | 58,990.94 MIBOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 0.37% Total ross Amoun R crore)| 60. : : : : : * Listed equity investments in AFS have been considered at 50% (¥596.23 crore) haircut
- " —— - Above numbers do not include standard asset provision on Advances (other than Provision held (X crore)] 40.57 | 15.01) 211.00 | 190.06 | 20409 | 218.86 as per RBI directions
Trading | 452 8,387.51 FBIL Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating e . . . - . o . .
provision for country risk and unhedged foreign currency exposures) amounting to . 15,051 crore of Standing Deposit Facility with RB is considered.
Total 3,880 (134,487.28 F1.449.75 crore as at 31% March, 2023 Rin crore) AE . y 8 L ” .
n - $499. g - - n Funds raised through bills rediscounted and Inter Bank Participatory Certificate amounting
*Benchmark FBIL pertains to trades done in Rates FRA product. . i . Retail (excluding Total $15.653.46 crore are netted off against advances
« March, 2024 10. Movement of Technical Write-offs and Recoveries: agriculture and MSME) ,653. g .
The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Swaps (CCS) as on 31 March, Zi ; In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been
are set out below: R in crore) Particulars As on As on As on As on !
. . Year ended 31%t March, | 31¢t March, | 31% March, | 31¢t March, made by the Bank's Management.
: Rin crore) Particulars 31" March, 2024 | 31"March, 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 315t March, 2023: )
Nature | No.* F’,“.’""."a'l Benchmark Terms Opening balance of Technical / Prudential 1581.89 1.818.80 Number of borrowers 1,027 1505 1,438 2,291 . R in crore)
T n "3’:;";3 EURBOR T Receve Frad V Py Fioai written-off accounts as at 1= April Standard | Gross Amount  crore) 149.24 265.14 493.99 826.21 Parculars | - Day1 2;:: 3212 15;3 31“:5 mmi mm mm: 0::;; g:resfg OV:afr: Total
racing . ccelve Tixed Vs. Tay Tloaling Add: Technical / Prudential write-offs durin: - isi # il Tl !
Trading | 4 | 364.91| EURIBOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed thevess 9 93.39 Provision held" (¥ crore) 28.51 ar.21 68.76 |  120.64 days| monhs| upo | uplo6| 8| uplo3| uptoS
Trading | 3 270.82 FIXED Pay Fixed b . . Number of borrowers 10,841 7,365 11,139 7,579 months | months | uptot|  years | years
Trading | 3 | 24117 FIXED Receive Fixed Less: Recoveries / Reductions made from (481.05) (330.30) Substandard | Gross Amount % crore) 105.69 86.41 16492 14201 yeas
n n n - previously Technical / Prudential written-off — Advances” | 1,553.16| 2,642.88|3,061.59| 5,074.61| 10,837.81) 12,140.90{ 15,807.61{45,951.14| 131,14129) 32,275.74 5937448 319.861.21
Trading | 52 | 2,004.94 FIXED Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed accounts during the year Provision held (3 crore) 47.78 41.87 66.71 68.89
Trading | 1 32.81 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed Cioding Bal T To— 005 T Nomber of borrowars 3510 23057 a4 | 23850 e [35764453 5028 016 71 ] 41607 3671 st o037 et ] 5] 4] mans
Trading | 37 | 2.931.41 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating osing Balance as af arc ,100. ,581. boustal[Gross Amount o) N 10012 7466 032 Deposis 107418817067 45 383868 829028 1673901 14 526 9] 4 517.13[ 5438728 e 51 181281 419.98[ 330605
Trading | 4 | 1,117.69 SOFR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed| 1. The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) of the Bank after considering technical Provision held (€ crore] e 5051 31 a6 | 69405 Barowings | 57 4]4sevs] ssas] ansoe] 1o0m] 9] senst] el aeo] o] 1gooo| seren
Trading | 17 | 441.00| SOFRVs. | Receive Floating Vs. write-off is 80.07% as at 31 March, 2024 (previous year 83.77%. Number of borrowers 15378 927 oz 3720 Foreign | 95146[ 1903.04| 526.53[ 1.92190] 158560| 188548| 2480.10( 220010( 27939 75| 26142 teseten
EURIBOR | Pay Floafing 12. Concentration of NPAs: Gross Amount © w0950 | T51e9| 120357 174758 iy
Trading | 2| 1.000.86 | SOFRVs. | Receive Floating Vs. Rincrore) | A oo : ' 566, 5. Foregn | | srose| o3| o] ooz sotee| 1smnsn| 17omse| 7w ereee| e
TORF Pay Floating - Aot Provision held (X crore) 211.27 459.65 666.93 883.58 Curency : - . - . B8] 1083 1, 928, : Bo[ 14,330.
Total | 127] 8,771.34 Particulars 31" March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 *Restructuring as defined as per applicable regulations. *L\a.bwlmes _ _ _ L i
*Above notional principal does not include trades done with GIFT-City branch since Total Exposure to top twenty NPA accounts* 610.61 653.47 * - does not include provisions made over regulatory requirement as on 31 March, 2024 Listed equity investments in AFS have been considered at 50% (3598.68 crore) haircut as
it gets zeroed at bank level however, only count of trades done is specified. amounting to ¥ 43.08 crore (previous year ¥ 82.50). per RBI directions.
Thge overnight Net open position as at 3 1}; March. 2024 is € 142 78pcrore (previous Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest 11.58% 11.33% piscl he sch for MSME . fad A Funds raised through bills rediscounted and Inter Bank Participatory Certificate amounting
id ?V331|921 crore)p positi s I . previou NPA exposure to total Gross NPAs isclosure on the scheme for sector —restructuring of advances 3 5,682.10 crore are netted off against advances.
3t M h 2023: . (*) Above represents Gross NPA As at 31* March, 2024: R'in crore) In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been
are : 13. RBI vide its circular dated 1% April 2019, has directed banks shall make | No. of accounts restructured [ Amount | made by the Bank's Management.
(X in crore) suitable disclosures, wherever either (a) the additional provisioning [ 650* | 396.44 | 22. Exposures:
Sr. Particulars Currency Interest rate requirements assessed by RBI exceed 5 percent (previous year exceed * Disclosure given is at borrower level (a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector*:
No. Derivatives* | Derivatives 10 percent) of the published net profits before provision and contingency . . ( in crore)
1 | Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) for the reference period or (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by As at 31* March, 2023: R in crore) Ao at
For hodai RBI exceed 5 percent (previous year exceed 10 percent) of the published | No. of accounts restructured | Amount | Particulars 31 March. 2024| 31 March. 2023
a) or he gmg - — incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period, or both. There has been | 960* | 630.78] - > >
b)  For trading 310,875.58 91,083.25 no divergence observed by RBI for the financial year 2022-23 (previous * Disclosure given is at borrower level a)l Direct exposure 72,926.43| 70,670.46
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KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED

CIN - L65110MH1985PLC038137
Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

Tel.: +91-22-6166 0001

As at « ¥ 1 crore on account of levying interest from disbursement due date / loan
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, agreement and not from the date of first disbursement of the loan contrary
2024 2023 to the terms & conditions of sanction.
i |Residential Mortgages — 45,407.61 46,438.51 + % 0.95 crore on account of charging foreclosures charges for the loans
Lending fully secured by mortgages on recalled by the Bank.
residential property that is or will be occupied » %0.005 crore for 3 instances in relation to exchange of soiled notes / adjudicate
by the borrower or that is rented; (Includes mutilated notes as detected during incognito visits undertaken by RBI.
_Indiv_idL_laI housing loans eligible for inclusion Year ended 315t March 2023
in priority sector advances as at 31: March, « %.0.30 crore on account of delayed credit of eligible amount to the Depositor
2024 X 1,836.47 crore and as at 31+ March, Education and Awareness Fund within the period prescribed.
2023 T 1,441.90 crore). Exposure also . 7030 t of failure t dit (shad 1) of th t
includes non-fund based (NFB) limits ¥ 0.30 crore on account of failure to credi (s adow reversal) of the amoun
— - involved in the unauthorised electronic transactions to the customers’ account
ii Eorglmermal Rezl E:;tate - . 27,518.82 24,231.95 within period prescribed.
ending  secure Yy  morigages on + %0.45 crore on failure to maintain/ apply margin on advances to stock brokers.
commercial real estates (office buildings, X X )
retail  space, multi-purpose commercial + Penal interest of ¥ 0.017 crore for default in maintenance of Cash Reserve
premises, multi-family residential buildings, Ratio (CRR) on an average basis for a fortnight.
multi-tenanted  commercial  premises, + %0.002 crore for 2 instances in relation to exchange of soiled notes / adjudicate
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land mutilated notes as detected during incognito visits undertaken by RBI.
acquisition, development and construction, 29. There are no Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be
etc.). Exposure also includes non-fund consolidated as per accounting norms) (previous year Nil).
lbase(i (NF?)_“”’:/':Sn SacreT Seani 30. Bancassurance Business:
ii | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities - - .
(MBS) and other securitised exposures- R in crore)
Residential Sr. Nat £l Year ended
'Ces' centa e - - No. ature ofincome 319 March, 2024 | 31<March, 2023
B lndi'rec‘:”;"peggﬁe ca tae 331534555470 1 | For selling life insurance policies 691.84 380.18
Fund based and non-fund based exposures 3.313.34 5.024.40 2 | For selling non life insurance policies 77.99 32.04
on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing 3 |For selling mutual fund products 278.01 245.84
Finance Companies (HFCs). 4 |Others _ _
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (a+h) 76,239.77| 76,594.86 This Income has been reflected under Commission, exchange and brokerage under
* On limit basis or outstanding basis whichever is higher Other Income.
(b) Exposure to Capital Market*: 31. Floating Provisions:
 in crore) (X in crore)
Sr. . Year ended
As at
Particulars T Narch, 2026 31% Warch, 2023 No. Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
i, Direct investment in equily shares, convertble|  1.967.29|  2,362.01 (2) | Opening balance in the floating Nl Nil
) ) ] provisions account
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- - — - -
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not (b)| The quantum of floating provisions Nil Nil
exclusively invested in corporate debt;* made in the accounting year
ii. Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or 979.74 844.77 (c) | Amount of draw down made during Nil Nil
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for the accounting year
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), (d) | Closing Balance in floating provisions Nil Nil
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and account
units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
iii. Advances for any other purposes where shares _ _ 32. Draw Down from Reserves:
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or In accordance with the RBI requirement there are no draw downs from
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as reserves during the year (previous year: Nil).
primary security; 33. a) Status of Shareholder Complaints:
iv. Advances for any other purposes to the extent 4,363.65 4,643.95 Sr. Particulars Year ended
secureq by the collateral 'secunty of shares or No. icular: 31 March, 2024 | 31* March, 2023
conveftlble.bonds or convertlblg debentures orlunlts (@) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning 0 2
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary of the year
security other than shares / convertible bonds / - - -
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented (b) | No. of complaints received during the year 23 35
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances; (c) | No. of complaints redressed during the 23 37
V. Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers 2,604.48 2.449.04 year
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers (d) [ No. of complaints pending at the end of 0 0
and market makers; the year
vi. Loans sanctioned to corporates against the _ _ b) Summary information on complaints received by the bank from
security of shares / bonds / debentures or customers and from the Offices of the Banking Ombudsman (OBOs):
other se?urities or on clean basis f_or meeting S, Particul 31March, | 31 March,
promote_rs _conttr_lb_un?n tof th_e_ equity of n.ew No articulars 2024 2023
- compan|es I anticipation t.) ralsmg resources, Complaints received by the bank from its customers(*)
vii. Bridge loans to companies against expected — — . . —
equity flows / issues; 1 Number of complaints pending at beginning 11,218 8,195
viii. Underwriting commitments taken up by the 581.62 1,293.16 of the year
banks in respect of primary issue of shares or ’ 2 Number of complaints received during the year | 292,085| 235,655
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 3 Number of complaints disposed during the year| 286,885 232,632
units of equity oriented mutual funds; 3.1| Of which, number of complaints rejected 125,105 109,209
ix. Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; 1,900.40 1,090.94 by the bank
x. All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both 1,735.62 30.54 4 Number of complaints pending at the end of 16,418 11,218
registered and unregistered) will be deemed to the year
be on par with equity and hence will be reckoned * No of complaints reported are excluding complaints redressed in 0 & 1 day
for compliance with the capital market exposure - bl N "
ceilings (both direct and indirect) Mair e - ’ d by the bank from OBOs
xi._Others (Financial Guarantees) 293.09 219.92 5 Number of maintainable complaints received by 5,693 4,921
- - - the bank from OBOs
Total Exposure to Capital Market* 14,425.89 12,934.33 - -
#The above amount excludes shares/convertible bonds aggregating to 51 offti nk;J n;ﬁebr oécoomplalnts resolved in favour 2529 2,267
% 10.52 crore (previous year ¥ 27.74 crore) acquired due to conversion of ot the bank by BYS
debt to equity under restructuring process. As per para 20 of DBR.No.BP. 5.2| Of 5, number of complaints resolved through 3,164 2,654
BC.101/21.04.048/2017-18 dated 12" February, 2018, the above amount is exempt conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by BOs
’fmmlrevgulatzl)ry celllngs/relstr/ct/aﬁ on éapltal mérkf:t exposure. 53| OF 5, number of complaints resolved after Nil Nil
On limit basis or outstanding basis whichever is higher. passing of Awards by BOs against the bank
(c) Risk category wise country exposure: - - - -
As per extant RBI guidelines, the country exposure of the Bank is 6 NtymlbetrgftAwardtshunltr:pletrEented wnh:n(}he Nl Nil
categorized into various risk categories listed in following table. stipulated time (other than those appealed)

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically

- — R m, t-:rore) mentioned in BO Scheme 2021 (Previously BO Scheme 2006) and covered within
Risk Category Exposure Provision Exposure Provision the ambit of the Scheme.
(net) as at 31° | held as at 31t | (net) as at 31 | held as at 31 *Data is as received from CEPD, RBI.
March, 2024 | March, 2024 | March, 2023 | March, 2023 ) ) )
Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers
Insignificant 9,976.36 - 8,255.85 - - -
Grounds of complaints, Number of | Number of | % increase/ | Numberof | Of5,
Low 452.75 — 425.56 - (i.e. complaints relating to) | complaints | complaints | decreasein |complaints | number of
Moderately Low 64.09 - 2.74 - pending | received | the number | pending at | complaints
Moderate _ _ _ _ atthe | during the | of complaints | the end of | pending
Moderately High _ _ _ _ beginning year received_over the year | beyond 30
High 38.83 — — = of the year the preeavrlous days
Very High ~ = - = 7 7 3 y4 5 5
Total 10,532.02 - 8,684.15 - 315 March, 2024
Exposure is given as net exposure basis the definition given in circular dated ATM/ Debit Cards 1,126 | 80,267 0.3%| 5,312 3,687
19" February, 2003 Internet Banking/ Mobile
23. Concentration of deposits: Banking/ E-Banking 5,686 | 63,287 (6)%| 1,693 978
( in crore) Credit Cards 924| 31,345 77%| 6,051 4,575
| As at Account opening/ difficulty
Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 in operation of accounts 660| 15,641 (1)%| 320 17
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 41,269.42 29,947.17 Levy of charges without prior
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest 9.19% 8.25% notice/ excessive charges/
depositors to total deposits of the Bank foreclosure charges 365| 12,561 69% 350 140
X N Others 2,457 88,984 88%| 2,692| 1,044
Concentration of advances*: Total 11,218 292,085 24%] 16,418] 10,541
(X in crore)
As at 31¢t March, 2023
Particulars 31March, 2024 | 31%March, 2023 :\IM/ Dteé)lt (fj\rd/sM = 3,088 | 80,053 12%| 1,126 187
Total Advances of twenty largest borrowers 47,885.53 42,999.39 E;]aii(r;r?g/ E?B;r:ﬁ(ingo e 3.501| 67,304 33%| 5686| 1.883
Percentage of advances to twenty largest 7.10% 7.37% Credit Cards 302| 17,687 51% 924 350
borrowers to total advances of the bank Account opening/ difficult
* Advances have been computed based on credit exposure i.e. funded and non-funded in operatiopn of agccounts y 297 15,770 6% 660 22
limits including derivative exposures where applicable. The sanctioned limits or outstanding, r -
whichever are higher, have been reckoned. However, in the case of fully drawn term loans, hs;?cl e(;f ecxhcaggsei: (;N ét::rugtez;wr
\t/;/));egi [tg;rne dl; naaic;';;e Cf;7er J;-Z;atg;ll ?ef any portion of the sanctioned limit, Bank has reckoned foreclosure charges 12 7.449 219 365 5
o Benkhas oo oo or ey fthis disclosure from ts internal MIS syst. Others 895 | 47,3921 10%] 2457) 286
e Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its interna system. Total 8,195 235,655 19%| 11,218| 2,703
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Concentration of exposures**:

borrowers/customers to total exposure of the
bank on borrowers/customers

(% in crore)
i As at
Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31%March, 2023
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ 55,876.33 49,375.62
customers
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest 7.78% 8.01%

** Exposures represents credit, derivatives and investment exposure as prescribed
in Master Circular on Exposure Norms DBR.No.Dir.BC. 12/13.03.00/2015-16

dated 1+'July, 2015.

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal

MIS system.

Disclosure on Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress:

In accordance with Resolution Framework for COVID-19 announced by RBI
on 6" August, 2020 and 5" May, 2021, the Bank has implemented one-time
restructuring for certain eligible borrowers and such borrowers are classified
as Standard in accordance with the above framework.

The disclosure requirements as required by RBI circular dated
6" August, 2020 (Resolution Framework 1.0) and 5" May 2021 (Resolution
Framework 2.0) as at 315 March 2024 is given below:

Note: The master list for identifying the grounds of complaints is provided in Appendix 1 as
prescribed in Master Circular on Strengthening of Grievance Redress Mechanism in Bank
(CEPD.CO.PRD.Cir.No.01/13.01.013/2020-21; dtd 27" January, 2021.)

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal MIS system.

34. Marketing and Distribution (excluding Bancassurance business)
(X in crore)

Sr. Nature of Income Year ended

No. 31'March, 2024 | 31March, 2023
1 _[Referral Fees 389.12 339.00
2 | Arrangers Fees 185.60 225.01

3 | Income on distribution of Sovereign Gold Bond 3.67 0.83
4 [ Other Income 7.15 8.37

Above has been reflected under Commission, exchange and brokerage under Other Income.
35. Disclosures On Remuneration
A. Qualitative Disclosures:
a) Information relating to the composition and mandate of the

Remuneration Committee:
The Nomination & Remuneration committee comprises of
independent directors of the Bank. Key mandate of the Nomination
& Remuneration committee is to oversee the overall design and
operation of the compensation policy of the Bank and work in
coordination with the Risk Management Committee to achieve
alignment between risks and remuneration.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) will be, inter
alia, reviewing and tracking the implementation of the Compensation

Type of borrower | Exposure to accounts |  Of (A), Of (A) Of (A) | Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard | aggregate | amount | amount | classified as Standard
consequent to debtthat | written off |  paid consequent to
implementation of | slipped | duringthe | by the implementation of
resolution plan- into NPA | half - year# | borrowers |  resolution plan-
Positionas atthe | during the during the | Position as at the end
end of the previous | half-year half- of this half - year
half- year (A) year A
Personal Loans 88.19 1.50 | 0.09 |33.22 53.47
Corporate persons* 36.60 0.03 0.03 | 6.01 30.56
Of which, MSMEs 29.56 — — | 4.34 25.22
Others 61.47 0.06 | 0.00° [ 8.51 52.90
Total 186.26 1.59 | 0.12 |47.74 136.93

* As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
# represents debt that slipped into NPA and was subsequently written off during the half-year.
A includes change in balances on account of interest and net of increase in exposure

during the period.
SAmount less than ¥ 50,000/-.

The factoring exposure of the Bank as at 31t March, 2024 is X 4,710.44
crore (previous year: X 2,243.88 crore).

crore (previous year X 1.07) on the Bank for the following:

Year ended 31t March 2024:

. During the year, the Reserve Bank of India has levied a penalty of ¥ 3.96

« % 1 crore on account of failure to carryout annual review / due diligence

of service provider.

+ % 1 crore on account of failure to ensure that customers are not contacted

after 7 pm and before 7 am.

b

(4

-

Policy of the Bank. The NRC will comprises of at least 3 Non-executive
Directors, out of which at least two third of the members should be
independent directors and should include at least one member from
the Bank’s Risk Management Committee of the Board. (RMC).
Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration
processes and the key features and objectives of remuneration
policy:

Objective of Banks’ Compensation Policy is:

« To maintain fair, consistent and equitable compensation practices
in alignment with Bank’s core values and strategic business goals;
To ensure effective governance of compensation and alignment
of compensation practices with prudent risk taking;

To have mechanisms in place for effective supervisory oversight
and Board engagement in compensation;

To ensure that the Compensation practices are within the regulatory
framework stipulated from time to time by RBI.

The remuneration process is aligned to the Bank’s Compensation
Policy objectives.

Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into
account in the remuneration processes. It should include the nature
and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks:

In order to manage current and future risk and allow a fair amount of time to
measure and review both quality and quantity of the delivered outcomes,
a significant portion of senior and middle management compensation is
variable. Further reasonable portion variable compensation is non- cash
and deferred, over a period of 3 years or longer.

d

f
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In case the employee is retiring within next 2 years, cash to non-cash
ratio may change in favor of more cash (including deferred cash) and
the vesting schedule may be shorter.

In addition, remuneration process provides for ‘malus’ and ‘clawback’
option to take care of any disciplinary issue or future drop in performance
of individual/ business/ company.

Description of the ways in which the bank seeks to link
performance during a performance measurement period with
levels of remuneration:
Individual performances are assessed in line with business/
individual delivery of the Key Result Areas (KRAs), top priorities of
business, budgets etc. KRAs of Line roles are linked to financials,
people, service and process (Quality) and compliance parameters
and KRAs of non-Line Roles have linkage to functional deliveries
needed to achieve the top business priorities.

Further remuneration process is also linked to market salaries / job

levels, business budgets and achievement of individual KRAs.

A discussion of the banks’ policy on deferral and vesting of variable

remuneration and a discussion of the bank's policy and criteria for

adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting:

A discussion on Policy on Deferral of Remuneration basis last

amendment effective 22" July, 2023

Employees have been broadly classified into following categories:

« Category | - Comprising MD & CEO and Whole Time Directors (WTDs).

+ Category Il — Material Risk Takers (MRTs). These include
employees whose actions may have material impact on the risk
exposures of the bank and who satisfy both - qualitative and
quantitative criteria, as given below:

o Qualitative Criteria: Employees in the grade M10 and above
o Quantitative Criteria: Fixed Cost to Company (FCTC) is above
% 1.25 Crore p.a.
This excludes employees under Category IIl.

+ Category Ill — Risk control and compliance employees —
comprising staff in grade M9 and above in the following Control
functions;

Risk & Policy function

Financial Control including group consolidation;

Compliance;

Internal Audit;

Back-office Operations

Vigilance

Legal

Secretarial

HR

Investor Relations

CSR

« Category IV: Other employees - This includes all employees, not
explicitly covered in the first three categories.

Following principles are applied for deferral / vesting of variable

remuneration in accordance with RBI guidelines and Bank’s

compensation policy:

Category | & Il

At least 50% of Total Pay, should be variable for arriving at the

total compensation for the year

The Cash component of the Variable Pay will not exceed 50%

of the Fixed Pay

The total variable payout shall be limited to a maximum of 300%

of the fixed pay.

In case variable pay is up to 200% of the fixed pay, a minimum of

50% of the variable pay; and in case variable pay is above 200%,

a minimum of 67% of the variable pay should be via non-cash

instruments.

Regardless of the quantum of pay, a minimum of 60% of the total

variable pay must invariably be under deferral arrangements.

Further, if cash component is part of variable pay, at least 50% of

the cash bonus should also be deferred.

However, in cases where the cash component of variable pay

is under X 25 lakh for a year, deferral requirements would not

be necessary.

The deferral period should be a minimum of three years. This

would be applicable to both, the cash and non-cash components

of the variable pay.

The compensation will be approved by the Nomination and

Remuneration committee. Additionally, for Category |, the same will

be further approved by RBI.

Category lll

The total variable payout shall be limited to a maximum of 300%

of the fixed pay.

However, in cases where the cash component of variable pay

is under X 25 lakh for a year, deferral requirements would not

be necessary.

The deferral period should be a minimum of three years. This

would be applicable to both, the cash and non-cash components

of the variable pay.

Approval authority: MD & CEO or as delegated by MD & CEO, will

approve the variable pay.

For adjusting deferred remuneration before & after vesting:

Malus: Payment of all or part of amount of deferred variable pay
can be prevented.

Clawback: Previously paid or already vested deferred variable pay
can also be recovered under this clause.

Malus and clawback may be applied for following circumstances:

« Fraud, misfeasance, breach of trust, dishonesty, or wrongful
disclosure by the employee of any confidential information
pertaining to the bank or any of its affiliates;

Willful misinterpretation / misreporting of financial performance
of the bank;

Material failure in risk management controls or material losses due
to negligent risk-taking which are attributable to the employee,
whether directly or indirectly;

Any misconduct pertaining to moral turpitude, theft, misappropriation,
corruption, forgery, embezzlement or an act of a felonious or criminal
nature;

Non-disclosure of material conflict of interest by the employee or
any misuse of official powers;

An act of willful, reckless or grossly negligent conduct which is
detrimental to the interest or reputation of the bank or any of its
affiliates, monetarily or otherwise;

Material breach of Code of Conduct, any Non-Disclosure
Agreement, regulatory procedures, internal rules and regulations
or any other such instance for which the NRC, in its discretion,
deems it necessary to apply malus or / and clawback provisions;
Besides the above there can be other circumstances when malus
may be applied. In deciding the application of malus / clawback to
any part or all of variable pay or incentives (whether paid, vested
or unvested), the NRC will follow due process and adhere to the
principles of natural justice and proportionality.

Description of the different forms of variable remuneration
(i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and other forms) that the bank
utilizes and the rationale for using these different forms:
Depending on the nature of the business/function/ role, the risk
involved, the time horizon for review, various forms of Variable Pay
may be applicable.

The components of such variable pay will include:

+ Cash - this may be paid at intervals ranging from Monthly,

Quarterly, half-yearly and annual. The Monthly/ Quarterly /

Half Yearly Variable Pay will be under the role and preapproved

business specific incentive schemes. This may be payable within

one year of grant.

Long Term Incentive Pay (LTIP): This shall be granted to

employees, in the form of Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and

/ or Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) and / or Deferred Cash.

This shall be granted on a discretionary and reasonable basis,

to motivate employees, create shareholder value by aligning

interest of employees with the long-term interests of the Bank.

LTIP may also be granted from time to time with the objective of

retaining employees.

o ESOPs/ SARs will be linked to Kotak Mahindra Bank Stock price
and will vest over a period of time.

o Black Scholes Model will generally be applied for arriving at the value
of the units to be granted. However, Bank may choose any other
model with the approval of NRC within the regulatory framework.

o ESOPs / SARs will be approved by the NRC. The quantum of
ESOPs / SARs will be reasonable and the formulation of the ESOP
series, the coverage, the vesting period and their pricing schedule,
etc. will also be decided by the NRC as per SEBI guidelines.

o Deferred Cash may paid over a period of 3 to 5 years.

o
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B. Quantitative Disclosures:
a) Number of meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration

b

Committee held during the financial year and remuneration
(sitting fees) paid to its members during the financial year.

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2024, 14 meetings
(previous year 8 meetings) of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were held. Members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were paid, for attending the meetings
held during the financial year, a sitting fee of ¥ 75,000 per meeting
[previous year ¥ 50,000 per meeting (for the meetings held before
22 October, 2022) and X 60,000 per meeting (for the meetings
held on or after 22" October, 2022)].

Number of employees having received a variable remuneration
award during the financial year.

As per FY24 policy for the year ended 31¢t March 2024 (“FY2024 policy”):
Quantitative disclosure restricted to one CEO* & two Whole Time
Directors as Category | employees and Seventy Seven Category Il
employees as Material Risk Takers. For employees who have moved
to a group company or retired or separated as well as new joiner
awards up to the date in the Bank are included.

*Plus 2 CEOs during the year.

As per FY23 policy for the year ended 31¢ March 2023 (“FY2023 policy”):
Quantitative disclosure restricted to CEO & four Whole Time Directors
as Category | employees and Fifty Nine Category Il employees as
Material Risk Takers. For employees who have moved to a group
company or retired or separated as well as new joiner awards up to
the date in the Bank are included.

All quantitative disclosures are as per FY2024 policy which is
applicable from 22" July, 2023.

Website: www.kotak.com Email: KotakBank.Secretarial@kotak.com

c) Number of employees and total amount of sign-on/ joining

bonus made during the financial year.

Particulars Year ended
31t March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
No of employees 7 5
Cash (Cr) Nil Nil
ESOPs (equity shares) 217,400 15,820
SARs (rights) 51,813 296,350

d) Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, if any.

Year ended 31 March, 2023 |
Nil

[ Year ended 31+ March, 2024 |
Nil

e) Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split into

cash, types of share-linked instruments and other forms.

Particul As at
articulars 315 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Cash (Deferred) 3 35.24 crore X 29.39 crore
Outstanding SARs 829,064 rights 650,239 rights
Outstanding ESOPs 859,823 equity shares | 779,707 equity shares
f) Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the financial year.
Year ended
31tMarch, 2024 31stMarch, 2023
Cash (Deferred) % 12.2 crore % 7.20 crore
Payment towards SARs X 42.25 crore X 19.24 crore
g) Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards for the financial
year to show fixed and variable, deferred and non-deferred.
Fixed Pay
Year ended
31tMarch, 2024 31t March, 2023
Total fixed salary % 155.13 crore % 118.60 crore
Variable Pay
Year ended
31tMarch, 2024 31t March, 2023
Deferred Variable Pay®
Cash (Deferred) % 20.73 crore % 16.67 crore
SARs 415,361 rights 484,740 rights
ESOPs 434,647 equity shares | 449,142 equity shares
Non Deferred X 26.25 crore X 22.84 crore
variable pay*®
$ Details relating to variable pay pertains to remuneration awards for the
financial year 2022-23 awarded in FY2024. Remuneration award for the
year ended 315 March, 2024 are yet to be reviewed and approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
h) Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained
remuneration exposed to ex post explicit and / or implicit adjustments.
Nil (previous year Nil)
i) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to
ex- post explicit adjustments.
Nil (previous year Nil)
j) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to
ex- post implicit adjustments.
Nil (previous year Nil)
k) Number of MRT identified.
82 (previous year 64)
1) Number of cases where malus has been exercised.
Nil (previous year Nil)
m) Number of cases where clawback has been exercised.
Nil (previous year Nil)
n) Number of cases where both malus and clawback have been
exercised
Nil (previous year Nil)
o) The mean pay for the bank as a whole (excluding sub-staff) and

the deviation of the pay of each of its WTDs from the mean pay.

Mean pay for the Bank as a whole for all employees who were in
employment for the whole of FY2023-24 and FY2022-23 was ¥ 0.12 crore
(previous year X 0.11 crore).

Ratio of pay of each WTD to the mean pay for the bank as a whole

Ratio
Director Year ended
31stMarch, 2024 | 31*tMarch, 2023
Mr Uday Kotak 3.53X 0.04X
Mr Dipak Gupta 67.40X 49.64X
Mr K.V.S. Manian 50.18X 47.80X
Mr Gaurang Shah — 45.72X
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram 54.63X 19.38X
Mr. Ashok Vaswani 13.40X NA

Notes:

1. Pay includes Fixed pay + variable pay paid during the year + perquisite
value as calculated under the Income Tax Act, 1961, (excluding perquisite
value of Stock Options).

2. Stock Appreciation Rights are awarded as variable pay. These are settled
in cash and are linked to the average market price/closing market price
of the Bank’s stock on specified dates. Cash paid out during the year is
included for the purposes of remuneration.

3. Remuneration of Mr. Uday Kotak includes NED commission for FY2023-24,

4. Mr. Dipak Gupta’s remuneration for the FY 2023-24 is including one time
settlement of retirement benefit.

5. Ms. Shanti Ekambaram remuneration for the FY2022-23 is for 5 Months
(Appointed as WTD effective Nov’22).

6. Mr. Ashok Vaswani’s remuneration is from 1% Jan 2024 till 315 Mar 2024.

36. Intra — Group Exposures

37.

38.

(X in crore)
Particul As at

articuars 31 March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023

(a) | Total amount of intra-group exposures 6,624.16 6,041.96

(b) | Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 6,620.09 6,036.98

(c) | Percentage of intra-group exposures to total 0.92% 0.98%
exposure of the bank on borrowers / customers

(d)| Details of breach of limits on intra-group NA NA
exposures and regulatory action thereon, if any.

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal
MIS system.

Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund)

(X in crore)

Particulars Year ended
31*'March, 2024 | 31*March, 2023
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 356.42 303.00
Add: Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the year 67.51 56.22
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards claim 11.93 2.80
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 412.00 356.42

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of borrowers:

The Bank recognises the importance of the risk of adverse fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates on the profitability and financial position of borrowers who are
exposed to currency risk. Currency induced credit risk refers to the risk of
inability of borrowers to service their debt obligations due to adverse movement
in the exchange rates and corresponding increase / decrease in their book
values of trade payables, loan payables, trade receivables, etc. thereby
exposing the Bank to risk of default by the borrower. In this regard, the Bank
had put in place requisite policies & processes for monitoring and mitigation of
currency induced credit risk of borrowers. These include the following:
Currency risk of borrowers on account of un-hedged foreign currency
exposures (‘UFCE") is duly considered and analysed in credit appraisal notes.
Quarterly monitoring of un-hedged foreign currency exposures of borrowers.
Risk classification of borrowers having un-hedged foreign currency
exposures, into Low / Medium / High, as per internal norms, based on
potential loss / EBID ratio. Potential loss means the loss which may
be arise over a one year horizon by adverse movement of exchange
rates; this is computed as UFCE amount multiplied by the annual
volatility factor.

Incremental provisioning (over and above provision applicable for
standard assets) is made in Bank’s Profit and Loss Account, on borrower
counterparties having UFCE, depending on the potential loss / EBID
ratio, in line with stipulations by RBI. Incremental capital is maintained
in respect of borrower counterparties in the highest risk category, in line
with stipulations by RBI. These requirements are given below:

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

9)

h)

Potential Loss / EBID Incr tal Provisioning | Incr tal Capital
ratio Requirement ( puted Requit t
on the total credit
exposures reckoned
for standard asset
provisioning)

Up to 15% Nil Nil
More than 15% to 30% 20 bps Nil
More than 30% to 50% 40 bps Nil
More than 50% to 75% 60 bps Nil
More than 75% 80 bps 25 per cent increase
(Most risky) in the risk weight

In case of borrowers exposed to currency risk where declarations for
foreign currency payables / receivables (UFCE declarations) are not
submitted, provision for currency induced credit risk is made as per
RBI stipulated rates mentioned below:

+ 10 bps in cases where limits with banking system are ¥ 50 crore

or less;

« 80 bps in cases where limits with banking system are more than

% 50 crore.

Further, where annual certification from statutory auditors of UFCE
data is not submitted, such borrowers are treated as UFCE declaration
not submitted cases and provision is computed as per point (e) above.
Exemption allowed by RBI are excluded from UFCE provision

computation,

including specified all

India financial

institutions,

multilateral agencies, domestic & foreign sovereigns, and other

exemptions.

Further, 100% FD backed exposure is not reckoned as

exposure as per RBI definition and thus not reckoned by the Bank
for UFCE provision computation. Similarly, LCBD and BG/LC backed
exposures are considered as exposure to LC/ SBLC issuing banks and

not to borrower entity.

Management of foreign exchange risk is considered as a parameter for
internal risk rating of borrowers.
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lPrc%vigié)réSheld for c(urren_cy induced?creezdiéf)risk as )at IS'IS‘ Marcth,I 2£l2i A(;[m: . AJmtld ¢. Retail Banking 384,257.91 310,374.20 B. Other Related Parties:
is .55 crore. (previous year .85 crore). Incremental Ris| juste juste - - - -
weighted Assets value considered for the purpose of CRAR calculation Value Value d. Other Banking business - - Nature of relationship | Related Party
in respect of currency induced credit risk as at 31 March, 2024 is 13 [TOTAL HQLA 84,712 86,305 Sub-total 802,872.51|  667,726.04 Individual having Mr. Uday S. Kotak, Promoter along with the persons /
 3,154.68 crore (previous year ¥ 1,393.73 crore). 12 | Total Net Cash Outflows 75155 74,905 Less : Inter-segmental Assets 203,032.03 178,234.99 significant influe_nce entities forming part of the I_’romoter Group, ho_lds 25.90%
39. a) Liquidity Coverage Ratio 15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) T272% T15.22% Total 599,840.48 489,491.05 over the enterprise o_f the paid-up ?hare capital of Kotak Mahindra Bank
Rin crore) - : Add : Unallocated Assets 516.57 371.43 Limited as on 31 March, 2024.
Average Q4 20252024 | Average Q3 20252024 | ©) ?:a'ga""e d";‘:':s;’lred‘f’":‘““d LCR,b S ortoring of suffiiency of Bank Total Assets as per Balance Sheet |  600,357.05]  489,862.48 Associates / Others | Infina Finance Private Limited
- - e Reserve Bank of India has prescribed monitoring of sufficiency of Bank’s - P Phoenix ARC Private Limited
Number of working days in the quarter & 68 liquid assets using Base! Ill — Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR). The LCR is 4.|Segment Liabilities ING Vvsva Foundation
Particulars \ Total WT."';" J Total WT."tﬁtl J aimed at measuring and promoting short-term resilience of Banks to potential a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 134,765.70 93,987.32 Yoy
Value \e;ju: Value \e;a%uee liquidity disruptions by ensuring maintenance of sufficient high quality liquid b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 218,547.17 202,922.48 Key Management Mri Uf‘?\és'tKOtsk '2"4;239'"9 Director & CEO
assets (HQLAs) to survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days. : : Personnel (KMP) upto 1% September
. ____ (average) | (average) | (average) | (average) ( ) _ ; e stres 9 Y c. Retail Banking 353,357.46 287,429.54 Non Executive Director w.e.f. 2 September 2023
High Quality Liquid Assets The ratio comprises of high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) as numerator d. Other Banking business _ _ Mr. Dipak Gupta - Joint Managing Director
1 [Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 119,711 118,818 and net cash outflows in 30 days as denominator. HQLA has been divided Sub-total 706.670.33 584 339.34 (ur;\o 31 December 2023)
into two parts i.e. Level 1 HQLA which comprises of primarily cash, excess ub-tota Lk L : . :
Cash Outflows o . . . K T Mr. Ashok Vaswani — Managing Director and CEO
7 |Retai deposits and deposis fom sl CRR, SLR securities in excess of minimum SLR requirement and a portion of Less : Inter-segmental Liabilities 203,032.03 178,234.99 (w.e.f. 1 January 2024)
business customers, of which: :grﬂiavtvtl)qri)éhstsmas_permltted by RBI (gndgr MSF and FAL!_CR)_and Level 2 Total 503,638.30 406,104.35 Mr. KVS Manian — Joint Managing Director
- - prises of investments in highly rated non-financial corporate 'Add - Unallocated liabiliti 79.29 298.18 Mr. Gaurang Shah - Whole-time Director
(i) [Stable deposits 40,923 2,046| 40,053 2,003 bonds and listed equity investments considered at prescribed haircuts. Cash - ~nafloca .e labiiities . . (ug;to 31% October 2022)
(ii) [Less stable deposits 201,581 20,158| 195,223| 19,522 outflows are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various Add : Share Capital & Reserves & surplus 96,639.46 83,459.95 Ms. Shanti Ekambaram — Deputy Managing Director
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: categories or types of liabilities by the outflow run-off rates and cash inflows Total Capital & Liabilities as per 600,357.05 489,862.48 (w.é.f. 1 November 2022)
- - - - are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories Balance Sheet - - - —
(i) |Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - of contractual receivables by the rates at which they are expected to flow in. 5. Capital Expenditure EnTerpnses over . 2ero A'genf‘lei Pdr)lvate Limited (formerly known as Aero
(ii) [Non-operational deposits 120,099 74,115| 120,801| 74,669 The B . . . which KMP / relatives | Agencies Limite
I terparti e Bank has implemented the LCR framework and has consistently ] ] ] . -
(all counterparties) maintained LCR well above the regulatory threshold. The average LCR for the a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 186.35 122,68 of KMP haye control /| Kotak an_d Corppany F’rlvate .lelle(.i .
(iii) | Unsecured debt 4016] 4,016 3933| 3933 quarter ended 31 March, 2024 was 124.92% which is above the regulatory b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 57.75 65.17 significant influence Komaf Financial Servws Private Limited
4 | Secured wholesale funding 968 2 180 2 requirement of 100%. For the quarter ended 31 March, 2024 average Level c. Retail Banking 630.10 562.99 Asian Machinery & Equipment Private Limited
5 |Additional requirements, of which 1 HQLA stood at 95.10% (X 113,839 crore.) of the total HQLA. d. Other Banking business _ _ Insurekot Sports Private Limited
(i) [Outfiows related to derivative exposures | 28,650| 28,659 28,683 28,883 Apart from LCR, Bank uses various stock liquidity indicators to measure Total 57420 750,84 Kotak Trustee Company Private Limited
and other collateral requirements and monitor the liquidity risk in terms of funding stability, concentration risk, — — - : Cumulus Trad.lng Cgmpany Erlvate Limited
(ii) [Outflows related to loss of funding on - - - - dependence on market borrowings, liquidity transformation, etc. The Bank 6. | Depreciation / Amortisation Palko Properties Private Limited
debt products maintains a diversified source of funding in terms of depositors, lenders a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 118.25 90.11 Kotak Chemicals Limited
iii) [Credit and liquidity facilities 3102 336 2,773 289 and various funding instruments. This is evident through low depositor and . Kotak Ginning & Pressing Industries Private Limited
o ‘ y — lender concentration with top 20 depositors contributing 9.19% of Bank’s b. Corplorate /.Wholesale Banking 47.55 33.81 Kotak Commodity Services Private Limited
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 9024| 9024] 859| 8590 total deposits and top 10 lenders contributing 3.52% of Bank'’s total liabilities. ¢. Retail Banking 448.99 337.81 Harisiddha Trading and Finance Private Limited
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 208,184 9,330 203,218 9,055 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank is the primary governing body d. Other Banking business - - Puma Properties Private Limited
8 |Total Cash Outflows 147,686 146,946 for Liquidity Risk Management supported by Balance Sheet Management Total 614.79 461.73 Business Standard Private Limited
Unit (BMU), Risk Management Department (RMD), Finance and ALCO — - - - Business Standard Online Private Limited
Cash Ianow$ Support Group. BMU is the central repository of funds within the Bank and is Seglz(lental Informano’r:. IZ '.Dnjvged af—[ per ”;'? Mt’S avzllable fort!nternal Allied Auto Accessories Private Limited
9 |Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 5,566 10| 10,405 5 vested with the responsibility of managing liquidity risk within the risk appetite reporting P“fpf’sef: whicl Amcul es certain estimates anl assumP ions Uday S Ktk HUF
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 61,638| 51,305| 55600 46809 of the Bank. Bank has incorporated Basel Ill Liquidity Standards - LCR and RBI's Master Direction on Financial Statements - Presentation and Disclosures, Suresh A Kotak HUF
- NSFR as part of its risk appetite statement for liquidity risk. requires to divide the 'Retail banking' into (a) Digital Banking (as defined in )
11 [Other cash inflows 1,081 541 1,388 694 40. Frauds RBI circular on Establishment of Digital Banking Units dated April 7, 2022) and KF Trust (ermerIy knqwn as USK Benefit Trust Il)
12 | Total Cash Inflows 51,856 41,508 ) ) ) ) (b) Other Retail Banking segment. The Bank has two DBUs which commenced Kotak Family Foundation
Total Total The Bank has reported 896 (previous yeaﬂqﬁ cases).fraud.cases involving operations during the quarter ended 31%t December, 2022. Accordingly, the Helena Realty Private Limited
Adjusted Adjusted fraud amount of one lakh and above during the financial year ended segmental results for retail banking are subdivided as under: Doreen Realty Private Limited
Value Value 31t March 2024 amounting to ¥ 97.91 crore (previous year % 72.40 crore). Renato Realty Private Limited
The Bank has recovered / expensed off / provided the entire amount where For March 31, 2024: * Y . o8
13 [TOTAL HQLA 19,711 118,818 necessary. @ in crore) Pine Tree Estates Private Limited
14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 95,830 99,438 Details of fraud provisioning made in more than one financial year: Particulars S t S Segl Segment gj;unr;acze;::tpe;:;:;aﬁ,;;r:gw
15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 124.92% 119.49% {in crore) Revenuzft:‘r Resultsdfocli' Assells Liabilitty XanadlfJ Propert)i/es Private Limited
- — - yearended | year endel as a as al
Average 02 20232024 | Average Q1 20252024 Nurr::er of fraud Am(?unt involve Proylsmn made Quant_u!n of un_amortlsed 315 Mar, 2024 | 31 Mar, 2024 | 31 Mar, 2024 | 31+ Mar, 2024 Laburnum Adarsh Trust
ported in Fraud during the year | provision debited from True North Enterprises (upto 31% October 2022)
Number of working days in the quarter 69 66 ‘other reserve’ Retail Banking 27,831.08 5,732.75 | 384,257.91 | 353,357.46 . X
Particulars Toal | Total | Total | Total Nil Nil Nil Nil (i) Digital Banking 1,536.19 118.36 60.60 | 15,585.65 Manian Family Trust
Unweighted| Weighted [Unweighted| Weighted L. " . . ind Brij Disa Arnav Trust (upto 31¢' December 2023)
Value Value Value Value 41. Dividend ' » (ii) Other Retail Banking | 26,294.89 |  5,614.39 | 384,197.31 | 337,771.81 Brij Disa Parthav Trust (upto 31% December 2023)
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) The Board of Directors of the Bank have a proposed a dividend of ¥ 2.00 - Kotak Mahindra Groun Emplovee Welfare Trust
High Quality Liquid Assets per share having a face value ¥ 5 for the year ended 31%t March, 2024 3. Disclosures: i p Employ
- — (previous Year X 1.50 per share). Dividend will be paid after the approval of a. The Bank has taken various premises and equipment under operating TML Benefit Trust ‘
1 _|Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 17,322 102,187 the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. lease. The lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account Brij Disa Foundation (upto 31+ December 2023)
Cash Outflows 42. Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium R®in crore) are ¥ 661.70 crore (previous year X 672.27 crore). The sub-lease income Am”_t Lila Ent.erpnses Private Limited
2 |Retail deposits and deposits from small recognised in the Profit and Loss Account is ¥ 12.90 crore (previous year Manians Family Trust II
business customers, of which: z; Particulars 31tMarch, 2024| 31=tMarch, 2023 T 11.21 crore). USK Benefit Trust 11l
(i) [Stable deposits 38014 1901 36398] 1820 i) | Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 45448 378.01 b. The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating K“d”f] ;T;tee'smpre;v(;ng Private Limited
(i) |Less stable deposits 187,351| 18,735 178,220 17,823 ii) | Arrears in payment of DICGC Premium _ _ lease — not later than one year is Y 680.40 crore (previous year X 573.38 (we . 9" September 2022)
crore), later than one year but not later than five years is ¥ 2,009.28 crore Shanti Family Trust (w.e.f. 15 November 2022)
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: 43. Implementation of IFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) (previous year % 1,575.85 crore) and later than five years ¥ 911.40 crore Shivkaran Trust (w.e.f. 13t November 2022)
(i) | Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - The Ministry of Finance, Government of India, had vide its press release dated (previous year  770.25 crore). USK Capital Partners (w.e.f. 2" January 2024)
(ii) | Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) | 117,751|  72,107| 106,623| 64,521 18" January, 2016 S‘)U“'”ed the rogf‘jmap for implementation of |m§m3"0”3| The lease terms include renewal option after expiry of primary lease Relatives of KMP Ms. Pallavi Kotak
(iii) [ Unsecured debt 4,420 4,420 3,194 3,194 l—'ullnancA|a|”R<iport|n% talndards (‘IFR g )I Cé)nvsrged :nd!an A;;;unlln’\gj tgndirds period. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There Mr. Suresh Kotak
77 Secured wholesale funding 57 7 5285 7 (lnd .S ) for Sg eduled Commercial an (excluding s), on-Banking are escalation clauses in the lease agreements. Ms. Indira Kotak
! Financial Companies and Insurance companies. The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) 4. Def aT . Mr. Jay Kotak
5 |Additional requirements, of which vide its circular dated 22" March, 2019, deferred the implementation of Ind AS for ) . N erre” . axes: . Mr- Dh);wal Kotak
(i) [Outflows related to derivative exposures | 24,699| 24,699| 22,563| 22,563 Scheduled Commercial Banks (“SCB) till further notice pending the consideration Others” in Other Assets (Schedule 11 (V1)) includes deferred tax asset M. Aarti Chandari
and other collateral requirements of some recommended legislative amendments by the Government of India. The (net) of ¥ 322.70 crore (previous year X 371.43 crore). The components of S. Aart Lhandaria
- " N e . N the same are as follows: Ms. Aditi Arya (w.e.f. 7" November 2023)
(ii) | Outflows related to loss of funding on RBI has not issued any further notification on implementation of Ind AS for SCBs. Ms. Anita Gupta (upto 31% December 2023)
debt products The Bank has so far taken following steps for Ind AS implementation: R in crore) Ms. Urmila Gupta (upto 31% December 2023)
(iii) | Credit and liquidity facilities 3,627 446) 3,078 280 |. Formed Steering Committee for Ind AS implementation. The Steering Particulars of Asset/ (Liability) 31"MarchY;032: giflvﬁ’arch 203 Mr. Arnav Gupta (upto 31% December 2023)
6 |Other contractual funding obligations 6782| 6,782| 5574| 5574 Committee headed by the Joint Managing Director ('JMD’) comprises Brovision for NPA and Genaral provisions 23477 437 87 Mr. Parthav Gupta (upto 31* December 2023)
7 | Other contingent funding obliations 195.440 8.702] 188564 8432 representatives from Finance, Risk, Information Technology and Treasury. E i 0 T pt basi 99'37 122'1 3 Mr. Prabhat Gupta (upto 31%! December 2023)
9 9 0019 : : : ’ The Committee closely reviews progress of Ind AS implementation in the Xpenditure afowed on payment basis : . Ms. Jyoti Banga (upto 31t December 2023)
8 |Total Cash Outflows 137,794 124,209 Bank and provides guidance on critical aspects of the implementation. Deprecllatlon 32.64 23.97 Ms. Seetha Krishnan
Il. The Bank is currently in the process of implementing an IT Solution for Deduction u/s. 36(1)(viil) of the Income (244.02) (212.56) Ms. Lalitha Mohan
Cash Inflows Y 9 Tax Act, 1961
- IndAS reporting. Further, there may be new regulatory guidelines and ax Act, Ms. Shruti Manian
9 _|Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 8,307 10 1914 7 clarifications for Ind AS application, which the Bank will need to suitably Net Deferred Tax Asset 322.70 371.43 Mr. Shashank Manian
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 47,064 39,625 41,700( 34,880 incorporate in its implementation. 5. Provisions: Mr. Ramesh Krishnan
11 |Other cash inflows 1,024 512 1,316 658 44. Disclosure on amortisation of expenditure on account of enhancement Given below is the movement in provisions recognised by the Bank: Ms. Vanathi Gopalakrishnan (w.e.f. 15" April 2022)
in family pension of employees of banks a) Credit card & debit card reward points: Ms. Asha Shah (upto 31 October 2022)
points: X o
12 {Tota] Cosh lflows il 35548 Pursuant fo the revision in family pension payable to employees of the The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in e Diva Shah {upto 31 ‘Sctober 2022)
'I:otal 'I:otal Bank covered under f1th Bi-Partite settlement and Joint Note dated actuariall dgtermined rovisié)n for crepdit card and debi} card account M- Man§5| Shah (upto 31 SiOctober 2022)
A(\iljulsted A(‘iljulsted 11 November, 2020, the Bank has recognised the entire additional liability reward p())/ints‘ P Ms. Mahima Shah (upto 3; October 2022)
alue alue of % Nil in the Profit and Loss Account during the year ended 31¢t March, : . Mr. Chetan Shah (upto 31 S‘October2022)
13 | TOTAL HOLA 117,322 102,187 2024 (previous year Nil). There is no unamortised expenditure in the [ in crore) Ms. Chetna S“a“h.(‘("’“’ " ‘%Cmbeszozz?gzz)
h h - Year ended s. G. Saraswathi (w.e.f. 1% November
14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 97,645 88,665 Balance Sheet- on account of Family Pension. Particulars 315 March, 2024 | 31%March. 2023 Ms. Shobha Srivastava (w.e.f. 15t November 2022)
— - 45. Items exceeding 1% of Total Assets/ Total Income arch, arch, Veena Vaswani (w.e.f. 1% January 2024)
15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 120.15% 115.25% ; . ; S y
a) Details of items under Others (including provisions) (Schedule 5 — Opening provision for reward points 68.26 28.51 -
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Other Liabilities and Provisions) exceeding 1% of total assets of the Provision for reward points made 267.06 171.87 R in crore)
(% in crore) Bank is Nil. (previous year Nil). during the year Items / Related Party Sub- Asso- Key |Enterprise | Relatives |  Total
¥ ¥ . . 1 — - — idi i .| over
Average Q4 2022-2023 | Average Q3 2022-2023 b) Details of items under Others (Schedule 11 — Other Assets) exceeding Utilisation/ write-back of provision for (211.20) (132.12) stli:;r_y g;t::sl M::r?te whvich M(angeye-
Number of working days in the quarter 66 69 1% of total assets of the Bank is Nil (previous year Nil). reward points panles Per- KNP/ mer?(
Particulars Total Total Total Total c) Details of items under Miscellaneous Income (Schedule 14 — Other Income) Closing provision for reward 124.12 68.26 sonnel | Relative | pgr.
U""‘Zlgz‘eu w\ellagln‘eed Unv\;::gzted Wf,'agln':d exceeding 1% of total income of the Bank is Nil. (previous year Nil). points* °L:I':P sonnel
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) d) Details of items under Other expenditure (Schedule 16 — Operating * This amount will be utilised towards redemption of the credit card & debit control /
High Quality Liquid Assets Expenses) exceeding 1% of total income of the Bank are given below: card accounts reward points. s.igf:‘i"“"‘
i b) L I: influence
1| Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 94,801 87,406 y Rd'"dcmre) ) Lega Rincrore)  [Liabiiiies
Sr. ear ende
Cash Outflows _ No.| Nature of expense 319 March, 2024 Particulars 31" March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 Deposits 368584] 48.73] 61.02| 107.84] 174.02] 4,077.45
2 Rellall deposits and depOSI?S from small 1 Professional Fees 1,955.94 Opening Provision 41.44 43.78 i (1,823.43)| (67.64)|(261.73)|(104.26)|(184.32) |(2,441.38)
business customers, of which: Add: Addition during th 051 0.70 Borrowings - - - - - -
- - 2 |Brokerage Fees 770.58 : ition during the year g - R B R B R R
(i) |Stable deposits 35145 1,757  34,061| 1,703 - - () () () () () ()
— . Less: Reduction during the year (6.87) (3.04) Interest Payable 15.00 0.23 - 113 0.61 16.97
(ii) |Less stable deposits 173408( 17,341 169,013| 16,901 Rin crore) - — I . . I ]
osing Provision X . 3.04 0.10; 1.94 1.00 0.50, 6.58
n — Sr. Year ended cl P 35.08 41.44 ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: No. Nature of expense 31° March. 2023 ¢) Fraud and Other Provisions: Other Liabilities 87.31 - - 001 - 87.32
(i) |Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - 1 | Professional Fees 1 647’ 8 ! @ in crore) (72.32) () ()] (0.01) ()] (72.33)
m : : - - Assets
ii) | Non-operational deposits 100,655| 60,172 94,936 57,145 " o -
0 (all coﬁnterparties)p 2_|Brokerage Fees 707.83 . Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31+March, 2023 Advances 400.00] 2531] 0.01] 1.31] 0.04] 42667
(i) [Unsecured debt 1378| 1478 501 501 3 Soods and Service Tax (GST) 509.47 Opening Provision 39.02 42.19 (779.83)| (40.31) ()] (0.92)| (4.45)| (825.51)
4| Secured wholesale funding 3 3 Keene Add: Addition during the year 2680 478 esiments Gross (: 5?43245%2) Bl (#ﬁ 0 (44'3%1324'5%2)
5 |Additional requirements, of which B. ?T:ER PISCLOS:RES:Sh . Less:. Reducnc.)n. during the year (19.83) (7.95) Diminution on Investments - - - # - #
(i) |Outflows related to derivative exposures 21,638| 21.638] 24,140 24,140 - Earnings per Equity Share: Vear ended Closing Provision 45.99 39.02 e = és; () () #) (- = (:9)
and other collateral requirements Particulars r 6. Fixed Assets as per Schedule 10B include intangible assets relating to - >
(ii) [Outflows related to loss of funding on - - - - 31tMarch, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 v d soff d syst Javel dit hich follows: (102.63) () () () ()| (102.63)
pur e and sy d p expenditure which are as follows: - = ~
debt products . . Others Receivable 132.65 0.23 0.02 132.90
P Reconciliation between weighted shares (X in crore) 1 1
(iii) | Credit and liquidity facilities 3,193 295 2,996 250 used in the computation of basic and diluted Year ended c - (133.56)] (0.39) () ()] (0.03)] (133.98)
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 5489| 5,489 5,699| 5,699 earnings per share Particulars 31t March, 2024 | 31%tMarch, 2023 g::kF(;;unadr::teeosmmntments 107 Z Z 113 Z 220
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 182,760 8,151 178,244 7,960 Weighted average number of equity shares used | 1,987,326,015| 1,985,666,543 Gross Block (0.57) ) O (113) O (1.70)
in computation of basic earnings per share Swa
o - ps/ Forward contracts 200.00 - - - —-| 200.00
8 |Total Cash Outflows 116,224 4402 Effect of potential equity shares for stock 150,565 502,301 At cost on 31 March of the preceding year 887.69 713.43 (Notional) (334.83) 3 0 O (1.65)] (336.48)
Cash Inflows options outstanding Add: Additions during the year 141.46 212.24 Expenses
9 _|Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 832 6 1,154 2 Weighted average number of equity shares used | 1,987,476,580 | 1,986,168,844 Less: Deductions during the year 8.42 37.98 Salaries/fees (Include ESOP) - -| 2405 -l 057] 2482
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 41,759 34,406 44,710| 38,186 in computation of diluted earnings per share Total 1020.73 887.69 ) ()| (23.66) ()| (045 (24.11)
11 | Other cash inflows 809| 405 1,067 534 Following is the reconciliation between basic D 1ation / Amortisat] Interest Expense 98.22] 7.32] 14.50| 478 12.71] 137.53
12 [Total Cash Inflows 34,817 38,722 and diluted eamings per share eprectation f Amortisafion : : (8250) (440)| (44.30) (3.09) (8.77)| (93.06)
Tota Tota Nominal value per share 500 500 As at 31 March of the preceding year 625.90 549.80 Expenses for services received 919.73 - - 2.69 - 922.42
) ) L : - (551.44) B ()] _(0.76) ()] (552.20)
Al\i;:lifd A?;z‘:d Basic earnings per share 69.15 54.89 Add: Charge for the year 159.06 109.77 Income
Effect of potential equity shares for stock options 0.00 0.02 Less: Deductions during the year 4.90 33.67 Dividend 308.90 - - - -| 308.90
13 |TOTAL HQLA 94,801 87,406 — 242,27 24227
14 [Total Net Cash Outflows 81,407 75,680 Diluted earnings per share 69.15 54.87 Depreciation to date 780.06 625.90 et { o 52) 3 £3) o) 0 (‘)g 0 ég { = 1)
iquidi io (¢ o o it f X i 13,781.58 10,939.30 Net Block 240.67 261.79 nterest Income . - - : . :
15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 116.45% 115.49% Profit for the year after tax (X in crore) ,781. ,939. (104.85)] (4.05)] (0.17)] (0.14)] (0.35)] (109.56)
Average 02 2022-2023 | Average Q1 2022-2023 Less : Preference dividend including tax (¥ in crore) 38.51 40.50 Capital commitments for purchase of software and system development Income from services 1,208.03]  0.06 # 004 #]| 1,208.13
Number of working days in th rt P 6 Earnings used in the computation of basic and 13,743.07 10,898.80 expenditure are ¥ 80.13 crore (Previous year ¥ 91.10 crore). rendered (724.77)|  (0.11)] (0.01)| (0.04)| (0.01)| (724.94)
umber of working days 'n the quarter ol o o ol diluted earnings per share (X in crore) 7. Related Party Disclosures: Other Transactions
Particulars ofal ofal ofal otal . . : . - - - .
ighted | Weighted | Unweighted |Weighted 2. Segment Reporting: As per Accounting Standard -18, Related Party Disclosure, the Bank’s Sale of Investment 1(3276702351) ) Q Q Q 13276702%1)
Value Value Value Value . . i i . : v - W w -
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) The Summary of the operating segments of the Bank are as given below: fla::nﬁ::':’sh:: ifsltorz{lei:iiltc;v'v- Purchase of Investment 173157 . - 173157
High Quality Liquid Assets Rin crore) ) : (1,161.82) ) ) ) ()](1,161.82)
1 [Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 84,712 86,305 sr. Particulars 31stMarch, | 31tMarch, Nature of relationship | Related Party Loan Disbursed During the Year | 1,556.58 - - - —| 155658
|__|Cash Outflows . No. 2024 2023 Subsidiary Companies | Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited — (1.294.02) ) 0 0 ()](1.294.02)
2 |Retail deposits and deposits from small 1.| Segment Revenue Kotak Securities Limited Loan Repaid During the Year 1,926.58| 15.00 - - —-| 1,941.58
business customers, of which: a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 10,122.25 6,923.67 Kotak Mahindra Capital G Limited (1,074.02)] (15.00) 0 A (](1,089.02)
(i) [Stable deposits 33,190 _1,660] _ 32.115] 1,606 , otak Mahindra Capital Company Limited Assignment Portfolio Buyout 1.736.16 - - - —[ 1,736.16
(i) [Less stable deposits 164,832| 16.483| 161,514| 16.151 b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 22,788.95 18,130.83 Kotak Mah!ndra Life InsurancelCQmpany Limited During the year 0 &) 0 A O 8
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: c. Retail Banking 27,831.08 19,179.15 Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited o Dividend paid Z [ 7695] 023 053] 7771
(i) [Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - d. Other Banking business - - Kotak Mahindra Asset Management Company Limited O] O] 6637 (0.14)] (039 (5690)
(i) [Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) | 96,357| 56,987|  99,077| 57,552 Sub-total 60,742.28 44,233.65 Kotak Mahindra Trustee Company Limited Reimbursement to companies 28.07 _ - - _ 2807
(iii) [ Unsecured debt 952 952 564 564 Less : Inter-segmental revenue 4,670.27 2,899.75 Kotak Mah?ndra (Intern.an.onal) Limited (23.94) () ) () ()| (23.94)
4| Secured wholesale funding 1 - Total 56.07201|  41.333.90 Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited Reimbursement from companies | 141.35] _ 0.27 - - - e
5 | Additional requirements, of which 2. | Segment Results Kotak Mahindra Inc. (131.42)] (0.43) () () ()] (131.85)
(i) [Outflows related to derivative exposures 21,971 21,971 18,054| 18,054 . Kotak Alternate Assets Managers Limited (Formerly Purchase of Fixed assets 0.55 - - — _ 0.55
and other collateral requirements a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 4,807.18 3,906.35 Known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) 0.47) A 0 A o 04
(ii) dOeug{IO\;vode%asted to loss of funding on ~ _ _ ~ b. Corplorate /‘Wholesale Banking 7,473.79 7,072.95 Kotak Mahindra Trusteeship Services Limited Sale of Fixed assets dﬂ - — - 6.17
ot and gy i 2962]  243]  2846] 233 e Let 34109 Kotak Infrasiructure Debt Fund Limited @) 0l 0l o 0] @4
5 g‘g}er’:m:trzzm:l“f‘;n'dymaco'l')l'iezﬂons T R B T d. Other Banking business - - Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited Swaps/ Forward contracts 72480] 284] 450 4.32] 2461 761.07
= Toter confimaent fandi 9 o g - sa532l 751l Totemal 721 Sub-total 18,013.72 14,390.99 Kotak Mahindra Financial Services Limited (902.00) ()] (6.90)| (4.21)] (26.02)| (938.13)
8 |T telréonllngert]fl . ’ 111’ 957 ' 10-; 538 Total Profit Before Tax 18,013.72 14,390.99 Kotak Mahindra Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Limited Guarantees/ Lines of credit 10.55 - - - - 10.55
otal Cash Outflows ; \ —
Cash Inflows Provision for Tax 4,232.14 3,451.69 Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited I bl (0.80) () () () (- (0.80)
" IS . Liabilities:
9 [Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 3,399 ~ 6,759 = Total Profit After Tax 13,781.58 10,939.30 \'%A4 Pr(?duc.t Intermgd|?r|es Limited Other liabilities
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 43,046 35,970 38,180| 31,511 3. | Segment Assets BSS Microfinance L'm.'ted Other Payable
11 [Other cash inflows 1663 832]  2043] 1,122 a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre|  179,075.58|  133,506.32 Kotak Karma Foundation (w.e.f. 26" Jun 2023) Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.16 - - - | o016
12 [ Total Cash Inflows 36,802 32,633 b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 239,539.02 223,845.52 Sonata Finance Private Limited (w.e.f. 28" Mar 2024) (2.79) B ) B O @719
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(% in crore) (% in crore) (% in crore) Detail of activity under SARs is summarised below:
Items / Related Party Sub- Asso-  |Key Enterprise | Relatives | Total Items / Related Party Sub- Asso-  |Key Enterprise |Relatives | Total Items / Related Party Sub- Asso-  |Key Enterprise |Relatives | Total Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
sidiary ciates/ | Manage- | over of Key sidiary ciates/ | Manage- | over of Key sidiary ciates/ |Manage- | over of Key 31t March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
sonnel  |Relative | Per- sonnel  |Relative |Per- sonnel  |Relative |Per- Granted during the year 1,351,301 870,541
:fa\t(eMP sonnel ;'a\‘/(eMP sonnel ﬁ;\ll(eMP sonnel Additions/ (Reduction) due to transfer of 9,571 28,888
control / control / control / employeesl
significant significant significant Settled during the year 431,501 193,696
influence influence influence Forfeited during the year 161,174 77,414
BSS Microfinance Limited 77.86 - - - - 77.86 V. Other Tr tions: Guarantees/ Lines of Credits Outstanding at the end of the year 2.020,371 1,252,174
(61.31) () () () ()] (61.31) Sale of Investi t Kotak Alternate Assets 10.50 - - - - 10.50 Fai . fEmpl tock opti
Kotak Securities Limited 195 - - - - 1.95 Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund | 150.00 - - - -|150.00 Managers Limited (0.55) O @) O O (055 T:"f""_‘ “el° ;": oyee stoc |°dp fons 06 on the date of
@92 0 0 0 ol 6% Limited @070 O 0 O O @00 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 0.05 - - - I o0s e fair value of the equity-settled options is estimated on the date of grant
Kotak Mahindra Capital ~ - = = = — Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 205.00 - - - 2 205.00 Company Limited o o o o 0 0 using BIack-SchoI5§ options pricing model taking into agcount the terms and
L - - - - — conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair value of the cash-
Company Limited (0.01) () o] () ()| (0.01) (35.00) () () () ()| (35.00) Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited - - - - - - settled options is remeasured at each Balance Sheet date. The following table
Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 0.89 - - - - 0.89 Kotak Mahindra Investments 100.00 - - - -] 100.00 (0.25) () () () () (025 lists the inputs to the model used for equity-settled and cash-settled options:
(3.62) () () () () (3.62) Limited () () () () () () Note: 2024 2023
Sonata Finance Private Limited 3.55 - - - - 3.55 Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 675.44 - - - -| 67544 1. Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures. Year ended 31t March - -
() ] () () () () (66.68) () () () ()| (66.68) 2. The above does not include any transactions in relation to listed securities done on __ Equity-seftled | Cash-setfled | Equity-settled | Cash-settied
Kotak Mahindra General 1.42 - - - - 1.42 Kotak Securities Limited 54.31 - - - - 54.31 recognised stock exchange during the year. However above includes transactions Exercise Price X 1823-1939 0-1801 1,798-1,900 01,801
Insurance Limited (0.37) () () () () (0.37) (24.88) () ) () ()| (24.88) done on NDS with known related parties. Weighted Average 1,927.50 1,825.07 1,782.25 1,735.68
Others 1.48 - - 001 - 1.49 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 75.56 - - - -l 7556 3. #in the above table denotes amounts less than ¥50,000 Share Price
03 O O 0o @ (032 Company Limited o O ) ol () 4. Remuneration paid to KMPs is pursuant to approval from RBI (excluding value of Expected Volatility | 16.79%32.42% | 11.25%25.27% | 26.57%36.85% | 14.24%33.18%
. Purch f | tment: i i i
:'- Asste‘s- : urchase of Investments TR P employee stock options exercised during the year). Historical Volatility | 16.79%32.42% | 11.25%25.27% | 26.57%-36.85% | 14.24%-33.18%
nvestments . o . - - _ _ . - . .
Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited M Bal tstand d th i i i i i
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance | 1,557.20 - - - | 1,557.20 K @720 (] 0 G Q[ (s7.21) aximurm =g’ance outstancing curing the year = Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period)
Company Limited (1,557.20) () () [ ()[(1,557.20) Kotak Infrastructure Debt 60.00 - - - - 60.00 (% in crore) - At the grant date 1.25-4.42 1.25-4.31
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited | _ 146.37 - - - -] 14637 E“"dkLh'Am'r:?dd - (356:503‘)2) G 6 (oI (356;35052) Htems / Related Party th;lr)ns;;:Ir:Lys Associats | Man:gegmem Enferpisa Rzm’;s - As at 31 March 002384 0.024.04
(654.46) () () () ()| (654.46) Lifr’r‘“ated anindra Frime 319 ol (_‘) (_' (_') (_') 319 P 1 Personnel | KMP/ | Mk Risk-free interestrate | 7.01%-7.26% | 6.89%-7.19% | 5.75%7.77%| 6.79%-7.32%
BSS Microfinance Private Limited | _ 138.56 - - - -] 13856 : 61) ) L Relative | Personnel — m 009 m m
(138.56) 0 0 o Ol (138.56) K.O'?k Mahindra Investments 25.00 - - - - 25.00 o KNP Expected dividend rate 0.08% |  0.08%-0.09% 0.06% 0.06%
Kotak Mahindra Investments 488.03 - - - -| 488.03 Limited - () 0 (W] ol u] () have The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data and the
Limited (587.33) O O [ ()| (587.33) Kotak Mahindra General 195.00 - - - -| 195.00 control | Bank expects the volatility of its share price may not differ from historical volatility. The
- Insurance Limited (225.00) () () () ()] (225.00) significant measure of volatility used in the Black-Scholes options pricing model is the annualised
Kotak Mahindra General 875.00 - - - -] 875.00 Kotak K Foundati infl olatility € p pricing
- / - - - - . viati inuously u u Vi
Insurance Limited (680.00) 0 0 o Ol (©80.00) otak Karma Foundation 1.00 1.00 influence standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over
91' m 91' m (=) (=) () (=) (=) (-) Liabilities a period of time. For calculating volatility, the daily volatility of the stock prices on the
Eotakl_lpfr_aséructure Debt : - - - - - Loan Disbursed During the Year Deposits’ 8,514.67 347.49| 311.72] 269.00] 207.31 National Stock Exchange, over a period prior to the date of grant for equity settled
und Limite : — (324.79) 6 0 ol ()] (32479) ; ; 450.02 _ Z _ I 45002 (6,199.33)]  (768.74)|(2,553.73)| (180.63)| (248.59) options and remeasurement date for the cash settled options, corresponding with
Sonata Finance Private Limited 537.12 - - - -] 537.12 Kotak Mahindra Prime : - i i i i i
. . Limited 800.02) 0 0 0 ol ©00.02) Borrowings' _ _ _ _ _ the expected / residual life of the share-linked instruments has been considered.
() () () () () () : = = = = : Eff
Kotak S ities Limited ~ _ ~ ~ - - - - - ‘ect of the employee share-based payment plans on the Profit and Loss Account
Kotak Alternate Assets 228.24 - - - - 22824 otak securties Himite 956.56 956.56 Other Liabilities? 116.92 2.20 2.28 1.32 1.25 and on the financial position:
Managers Limited @82 Q] ol ol o (82 (o] B | | B | N () @179] ©02n)]  @2N)] (48] (.77 ®in crore)
Others 172.90 - - # -l 172.90 Kotak Mahindra Investments 150.00 - - - - 150.00 Assets v “od 31 March 2024 2023
(Mo @ O @ @ (71.90) Limited (49400 () 0 G ()] (49400)  agvances' 1351.92]  42.82]  004]  144] 558 carence aren
Diminution on in t Loan Repaid During the Year (948.94) (55.31) (4.62) (3.79) (8.24) Total Employee compensation cost pertaining to 168.02 99.77
Business Standard Private Ltd. - - - # - # Kotak Mahindra Investments |  245.00 - - - —-|  245.00 Investments-Gross' 5,401.88 - - # - Share'baseé payment plaﬁ? _
() () () #) ( #) Limited (249.00) ) 0 ©) () (249.00) (5,164.90) - #) #) #) Compensation cost pertaining to equn_y—settled 25.44 2418
c ission Receivable Kotak Securities Limited 956.56 — ~ = | 95656 Commission Receivable? 189.89 - ~ _ _ ebmployee share-based payment plan included
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 176.85 - - - -] 176.85 () () () () (- () (102.63) _ _ _ _ i. obYI? P I ont m
Company Limited (98.03) () Q] (-) ()| (98.03) Phoenix ARC Private Limited -1 15.00 - - - 15.00 Other Assets? 219.62 0.50 - 0.01 - alsaaltltia?rei?p oyee stock options outstanding 14044 121.78
Kotak Mahindra General 13.04 = - = =] 1304 6] 1500 () O @ (1500 (21570)]  (0.65)] (0.04)] (0.03)] (0.09) . .
Insurance Limited (4.60) () () () () (4.60) Kotak Mahindra Prime 725.02 - - - -] 725.02 Non Funded C e ant Deferred Compensation Cost 61.15 61.48
Others Receivable Limited (825.02) () (-) () ()] (825.02) Bank Guarantees' 11.07 _ _ 113 _ Closing balance of liability for cash-settled options 163.11 99.10
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 16.32 - - - - 16.32 A t Portfolio Buyout (1.02) - _ (1.13) - Expense arising from increase in intrinsic value of 77.22 31.69
(30.59) () () () ()| (30.59) During the year Swaps / Forwards' 696.99 2.84 3.64 1.06]  18.21 liability for cash stock appreciation plan
Kotak Securities Limited 13.74 - - - - 13.74 Sonata Fi Privat _ _ _ _ 1.030.05 _ 4.7 6.61 1757
(14.51) O O - O (1451 Liorr:]i?ez inance Frivate 1,736.16 1,736.16 N . ) (4.79) ( ) ( ) Had the Bank recorded the compensation cost for all share-linked instruments
Kotak Alternate Assets 34.86 — - = - 34.86 — - () () () () () () Note: ) ) ) ) ) ) granted on or before 31" March 2021 on the basis of fair valuation method
Mo Lo 23 é4 23 §4 Dividend Paid 1 Maximum balance is qeterm/ned based on comparison of the total daily outstanding instead of intrinsic value method, employee compensation cost would have
gers | (23.94) () () () ()| (23.94) Mr. Uday Kotak - - 76.65 - - 76.65 balances during the financial year. been higher by % 2.41 crore (previous year ¥ 5.20 crore) and the profit after
Kotak Mahindra Investments 6.71 - - - - 6.71 () (-)| (56.20) (=) ()] (56.20) 2. Maximum balance is determined based on comparison of the total outstanding tax would have been lower by ¥ 1.81 crore (previous year ¥ 3.89 crore).
Limited (7.69) ) () () ()| (769 Mr. Dipak Gupta - -[ 007 - - 0.07 balances at each quarter end during the financial year. Consequently the basic and diluted EPS would have been % 69.14 (previous
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 23.87 - - - - 23.87 (=) ()| (0.07) (=) (-) (0.07) 3. F/gures in brackets represent previous year’s figures. year ¥ 54.87) and X 69.14 (previous year % 54.85) respectively.
Company Limited (20.56) () () () ()] (20.56) Ms. Shanti Ekambaram _ _ 0.20 _ _ 0.20 4. # in the above table denotes amounts less than ¥50,000/-. 9. Emplovee Benefits
Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund 0.41 - - - - 0.41 () () () () (-) (-) 8. Employee Share Based Payments: . ploy ' ) ) ) )
Limited (9.54) 0 0 0 0 (9.54) Mr. Gaurang Shah ~ _ ~ _ ~ _ The Shareholders of the Bank had passed a Special Resolution in the i The Bank has recognlged lthe foIIowmg amounts in the Profit and Loss
BSS Microfinance Limited 963 = = = = 963 ) Ol ©10) ) B (0.10) Geperal meetlng Qated 29" June, 2015 and 22 !Deceml:?elr 2‘0234 to grant Account towards contributions to Provident Fund and Other Funds.
(19.38) B ) ) O (19.38) Mr. KVS Manian _ _ 0.02 _ _ 0.02 options to the elllglble employees of the Bank aqd its sgbmdlarles. Pursuant (% in crore)
Sonata Finance Private Limited 262 262 ) ) 2 ) B B to these resolutions, the Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2015 &
: - - - = - Vs Pallavi Kotak = - = o1 X0 Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2023 have been formulated Particulars Year Ended
. () 0 (G O] (G () : 0.1 .12 and adopted respectively. The Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 31 March, 2024 | 31+ March, 2023
Kotak Mahindra Asset 5.83 - - - - 5.83 . 0 0 G 0] 012) (0.12) 2015 is operational only to the extent of treatment of options granted till Provident Fund 282.02 235.48
Management Company Limited (3.63) (-) () (-) ()] (363 Ms. Indira Kotak - - - -] 030 0.30 22n December, 2023 and Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2023 is Superannuation Fund 1.20 117
Kotak Mahindra General 9.50 - - - - 9.50 () () (- ()] (0.22)] (0.22) currently in force. New Pension Fund 1282 1051
Insurance Limited (2.26) () () () () (2.26) Others - - =| 023 0.6 0.29 ity - i
Equity-settled options DIFC Employee Workplace 0.70 0.72
Phoenix ARC Private Limited - 023 - - | 023 (V] 0 O 014)] (005 (0.19) . ) . , : :
Reimb to The Bank has granted options to employees of the Group vide various Savings Scheme (DEWS)
()] (033) (G ) 0 (0.33) - employee stock option schemes. During the year ended 31t March, 2024, " .
Kotak Mahindra Capital 6.59 - - - - 6.59 Kotak Mahindra Capital 0.96 - - - - 0.96 the following schemes were in operation: ii. Gratuity
Company Limited (1.34) (-) () (-) () (1.34) Company Limited #) () (=) () () (#) - The gratuity plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested domestic
Others 2.58 # -l 002 - 2.60 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 6.84 _ _ _ _ 6.84 Particulars Plan 2015 Plan 2023 employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on
0.10)] (0.06) () O] .03 (0.19) (6.39) 0 o O o (6.39) Date of grant Various Dates Various Dates respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the Bank
Non Funded Commitments Kotak Securiies Limited 12‘ 20 ~ = ~ = 12’ 0 Date of Board Approval Various Dates Various Dates subject to a maximum of ¥ 0.29 crore. There is no ceiling on g_ratuity
Bank Guarantees " ;15) ) o ) Ol o ;‘5) Date of Shareholder’s approval 29" June, 2015 | 22" December, 2023 z:ms(l_)eréo u?!t‘ieg:;rznznge‘;\irclslgwc;tdesones of employees subject to
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 0.30 - - - - 0.30 - 623 623 Number of options granted 21,080,963 108,417 R i f, " ) d closing b | . tvalue of defined
Company Limited (0.25) ) G ) (O] (0.25 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance - - = - = - Method of Settlement (Cash / Equity) Equity Equity Sooficlianion o1 Opening and 5 0sIng baiance o) present value of astine
- f Company Limited (0.58) () ) ) () (0.58) benefit obligation for gratuity benefits is given below.
Kotak Securities Limited 0.02 - - - - 0.02 i i _ _ .
Vesting Period 0.01—4.16 years 1.03 — 3.40 years (% in crore)
(0.02) (=) (- (=) () (0.02) Kotak Alternate Assets 1.36 - - - - 1.36 - -
100 100 Managers Limited (0.25) 0 o O o (0.25) Exercise Period 0.03 — 1 year 0.50 year As at
Aero Agencies Private Limited - - - - - - - ¥ ~ ¥ ~ - : ™ i i i i Particulars o o
0 0 Ol .00 0 {1.00) Kotak Mahindra Investments 188 - - - - 188 Vesting Conditions Graded / Cliff vesting| Graded / Cliff vesting 31st March, 2024 | 31¢ March, 2023
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.25 - - - - 025 Limited (1.49) ) ©) ) O (149 The details of activity under Plan 2015 have been summarised below: Change in benefit obligations
(0.25) (-) () (-) () (0.25) Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 4.40 _ _ _ _ 4.40 Year ended 31" Warch, 2024 ] Year ended 31" Narch, 2023 Liability at th.e beginning of the year 522.55 515.20
Kotak Alternate Asset Managers 0.50 - - 0.13 - 0.63 (3.62) &) 0 A 0 (3.62) Number of | Weighted | Number of | Weighted Current Service cost 90.54 77.27
Limited = - (0.05) () ()| (0.13) () (018) Others 0.10 _ _ _ — 010 Particulars Shares | Average | Shares | Average Interest cost 40.35 36.19
Swaps | orwar contr_ac_ts (0.15) ) 8 B [B) (0.15) Exercise Exercise Actuarial Losses / (Gain) 17.39 (7.71)
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 100.00 - - - -] 100.00 Price(%) Price(3) -
(234.83) & o o O (23483 from i Strd o P'astv 'Serwce Cost __ 4.32 —
Kotak Mahindra Investments 100.00 - - - - 100.00 Kotak Mahindra Capital 10.53 - - - - 10.53 beginning ogf the year 3,573,225 1,642.98|4,270,658| 1,485.35 Liability assulmed'on acquisition / 0.31 0.61
Limited (100.00) 0 0 0 ()} (10000 Corpany L1d (10:34) 0 0 0 0y (1034 Granted during the year 1,112,490 1,939.00 [ 1,474,424 1,804.47 (Setled on cvestiirel
Others - - - - - - Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 39.32 - - - - 3932 - ,g Y U o A i Benefits paid (95.03) (99.01)
() () () O] (165 (1.65) (28.80) ) B ) Ol (2880 Forfeited during the year 206,273 | 1,804.14| 137,475| 1,611.54 Liability at the end of the year 580.43 52255
Ill. Expenses: Kotak Manmdra Life Insurance 1557 - - - I 1557 Exercised during the year | 1,364,316 | 1,460.33[ 1,894,822 | 1,413.62 Change in plan assets
Salaries/ fees (Include Company Limited (16.42) ) ) ) (] (1642 Expired during the year 415,397 | 1,768.94| 139,560| 1,670.66 Fair value of plan assets at the 502.57 572.43
ESOP/SARs) PR " L £ th
Kotak Securities Limited 31.76 - - - - 31.76 Outstanding at the end of 2,699.720| 1,825.57|3,573,225| 1,642.98 beginning of the year
Mr. Uday Kotak - -| 040 - - 040 (31.11) ) () ) O] @11 the year Expected return on plan assets 32.83 38.66
O] () () O] () #) - i i i
Wi Gaurang Sha - - o - = o Kotak Mahindra Investments 7.76 _ _ _ _ 7.76 gutth:fet,-:ﬁ z??r:/;z e;(aern:lsable 334,878| 1579.64| 835480| 1.439.84 Actual.'lal Géln / (Losses) 64.85 (40.51)
Limited (8.12) () 0 ) O @12 y Benefits paid (95.03) (99.01)
() Ol 6.27) 6] () (6.27) - Weighted average remaining -
Mr. KVS Manian _ _ 6.72 _ _ 6.72 Kotak Mahindra Asset 9.90 - - - - 9.90 contractual life (in years) 1.65 1.46 Employer contributions 127.70 31.00
0 Ol (.82 [ O (7.82) Management Company Limited (11.76) () () (-) ()] (11.76) Weighted average fair value Fair value of plan assets at the end 632.92 502.57
Mr. Dipak Gupta - -| 837 - - 8.37 Kotak Alternate Assets 10.27 - - - - 10.27 of options granted 509.70 490.13 of the year ) )
() ()] (8.22) () () (8.22) Managers Limited (9.64) ) () () () (9.64) (X in crore)
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram - - 673 - - 6.73 Kotak Mahindra Asset Management 4.06 - - - - 4.06 The details of activity under Plan 2023 have been summarised below: As at
O O @® 0 0] @35] | (singpore) Pte Liited N s ; Reconciliation of present value of the - :
Vi Ashok Vaswan - 8 . - 83 (Singap ). (4.07) Q] ] Q] () (407 Year ended 31 ‘Mar.ch, 2024| Year ended 31 ‘Mar'ch, 2023 obligation and the fair value of the plan assets | 31° March, | 31+ March,
Kotak Mahindra General 5.04 - - - - 5.04 Number of | Weighted | Number of | Weighted 2024 2023
(G 0 () ) () () Insurance Limited (4.19) (-) (-) () () (4.19) Particulars Shares Average Shares Average Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 632.92 502.57
Mr. Jay Kotak - - - -| 057 0.57 Others 712 027 - - - 739 Exercise Exercise —
() () () ()] (045 (0.45) . <;;6 ) [-‘3 ; -39 Price(3) Price(3) Liability at the end of the year 580.43 522.55
Expenses for services _ (6.96)] (043) (V) 6 (V) (7.39) I} di h (Net Liabilities)/ Net Asset included in “Others” 52.49 (19.98)
i Purchase of Fixed Assets utstanding at the p i .
received - - A beginning of the year _ _ _ _ under “Other Liabilities & Other Asset’
Kolak Securities Limited YT -~ -~ - - 082 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.07 - - - - 0.07 9 9 y -
o ol o o o om o o 0 O o B Granted during the year 108,417 | 1,823.00 Z _ Expense recognised for the year
Kotak Manimara L 15 7 15- 7 Kotak Mahindra General _ _ _ _ _ _ Forfeited during the year ~ ~ - - Current Service cost 90.54 77.27
cgtr: analhate e Insurance |5 - - - @ Insurance Limited 0w (O 0 Ol Ol (©14) Exercied durma Interest cost 40.35 36.19
pany - { 3 1; 0 t) 0 B ¢ 3 “; Kotak Mahindra Investments - - - - - - xercised during the year - - - - Expected return on plan assets (32.83) (38.66)
Kotk Namndra Senera O T e e e e T X ) ) ) B ) Expired during the year - - - - Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (47.46)| 3280
. = = = - - i i 0.17 - - - - 0.17 i i
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 1.35 - - - | 135 | KotakMahindra Life Insurance Outstanding attheend of | 00 /1ol 4 ra o0 Past Service Cost 4.32 -
(2.74) @ &) 8 O @74 Company Limited 009 0 0 0 Sl ) the year ’ ’ - - Net gratuity expense recognised in
Aero Agencies Private Limited Z Z 264 - 264 Kotak Securities Limited 5 10‘) (_‘) (_‘) (_‘) (_‘) 0 10‘) Outh of thz a?or\]/e exercisable _ ~ _ ~ Schedule 16.| 54.92 107.60
_ () () ()| (0.68) () (0.68) Kotak Alternate Assets 030 — — — = 0.30 at the end of the year Actual return on plan assets 97.69 (1.84)
Business Standard Private Limited - - - 0.05 - 0.05 Managers Limited A O ) O B B Weighted average remaining 244 _ (% in crore)
Q] () ()| (0.08) Q] (0.08) Kotak Mahindra Capital _ _ _ _ _ _ contractual life (in years) ' As at
BSS Microfinance Limited 895.03 - - - —-| 89503 Company Limited (0.04) O O [ O (0.04) Weighted average fair value 37770 _ Reconciliation of the Liability recognised in 31 March, | 31 March,
T (62801)] @ O G () 6200 [kotak Mahindra Trusteeship 0.01 - - - - o0 of options granted : the Balance Sheet 2024 2023
onata Finance Frivate Limile 242 = = = = 242 Services Limited (0.01) () () () () (0.01) The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of 19.98 (57.23)
: _ () () () () () () Kotak Mahindra Asset 0.01 - - - - 0.01 during the year was ¥1,842.83 (previous year31,772.38). the year : ’
Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 0.09 - - - - 0.09 Management Company Limited #) () () () () # The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are: E od 5192 10760
00y O O O] 0 ©09)] [salof Fixed Assets xpense recognize : :
Others 1.1#1 - - - - 1.1#1 Kotak Mahindra General # _ _ _ _ # 31¢t March, 2024 Léatﬂ:it;(; ass;lmedt'?n acquisition / 0.31 0.61
‘ A *) () u] u] u] (*) Insurance Company Limited ) () ) () () () Range of exercise Number Weighted average Weighted average (Settled on divestiture)
. Income: ; i ini ise bri buti
Dividend Kotak Alternate Assets 0.01 ~ = ~ = 0.01 prices (3) ot O‘ptl?‘r.ls remamllnlgfe of exercise price () Employer contrrbulnlons (127.70) (31.00)
Kotak Mahindra Capital 34.36 _ _ _ _ 34.36 Managers Limited (463(;)3 (=) () (=) () (463&) options (in years) Net (Asset) / Liability (52.49) 19.98
i Kotak Mahindra Trusteeshi . - - - - . 1 £ £ detail
Company Limited @) O O 0] 0] (3] |KotakMannda P ) T R 0 1,201-1,300 10,020 0.28 1,240.89 of plan
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 117.88 - - - -|  117.88 Kotak Mahindra Investment 015 ~ ~ ~ ~ 015 1301-1.400 174514 025 1341.00 The plan assets are invested in insurer managed funds. Major categories of
Company Limited (88.41) () () () ()] (88.41) otak Mahindra Investments - - 2 . 2 : T plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Limited (0.03) () 0 () O (003 1,701-1,800 786,518 1.65 1,798.00
Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund - - - - - - - - : ? : 2 st st
Limited 0.09 0.09 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance = = = = = = 1,801-1,900 774,484 1.48 1,814.32 31" March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
: 009 O 0 O G (009 Company Limited 09 0l 0 O 0 14 L) : : = % %
Kotak Mahindra Asset o 11.75 - - - - 11.75 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.01 _ _ _ _ 0.01 1,901-2,000 1,062,610 2.08 1,939.00 LIC managed funds # 0.34% 0.31%
Management Company Limited (74.50) (-) (-) (-) ()| (74.50) (0.02) () () () () (0.02) . — S S
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 8.91 _ _ _ _ 8.91 Kotk Securfies Limiied ¥ — = — = ¥ 31st March, 2023 Government securities 24.88% 32.87%
(8.91) () () () [SICED) 0 B 0 &) 0 0 Range of exercise #lumper Weighted average | Weighted average Bonds, debentures and other fixed 14.70% 35.65%
Kotak Securities Limited 36.00 - - - -|  36.00 Swaps/ Forwards/ Options prices %) of options rem?'"!':%e of exercise price (3) income instruments
i (36.00) (-) (-) (-) ()| (36.00) Ci (National) options (in years) Money market instruments 4.62% 19.55%
:gf‘zr:;;wm services Kotak Mahindra International Ltd (;; (_*) (j) (_*) (_*) (:; 901-1,000 75,321 0.73 1,000.00 Equity shares 55.46% 11.62%
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance | 728.63 - - - - 72863 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited | 136,21 - - - - 13621 1,001-1,100 10,000 0.25 1,050.00 Total 100.00% 100.00%
f 1,201-1,300 20,040 1.03 1,240.89 Lo . . L
Company Limited (407.35) () ) ) ()] (407.35) i (533.63) (w) (G (w) ()| (533.63) # In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded
Kotak Mahindra General 82.13 - - - -| 8213 Kotak Mahindra Investments 0.03 - - - - 0.03 1,301-1,400 738,312 0.72 1,341.00 with Life Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of each major category
Insurance Company Limited (35.79) () () () ()] (35.79) Limited (100.00) () () () ()| (100.00) 1,401-1,500 442,832 0.25 1,460.00 of plan assets, the percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of
Kotak Securities Limited 217.85 _ _ _ —_| 217.85 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 117.45 - - - -| 1745 1,701-1,800 1,224,120 2.08 1,798.00 plan assets has not been disclosed.
(166.32) () () () ()| (166.32) Company Limited (26.82) ) ) ) ()| (26.82) 1,801-1,900 1,062,600 1.83 1,809.20 Actuarial assumptions used
Kotak Mahindra Capital 15.05 - - - - 15.05 Kotak Alternate Assets 18.43 - - - - 18.43 Stock ation right
Company Limited (8.93) () () () () (8.93) Managers Limited (9.50) (=) (=) (=) (=) (9.50) ock appreciation _"g S " Discount rate 7.15% - 7.18% p.a. (previous year 7.30% - 7.39% p.a.)
- o 8.54 _ _ _ _ 854 At the General Meeting on 29" June, 2015, the shareholders of the Bank - -
Kotak Mahindra Asset 19.68 - - - -| 1968 Kotak Mahindra Asset had passed Special Resolution to grant SARs to the eligible employees of Salary escalation | 5.50% - IBA, 7% - (others) p.a. (previous year 5.50%
Management Company Limited (16.51) () () () ()] (16.51) Management Company Limited |  (10.30) () () ) ()| (10.30) the Bank and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to this resolution, Kotak Mahindra rate (IBA) and 12% in year 1 inclusive and 7% thereafter
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 37.46 - - - - 37.46 Kotak Mahindra Capital 76.61 - - - - 76.61 Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2015 had been formulated and adopted. (others) p.a.)
(37.09) () () () ()| (37.09) Company Limited (15.09) () (-) () ()| (15.09) Subsequently, the SARs have been granted under this scheme. The Board o - o
Kotak Alternate Assets 65.28 - - - - 65.28 Kotak Securities Limited 36713 _ _ _ 1 36713 of Directors of the Bank have formulated and adopted the Kotak Mahindra Sﬁpﬁgaegsf;gn 7.50% p.a. (previous year 7.00% p.a.)
Managers Limited (41.83) ) ) ) O 4183 (206.57) 5 0 0 (| (206.57) Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2023 effective from 1 December 2023 —L. - - - - -
BSS Microfinance Limited 26.73 _ _ _ _ 26.73 BSS Microfi limited 0 14 - 14 in place of SARs Scheme 2015. SARs Scheme 2015 is operational only to The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation,
'(#) 0 0 ) 0 '<#) S Microfinance Limite - - - - - 0. the extent of treatment of SARs granted till 30" November 2023. take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
Others 5220 006 4 004 ¥ 532 (0.09) () () () () (0.09) The SARs are settled in cash and vest on the respective due dates in a graded Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on expectation of the
- > - - Others 0.25 284 4.50 432] 2461 36.52 manner as per the terms and conditions of grant. The contractual life of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Fund
(10.95)] (0.11)] (0.01)] (0.04)] (0.01)] (11.12) () ()] (590)] (4.21)] (26.02)] (36.13) SARs outstanding range from 1.00 to 4.13 years. during the estimated term of the obligations
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12.

Experience adjustments

Tel.: +91-22-6166 0001

(X in crore)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows: Details of CSR Expenditure 31st March, 2024| 315t March, 2023
Rin crore) Amount of expenditure incurred*
Gratuity Year ended 31% March, Contribution to Kotak Education Foundation 32.12 22.74
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Contribution to Other Initiatives 87.61* 72.10
Defined benefit obligation | 580.43 | 522.55 | 515.20 | 497.48 | 455.85 Accrual towards unspent obligations
Plan assets 632.92|502.57 | 572.43 | 546.65 | 412.45 (Shortfall) in relation to:
- Ongoing project 111.08** 93.11
Surplus / (deficit) 52.49((19.98)| 57.23| 49.17((43.40) Other than ongoing project Nil Nl
Experience adjustments 12.97 7.66| 22.61( 12.62| 41.19 Total 230.81 187.95
on plan liabilities Amount required to be spent as per
Experience adjustments | 64.85|(40.51)| 34.10| 60.28|(36.81) Section 135 of the Act 230.24 187.41
on plan assets Amount of cumulative unspent at the end 184.55+* 168.34
The Bank expects to contribute ¥ 53.71 crore to gratuity fund in financial of the year ) )
year 2024-2025. Amount spent during the year on
The above information is as certified by the actuary and relied upon by (i) Construction / acquisition of any asset 28.31% 22.47"
the auditors. (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 91.42 72.36

iii. Pension
Pension liability relates to employees of Eivbl.
Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation for pension benefits is given below.

*Includes administrative overheads and impact assessment cost and excludes
% 6.27 crore (unutilised funds) which was refunded by implementing agencies in
April 2024.

**Includes X 6.27 crore (unutilised funds) which was refunded by implementing

(X in crore) agencies in April 2024.
As at $ For funding capital assets which are held in the books of the implementing partner
Particulars 31 March, | 31%*March, organizations / beneficiaries / public authorities. Includes advances paid against
2024 2023 construction /acquisition of Capital assets and doesn’t include amount spent on
Funded Funded c_reatfqn/acquisition of Capital assets out of Unspent CSR accounts of previous
Change in benefit obligations financial years.
Liability at the beginning of the year 191265 1.909.31 A does not include advances _paid aga_in_s_t constructi_on/acquisition of Capital assets
—— - and amount spent on creation/acquisition of Capital assets out of Unspent CSR
Transfer of Ilgbllltles funded during the year - - accounts of previous financial years.
lCLtJrren: Ser;nce cost 1;:§2 1?3;2 Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act:
nterest cos! . R
R in crore
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 171.29 40.67 . _ ( )
Past Service cost — — Financial Balance as at Amount Amount spent Balance as at
st 1 : i st
Benefits paid (181.90) (234.53) L 1 ll\r:) ;:parate retqoul;:eed Fro:1ul:: ! l'f::'ao?:fsae:parate . MI:rSZ:arale
Liability at the end of the year 2,111.67 1,912.65 With the | CSR Unspent | spent during| Company | CSR Unspent With CSR Unspent
Cl?ange in plan assets __ Company|  account year  |Bankaccount| account Company | ™ ccount
che:r \gge of plan assets at the beginning of 187326 105343 FY 23.24| - _ 218.39 | 107.31 _ 111.08 _
Y — — FY 22-23[93.11* - - - 56.15 - 36.96**
Expected return on plan assets 126.45 133.47
- - FY21-22| - 70.86° - - 34.36 - 36.50
Actuarial Gain / (loss) 13.37 11.27 FY 2223 237 437 Nil
Benefits paid (181.90) (234.53) - -
T *The amount was transferred to Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Unspent Account FY
Employer contributions 48.13 9.62
.p Y 2022-23 in April 2023 and includes refund of ¥ 2.96 crore received in April 2023.
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of 1.879.31 1873.26 " . ) }
the year ,0/9. , - Includes refund of X 0.007 crore received in April 2024.
i #The amount was transferred to Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Unspent CSR Account
R in crore) FY2023-24 on 29" April 2024. Also includes an amount of % 6.27 crore which was
Reconciliation of present value of the As at refunded by implementing agencies in April 2024.
Zbligation and the fair value of the plan 31“2':)"25;0'1, 31‘;g|2350h, $ Includes X 0.29 crore (unutilised funds) received from implementing agencies in
ssets April 2023.
Funded | Funded Details of CSR dit der Section 135(5) of the Act i t
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 1,879.31 1,873.26 o:oatthrothan o:;gﬁ"; :o:;ji::‘tr;'er ection (5) of the Act in respec
Liability at the end of the year 2,111.67 1,912.65 ’ (% in crore)
Net Asset / (Liability) included in “Others” -
under “Other Assets” / “Other Liabilities” (232.36) (39.39) Balance‘ Am:un{gezflte: Am'{u"‘: Am°u't“ Balanﬂ:
£ - orth unspen in Specified Fun require spen! unspen
Cﬁfg:\stzserr\?icc(;ggifd or the year 7428 6316 asat of Schedule VIl of the to be spent during asat
Interest cost 135'35 3 34'04 1t April 2023 Act within 6 months [ during the year|  the year 31¢ March 2024
Expected return on plan assets (126.45) (133.47) Nil = 8.87 887 Nil
Actuarial (gain) / loss 157.02 29.40 Notes: . , .
Effect of the imit in Para 59(b) : : 1. The amount required to be spent is Board approved CSR Project Budget for Other
_ it — - than Ongoing (Annual) CSR Projects for FY2023-24.
Net pension expense recognized in Schedule 16| 24110 93.13 2. The amount spent does not include CSR Administrative Overheads Expenditure
Actual return on plan assets 139.81 144.74 of X 2.99 crore and impact assessment cost of X 0.56 crore
(X in crore) Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act:
As at (X in crore)
Particulars 31¢t March, | 31t March, Unspent/
2024 2023 unutilised
Reconciliation of the Liability Funded Funded Balance Almoduntb A CSR amount Balance
recognised in the Balance Sheet exce::;pent r:::rl\rtedutr‘i)nge du’:}ﬁgll:\:pyz:r transferred to Total exce:;;pent
Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of the year 39.39 (44.12) 14 April 2023 the year Un:sz:tl:tsR 314 March 2024
Expense recognized 241.10 93.13 FY 202324
Employer contributions (48.13) (9.62) 1.42 230.24 119.73* 111.08 | 230.81 1.99
Effect of the limit in Para 59(b) - - * Include CSR Administrative Overheads Expenditure of ¥ 2.99 crore and impact
Net (Asset) / Liability is included in “Others” 232.36 39.39 assessment cost of X 0.56 crore.
under “Other Assets” / “Other Liabilities 13. Tier Il Bonds

£ + dotail £

Inv of plan
The plan assets are invested in a fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation
of India. In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets of the
fund, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or
amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed.
Actuarial assumptions used

a) Lower Tier Il Bonds outstanding as at 31¢ March, 2024 and as at 31 March
2023 is X Nil.

b) Upper Tier Il Bonds outstanding as at 31t March, 2024 and as at 31t March
2023 is X Nil.

c) Interest Expended-Others (Schedule 15(11l)) includes interest on subordinated
debt (Lower ands Upper Tier Il) X Nil (previous year ¥ 21.33 crore).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation,
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors like
settlement with employee unions.

Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average
long term rate of return expected on investments of the Fund during the
estimated term of the obligations

Experience adjustments

Amounts for the current year are as follows:

(R in crore)
Pension Year ended 31 March,
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Defined benefit obligation | 2,111.67|1,912.65/1,909.31(1,891.94[1,600.48
Plan assets 1,879.31|1,873.26|1,953.431,872.49|1,514.35
Surplus / (deficit) (232.36)| (39.39)| 44.12]| (19.45)| (86.13)
Experience adjustments 133.49| 140.78| 248.33| 199.72| 440.57
on plan liabilities
Experience adjustments 13.37 11.27 34.13| (1.52)| (7.85)
on plan assets

The Bank expects to contribute ¥ 228.21 crore to pension fund in financial
year 2024-2025.

iv. Compensated absences

The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of
accumulated leaves of the employees of the Bank is given below:

(X in crore)

As at

Particulars 31% March, 2024

153.11

31st March, 2023
129.40

Total actuarial liability
Assumptions:
Discount rate

7.15% - 7.18% - 4.27% 7.30% - 7.39% - 3.52%

(DIFC) p.a. (DIFC) p.a.
Salary escalation rate 5.50% (IBA), 5.50% (IBA),
7.00% (Others) and 3% 7.00% (Others) and
(DIFC) p.a. 3% (DIFC) p.a.

v. Long Service Award

The actuarially determined liability in respect of Long Service Award of
the employees of the Bank is given below:

(X in crore)

As at
31t March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
10.41 9.49

Particulars

Total actuarial liability
Assumptions:
Discount rate

715%7.19% p.a.| 7.30%-7.39% p.a.

Provisions and Contingencies

Breakup of “Provisions and Contingencies” (including write-offs; net of
write-backs) shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account:

(Xin crore)
Particulars Year Ended

31t March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023

Provisions for Investments (including NPI)** 79.22 (21.05)

Provision towards NPA 1,486.46 507.69

Provision towards Unhedged Foreign 10.71 (11.09)
Currency Exposure

Provision towards Standard Assets 97.65 140.42

General Provision — Covid-19 (124.90) (159.55)
Deferment Cases

Provision for country risk exposure - (4.79)

Provision for Current Tax 4,183.40 3,412.17

Provision for Deferred Tax 48.73 39.52

Other Provision and Contingencies 24.60 5.36

Total Provisions and Contingencies 5,805.87 3,908.68

*Provision in respect of security receipts of ¥ 64.91 crore for the year ended
31¢t March, 2024 was re-classified as Non Performing Investments (NPI). The
same was earlier accounted as Mark to Market Loss under “Other Income”. Such
reclassification has no impact on the result of the respective periods.

*Includes provision of ¥ 33.13 crore on applicable Alternate Investments Funds
(AIF) Investments in accordance with RBI circular dated 19" December, 2023 and
27" March, 2024.

The Bank held an aggregate COVID-19 related provision of ¥ 387.45 crore
as of 31t March, 2023. Based on the improved outlook and on actual
collections, the Bank has reversed provisions amounting to ¥ 124.90 crore
during the year ended 31st March 2024 and continues to hold provision of
% 262.55 crore as at 315t March, 2024.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“Bank”) recognises its responsibility to bring
about a positive change in the lives of the communities through its business
operations and Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”) initiatives.

Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure:

16.

. Description of Contingent Liabilities:

As at 14. Details of payments of audit fees
Particulars 31stMarch, | 31%March, (X in crore)
2024 2023 . =
Discount rate 7.19% p.a.| 7.39% p.a. Particulars 31t March, 2Yoeza4r Fn;!rfmar(:h’ 2023
Salary escalation rate 5.50% p.a.| 5.50% p.a. Statutory Audit fees 3.69 3.44
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% p.a.| 7.50% p.a. Other Matters 0.47 0.44
Inflation 10.00% p.a.[ 10.00% p.a. Total 4.16 3.88

Sr.| Contingent Liability*
1. | Claims not
acknowledged as
debts

Brief Description

This includes liability on account of Direct and
Indirect tax demands and legal cases filed
against the Bank.

The Bank is a party to various legal proceedings
in the normal course of business. The Bank does
not expect the outcome of these proceedings
to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s
financial conditions, result of operations or cash
flows. In respect of appeals filed by the Income
Tax department with higher authorities, where
the matter was settled in favour of the Bank at
the first appellate stage, and where in view of the
Management, it gives rise to an item of timing
difference, no contingent liability is envisaged
by the Bank.

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts
with inter Bank participants and with its
customers. Forward exchange contracts are
commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at
a future date at the contracted rate.

As a part of its Banking activities, the Bank
issues guarantees on behalf of its customers.
Guarantees generally represent irrevocable
assurances that the Bank will make payments in
the event of customer failing to fulfill its financial
or performance obligations.

4. | Acceptances, These includes:

endorsements and |+ Documentary credit such as letters of

other obligations obligations, enhance the credit standing of
the customers of the Bank.

« Bills re-discounted by the Bank and cash
collateral provided by the Bank on assets
which have been securitised.

» Underwriting commitments in respect of Debt
Syndication.

2. Liability on account
of outstanding
forward exchange
contracts

3. | Guarantees on
behalf of
constituents

5. | Other items for These include:

which the Bank is + Liabilities in respect of interest rate swaps,

contingently liable currency swaps, forward rate agreements,
futures and options contracts. The Bank
enters into these transactions with inter Bank
participants and its customers. Currency
Swaps are commitments to exchange cash
flows by way of interest/principal in one currency
against another, based on predetermined
rates. Interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash
flows. The notional amounts that are recorded
as contingent liabilities are amounts used as
a benchmark for the calculation of interest
component of the contracts.

+ Liability in respect of Capital commitments
relating to fixed assets and undrawn
commitments in respect of investments.

« Amount Transferred to RBI under the Depositor
Education and Awareness Fund ('DEA Fund').

* Also refer Schedule 12 — Contingent Liability

Small and Medium Enterprises:

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and
Medium enterprises. Following is the disclosure as applicable:

(X in crore)
sr. As at
No. Particulars 31tMarch, | 31%March,
: 2024 2023
1 [Principal amount due to suppliers registered 1.81 Nil
under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid
as at year end
2 |Interest due to suppliers registered under the 0.03 Nil
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid on principal
amount due to suppliers as at year end
3 | Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered 28.58 7.09
under the MSMED Act, where delay is beyond
the appointed day during the year
4 |Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of Nil Nil
MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
the MSMED Act, where delay is beyond the
appointed day during the year

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.
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(%)

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Nil Nil
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, where delay is beyond the appointed day
during the year

6 |Interest due and payable towards suppliers 0.31 0.05
registered under MSMED Act, for principal
payments already made

7 |Further interest remaining due and payable for 0.05 Nil
earlier years

8 |Total amount of interest remaining due and 0.39 0.05

unpaid at the end of the current financial year
(sum of items in Sr. no. 2,6 & 7)

The Bank, as part of its normal banking business that is conducted ensuring
adherence to all regulatory requirements, grants loans and advances, makes
investment, provides guarantees to and accept deposits and borrowings from
its customers, other entities and persons.

Other than the transactions described above which are carried out in the
normal course of business, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or deposits or any
other sources or kinds of funds) by the Bank to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or
invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Bank ("Ultimate Beneficiaries").
The Bank has also not received any funds from any parties (Funding Party)
with the understanding that the Bank shall whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Bank has acquired 100% of the issued and paid up capital of Sonata
Finance Private Limited, a Non-Banking Finance Company — Micro Finance
Institution registered with the RBI for a total consideration of ¥ 537.12 crore.
With this acquisition, Sonata has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Bank w.e.f. 28" March, 2024.

The Bank and Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited (‘KGI”)
have entered into definitive agreements for a transaction with Zurich
Insurance Company Limited (“Zurich”), whereby Zurich will acquire 70%
stake in KGI by way of a combination of primary and secondary acquisitions
in a single tranche, for a total consideration of approximately ¥ 5,560 Crore
(“Transaction”). Transaction would be subject to fulfilment of customary
conditions precedent, including the receipt of regulatory approvals from
the Reserve Bank of India and the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India. Upon completion of the Transaction (subsequent to receipt
of all requisite approvals), KGI will cease to be a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
of the Bank.

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014
the Bank has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
that have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the audit
trail feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except for six of the accounting software where
audit trail has not been enabled at the database level to log any direct data
changes. Also in respect of one cloud based accounting software, the Service
Organization Control Report does not cover whether audit trial was enabled
or not for direct data changes at the database level.

The Bank has received an order from the Reserve Bank of India dated 24th
April 2024, directing the Bank to cease and desist, with immediate effect
from (i) onboarding new customers through the Bank’s online and mobile
banking channels and (ii) issuing fresh credit cards. The order was based,
inter alia, on the deficiencies observed by the RBI in their IT Examination of
the Bank.

These directions shall be reviewed by RBI upon satisfactory remediation
of the observations. The Bank has taken concrete steps to adopt new
technologies to strengthen its IT systems and will continue to work with
RBI to swiftly resolve balance issues at the earliest. The Bank believes that
these directions will not materially impact its overall business. The Bank
has evaluated the order and assessed no material impact on its financial
statements and internal financial controls over financial reporting for the year
ended 315 March 2024.

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to current years’ presentation.

As per our report of even
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (‘the Bank’), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Standalone Profit and Loss Account,
and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes
to the standalone financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (‘the Standalone
Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements
give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and circulars and guidelines issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI’), in the manner so required for banking
companies and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 March
2024 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Identification of and Provisioning against Non-performing Assets
(‘NPAs’):

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 March 2024:

X 376,075.27 Crores

Provision for NPAs as at 31 March 2024: X 4,004.21 Crores

Refer Schedule 9, Schedule 17(C)(2) and Schedule 18(A) - Note 9 and Note 11

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

The Bank is required to comply
with the Master Circular issued
by the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI’) on ‘Prudential Norms
for Income Recognition,

Our audit procedures included the

following:

« Understood the process and controls,
and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls, including

Asset  Classification  and Information Technology based
Provisioning pertaining controls, and focused on the following:
to Advances’ (the’ IRAC| a Approval of new lending facilities in
norms’) and amendments accordance with the Bank’s credit

thereto which prescribes the
guidelines for identification
and classification of Non-
performing Assets (‘NPAs’)
and the minimum provision
required for such assets.

policies.

Performance of annual
renewal of loan accounts.
Monitoring of credit quality which
amongst other things includes
the monitoring of overdue loan

review/

The Bank is also required accounts, drawing power limit and
to apply its judgement to pending security creation; and

determine the identification = |dentification and classification of
and provision required NPAs in accordance with IRAC
against NPAs considering norms, other regulatory guidelines

issued by the RBI and consideration
of qualitative aspects.

various quantitative as well as
qualitative factors.

9.

The identification of NPAs is
also affected by factors like
stress and liquidity concerns
in certain sectors.

The provision for identified
NPAs is estimated based
on ageing and classification
of NPAs, value of security, | o
recovery estimates etc. and
is also subject to the minimum
provisioning norms specified

* Tested the Bank’s
identification of loans with default
events and/ or breach of other
qualitative factors, and for a sample
of performing loans, independently
assessed as to whether there was a
need to classify such loans as NPAs.

On a test check basis, verified the
accounts classified by the Bank as
Special Mention Accounts (‘SMA') in
RBI's Central Repository of Information

process for

by RBI. on Large Credits (‘CRILC’).
As the identification of and | with respect to provisions recognised
provisioning against NPAs towards NPAs, we reperformed the

requires considerable level
of management estimation,
application of various
regulatory requirements and
its significance to the overall
audit, we have identified this
as a key audit matter.

provision calculations on a sample
basis taking into consideration the
value of security, where applicable,
the IRAC norms and NPA policy of
the Bank, and compared our outcome
to that prepared by the management
and tested relevant assumptions and
judgements which were used by the
management.

Information Technology (‘IT’) Systems and Controls impacting
Financial Reporting
Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

The IT environment of the
Bank is complex and involves
many independent and
interdependent IT systems
used in the operations of
the Bank for processing and
recording a large volume
of transactions. As a result,
there is a high degree of
reliance and dependency
on such IT systems for the
financial reporting process
of the Bank.

Our audit procedures with respect to this
matter included the following:
In assessing the controls over the IT
systems of the Bank, we involved our
technology specialists to understand the
IT environment, IT infrastructure and IT
systems.
We evaluated and tested relevant IT
general controls and IT application
controls of the ‘in-scope’ IT systems
identified as relevant for our audit of
the standalone financial statements and
financial reporting process of the Bank.

On such ‘in-scope’ IT systems, we

have tested key IT general controls and

evaluated the same with respect to the
following domains:

* Program change management, which
includes that program changes are
moved to the production environment
as per defined approvals and relevant

Appropriate IT  general
controls and IT application
controls are required to
ensure that such IT systems
can process the data
as required, completely,
accurately, and consistently

for reliable financial segregation of environment is ensured.
reporting. ® User access management, which
We identified certain key includes user access provisioning, de-

provisioning, access review, password
management, sensitive access rights
and segregation of duties to ensure
that privilege access to applications
and its related operating system
and databases in the production
environment were granted only to
authorized personnel.

IT systems (‘in-scope’ IT
systems) which have an
impact on the financial
reporting process, and the
related control testing as a
key audit matter because of
the high level of automation,

significant .number of |. Other areas under the IT control
systems being used by | environment which includes backup
the Bank for processing management, business  continuity,
financial transactions, and disaster recovery drill in-line with the

the complexity of the IT
architecture.

bank’s disaster recovery plan, incident
management, batch processing and
monitoring.

We also evaluated the design and

Note
18B to

As described in
21 of Schedule

the standalone financial tested the operatiqg Aeffectiveness
statements, a supervisory of_ .key IT ap_pllcatlon controls
X within  key business processes,
action was  undertaken . . )
. which included testing automated
against the Bank under . .
calculations, automated accounting

Section 35A of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 by the
Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’)
subsequent to the year end
on 24 April 2024 arising from
an IT examination conducted
by the RBI, and the related

procedures, system interfaces, system
reconciliation controls and key system
generated reports, as applicable.

Where control deficiencies were identified
related to internal controls over financial
reporting, we tested compensating
controls or performed alternative audit

reports containing its | procedures, where necessary.
observations was issued by | \we evaluated the management's
the RBI. assessment of the observations

noted by the RBI arising in their IT
examination report and the impact of
those observations on the standalone
financial statements and on internal
controls with reference to financial
statements and also communicated
with those charged with governance
and sought their assessment of the
impact of the observations.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Bank’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under
the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The accompanying Standalone Financial Statements have been approved
by the Bank’s Board of Directors. The Bank’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, and provisions of section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the
RBI from time to time (‘RBI Guidelines’). This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the RBI guidelines for safeguarding of the assets
of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

Standalone Financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. In our opinion, The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and section 133 of the Act and the relevant
rules issued thereunder.

16. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our
audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been
within the powers of the Bank;

c) Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key
applications integrated to the core banking system, the audit is carried
out centrally as all the necessary records and data required for the
purposes of our audit are available therein. We have visited 128
branches to examine the records maintained at the branches for the
purpose of our audit.

17. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are
not applicable to the Bank by virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949. Accordingly, the reporting under Section 197(16) of the
Act regarding payment/ provision for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act, is not applicable.

18. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those
books; except for the matters stated in paragraph 18(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended);

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act

read with relevant Rules issued thereunder, to the extent they are not
inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by the RBI;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31 March 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

=

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters

connected therewith, reference is made to our remarks in paragraph
18(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 18(h)
(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements of the Bank and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

iv.

V.

Vi.

The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements — Refer

Schedule 12 (1), Schedule 17C — Note 13 and Schedule 18B - Note

15 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law

or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on

long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Schedule

12 (Il), 12 (Va) and 12 (Vb), Schedule 17C - Note 10, Note 11 and

Note 13 and Schedule 18B — Note 10 and Note 15 to the Standalone

Financial Statements;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Bank, during the year ended 31 March 2024;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Schedule 18B — Note 17
to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Bank to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Bank (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Schedule 18B — Note 17
to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been
received by the Bank from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

The dividend declared and paid during the year ended 31 March 2024

by the Bank is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Bank

has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account

that have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
audit trail feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, except for six accounting
software having Oracle or MySQL or SQL database, where the
audit trail has not been enabled at the database level to log any
direct data changes. Further, the Bank has used an accounting

software hosted by third-party service providers for maintaining
its books of account and in the absence of service organization
controls auditors’ report for the financial year, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail feature of the aforesaid software at
the database level was enabled and operated throughout the year.
Based on our procedures performed, for the accounting software
other than the aforesaid databases where the question of our
commenting does not arise, we did not notice any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.
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Chartered Accountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Standalone Financial Statements of Kotak Mahindra Bank
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Referred to in paragraph 18(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial
Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (‘the Bank) as at and for the year ended
31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements of the Bank as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Bank’s business, including
adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial
Controls with Reference to the Standalone Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) issued by the ICAI
and prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements includes obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s
internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements

6. A Bank's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
the Standalone Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse LLP For KKC & Associates LLP
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INNOVASSYNTH INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Regd. Office: Flat No. C-2/3, KMC No. 91, Innovassynth Colony,
Khopoli-410203, Maharashtra, India.

CIN: L67120MH2008PLC178923
Tel.: +91-2192-260224. Fax: +91-2192-263628.

Website: www.innovassynthinvestments.in
E-mail: secretarial @innovassynthinvestments.in
NOTICE is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of
the Company will be held on Friday, July 12, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. (IST),
through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) in
compliance with General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023,
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“‘MCA”) and Circular No. SEBI/
HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 2023 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and other circulars
issued from time to time (collectively referred to as “the Circulars”) and in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI LODR”), without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue to transact the business as set out in the notice of the
AGM. The deemed venue for the 16" AGM shall be the Registered Office

of the Company.
The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 2023-24 has
sent only by electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses
are registered with the Company/Depositories in accordance with the
aforesaid MCA Circular and SEBI Circular.
Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to
register their email addresses and mobile numbers with their relevant
depositories through their depositary participants. Shareholders holding
shares in physical mode are requested to furnish their email addresses
and mobile numbers with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent, M/s Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited. The Notice of 16"
AGM and Annual Report for FY 2023-24 will also be made available on the
Company’s website, www.innovassynthinvestments.in on the website of
the BSE Ltd at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at
www.evoting.nsdl.com.
The Company is providing its members with the facility to exercise their
right to vote on resolutions proposed to be passed at the Meeting by
electronic means (“e-voting”). The members may cast their votes using an
electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the Meeting
(“Remote e-voting”). The Company has engaged the services of the
National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) as the Agency to provide
an e-voting facility. The Notice of the meeting and format of communication
for e-voting is available on the website of the Company
www.innovassynthinvestments.in and on the website of NSDL https:/
www.evoting.nsdl.com The remote e-voting facility shall commence on
Tuesday, July 9, 2024, from 09:00 a.m. and end on Thursday, July 11,
2024, at 5:00 p.m. A person, whose name appears in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date, i. e., Friday, July 5,
2024, shall be entitled to avail of the facility of remote e-voting/voting at
the Meeting.
The result of e-voting shall be announced after the AGM of the Company.
The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on
the Company’s website www.innovassynthinvestments.in and on the
website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com for information on the
Members, besides being communicated to the Stock Exchanges.
Members may further note that SEBI vide circular dated January 25, 2022,
has mandated listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form
only while processing various service requests. Further, SEBI vide
notification dated January 24, 2022, has mandated that all requests for
transfer of securities including transmission and transposition requests shall
be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits
of dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize the shares
held by them in physical form.
BOOK CLOSURE:
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Section 91 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. that the Register of Members
and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Saturday, July 6, 2024, to Friday, July 12, 2024 (both days inclusive), for
the purpose of AGM.
Any person who becomes a member of the Company after despatch of
the Notice of the Meeting and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e.,
July 5, 2024, may obtain the User ID and password inter alia by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.com. The detailed procedure for obtaining a User
ID and password is also provided in the Notice of the meeting which is
available on the Company’s website and NSDL'’s website.
For any query or information, you may contact the NSDL helpdesk by
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at: 022 - 4886 7000.
For, Innovassynth Investments Limited
Sameer Pakhali
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
ACS 55746

Place: Khopoli
Date: 20" June 2024
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NAGAON BRANCH
AT HATALE POST NAGAON TALUKA RAIGAD DIST RAIGAD

RefNo: NAG/SP/2024-25/ Date:31/05/2024

Registered Post A/D

To,

1. Mr. Dinesh Shewakram Ahuja- Flat

No 505, Bwing, Alankar CHS Ltd, Section 25,

Behind Venu Talkies, Ulhasnagar 421004 Dist- Thane

2.Mrs. Honey Dinesh Ahuja- Flat

No 505, Bwing, Alankar CHS Ltd, Section 25,

Behind Venu Talkies, Ulhasnagar 421004 Dist- Thane

3. Arjun Tanaji Kale- At Near Rajmala Bus Stop

Po Thal Tal Alibag-402207

Sir,

NOTICE U/S 13(2) OF THE SECURITISATION AND RECONSTRUCTION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETSAND ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST ACT 2002

At the request made by you, the Bank has granted to you various credit facilities aggregating
to an amount of Rs. 17,60,000.00/-. We give hereunder details of various credit facilities
granted by us and the outstanding dues thereunder as on the date of this notice:-

Sr | Nature Of Facility Sanctioned | Outstanding Dues Total dues

No Amount

1 Star Home Loan Rs. Rs. 14,63,356.84 + Rs.
121075110000041 | 17,60,000/- | Rs.22256.34 (Uncharged | 14,85,613.18

Interest from 30.03.2024
t0 31.05.2024)

2. The aforesaid credit facilities granted by the Bank are secured by the following
assets/securities (particulars of properties/assets charged to Bank) :-

(a) "EQM of properties as Flat n0.302, 3rd floor in building known as "Shivalay Residency"
Survey No. 50 Hissa No. 23 at Varsoli, Tal- Alibag, Dist-Raigad"

North: Side Margin & Road East: Passage, Duct & Flat No. 301

South: FlatNo. 303 West: Side Margin

3. As you have defaulted in repayment of your dues to the Bank under the said credit
facilities, we have classified your account as Non-Performing Asset with effect from
29.04.2024 in accordance with the directions/guidelinesissued by the Reserve Bank of India.
4. For the reasons stated above, we hereby give you notice under Section 13(2) of the above
noted Act and call upon you to discharge in full your liabilities by paying to the Bank sum of Rs.
14,85,613.18/- contractual dues up to the date of notice) with further interest thereon
@8.80% p.a. compounded with Monthly rests from 01.06.2024 and all costs, charges and
expensesincurred by the Bank, till repayment by you within a period of 60 days from the date
of this notice, failing which please note that we will entirely at your risks as to costs and
consequences exercise the powers vested with the Bank under Section 13 of the
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest
Act, 2002, against the secured assets mentioned above.

5. While we call upon you to discharge your liability as above by payment of the entire dues to
the Bank together with applicable interest, all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the
Bank till repayment and redeem the secured assets, within the period mentioned above,
please take important note that as per section 13(8) of the SARFAESI Act, the right of
redemption of secured assets will be available to you only till the date of publication of notice
for public auction or inviting quotations or tender from public or private treaty for transfer by
way of lease, assignment or sale of the secured assets.

6. The amounts realized from exercising the powers mentioned above, will firstly be applied
in payment of all costs, charges and expenses which are incurred by us and/or any expenses
incidental thereto, and secondly in discharge of the Bank's dues as mentioned above with
contractual interest from the date of this notice till the date of actual realization and the
residue of the money, if any, after the Bank's entire dues (including under any of your other
dues to the Bank whether as borrower or guarantor) are fully recovered, shall be paid to you.
7.1f the said dues are not fully recovered from the proceeds realized in the course of exercise
of the said powers against the secured assets, we reserve our right to proceed against you
and your other assets including by filing legal/recovery actions before Debts Recovery
Tribunal/Courts, for recovery of the balance amount due along with all costs etc. incidental
thereto fromyou.

8.Please take note that as per Sub-section (13) of the aforesaid Act, after receipt of this
notice, you are restrained from transferring or creating any encumbrances on the aforesaid
secured assets whether by way of sale, lease, license, gift, mortgage or otherwise.

9. The undersigned is a duly authorized officer of the Bank to issue this notice and exercise
powers under Section 13 of aforesaid Act.

10. Needless to mention that this notice is addressed to you without prejudice to any other
right or remedy available to the Bank.

Place: ALIBAG
Date: 31/05/2024

NAME: SHIBA SHANKAR BEHERA

DESIGNATION: Chief Manager
AUTHORISED OFFICER

cc: (Copy of this notice to be endorsed to the guarantor(s) who has not created security

interest over his/her/their assets/property to secure the dues)

Sir/Madam,

To

1. Arjun Tanaji Kale- At Near Rajmala Bus Stop

Po Thal Tal Alibag-402207

1. You are aware that the Bank has granted various credit facilities aggregating to an amount

of Rs.17,60,000.00/- to Mr. Dinesh Shewakram Ahuja (principal debtor) and Smt Honey

Dinesh Ahuja (Co-Borrower), for which you stood as guarantor and executed letter of

guarantees dated 02/02/2018 guaranteeing the due repayment of the said amount by the

Principal Debtor and all interest, cost, charges and expenses due and accruing thereon. The

details of various credit facilities granted by the Bank and the amounts outstanding dues

thereunderas onthe date of notice are as under:

Sr | Nature Of Facility Sanctioned | Outstanding Dues Total dues

No Amount

1 Star Home Loan Rs. Rs. 14,63,356.84 + Rs.
121075110000041 | 17,60,000/- | Rs.22256.34 (Uncharged |14,85,613.18

Interest from 30.03.2024
t0 31.05.2024)

2. As the principal debtor has defaulted in repayment of his/her/theirs/its liabilities, we have
classified his/her/theirs/its dues as Non-Performing Asset on 29.04.2024 in accordance with
the directions or guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

3. Asstated herein above, in view of the default committed by the principal debtor, you as the
guarantor became liable jointly and severally for the said debt.

4. For the reasons stated above, we invoke your guarantee and hereby call upon you to
discharge in full your liabilities by paying to the Bank Rs. 14,85,613.18/- (contractual dues
upto the date notice) with interest @ @8.80% p.a. compounded with monthly rests within 60
days of receipt of this notice failing which we will be constrained to initiate legal action
against you including by filing appropriate legal proceedings against you before Debts
Recovery Tribunal/Court for recovery of the said amounts with applicable interest from the
date of the notice till the date of actual realisation along with all costs, expenses etc.
incidental thereto. Yours faithfully, For Bank of India

NAME: SHIBASHANKAR BEHERA
DESIGNATION: Chief Manager
AUTHORISED OFFICER

Place: Alibag
Date: 31/05/2024
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KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED

CIN - L65110MH1985PLC038137

Registered Office: 27BKC, C 27, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051
Tel.: +91-22-6166 0001 Fax: +91-22-6713 2403 Website: www.kotak.com Email: KotakBank.Secretarial@kotak.com

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31t MARCH, 2024 STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31<t MARCH, 2024 STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024 (Continued)
(% in thousands) (% in thousands) (% in thousands) (% in thousands)
As at As at Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Schedule | 31% March, 2024| 31 March, 2023 Schedule| 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 31 March, 2024 | 31+ March, 2023
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES I. | INCOME CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Earned 13 457,989,110| 342,508,509 Profit after tax 137,815,824| 109,392,951 (Decrease) in Subordinated Debt —-|  (3,060,000)
Capital 1 0,939,604| 14,932,783 Other Income 14 | 102,731,007| 70,830,509 Add: Provision for tax 42,321,343 34,516,910 Increase in Refinance 40,751,200/ 22,290,600
X ) Total 560,720,117| 413,339,018 Net Profit before taxes 180,137,167) 143,909,861 Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings [other than 8,767,072| (44,739,085)
Employee’s Stock Options 792.938 603.058 Il. | EXPENDITURE Adjustments for :- Refinance and Sub-ordinated debt]
(Grants) Outstanding ’ ’ . Employee Stock Options Expense 254,406 241,886 M ! ; .
Interest Expended 15 198.057.109| 126.989.356 L X oney received on exercise of Stock Options 1,992,348 2,678,633
P , , ) , Depreciation on Bank's Property 6,147,920 4,617,270 Redemption of Perpetual Non Cumulative
Reserves and Surplus 2 956,455,026| 819,666,658 Operating Expenses 16 166,788,460| 137,869,937 Diminution in the value of Investments 792,218 (210,499) Preference Shares (5,000,000) -
_ Provisions and Contingencies 58,058,724 39,086,774 Dividend from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures (3,089,012)|  (2,422,740) o )
:058, 1086, 1085, i Dividend paid 3,366,210 2,589,206
Deposits 3 | 4,480,537,451| 630,960,526 (Refer Note 10 -Schedule 8 B) Amortization of Premium on HTM Investments 3613,242| 5,258,387 N:'T :;\SF:'IaIFLOW FROM | (USED IN) FINANGING ( LIS )
Borrowings 4 283.680,956| 234,162,684 Total 422,904,293| 303,946,067 (Profit)/Loss on revaluation of Investments (net) (14,817,762) 2,210,847 ACTIVITIES () ( ) 43,144,410| (25,419,058)
lll.| PROFIT Provision for Non Performing Assets, Standard 14,945,163 4,780,363 | in Foreign C T lati
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 263,164,482| 198,299,064 Net Profit for the year (1 - Il 137,815,824| 109,392,951 Assets and Other Provisions Rosores ('3) orelgn Gurrency fransiation 93,631 385,916
. in Profi Profit le of Fixed Asset: 30,256 75,091
Total 6,003,570,457 | 4,898,624,773 Add: Balance in Profit and Loss Account 377,600,930| 304,558,535 rofit on sale of Fixed Assets ( ) ( ) NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 202,460,943| (103,816,273)
ASSETS brought forward from previous year 187,953,086 158,310,284 CASH EQUIVALENTS (A + B + C + D)
Total 515,416,754| 413,951,486 Adjustments for :- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 325,423,078| 429,239,351
Cash and Balances with 6 362,520,376| 199,655,575 Iv. ?«PPF:Of’RSItAtTItON?a sa.454.000| 27 348.300 (Increase) in Investments (other than Subsidiaries, | (354,952,676)| (225,477,641) BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (Refer Note below)
. ranster to Statutol eserve 5 , , y i i
Reserve Bank of India Transfer to Capital?éeserve - 9,900 il:\llr;tszﬁgalgs, Resocites and Oter T R A AL o AT THE END 527,884,021 325,423,078
Balances with Banks and Money 7 165,363,645| 125,767,503 Transfer to Special Reserve 1,250 000 1.150.000 ) OF THE YEAR (Refer Note below)
at Call and Short Notice uls 36(1)vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 o T (Increase) in Advances (577,005,271)) (491,152,921) Note:
Investments g | 1,554,037,587| 1,214,037,287 Transfer to Investment Reserve Account 8,316,321 - Decrease / (lncreése) in Other Assets 3,559,820 (11,285,411) Balance with Banks in India in Fixed Deposit 11,733 11,733
3760.752.659| 3.198.612.074 Transfer to Investment Fluctuation 12,000,000 5,253,150 Increase in Deposits 858,576,925 514,119,392 (As per Sch 71 (i) (b))
Advances 9 ’ ’ g ’ ’ ’ Reserve Accour.n ) Increase in Other Liabilities and Provisions 67,027,511 6,572,093 Balance with Banks in India in Current Account 3,266,665 3,758,533
Fixed Assets 10 21,552,965 19,203,232 gay;sfe;to Capital Redemption Reserve g,gggyg?g 2.580.208 (2,793,691)| (207,224,488) (As per Sch 7 1 (i) (a))
lviaen ’ ’ ’ 4 . N .
, ) ) , . ) Money at Call and Short Notice in India (as per 114 7 7 1
Other Assets 7 139,343,225| 141,349,102 Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 451,030,223| 377,600,930 Direct Taxes Paid (46,151,531)| (34,777,571) Soh 7y| (i) (asp 806,705 78,969,813
Total 6,003,570,457| 4,898,624,773 Total 515,416,754| 413,951,486 NET CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) 139,007,864| (83,691,775) Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) 19,910,301| 18,823,722
Contingent Liabiliti 12 | 7,172,811,816| 4,556,937,357 V- | BARNINGS PER SHARE OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (As per Sch6 1.
ontingent Liabilities 172,811, ,096,937, (Faf:e value of X 5/-) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Balance with RBI in Current Account 192,100,075 180,831,853
Bills for Collection 474,677,060| 446,552,442 Basic 69.15 54.89 Purchase of Fixed Assets (8.847.258)| (7.698,023) (As per Sch 6 Il (@)
Diluted 69.15 54.87 Balance with RBI in other account 150,510,000 -
Significant accounting policies and [17 & 18 (Refer Note 1 - Schedule 18 B) . : Sale of Fixed Assets 277,290 200,140 (As per Sch 6 1 (b))
Eg;isci: :&g;’l}t;;wmmg part of Significant accounting policies and notes to | 17 & 18 Investments in Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures (7,331,239)| (2,242,200) Balance with Banks Outside India:
accounts forming part of financial Stateme”tsl — Decrease in Investments in HTM securities 33,027,233| 12,225,987 (i) In Current Account (As per Sch 7 11 (i) 27,895,220 23,528,483
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of this Balance Sheet. The schedules referred to above form an integral part of this Profit and Loss Account. Dividend from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures 3,089,012 2,422,740 (if) In other Deposit Accounts (As per Sch 7 Il (ii)) 19,383,322 19,498,941
The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘A’ of the The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form ‘B’ of the CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 527,884,021| 325,423,078
Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) | 20,215,038| 4,908,644 END OF THE YEAR

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

(% in thousands)

(X in thousands)

(X in thousands) As at As at Year ended | Year ended
As at As at 31¢*March, | 31 March, 31st March, | 31t March,
31st March,| 31 March, 2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 2023 SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES
In India isi
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL (i) Government Securities 1,133,950,690 897,060,582 . Payments to and provision for employees 68,926,322 55,477,845
Authorised Capital (i) Other Approved Securities - - (Refer Note 9 - Schedule 18 B)
2,800,000,000 Equity Shares of X 5/- each (iii) Shares 12,245,800 12,302,210 IIl.  Rent, taxes and lighting 8,336,698 8,254,684
2,800,000,000 (31 March, 2023: (iv) Debentures and Bonds 168.493.691| 189,697,809 (Refer Note 3 - Schedule 18 B)
?888888383 Eﬂg‘l%gﬁgirezsogg 5/- each) 14,000,000 14,000,000 (v) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 39,020,133 31,688,894 Il Printing and Stationery 1,944,074 1,686,785
1/000.000.000) Perpetual Non Cumulati (vi) Others [Units, Certificate of Deposits (CD), 183,138,405| 71,092,790 IV. Advertisement, Publicity and Promotion 9,709,109| 6,326,413
,000,000,000) Perpetual Non Cumulative Commercial Paper (CP), Security Receipts, ot
Preference Shares of Z 5/- each 5,000,000 5,000,000 Pass Through gemﬁcates(PTC)]V P V. Depreciation on Bank’s property 6,147,920 4,617,270
i i . 19,000,000 19,000,000 Total 1.536,848.719 | 1.201.842.285 VI. Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses* 57,440 35,675
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital . Outside India T e VIl Auditors' fees and expenses 41,619 38,840
1,987,920,898 (31" March, 2023: 1,986,556,582) (i) Government Securities 2,777,753 1,464,844 (Refer Note 14 - Schedule 18 B)
Equity Shares of X 5/- each fully paid-up 9,939,604 9,932,783 (ii) Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 383,242 383,242 VIll. Law Charges 317,976 435,680
Nil (31¢ March, 2023: 1,000,000,000) (iii) Other Investments IX. Postage, telephone etc 4.178.355 3665.394
Perpetual Non Cumulative a) Shares 18,040 12,460 g ) ’ on on
Preference Shares of ¥ 5/- each fully paid-up - 5,000,000 Eb; Debentures and Bonds 14,009,833 10,334,456 X Repairs and maintenance 11,026,629 9,293,498
Total 9,939,604 14,932,783 Total 17,188,868 | 12,195,002 Xl Insurance 4688,982| 3,907,174
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS Total Investments (1 and Il) 1,554,037,587 | 1,214,037,287 XII. - Other Expenditure (Refer Note 45 - 51,946,459 44,570,879
I gtatutongRleserve 148.317983| 120,969 683 SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES Schedule 18 A and Note 12 - Schedule 18 B)
pening Balance S17, 209, A. () Bills purchased and discounted * 75,847,475 55,508,802 167,321,583| 138,310,137
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 34,454,000 27,348,300 (i) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and loans 1,204,741,113 | 987,126,164 Less: Reimbursement of Costs from Group Companies 533,123 440,200
Total 182,771,983 | 148,317,983 repayable on demand’ Total 166,788,460 137,869,937
Il. Capital Reserve (iii) Term Loans@ 2,480,164,071 | 2,155,977,108 - - - -
Opening Balance 3,531,886 3,521,986 Total 3.760.752.659 | 3.198.612.074 * - Pertains to non-executive directors remuneration.
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account - 9,900 e e
Total 3,531,886 3,531,886 #Bills purchased and discounted s net of Bills SCHEDULE 17 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1[N Gene;al Reserve Rediscounted ¥ 2,723.66 crore A BACKGROUND
Opening Balance . 6,425,304 6,404,249 (Previous Year X 1,475.84) crore In February 2003, Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited was given a license to
Add: Amount transferred on Employee's 69,716 21,055 " net of borrowings under Inter Bank Participatory carry out banking business by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI"). It was the first
%Otg‘; Options (Grants) Outstanding lapsed 6.495.020 6.425 304 certificates of ¥ 2.54 crore Non Banking Finance Company (NBFC) in India to be converted into a Bank.
V. Investment Reserve Account = S (Previous Year ¥ 220.00 crore) B Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“Kotak Mahindra Bank’, “Kotak” or “the Bank”)
Opening Balance _ _ e ”te_; Oftbo”?g'n%s ;er;jezrslmer Bank Participatory provides a full suite of banking services to its customers encompassing Consumer
Add: Transfer from/(to) Profit and Loss Account 8,316,321 - (CF?:elv‘i%au:SY:ar? 086 '26)”0’9 i3|ankr|1ng, Commerme:l Eanklfr;g, T‘re%sutl;y'a??\ Cgrpokratet Banklndg in India an?j
Total 8,316,321 — ' 95043 N also has a representative office in Dubai. The Bank set up and commence
V. s° al IR /s 36(1)vill) of B. () Secured by tangible assets 2,851,501,397 | 2,465,402,365 operations in May 2016, at its International Financial Services Center Banking
. |n':;$:1ae T::Zr‘\:/te #9551 (i) o (if) Covered by Bank/ Government guarantees 33,513,741 69,720,473 Unit (“IBU”) in Gujarat International Finance Tec (GIFT) City, Gujarat. The Bank
Opening Balance 8,942,000 7,792,000 (iii) Unsecured 875,737,521| 663,489,236 has commenced operations in October 2019 at its first overseas branch at the
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 1.250.000|  1.150.000 Total _ 3,760,752,659 | 3,198,612,074 Dubai International Financial Centre (‘DIFC”), Dubai, UAE.
Total 10,192,000 8,942,000 ¢ ancluding advances against book debs. B BASIS OF PREPARATION
VI Securities Premium Account (i) Priority Sector 1,677,430,941 | 1,471,534,973 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with statutory
Ope.nmg B_alance . 249,839,331 247,024,798 (i) Public Sector 23,509,188 4,093,487 requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The
ﬁdd._R’Sehceweld dunlrgg the year 2,175,407 2,814,533 (iii) Banks 13,650,218 2,077 accounting and reporting policies of Kotak Mahindra Bank used in
€ss: Share Issue Expenses - - (iv) Others 1,985,655,735 | 1,674,439,675 the preparation of these financial statements is the accrual method of
Tota_l ) 252,014,738 249,839,331 Total 3,700,246,082 | 3,150,070,212 accounting and historical cost convention unless stated otherwise and it
Vil Capital Redemption Reserve C.Il. Advances outside India conforms with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (“Indian
Ope_nlng Balance - (i) Due from banks - - GAAP”), the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 and the
ﬁdd' Tr?nsfer from Profit and Loss 5,000,000 - (ii) Due from others i relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
ng)lun 5.000,000 — a) Bills purchased and discounted - - (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 in so far as they apply to banks and
Vill. Amalgamation Reserve 23 (S)mg;gated and term loans 60,506,57Z 48,541 ,863 the gmdellr}es issued by RBI.
Opening Balance 1,224,046 1,224,046 Total 60,506,577 48,541,862 Use of estimates
Add: Additions — — Grand Total (C.I. and C.IL) 3,760,752,659 | 3,198,612,074 Thg preparation of finan_cial statements r_equires the Management to make
Total 1,224,046 1,224,046 SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets
IX. Investment Allowance (Utilised) Reserve Premises (Including Land) and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the date of the financial
Opening Balance 500 500 Gross B statements and the reported income and expenses during the reporting
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account — — At cost on 31 March of the preceding year 10,577,170 10,570,977 period. The Bank’s Management believes that the estimates used in
X ;I‘otal " ¢ Fluctuation R 500 500 Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year 2,240 11,562 preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
g g;::ir?;eé‘alanl(‘:: uation Reserve 3.000.000 17 746.850 Less: Deductions during the year 13 5,369 results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to the accounting
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 12,000,000 5253150 Ezt:rleciation 10,579,397 10,577,170 estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.
Total_ ) 35,000,000 23,000,000 As at 31t March of the preceding year 2,364,590 2,191,672 C  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Xl Foreign Currency Translation Reserve Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year 174,346 174,113 1 Investments
Opemng Balance ) 784,678 398,762 Less: Deductions during the year - 195 Classification:
¢g;ia.l(Decrease)/ Increase during the year 83223; ggiz;g Depreciation to date 2,538,936 2,364,590 In accordance with the RBI guidelines on investment classification and
XIl. Balance in the Profit and Loss Account : : Net B|°_°k 8,040,461 8,212,580 valuation, investments are classified on the date of purchase into “Held for
" Balance in the Profit and Loss Account 451,030,223 | 377,600,930 B. Other Fixed Assets Trading” (HFT’), "Available for Sale” (AFS') and “Held to Maturity” (HTM')
Total 251030223 377.600.930 g"c'“dg‘lg f‘l’("“t”'e and fixtures) categories (hereinafter called “categories”). Subsequent shifting amongst
ross Bloc the categories is done i d ith the RBI guidelines at the | f
Tota (110
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year 8,742,449 7,496,819 transfer, and depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully provided
A. |I. Demand Deposits Less: Deductions during the year 869,110 3,710,275 ' R o
i From Banks 3.068.958 2435164 Total 20422 957 32.549.618 Under each of these categories, investments are further classified under
" F oth 74910131968 697'867'219 Depreciation === — six groups (hereinafter called “group/groups”) - Government Securities,
i From Other D19, .00/, As at 315 March of the preceding year 21,715,950 20,862,194 Other Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures and Bonds, Investments
Tota_l . 752,062,926 700,302,383 Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year 5,973,574 4,443,157 in Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and Other Investments for the purposes of
Il. - Savings Bank Deposits 1,290,951,628 | 1,217,850,232 Less: Deductions during the year 779,07 3,589,401 disclosure in the Balance Sheet.
lll. Term Deposits Depreciation to date 26,910,453 21,715,950 The Bank follows ‘Settlement Date’ accounting for recording purchase and
i. From Banks 96,581,087 | 26,074,227 Net Block (Refer Note 6 - Schedule 18 B) 13,512,504 10,833,668 sale transactions in securities, except in the case of equity shares where
ii. From Other 2,349,921,810| 1,686,733,684 C. Leased Fixed Assets ‘Trade Date’ accounting is followed
Total 2,446,502,897 | 1,712,807,911 Gross Block Basis of classification:
8 At cost on 31¢ March of the preceding year 1,540,585 1,540,585 .
1_-°ta| Dep_°s'ts (o 1ll) . . 4,489,537,451| 3,630,960,526 Additions/Exchange Gain/(Loss) during the year — - Investments that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date
B. (i) Deposits of branches in India 4,461,142,550 | 3,612,850,670 Less: Deductions during the year 1,540,585 - of purchase are classified under HFT category. As per the RBI guidelines,
(i) Deposits of branches outside India 28,394,901 18,109,856 Total — 1,540,585 HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified
Total (i and ii) 4,489,537,451| 3,630,960,526 Depreciation as AFS securities as on that date. Investments which the Bank intends to
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS As at 315 March of the prgceding year 1,383,601 1,383,601 hold till maturlity are qlqss?ﬁed as HTM securities. The Bgnk has classified
1. Borrowings in India Add: Charge/Exchange Gain/(Loss) for the year - - investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under HTM
T R Bank of Indi 47.000,000 Less: Deductions during the year 1,383,601 - category. Investments which are not classified in either of the above two

(I) thSENBe :n otindia B 2’259’792 Depreciation to date - 1,383,601 categories are classified under AFS category.

E::I)) Othz: InZ?ituStions and Agencies o 000, Net Block — 156,984 Acquisition Cost:

(Refer Note 13 - Schedule 18 B) 209,701,800 140,000,600 Total (A)+(B)+(C) 21,552,965 19,203,232 The cost of investments is determined on weighted average basis. Broken

Total 209,701,800 | 189,260,392 SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS period interest on debt instruments and government securities are considered

; . . Interest accrued 44,126,279 38,950,762 as a revenue item. The transaction costs including brokerage, commission,

Il Borrowings outside India "' Advance tax (net of provision for tax) 1,938,700 " etc. paid at the time of acquisition of investments is recognised in Profit and
Banks & Other Institutions 73,979,156 | 44,902,292 lll.Stationery and Stamps 14,768 21,038 Loss Account
Refer Note 13 - Schedule 18 B V. Others (Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A 93,263,478 102,371,302 _ N

( ) .

Total 73,979,156 44,902,292 and Note 4 - Schedule 18 B)* Disposal of investments: ,

Total Borrowings (I and Il) 283,680,056 | 234,162,684 Total 139,343,225 141,349,102 . Investm_ent_s classl_fled_as HFT or AFS - Profit or loss on sale or

Secured Borrowings other than CBLO and — — *Includes deposits placed with NABARD/SIDBI redemption is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

Repo Borrowings included in | above % 3,253.85 crore (Previous year X 4,544.48 crore) « Investments classified as HTM - Profit on sale or redemption of

Tier Il Bonds included in | (iii) above - _ SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES investments is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and is

Tier Il Bonds included in Il above _ _ Claims not acknowledged as debts 5,637,058 4,911,365 appropriated to Capital Reserve after adjustments for tax and transfer to

|| Liability on account of outstanding 5,019,139,271 2,991,342,115 Statutory Reserve. Loss on sale or redemption is recognised in the Profit
iﬁgEPDRU(;-\I/-:lsslbg;HER LIABILITIES Forward Exchange Contracts and Loss Account.
1. Bills Payable 36.051.339 30,880,206 lll. - Guarantees on behalf of Constituents Short Sale:
II. Interest Accrued 22336906 11.966 131 !)) |Cr)1 |tr1¢(iia ndi 319,446,355 | 268,102,384 The Bank undertakes short sale transactions in Central Government dated
: P 999 900, i) Outside India - - ities i i deli ition i ;
Il Provision for tax (net of advance tax and tax - 2,378,818 IV. Acceptances, Endorsements and other obligations 266,940,082 | 244,570,188 ziz:rr'tﬁ:.'l.ns;:;f;n:ﬁ dw:guzgl gfoJ Iftism?:\'/-er:fm?r?t: ﬁ]ots;]téog;slac: égggr':::?
deducted at source). ) V. Other Items for which the Bank is contingently liable : The short position is marked to market and loss, if any, is charged to the Profit
V. Standard Asset provision 16,256,473 15,172,925 a. Liability in respect of interest rate and currency | 1,432,586,428 | 996,439,662 and Loss Account while gain, if any, is ignored. Gain or loss on settlement
V. Others (including provisions) 188,519,764 | 137,900,984 swaps and forward rate agreements of the short position is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A b. Liabillty in respect of Options Contracts 116,319,586 31,806,455 Valuation:

and Note 11 - Schedule 18 B) ¢ Capital commitments not provided 8,723,033| 16,200,945 : ) _ _ _

Total 263,164,482 | 198,299,064 d.  Unclaimed Customer balances transferred to 4,120,003 3,564,243 Thg vgaluatlon of mv_estments is performed in accordance with the RBI
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RBI DEAF Scheme guidelines as follows: _ _ .
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA Total 7,172,811,816 | 4,556,937,357 a) Investments classified as HTM — These are carried at their acquisition

1. Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) 19,910,301 18,823,722 ® in thousands) cost. Any premium 03 acqu'i"'ot'; IOf debt |nst'rum?nrt1$ / government

Total 19,910,301 18.823.722 securities is amortised over the balance maturity of the security on a

II. Balances with RBI — —= SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE | Year ended| Year ended straight line basis. Any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of
: PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEARENDED | 31¢t March,| 31stMarch, such securities is provided.

(a) In Current Account 192,100,075 180,831,853 o

(b) In Other Deposit Account 150,510,000 _ 31 MARCH, 2024 2024 2023 b) Investments classified as HFT or AFS — Investments in these

Total 342,610,075 180,831,853 SCHEDULE 1_3 - INTEREST EARN.ED categories are marked to market and the net depreciation, if any,

Total (I+1) 362.520.376| 199 655.575 L. Interest / discount on Advances / Bills 322%82?8 Zggggéggg within each group is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Net

= — - Income on Investments bl e a iati if any, is ignored. Further, provision other than temporar
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BANKS ppreciation, it any, is 1g : P porary
AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE . ;merest on balances with RBI and other inter-bank 7,793,843 5,502,956 dimir_mtion is made at individual ;e(_:urit_y Ieyel. Except in cases where
. InIndia IV. Others 4,634,499 2,634,582 provision other than temporary diminution is made, the book value of
(i) (Ba)llanges witt}& Banks 3966.665 3758533 Total 457,989,110 | 342,508,509 the individual securities is not changed as a result of periodic valuations.
a) In Current Accounts 266, ,758, SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME i i i i ‘AFS’
(b) In Other Deposit Accounts 11,733 11,733 Commission, exchange and brokerage 70,485,388 54,400,095 © :I:1I:eTrT1artl<et N fa'.r value of q;otl(te: mvestr?tentts mcluie(ti n the fAtES aqd
Total 3,278,398 3,770,266 II Profit / (Loss) on sale of Investments (net) (5,597,936) | (7,557,133) categories Is measured with respect to the market price of the scrip
(ii) Money at Call and Short Notice IIl.Profit / (Loss) on revaluation of Investments (net) 14,817,762 | (2,210,847) as available from the trades or quotes on the stock exchanges, SGL
(a) With Banks _ 77469 813 IV.  Profit/ (Loss) on sale of building and other assets (net) 30,256 75,091 account transactions, price list of RBI or prices declared on Fixed Income
(b) With Other Institutions 114.806.705 1'500.000 ¥| IF’rofit on exchznéze trans?cgiorés (réet)t(ingludinsg %erEjV,atiyesl) 14,032,659 | 16,366,587 Money Market and Derivatives Association of India (‘FIMMDA') website
,696, ,909, . Income earned by way of dividend, etc. from Subsidiaries 4,560,996 3,646,060 ) - o Pri oo
Total 114,806,705 78,969,813 Associates and / or Joint Venture in | outside India by Financial Benchmark India Private Limited (FBIL) as at the year end.
Total (i and ii) 118,085,103 82,740,079 VII. Profit on recoveries of non-performing assets acquired 3,031,033 3,109,786 d) Treasury Bills, Exchange Funded Bills, Commercial Paper and Certificate
II. Outside India VIII. Miscellaneous Income (Refer Note 45 - Schedule 18 A) 1,370,849 3,000,870 of Deposits being discounted instruments, are valued at carrying cost.

(i) In Current Accounts 27,895,220 23,528,483 SCI-IrI(E)gI[JLE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED 102,731,007 | 70,830,509 e) Market value of units of mutual funds is based on the latest net asset

(ii) In other Deposit Accounts 19,383,322 19,498,941 . Interest on Deposits 183,267,206 | 117,982,582 value declared by the mutual fund. ,

(i) Mc?nfy at c_a.a_ll and short notice - - Il Interest on RBI / Inter-Bank Borrowings 3,666,491 2,505,371 f) Investments in subsidiaries / joint ventures (as defined by RBI) are

Total (i, ii and iii) 47,278,542 43,027,424 ll. - Others (Refer Note 13(c) - Schedule 18 B) 11,123,412 6,501,403 categorised as HTM and assessed for impairment to determine other

Total (1 and Il) 165,363,645| 125,767,503 Total 198,057,109 | 126,989,356 than temporary diminution, if any, in accordance with RBI guidelines.

g) Market value of investments where current quotations are not available

are determined as per the norms prescribed by the RBI as under:

« In case of unquoted bonds, debentures and preference shares where
interest / dividend is received regularly (i.e. not overdue beyond 90
days), the market price is derived based on the Yield to Maturity
for Government Securities as published by FIMMDA / FBIL and
suitably marked up for credit risk applicable to the credit rating of the
instrument. The matrix for credit risk mark-up for each category and
credit rating along with residual maturity issued by FIMMDA / FBIL is
adopted for this purpose;

« In case of bonds and debentures (including Pass Through Certificates)
where interest is not received regularly (i.e. overdue beyond 90 days),
the valuation is in accordance with prudential norms for provisioning
as prescribed by the RBI. Interest on such securities is not recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account until received;

« Equity shares, for which current quotations are not available or
where the shares are not quoted on the stock exchanges, are valued
at break-up value (without considering revaluation reserves, if any)
which is ascertained from the company’s latest Balance Sheet. In
case the latest Balance Sheet is not available, the shares are valued
at X 1 per investee company;

« Units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) held under AFS category
where current valuations are not available are marked to market
based on the Net Asset Value (NAV) shown by VCF as per the latest
audited financials of the fund. In case the audited financials are not
available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued
at ¥ 1 per VCF. Investment in unquoted VCF after 23 August, 2006
are categorised under HTM category for the initial period of three
years and valued at cost as per RBI guidelines. Such investments
are required to be transferred to AFS thereafter;

« Security receipts are valued as per the Net Asset Value (NAV)
obtained from the issuing Asset Reconstruction Company or
Securitisation Company or estimated recovery whichever is lower.
The Bank has classified Security Receipts whose tenure has
exceeded 8 years, as “Non Performing investments”.

« The Bank provides for investments in Alternate Investments Funds
(AIF) in accordance with RBI circular dated 19" December, 2023 and
27" March 2024.

Non-performing investments are identified and depreciation / provision

are made thereon based on RBI guidelines. The depreciation /

provision on such non-performing investments are not set off against
the appreciation in respect of other performing securities. Interest on
non-performing investments is not recognized in the Profit & Loss

Account until received.

i) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions - Securities sold
under agreements to repurchase (Repos) and securities purchased
under agreements to resell (Reverse Repos) are accounted as
collateralised borrowing and lending transactions respectively. The
difference between the consideration amount of the first leg and the
second leg of the repo is recognised as interest income or interest
expense over the period of the transaction.

Advances
Classification:
Advances are classified as performing and non-performing advances
(‘NPAs’) based on RBI guidelines and are stated net of bills rediscounted,
inter-bank participation with risk, specific provisions, interest in suspense,
claims received from Export Credit Guarantee Corporation and Emergency
Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) with respect to non-performing
advances, provisions for funded interest term loan and provisions in lieu of
diminution in the fair value of restructured assets. Also, NPAs are classified
into sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets as required by RBI guidelines.
Interest on NPAs remaining uncollected is transferred to an interest suspense
account and not recognised in the Profit and Loss Account until received.
Amounts paid for acquiring non-performing asset(s) from other banks and
NBFCs are considered as advances. Actual collections received on such
non-performing asset(s) are compared with the cash flow(s) estimated
while purchasing the asset to ascertain overdue(s). If such overdue(s) is/
are in excess of 90 days, then this/these asset(s) are classified into sub-
standard, doubtful or loss as required by the RBI guidelines on purchase of
non-performing asset(s).
The Bank transfers advances through inter-bank participation with and without
risk. In accordance with the RBI guidelines, in the case of participation with risk,
the aggregate amount of the participation issued by the Bank is reduced from
advances and where the Bank is participating, the aggregate amount of the
participation is classified under advances. In the case of participation without
risk, the aggregate amount of participation issued by the Bank is classified
under borrowings and where the Bank is participating, the aggregate amount
of participation is shown as due from banks under advances,
Provisioning:
The Bank classifies its advances, investments and overdues from crystallised
derivatives including those at overseas branches into performing and non
performing in accordance with guidelines issued by the RBI. Provision
for NPAs comprising sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets is made in
accordance with RBI guidelines. In addition, the Bank considers accelerated
specific provisioning that is based on past experience, evaluation of
security and other related factors. Specific loan loss provision in respect of
non-performing advances are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. Any
recoveries made by the Bank in case of NPAs written off are recognised in
the Profit and Loss Account.
The Bank considers a restructured account as one where the Bank, for
economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, grants
to the borrower concessions that the Bank would not otherwise consider.
Restructuring would normally involve modification of terms of the advance
|/ securities, which would generally include, among others, alteration of
repayment period / repayable amount / the amount of installments / rate of
interest (due to reasons other than competitive reasons).
Restructured accounts are classified as such by the Bank only upon approval
and implementation of the restructuring package. Necessary provision for
diminution in the fair value of a restructured account is made.
In respect of borrowers restructured under the Resolution Framework — 1.0
and Resolution Framework 2.0 for COVID-19 related stress the Bank holds
provisions higher than the provisions as required by the RBI guidelines based
on the estimates made by the Bank.
In accordance with RBI guidelines the Bank has provided general provision
on standard assets including credit exposures computed as per the current
marked to market values of interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
contracts, and gold at levels stipulated by RBI from time to time. Additional
standard asset provision is done for overseas stepdown subsidiaries of Indian
corporates. Standard provision is also made at higher than the prescribed
rates in respect of advances to stressed sectors as per the framework
approved by the Board of Directors. In case of Frauds, the Bank makes
provision for amounts it is liable for in accordance with the guidelines issued
by RBI. Ageneral provision on the entire amount outstanding from borrowers
who had an overdue on February 29, 2020 and to whom moratorium was
given is also made.

Further to provisions required as per the asset classification status, provisions
are held for individual country exposure (except for home country) as per
the RBI guidelines. Exposure is classified in the seven risk categories as
mentioned in the Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited
(‘ECGC’) guidelines and provisioning is done for that country if the net funded
exposure is one percent or more of the Bank’s total assets based on the
rates laid down by the RBI.

Provision for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of borrowers is made
as per the RBI guidelines.

h

Loss on Sale of Advances to Asset Reconstruction Company

Loss on sale of Advances sold to Asset Reconstruction Company are
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

Securitisation

The Bank enters into purchase/sale of corporate and retail loans through
direct assignment/Special Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’). In most cases, post
securitisation, the Bank continues to service the loans transferred to the
assignee/ SPV. The Bank also provides credit enhancement in the form
of cash collaterals and/or by subordination of cash flows to Senior Pass-
Through Certificate holders. In respect of credit enhancements provided or
recourse obligations (projected delinquencies, future servicing etc.) accepted
by the Bank, appropriate provision/disclosure is made at the time of sale in
accordance with AS-29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets as specified under section 133 and the relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2021.
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In accordance with the RBI guidelines on Securitisation of Standard
Assets dated 24 September 2021, the profit, loss or premium on account
of securitisation of assets at the time of sale is computed as the difference
between the sale consideration and the book value of the securitised asset.
Any resultant profit, loss or premium realised on account of securitisation is
recognised to the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which the sale is
completed.

The Bank invests in instruments of other SPVs which are accounted for at
the deal value and are classified under Investments.

Fixed assets (Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible) and
depreciation / amortisation.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets have been stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and adjusted for impairment,
if any. Cost includes cost of purchase inclusive of freight, duties, incidental
expenses and all expenditure like site preparation, installation costs and
professional fees incurred on the asset before it is ready to put to use.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only
when it increases the future benefit / functioning capability from / of such
assets. Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of a Property
Plant and Equipment / Intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and
recognised as income or expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on
sale of premises of the Bank, net of taxes and transfer to statutory reserve
is appropriated to Capital Reserve as per RBI guidelines.

Depreciation / Amortisation - Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis
on a Straight Line Method over the estimated useful life of the assets at
rates which are equal to or higher than the rates prescribed under Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the
assets. The estimated useful lives of assets based on technical evaluation
by management are as follows

Asset Type
Premises
Leasehold Land

Improvement to leasehold premises

Estimated Useful life in years
58
Over the lease period
Over the period of lease subject
to a maximum of 6 years.

Office equipments
(High capacity chillers, Transformers, 10
UPS, DG set, Fire Suppression,
HVAC, PAC & Elevators)

Office equipments (other than above)
Computers

Furniture and Fixtures

Motor Vehicles

ATMs

Software (including development)
expenditure

w |o|s|o|w|lo

Used assets purchased are depreciated over the residual useful life from
the date of original purchase.

Items costing less than X 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve
Bank of India and Balances with Other Banks / institutions and money at
Call and Short Notice (including the effect of changes in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency).

Bullion

The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis
for selling to its wholesale customers. The difference between the sale price to
customers and actual price quoted by supplier is reflected under other income.
The Bank also borrows and lends gold, which is treated as borrowings or
lending as the case may be in accordance with the RBI guidelines and the
interest paid or received is classified as interest expense or income and is
accounted on an accrual basis.

Revenue recognition
Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.

Interest income in respect of retail advances is accounted for by using the
internal rate of return method to provide a constant periodic rate of return.
Interest income on investments in PTCs and loans bought out through the
direct assignment route is recognised at their effective interest rate.
Interest income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure
of the instruments so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return.
Service charges, fees and commission income are recognised when due
except for guarantee commission and letter of credit which is recognised
over the period of the guarantee / letter of credit. Syndication / arranger
fee is recognised as income as per the terms of engagement.

Upon an asset becoming NPA the income accrued gets reversed, and is
recognised only on realisation, as per RBI guidelines.

Penal interest is recognised as income on realisation other than on
running accounts where it is recognised when due.

Other fees are recognised when due, where the Bank is reasonably
certain of ultimate collection.

Dividend income is accounted on an accrual basis when the Bank’s right
to receive the dividend is established.

Gain on account of securitisation of assets is amortised over the life of
the securities issued in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI.
Loss on account of securitisation of assets is recognised immediately in
Profit and Loss account.

In respect of non-performing assets acquired from other Banks / Fls and
NBFCs, collections in excess of the consideration paid at each asset level
or portfolio level is treated as income in accordance with RBI guidelines
and clarifications.

Fees received on sale of Priority Sector Lending Certificates is considered
as Miscellaneous Income, while fees paid for purchase is recognised as
expense under other expenses in accordance with the guidelines issued by
the RBI.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

Contribution as required by the statute made to the government provident
fund or to a fund set up by the Bank and administered by a board of trustees
is debited to the Profit and Loss Account when an employee renders the
related service. The Bank has no further obligations.

Superannuation Fund

The Bank makes contributions in respect of eligible employees, subject to a
maximum of ¥0.01 crore per employee per annum to a Fund administered by
trustees and managed by Life Insurance Companies. The Bank recognises
such contributions as an expense in the year when an employee renders
the related service. The Bank has no further obligations.

New Pension Scheme

The Bank contributes up to 10% of eligible employees’ salary per annum,
to the New Pension Fund administered by a Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (PFRDA) appointed pension fund manager. The Bank
recognises such contributions as an expense in the year when an employee
renders the related service.

DIFC Employee Workplace Savings Scheme (DEWS)

The Bank’s branch in Dubai International Financial Centre (DIFC) contributes
up to 8.33% of eligible branch employees’ salary per annum to the DIFC
Employee Workplace Savings Scheme (DEWS). The Bank recognises such
contributions as an expense in the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Bank has no further obligation.

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The Bank provides for Gratuity, covering employees in accordance with
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, service regulations and service awards
as the case may be. The Bank’s liability is actuarially determined (using
Projected Unit Credit Method) at the Balance Sheet date. The Bank makes
contribution to Gratuity Funds administered by trustees and managed by
Life Insurance Companies.

Pension Scheme

In respect of pension payable to certain erstwhile ING Vysya Bank Limited
(“elVBL”") employees under Indian Banks’ Association (“IBA”) structure, the
Bank contributes 10% of basic salary to a pension fund and the difference
between the contribution and the amount actuarially determined by an
independent actuary is trued up based on actuarial valuation conducted as
at the Balance Sheet date. The Pension Fund is administered by the Board
of Trustees and managed by Life Insurance Company. The present value
of the Bank’s defined pension obligation is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method as at the Balance Sheet date.

Employees covered by the pension plan are not eligible for employer’s
contribution under the provident fund plan

The contribution made to the Pension fund is recognised as planned
assets. The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced
by the fair value of the plan assets.

Actuarial gains or losses in respect of all defined benefit plans are
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which
they are incurred.

Compensated Absences — Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

The Bank accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial
valuation as at the Balance Sheet date conducted by an independent actuary
which includes assumptions about demographics, early retirement, salary
increases, interest rates and leave utilisation. The net present value of the
Banks’ obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at
the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains / losses are recognised in the Profit
and Loss Account in the year in which they arise.

Other Employee Benefits

As per the Bank’s policy, employees are eligible for an award after completion
of a specified number of years of service with the Bank. The obligation is
measured at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised
during the period when the employee renders the service. These benefits
include performance incentives.

Employee share based payments
Equity-settled scheme:

The Employee Stock Option Schemes (ESOSs) of the Bank are in accordance
with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021. The schemes provide for grant of options to employees of the Group to
acquire the equity shares of the Bank that vest in cliff vesting or in a graded
manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period.

RBI, vide its clarification dated 30" August, 2021 on Guidelines on
Compensation of Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Material
Risk Takers and Control Function Staff, advised Banks that the fair value
of share-linked instruments on the date of grant should be recognised as
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an expense for all instruments granted after the accounting period ending
31t March, 2021.

In accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 and the Guidance Note on “Accounting for
Employee Share-based payments” issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using
the intrinsic value method for all options granted on or before 31t March,
2021. The intrinsic value being the excess, if any, of the fair market price of
the share under ESOSs over the exercise price of the option is recognised as
deferred employee compensation with a credit to Employee’s Stock Option
(Grant) Outstanding account.

The Bank has changed its accounting policy from intrinsic value method to
fair value method for all share-linked instruments granted after 31t March,
2021 in accordance with the RBI guidance. The fair value of the option is
estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model and is recognised
as deferred employee compensation with a credit to Employee’s Stock Option
(Grant) Outstanding account.

The deferred employee compensation cost is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period of the option. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the number of equity instruments that are outstanding.

The options that do not vest because of failure to satisfy vesting condition
are reversed by a credit to employee compensation expense in “Payment
to and provision for employee”, equal to the amortised portion of the cost of
lapsed option and credit to deferred employee compensation equal to the
unamortised portion. In respect of the options which expire unexercised
the balance standing to the credit of Employee’s Stock Option (Grant)
Outstanding account is transferred to General Reserve. The fair market
price is the latest available closing price, preceding the date of grant of the
option, on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Bank are listed.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified, the minimum
expense recognised in ‘Payments to and provision for employees’ is the
expense as if the terms had not been modified. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification which increases the total intrinsic/ fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

In respect of options granted to employees of subsidiaries, the Bank recovers
the related compensation cost from the respective subsidiaries.
Cash-settled scheme:

The cost of cash-settled transactions, stock appreciation rights (SARs) having
grant date on or before 31stMarch 2021 is measured initially using intrinsic
value method at the grant date taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the instruments were granted. Similar to Equity settled options,
SARs granted after 31¢t March, 2021 are measured on fair value basis.
The intrinsic / fair value is amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period with a recognition of corresponding liability. This liability is remeasured
at each balance sheet date up to and including the vesting date with changes
inintrinsic / fair value recognised in the profit and loss account in ‘Payments to
and provision for employees’. The SARs that do not vest because of failure to
satisfy vesting conditions are reversed by a credit to employee compensation
expense, equal to the amortised cost in respect of the lapsed portion.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency monetary assets and monetary liabilities are translated as
at the Balance Sheet date at rates notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’
Association of India (FEDAI) and the resultant gain or loss is accounted in
the Profit and Loss Account.

Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transactions except in respect of representative
office (which are integral in nature) expenses, which are translated at monthly
average exchange rates.

Outstanding forward (other than deposit and placement swaps) and spot
foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are
revalued at rates notified by FEDAI for specified maturities and at the
interpolated rates of interim maturities. In case of forward contracts of greater
maturities where exchange rates are not notified by FEDAI, are revalued
at the forward exchange rates implied by the swap curves in respective
currencies. The forward profit or loss on the forward contracts are discounted
using discount rate and the resulting profits or losses are recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account as per the regulations stipulated by the RBI.
Foreign exchange swaps “linked” to foreign currency deposits and placements
are translated at the prevailing spot rate at the time of swap. The premium
or discount on the swap arising out of the difference in the exchange rate
of the swap date and the maturity date of the underlying forward contract
is amortised over the period of the swap and the same is recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account.

Contingent liabilities on account of letters of credit, bank guarantees and
acceptances and endorsements outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date
denominated in foreign currencies and other foreign exchange contracts are
translated at year-end rates notified by FEDAI.

The financial statements of IBU and DIFC which are in the nature of non-
integral overseas operations are translated on the following basis: (a)
Income and expenses are converted at the average rate of exchange during
the period and (b) All assets and liabilities are translated at closing rate as
on Balance Sheet date. The exchange difference arising out of year end
translation is debited or credited as “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”
forming part of “Reserves and Surplus”.

Derivative transactions

Notional amounts of derivative transactions comprising of swaps, futures
and options are disclosed as off Balance Sheet exposures. The Bank
recognises all derivative contracts (other than those designated as hedges)
at fair value, on the date on which the derivative contracts are entered into
and are re-measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet or reporting
date. Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive
(positive marked to market) or as liabilities when the fair value is negative
(negative marked to market). Changes in the fair value of derivatives other
than those designated as hedges are recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account.

Outstanding derivative transactions designated as “Hedges” are accounted
in accordance with hedging instrument on an accrual basis over the life of
the underlying instrument. Option premium paid or received is recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account on expiry of the option. Option contracts are
marked to market on every reporting date.

Lease accounting

Leases where all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised
as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs in respect of operating leases such as legal
costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognised as expense immediately in the
Profit and Loss Account.

Accounting for provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Bank has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of
business, including pending litigations, proceedings pending with tax
authorities and other contracts including derivative and long term contracts.
In accordance with Accounting Standard - 29 on ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, the Bank recognises a provision for
material foreseeable losses when it has a present obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are measured based
on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the
contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be
reasonably estimated, a disclosure to this effect is made as contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. The Bank does not expect the outcome
of these contingencies to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
results. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
if there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors.
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss Account to the extent
carrying amount of assets exceeds their estimated recoverable amount.

Taxes on income

The Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current
tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable
income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of
timing differences being the difference between the taxable income and the
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets on account of timing differences are recognised only to the
extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In case
of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation, under tax laws, all the
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date, based upon
the Management’s judgement as to whether realisation is considered as
reasonably certain.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.
Changes in deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted
tax rates are given effect to in the Profit and Loss Account in the period of the
change.

Current tax assets and liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities are
off-set when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,
when the Bank has a legal right to off-set and when the Bank intends to settle
on a net basis.

Accounting for Dividend

As per AS 4 (Revised), with effect from April 2016, the Bank is not required to
provide for dividend proposed / declared after the Balance Sheet date. The
same shall be appropriated from next year amount available for appropriation.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, and share split.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or
loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted earnings per share reflect the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
equity shares were exercised or converted during the year.
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18 Share issue expenses Available for Sale
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account as Gross 57,266.95 — | 1,272.83| 18,848.68 - |6,877.86| 84,266.32
permitted by Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. Less: Provision for 1,239.08 _ 4261 218.55 —| 46823 1,968.47
Credit cards reward points depreciation and NPI
The Bank estimates the liability for credit card reward points and cost per Net - 56,027.87 - 11,230.22] 1863013 - 16,409.63| 82,297.85
point using actuarial valuation conducted by an independent actuary, which Held for Trading
includes assumptions such as mortality, redemption and spends. Gross 1,496.40 - - 339.65 - | 699.65| 2,535.70
. Less: Provision for - - - - - - -
Segment report?ng L . . depreciation and NPI
In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI and Accounting Standard 17
(AS-17) on “Segment Reporting”, the Banks’ business has been segregated Net 1,496.40 - - 339.65 - | 699.65| 2,535.70
into the following segments whose principal activities were as under: Total Investments | 90,945.14 - [ 1.272.83] 19,188.33| 3,179.02|7,577.51| 122,162.83
— — Less: Provision for 1,239.08 - 4261 218.55 10.13| 468.23|  1,978.60
Segment Principal activity _ depreciation and NPI
Treasury, BMU and | Money market, forex market, derivatives, Net 8970606 | 1,230.22| 16,969.78] 3,168.89|7,109.28| 120,184.23
Corporate Centre investments and primary dealership of
government segurities and Ba!ance Sheet ® in crore)
Management Unit (BMU) responsible for Asset 1 ide Indi
Liability Management and Corporate Centre nvestments outside India
which primarily comprises of support functions.. As at Government | Subsidiaries| Others Total Total
- - 31t March, 2023 | securities | and/ or joint investments | investments
Corpgrate/WholesaIe Wholesale t?orrowmgs and lendings and other (including ventures outside India
Banking related services to the corporate sector which local
are not included under retail banking. authorities)
Retail Banking Comprises of: Held to Maturity
Digital Banking Business involving digital banking products Gross - 38.33 - 38.33|  35,399.14
acquired by Digital Banking Unit including existing Less: Provision - - - - 10.13
digital banking products as identified by the for non-performing
Management in accordance with the instructions investments (NPI)
of the RBI vide its circular dated April 7, 2022. Net - 38.33 - 38.33]  35,389.01
Other Retail Banking | Includes (other than covered under Digital Available for Sale
Banking above): Gross 146.48 - 1,058.74 1,205.22|  85,471.54
I T Lendi Less: Provision for - - 24.05 24.05 1,992.52
C?:rr]nggrc'al ehicle finance, personal loans deprediation and NPI
ial vehi i s ,
home loans, agriculture finance, other loans Net - 146.48 - 1,034.69 1,181.47 83,479.02
| services and exposures which fulfill the Held for Trading
four criteria for retail exposures laid down Gross - - - - 2,535.70
in Basel Committee on Banking Supervision I&ess: P“:.V'S'O”Jo’\rlpl _ _ _ _ _
document "International Convergence of epreciation an
Capital Measurement and Capital Standards: Net - - - - 2,535.70
A Revised Framework". Total Investment 146.48 38.33 1,058.74 1,243.55| 123,406.38
II| Branch Banking Less: Provision for - - 24.05 2405 2,002.65
Retail borrowings covering savings, current, epreciation an
term deposit accounts and Branch Banking Net 146.48 38.33 1,034.69 1,219.50| 121,403.73
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network / services including distribution of
financial products.

Credit Cards

Receivables / loans relating to credit card
business.

Any other business not classified above.

Other Banking
business

A transfer pricing mechanism has been established by Asset Liability
Committee (ALCO) for allocation of interest cost to the above segments
based on borrowing costs, maturity profile of assets / liabilities etc. and which
is disclosed as part of segment revenue.

Segment revenues consist of earnings from external customers and
inter-segment revenues based on a transfer pricing mechanism. Segment
expenses consist of interest expenses including allocated operating expenses
and provisions.

Segment results are net of segment revenues and segment expenses
including interdivisional items.

Segment assets include assets related to segments and exclude tax related
assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities related to the segment excluding
net worth and employees’ stock option (grants outstanding).

Since the business operations of the Bank are primarily concentrated in
India, the Bank is considered to operate only in the domestic segment.

SCHEDULE 18 — NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

* Includes securities with face Value of X 8,447.61 crore pledged and encumbered for
availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility, margin requirements and with RBI

for LAF.
3. Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve:
(Xin crore)
Particulars As at
315 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
i) Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments
a) | Opening balance 2,002.65 1,853.65
b) | Add: Provisions made during the year 0.64 237.22
c) | Less: Write-back of provisions during the year 1,435.99 88.22
d) | Closing balance 567.30 2,002.65
i) | Movement of Investment Fluctuation
Reserve
a) | Opening balance 2,300.00 1,774.69
b) | Add: Amount transferred during the year 1,200.00 525.31
c) | Less: Drawdown - -
d) | Closing balance 3,500.00 2,300.00
iii) | Closing balance in IFR as percentage of 2.85% 2.67%
closing balance of investments in AFS and
HFT / Current Category

A. DISCLOSURES AS LAID DOWN BY RBI CIRCULARS: 4. Details of Repo / Reverse Repo (excluding LAF and MSF transactions
1. Capital Adequacy Ratio: for the year) deals (in face value terms):
The Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratios as per Basel Ill guidelines are as follows: Year ended 31t March, 2024:
(R in crore) (X in crore)
. As at - - - -
Particulars 319 March, 2024 | 317 March, 2023 M|n|mulfn Mammtf.m Daily Ave::age Outstanding
Capital Ratios: Particulars d ason
-apl - — - during during during 31 March,
(|) Common Eguny Tler‘I Csapltal (CET 1) 87,991.19 77,036.40 theyear | theyear the year 2024
(") A.ddltlonalleerlI (.‘:apltal — 500.00 Securities sold under repos
(iii) |Tier | Capital (i + i 87,991.19 77,536.40 i. [ Government securities -] 896275 913.34 -
(iv) |Tierll Capital _ i 5,957.28 3,817.29 ii. | Corporate debt securities -] 18571 11.05 -
(v) |Total Capital (Tier | + Tier Il) 93,948.47 81,353.69 iii | Any other securities _ _ _ _
(vi) |Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 457,206.27 373,170.24 Securities purchased under reverse repos
(vii) |CET 1 Ratio (CET 1 as a percentage of RWAs) 19.25% 20.64% i [ Government securities —] 29,237.80 6,000.56 11,450.29
(viii) [Tier | Ratio (Tier | capital as a 19.25% 20.78% ii. [ Corporate debt securities — 525.00 14.97 _
percentage of RWASs) iii | Any other securities - - - -
(ix) |Tier Il Ratio (Tier Il capital as a 1.30% 1.02%
percentage of RWAs) Year ended 31¢ March, 2023:
(x) |Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 20.55% 21.80% R in crore)
(Total Capital as a percentage of RWAs) Minimum | Maximum | Daily Average | Outstanding
(xi) |Leverage Ratio 13.12% 14.13% Particulars i i i as on
(xii) |Percentage of the shareholding of the Nil Nil during during during 31¢ March,
Government of India the year the year the year 2023
(xiii) [Amount of paid-up equity capital raised 218.22 282.40 Securities sold under repos
during the year # i. | Government securities -| 15,355.95 1,862.17 170.20
(xiv) [Amount of non-equity Tier | capital ii.| Corporate debt securities = 253.57 14.81 -
raised during the year of which: iii] Any other securities - - - -
PNCPS Nil Nil Securities purchased under reverse repos
PDI Nil Nil i. | Government securities -| 10,604.11 1,364.25 7,739.18
(xv) |Amount of Tier Il Capital raised during ii.| Corporate debt securities - 500.00 7.70 -
the year of which: iii| Any other securities - - - -
PNCPS Nil Nil 5. Disclosure in respect of Non-SLR investments:
POl Nil Ni (i) Non-performing Non-SLR investments:
#The Bank has allotted during the year 1,364,316 (previous year 1,894,822) equity
shares consequent to exercise of ESOPs vested. Accordingly, the share capital (X in crore)
further increased by ¥ 0.68 crore (previous year ¥ 0.95 crore) and share premium . Year ended
increased by ¥ 217.54 crore (previous year ¥ 281.45 crore), net of share issue Particulars 315 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
expenses of X Nil (previous year ¥ Nil). Opening bal 78.67 154.10
$The Bank has redeemed perpetual non-cumulative preference share capital Agj;lng daa.ncem 5 4'9 1 0'00
(“PNCPS?”) during the year. ! |orl13 “””9 © year : :
2. Composition of Investment Portfolio Redl_mt'ons during the year (19.58) (75.43)
@ in crore) Closing bal.a?ce 124.00 78.67
- - Total provisions held 124.00 77.91
Investments in India
As at Government | Other | Shares | Debentures | Subsidiaries| Others Total (ii) Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at 31 March, 2024:
315t March, 2024 | Securities* | Approved and Bonds | and/or joint (% in crore)
. Securies Ventures in India Extentof | Extentof | Extentof | Extentof
Held to Maturity Private | ‘Below | ‘Unrated’ | ‘Unlisted
Gross 28,517.74 - - -| 3,902.02 -| 32,419.76 No. Issuer Amount | Placement |l Securities | Securities
Less: Grade’
Provision for Py
non-performing
emonts 0 @ @ @ 6 ) [
(NPI) - - - - - - - 1 | PSUs 608.27 | 475.00 - - -
Net 28,517.74 - - -] 3902.02 —[32,419.76 2 [Fls 9.441.36 | 8,065.55 - —| 753745
Available for Sale 3 | Banks 5,125.22| 2,390.08 —| 414.64| 4,531.24
Gross 77,485.52 - | 1,267.83| 14,524.76 -| 5869.50] 99,147.61 4 | Private Corporates  |19,988.18 [16,064.18 | 244.58| 866.78 | 6,762.68
Less: Provision 5 | Subsidiaries, Associates | 3,940.34 | 2,036.58 —| 3,940.34 | 3,940.34
for depreciation and Joint Ventures
and NPI 204.24 o] 42| BH -] 17763] 54846 Others 3,178.38| 2,666.54| 389.28| 36357 | 2,900.60
Net 77,191.28 -| 1,224.58| 14,491.42 -| 5691.87| 98,599.15 7 | Provision held
Held for Trading towards depreciation | (273.06) - - - -
Gross 7,686.05 - - | 2,357.94 - | 12,621.97| 22,665.96 Total 42,008.69 |31,699.93| 633.86 | 5,585.33 |25,672.31
Less: Provision Issuer also include investments held outside India.
for depreciation Amounts reported under column (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.
and NPI - - - - - - - " . o .
Net 7.686.05 ~ “| 205794 [ 12,621.97| 22,665.96 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at 31 Mar(fh, 2023:
Total | 113,689.31 - [ 1,267.83] 16,882.70] 3,902.02[ 18,491.47] 154,233.33 % In crore)
Less: Provision Extentof | Extentof | Extentof | Extentof
for depreciation Private ‘Below | ‘Unrated’ | ‘Unlisted’
and NPI 294.24 - 43.25 33.34 -| 17763 548.46 No. Issuer Amount | Pl I ities | Securities
Net 113,395.07 - | 1,224.58] 16,849.36| 3,902.02) 18,313.84| 153,684.87 nGrane_’
(% in crore) (1) 2 (3) (4) (5) (6) U]
Investments outside India 1 |PSUs 672.88| 566.50 - - -
As at Government | Subsidiaries| Others Total Total 2 |Fis 739.64 40.00 — —| 69964
315 March, 2024 | ~securities | and / or joint investments | investments 3 | Banks 605.77| 397.65 —| 40034| 20543
(including local |~ ventures outside India 4 | Private Corporates |24,023.73(18,663.49| 358.71| 901.20 | 6,248.50
- L 5 | Subsidiaries,
Held to Maturity Associates and
Gross - 38.32 - 38.32| 32,458.08 Joint Ventures 3,217.35| 1,850.71 -| 3,217.35| 3,217.35
Less: Provision
for non-performing 6 | Others 3,201.87| 2,718.58| 684.70| 914.40| 3,055.38
investments (NPI) - - - - - 7 | Provision held
Net - 38.32 - 38.32| 32,458.08 towards
Available for Sale depreciation (763.57) - - - -
Gross 277.78 -] 142163]  1,699.41| 100,847.02 Total 31,697.67] 24,236.93| 1,043.41] 5,433.29]13,426.30
Less: Provision for I Iso include i tments held outside Indi
depreciation and NPI _ _ 18.84 18.84 567.30 ssuer also include investments held outside India.
Net 277.78 — 1,402.79 1,680.57| 100,279.72 Amounts reported under column (4), (5), (6) and (7) above are not mutually exclusive.
Held for Trading 6. During the year ended 31t March, 2024 and year ended 31 March, 2023,
Gross - - - —|  22,665.96 the value of sale / transfer of securities to / from HTM category (excluding
Less: Provision for one-time transfer of securities, permitted sales by RBI consequent to a
depreciation and NP| - - - - - downward revision in SLR requirements and sales to RBI under Open
Net - - - -|  22,665.96 Market Operation auctions/Switch/GSAP) was within 5% of the book value
Total | t 27778 38.32 142163 1,737.73|  155,971.06 of instruments in HTM category at the beginning of the year.
Less: Provision for 18.84 18.84 567.30 Derivatives:
| depreciation and NPI — - - - - A. Forward Rate Agreements/ Interest Rate Swaps:
Net 2717.78 38.32 1,402.79 1,718.89| 155,403.76 ® in crore)
*Includes securities with face Value of ¥ 4,327.45 crore pledged and encumbered for Asat
availment of fund transfer facility, clearing facility, margin requirements and with RBI for LAF. i
] Particulars 31%March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Rin crore) The notional principal of swap 134,487.28 91,083.25
Investments in India agreements
As at Government | Other | Shares | Debentures | Subsidiaries| Others|  Total Losses which would be incurred if 933.94 995.81
31! March, 2023 | Securities® | Approved and Bonds | andlor joint investments counterparties failed to fulfill their
TP Securities ventures in India obligations under the agreements
eld to Maturity -
Gross 3218179 — = 3790 [ 35,360.81 Colla@era.l required by the Bank upon NA NA
— entering into swaps
Less: Provision - v —
for non-performing Concentration of credit risk arising 32.19%(Banks) 56.47%(Banks)
investments (NPI) - - - - 10.13 - 10.13 from the swaps
Net 32,181.79 - - -| 3,168.89 —| 35,350.68 The fair value of the swap book 186.02 419.30
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B. Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives: 2 | Marked to Market Positions ** year Nil) in respect of the Bank’s asset classification and provisioning under Disclosure on Resolution of stressed assets:
(% in crore) a) Asset(+) 79.87 41930 the extant prudential norms on income recognition asset classification and In terms of the RBI circular dated 7" June 2019 on Prudential Framework
Asat b) Liabilty () = — provisioning (IRACP) which require such disclosures. for Resolution of Stressed Assets, during the financial year ended
i . Wi 31stMarch 2024, the Bank has implemented Resolution plan (RP) for Nil
Paticulars 31+March, 2024_| 31 March, 2023 3 [ Credit Exposure 873513 taspre| 4 SectorwiseAdvancesand Gross NPAs € in orore) borrowier (orevious year on borfower). for which Infer Crectior Agreoment
Notional principal amount of exchange - - 4 | Likely impact of one percentage change (ICA) was executed under consortium arrangement / multiple banking
traded interest rate derivatives in interest rate (100*PV01) # As at 31* March, 2024 arrangement. Borrowers for whom resolution plan is implemented under
undertaken during the year a) On hedging derivatives - - Pe;cgntage sole banking arrangement are not included here as no ICA is required.
Notional principal amount of - - b) On trading derivatives 60.95 1,305.18 sl. Sect Outstanding NPAs o In respect of certain borrowers with banking system exposure of 1,500
; ector
exghange traded mtgrest rate 5 | Maximum of 100°PV01 observed during No Total ?I?Ass Total crore or more, vyhere RP f_ormulatlon / implementation was pending,
derivatives outstanding the year * Advances* S Advances the zequwed additional provision has been made as required by RBI
i tipulations.
Notional principal amount of NA NA a) On hedging derivatives _ _ in that stipulat
i = — Sector 17. Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue:
exchange traded interest rate —
derivatives outstanding and not b) On trading derivatives 7041 1,332.53 A | Priority Sector ( in crore)
“highly effective” * 6 [Minimum of 100:PV01 observed 1 | Agricultural and Allied Activities 42,885.36 | 1,646.23 3.84% yY e
Mark to market value of exchange NA NA d“"gg the year 2 | Advances to Industries Sector 5027469 | 24361 0.48% Particulars 31" Narch 2024 | 31 March 2023
; vati a) On hedging derivatives - - igi jori i N N
e intort oo drvtivns 2)_On hedging deteal S R Slible oo Piry seckr lncing Total Asets Bg6240] _ 7.168.17
* n tradin: rivativi . . . - "
*ou s an |n9 an n(‘)' ighly effective’ ) : ading derivatives , 180 Toriios 556 TS Total NPAs Ni Ni
. Being trading ;?osmons . o Currency interest rate swaps have been included under currency derivatives. _Rubber, Plastic and their Products 5.213.98 557 Total Revenue 506.05 266.38
C Disclosures on risk exposures in derivatives: # Excludes PV01 on options. 3 [ Services Of which exceeding 10%: 74,059.32 | 795.13 1.07% 18. Disclosure of transfer of loan exposures
Qualitative disclosures: ** MTM has been considered at product level. -Whglgsale Trade _ 23,346.39 137.88 Details of loans transferred/acquired for the year ended 31% March, 2024
a) Structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading: ** The net position has bee_n sf?own either under asset or liability, as the case —Lo_gl_s_tlcs and Auxiliary transport 20,025.35 342.23 and 31 March, 2023 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of Loan
The Board of Directors, the Risk Management Committee (RMC), Board may be, for each type of derivatives. The MTM does not include MTM on Export activities Exposures dated 24" September, 2021 are given below:
Committee for Derivatives products, the Asset Liability Management Bills — Discounted, BQLRETdea/s and Internal deals between KMBL and GIFT, 4 Personal Loans gnd otgers, 2,490.25 12.79 0.51% (i) The Bank has not transferred any Loans not in default, Special Mention
Committee (ALCO), the Senior Management Committee for Derivatives where counterparty is Kotak Bank. Of which exceeding 10%: Account (SMA) and Non-performing Assets (NPAs). (previous year Nil).
(SMC) and the Risk Management Department are entrusted with the The nature and terms of the Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) as on 31* March, 2023 -Home Loans 1,631.08 4.06 (ii) Details of Loans not in default acquired from eligible lenders through
management of risks in derivatives. are set out below: -Micro Loans 539.63 7.48 assignment:
The philosophy and framework for the derivative business is laid out in (% in crore) Sub-Total (A) 169,709.62 | 2,697.75 1.59% % crore except tenor
:Ee goa&dl approved In‘;/?stm?m alrl'ndl?ferivative E?Iici:s.. T?e ALI(EOI of Nature | No.* Notional |Benchmark Terms B | Non Priority Sector S et P
e Bank is empowered to set the limit-framework for derivatives. It also inci : I Py 9 - ;
. h Kot risk ¢ derivati . he limits. Th : Principal _ : 1 | Agricultural and Allied Activities 1,283.10 72.37 5.64% No Particulars 31" March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
reviews the market risk exposures of derivatives against the limits. e Tradin 1 45.95 | EURIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floatin - - e 53835.25 54777 102%
Risk Management Committee reviews all risks on a consolidated basis ng : - " VS. Tay Foaling 2 | Industry, Of which exceeding 10%: 1099 : ek 1 | Aggregate amount of loans acquired 1,784.43 404.97
and also defines the risk appetite. Irajfng 1; 432-23 ELLJIRE"ggR ﬁece!"e E!"agfl? V; PaF); F':e" Infrastructure 16,367.97 |  40.87 2 | Aggregate considerafion paid 184361 371.08
The Board Committee for Derivatives products and the Senior rading - SCOS T XBC VS, Ty Toaind 3 | Services, Of which exceeding 10%:| 49,540.84 | 576.36 1.16% 3 | Weighted average residual maturity 1.41 years 1.9 years
Management Committee for Derivatives (SMC) oversee the client Trad!ng 104 | 6.970.17 LIBOR Rece!ve Float!ng Vs. Pay leeq -NBFC 7,219.02 - 4 | Weighted average holding period of 0.53 years 3.26 years
derivatives business. These committees are responsible for reviewing Trad!ng 1 164.34 LIBOR Rece!ve Float!ng Vs. Pay F!oatlng “Real Estate 5,963.79 0.00$ originator ' ’
and approving the derivative products that can be offered to clients (within Trading 65| 452084 | SOFR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Wholesale Trade 936931 20136 . - — -
the regulatory framework provided by the RBI). The Board approved Trading 22 | 1,548.39 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Financial Intermadiation exciudin 6’668 08 — 5 | Retention of beneficial economic interest 100% Nil
‘Customer Suitability and Appropriateness Policy for Derivatives’ lays Trading 1 73.95 SOFR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floating - . 9 e 6 [ Coverage of tangible security Nil 100%
d i i : —— - broking services %
own Fhe risk management & governance framework for offering Trading 200 | 7,527.76 MIFOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating ~ coverage(%)
derivatives. Trading 35 | 2,235.00 MIFOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed 4 g?:;ﬁ:;l g(ir:es;d ‘:tg‘;fs’ 105,721.41 | 1,380.52 1.31% 7_| Rating-wise distribution of rated loans Retail loans — NA | Retail loans — NA
The Bank has Operations and Risk Management functions - independent Trading 90 | 4,105.00 [Mod MIFOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating g 10%: (iii) Details of Special Mention Accounts (SMAs) acquired:
of the dealing function. The Market Risk Management & Counterparty Risk Trading 19 | 1,340.00 |Mod MIFOR| Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed -H0m§ Loans 58,969.90 147.81 '
Management Departmgnts are responsible for assegsmept, mo'nltolnng, Trading 379 | 14,983.87 MIBOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating -Credit Cards 14,837.53 792.22 R crore except tenor
measurement & reportlng of market & counterpfarty risks |.n denvatlv-es. Trading | 1,133 |40,370.91 MIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed -Personal Loans 12,754.13 321.15 From lenders listed in Clause 3 of the circular dated
b) Scopfe a.nd nature (?f risk measurement, risk reporting and risk Trading 194 | 6,664.23 FBIL Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Sub-Total (B) 210,380.61 | 2,577.03 1.22% 24" September, 2021
Zl"'f't"l'f'l'“g tsy‘s;emfst.h serivat o tored e Total 2,264 |91,083.25 Total (A+B) 380,090.23 | 5,274.78 1.39% P:rtfpliotchuired Aggregatefrincifpal Aggzegat_e Vy(ieig:\:ed avelf'a;ge
significant risks of the derivative portfolio are monitored, measure - - . uring the year g of residual tenor of loans
reporgt}ed to the senior management. 'IF"he Treasury Middle Office, on a daily *Benchmark FBIL pertains to trades done in Rates FRA product. PAmount s less than 50,000 e%dedy loans acquired paid acquired (in Years)
basis, measures & reports risk-metrics like Value-at-Risk (VaR), PV01, The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Swaps (CCS) as on 31t March, 2023 ( in crore) 315t March, 2024 87.99 50.68 1.06
Option Greeks like Delta, Gamma, Vega, Theta, Rho etc. Counterparty are set out below: As at 31% March, 2023 31:'March, 2023 176.79 110.87 1.89
Risk exposure of the derivatives portfolio is also monitored & reported [ in crore) ] Percentage
daily: The 'I_'reasury Middle O_ff_ice independently reports profitabi_lity on Nature | No.* | Notional Benchmark Terms of Gross (iv) Details of Non-performing Assets (NPAs) acquired:
a dallx basis. Rate reasonability tests are pgrformed on the Derivative Principal Sl Sector Outstanding G NPAs to % crore except tenor
portfolio to ensure that all trades are entered into at market rates. Stress - —— - No Total ross Total
testing is performed to measure the impact of extreme market shifts on the Trading 3 28918 EURIBOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Advances* | NPAS | Advances From lenders listed in Clause 3 of the circular dated
Bank’s portfolio (including derivatives). Suitability and Appropriateness Trading 3 289.18 EURIBOR Receive Floating Vis. Pay Fixed in that 24" September, 2021
assessment is performed before offering derivatives to clients. The Bank Trading 4| 27474 FIXED Pay Fixed Sector Portfolio acquired | Aggregate Principal | Aggregate Weighted average
continuously invests in technology to enhance the Risk Management Trading 3| 237.60 FIXED Receive Fixed A | Priority Sector during the year fing of iderati residual tenor of loans
architecture. Trading | 67| 2329.25 FIXED Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed _ 1| Agricultural and Allied Activities 39,696.68 | 1,496.95 3.77% ended loans acquired paid acquired (in Years) ¢
c) Policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and pr Trading 3 41681 EURIBOR Vs. LIBOR | Receive Floaling Vs. Pay Floafing | 2 | Advances to Industries Sector, 5383332 | 221.74 0.41% 31 March, 2024 1,979.11 76.00 1.53
N Lo . e I Trading 14 | 1,759.59 LIBOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating . Pty 2 :
for monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges / mitigants: - - : - eligible as Priority sector lending 31t March, 2023 1,862.83 259.90 8.09
. X o i X X Trading 3 1,039.51 LIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Of which exceeding 10%: - -
The Board Approved ‘Hedging Policy’ details the hedging strategies, Tradin 5 69035 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floatin - $- Weighted Average residual tenor of loans is excluding limit based facilities
g y Floating | -Textil 7,573.27 20.62
hedging processes, accounting treatment, documentation requirements Tradin 18| 1609.65] SOFR Vs EURIBOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floatin extiles 2909 -
and effectiveness testing for hedges. Tot Ig =18 5IGO '73 d g V's. Fay 9 -All Engineering 5,5657.82 9.33 (v) Details of recovery ratings assigned for Security Receipts as :
X ) . . . otal > . ; f i o/ - 0
Hedges are monitored for effectiveness periodically, in accordance with 3 | Services, Of which exceeding 10%: 52,649.70 | 65741 1.25% A o : " : "
the Board Approved Policy. *Abovg notional principal does not include trades done with GIFT—Q‘Iy brgznch -Wholesale Trade 15,947.33 76.69 Recovery Rating Q:::’c‘:zf;eai ca"y'a';ga\t’alue Ca"y'ansga\t/alue
d) Accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; S’"Ce"fgefs zeroed at bank level however, only count of trades done is specified. -Logistics and Auxiliary transport 12,734.47 259.38 per Recovery | 31%March, 2024 31 March, 2023
recognition of income, premiums and discounts; valuation of 8 Creditdefault swaps: ) . . activities _ Rating (% crore) (X crore)
outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation: T::rB'\?in has not entered into any Credit Default Swap transactions (previous 4 g?rstﬁp?]l Loansdgnd ;:ége.rs, 2,633.62 14.68 0.56% NR1/R1+/RR1+ >150% 176.51 TR
Derivative transactions are segregated into trading or hedge yearfh). o which exceeding 10%: NR2/R1/RR1 100% - 150% 208.79 447.04
transactions. Trading transactions outstanding as at the Balance Sheet ~ 9- Classification of advances and provisions held: -Home Loans 1,314.41 0.91 NR3/R2/RR2 75% - 100% 3553 36.12
dates are marked to market and the resulting profits or losses, are As at 31% March, 2024 ( in crore) -Micro Loans 1,086.18 8.14 NR4/R3RR3 50% - 75% 11487 134.33
. ) 0 . .
recorded in the Profit and Loss Account. Standard Non-Performing Sub-To.taI. (A) 148,813.32 | 2,390.78 1.61% NRE/RA/RRA 25%50% 001 209
Derivative transactions designated as “Hedges” are accounted in Particul Total Sub. Total Non - Total B | Non Priority Sector NR6/R5/RR5 0% - 25% — _
accordance with hedging instruments on an accrual basis over the life articulars Standard Sta:d;rd Doubtful | Loss [Performing| O 1 | Agricultural and Allied Activities 566.95 65.93 11.63% Vot 1o bo raied™ 15760 5057
of the underlying instrument. Advances Advances 2 | Industry, Of which exceeding 10%: 40,064.46 878.23 2.19% Unrated — 0'27 0'09
Option premium paid / received is accounted for in the Profit and Loss Gross Standard Advances and NPAs Chemicals and Chemical Products 5,640.31 33.13 — - -
Account on expiry of the option. Opening jBlaIance : 318,695.94| 1,528.74| 3,970.41|269.17| 5,768.32|324,464.26 Metal and Metal Products 5247.28 4381 Total 670.58 1,155.78
Pursuant to the RBI guidelines, any receivables as well positive Mark to Add: Additions during the year 5,001.11 Infrastructure 5.004.10 2087 A - Recovery Rating is as assigned by various external rating agencies.
Market (MTM) in respect of future receivable under derivative contracts Less: Reductions during the year (*) 5.494.65 - - . . . * - Net of Provisions.
L ¢ i ivabl hich . P (el -Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and 4,428.25 39.22 . .
tcr?mpgg”:ig of crystallised (;etchelvabhetshw PIC f_;emz:;nLoveriue ortm’?rtlel Closing Bal 374,815.45| 2,092.78] 2,979.65(202.35| 5,274.78/380,090.23 Transport Equipments - Recent purchases whose statutory period has not elapsed.
an 59 days are reversec throug © Frofit and Loss Account. Fu () Reductions in Gross NPAs due to: -All Engineering 4,354.57 99.90 19. Unsecured Advances
provision is made for the entire amount of overdue and future receivables - - - i
relating to positive marked to market value of non-performing derivative ') Y radgtlon _ - (1.737.08)] (1.737.08) 3 |-Services, 41,602.20 | 542.05 1.30% [ in crore)
contracts. Limits for counterparty exposure (arising from derivative i) ?ecovenesd(e;cludlng{e)covenes (1,499.65)| (1,499.65) Of which exceeding 10%: Particulars 31stMarch, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
trades) to Corporates are approved by the Credit Committee and for __| rom upgraced accounts) -NBFC 10,591.48 -
Banks by the ALCO. These limits are renewable annually and are duly ) TechnicallPrudentl Viieoff - - Real Estate 640068 |  43.09 '(';°ta' ‘f‘”sec“ged advances °; th; bank - 8757375]| 66,348.92
supported by ISDA agreements. MTM breaches are monitored daily )| Wte-offs other than those (225792)| (2257.92) -Wholesale Trade 5,189.81 | 171.71 ut of the above, amount of advances for - -
i iti covered under (iii) above ’ ’ - - — - - which intangible securities such as charge
and are cash collateralised wherever necessary. Further, to mitigate = . —— N -Financial Intermediation excluding 4,555.22 178 X - "
the current exposure in noncentrally cleared forex and derivative P (t g Floating P ) broking services gver theknghts, licenses, authority, etc. have
transactions, Bank has entered into Credit Support Annex (‘CSA) Opening balance of provisions held 28.03| 837.21| 3,468.64] 2697 4,575.02| 4,603.05 4 [Personal loans and others, 9341734 | 1,891.33 2.02% een taken - .
agreements with some of the major international counterparty banks 'Add: Fresh provisions made 305516 Of which exceeding 10%: EStlm?tled value of such intangible - -
an(.i feyv Ind!an financial institutions. during the year _ Home Loans 56.246.97 14962 securities
Quantitative Disclosures: Less: Exc735_provf|rswon (3,625.97) Credit Cards 11,081.14 792.22 20. Business ratios / information:
31% March 2024: reversed Wite-offloans -Personal Loans 10,987.58 | 549.89 Year ended
® in crore) Closing balance of provisions held 10.75| 1,069.71| 2,732.15 202.35| 4,004.21| 4,014.96 Sub-Total (B) 175,650.94 | 3,377.54 192% Particulars 315 March, 2024 | 31+ March, 2023
Sr. Particulars Currency | Interest rate Net NPAs Total (A+B) 324,464.26 | 5,768.32 1.78% Interest income as a percentage of working 8.66% 7.72%
No. Derivatives* | Derivatives Opening Balance 691.53| 501.77 - 1,193.30 “Represents Gross Advances funds (A)
1 {Derivatives .(Notlonal Principal Amount) ﬁdd: Fresh addiions during 1.845.95 The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal Non—_lnterest income as a percentage of 1.94% 1.60%
a) For hedging 0.00 0.00 the year MIS system working funds
b) For trading 522,317.25 | 134,487.28 Less: Reductions during the year (1,868.68) 15 Priorji:y séctor lending certificates Cost of deposits 477% 3.65%
i o+ Closing Balance 1,023.07| 247.50 - 1,270.57 . n
2 Mar:ed tto(:\;larket Positions 5602 Ratios The amount of PSLCs (category wise) Purchased and Sold during the year: Net Interest Margin (E) 5.32% 5.33%
a) Asse - . i
b; Tiabilty () 5o Gross NPA to Gross Advances (%) 1.39% As at 31t March, 2024: vovg?k";g”%Eg‘;ﬁ(tBa)S&ﬁ(Et)?rcemﬁge of 3.71% 3.35%
. - m 5 .
3 | Credit Exposure 12,655.54 1,852.34 :‘:INPMO Nel:Advadnces(f)v TR— : — ¥ (o O'f:ﬁ S - sic S (z |r|\dcrore) Return on assets (average) (F) 2.61% 2.47%
- - ove numbers do not include standard asset provision on Advances (other than r. No ype of PSLCs urchase [ - -
4 !.lk_ely impact of one percentage change provision for country risk and unhedged foreign currency exposures) amounting to 1 PSLC — Agricultt 2.800.00 4.712.00 Business (dep05|t plus advance) per 9.63 8.73
in interest rate (100*PV01) * griculture 000, AL employee (X in crore) (C)
X 1,547.53 crore as at 315" March, 2024. 2 PSLC — SF/MF 11.290.00 —
a) On hedging derivatives - - - - — Profit per employee (% in crore) 0.18 0.15
b)_On trading derivati 55.95 141833 As at 31% March, 2023 (X in crore) 3 PSLC — Micro Enterprises - 27,342.00 ——
) On trading dervatives ___ ‘ 218 Standard Non-Performing 4| PSLC - General — | 35,500.00 Definitions:
3 of 1P 0 PVM. ob‘served during the year” Particul Toal oo TotalNon- | TOTAL 14,090.00 67,554.00 (A) | Working funds to be reckoned as average of total assets (excluding
a) On hedging derivatives - - articufars Standard Standard Doubtful | Loss (Performing As at 31¢t March, 2023: accumulated losses, if any) as reported to Reserve Bank of India in Form X,
b) On trading derivatives 63.82 1,549.01 Advances Advances ’ ® in crore) during the 12 months of the financial year.
- . Gross Standard Advances and NPAs o) ti fit = (Interest | + Other | — Int t —
6 | Minimum of 100*PV01 observed B perating profit = (Interest Income er Income - Interest expenses
durine the vear # Opening Balance 269,558.47] 1,79201] 4,397.42] 28031 _6,469.74] 276,028.21 Sr. No Type of PSLCs Purchased Sold ® Operating expenses).
R y P— Add: Additions during the year 3,989.92 ! PSLC — Agriculture — 9,050.00 For the purpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus
a) On hedging derivatives - — Less: Reductions during the year (*) (4,691 54) 2 PSLC — SF/MF 9.360.00 - © advancei) ?nter bank dgposits shall be echch)jed P P P
i ivati —— A 3 PSLC — Micro Enterprises - 28,477.75 . - .
b) On trading derivatives 321 1,203.01 Closing 318,695.94 1,528.74| 3,970.41( 269.17| 5,768.32 324,464.26 T Psle —Geroral L 50.356.00 (D) | Productivity ratios are based on average number of employees.
Currency interest rate swaps have been included under currency derivatives. (*) Reductions in Gross NPAs due to: — senera — J - - —
#Excludes PVO1 on options. ) [Upgradation (2.04137)] (2.04137) TOTAL 9,360.00 |  58,383.75 (E) P?t '”ielf%‘ '”00[”;5/ A‘:eEf age Earning Assets. Net Interest Income=
*Forwards in currency derivatives includes TOM, Spot deal. i) [Recoveries (excluding (1859.60)) (1,859.60) 16. Details of accounts subjected to restructuring® LOT0%) TIOOM® — TNOres” =xponse. -
- i . iobili es f ded (F) | Return on Assets would be with reference to average working funds
The net position has been shown either under asset or liability, as the case may recoveries from upgra (i.e., total of assets excluding accumulated losses, if any)
be, for each type of derivatives. The MTM does not include MTM on Export Bills - accounts) Rin crore) — - -
Discounted, BULRET deals and Internal deals between KMBL and GIFT, where fi) | Technical / Prudential Write-offs (9339)  (93.39) Agriculture and |  Corporates Micro, Small and 21. Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:
counterparty is Kotak Bank. v) | Write-offs other than those (696.98)| ~ (696.98) allied activities |  (excluding Medium 315 March, 2024:
The nature and terms of the Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) as on 315 March, 2024 covered under (iii) above MSME) Enterprises (MSME) T & in crore)
are set out below: Provisions luding Floating Provisions) Particulars i
- — Ason | Ason | Ason [ Ason | Ason As on Particulars | Day1| 2to7| 8to14| 15to[ 31days| Over2| Over3| Over6| Over1| Over3| Over5|  Total
(% in crore) Opening balance olf provisions held 41.57 | 863111 3,589.61| 280.31| 4,733.03 | 4,774.60 3t st st st st st days| days| 30|  to2| months | months | months| years| years&| years
Notional Add: Fresh provisions made 231356 March, | March, | March, | March, | March, March, days | months & & &| upto3| upto5
Nature | No.* Principal Benchmark Terms during the year Ol 2024 | 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 upttt;l3 upttohe upto| years| years
i ive Fi i Less: Excess provision (247157) — months | months | years
Trading | 2 874.96 | EURIBOR | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating > Number of borrowers 19] 101 1 391 685 " I i T2
Trading | 2 874.96 | EURIBOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed reversed /Write-off loans Standard | Gross Amount [ crore) | 1245 | 1457 | 19.71 —| a1259| 54650 Advances' | 477091 544 5000684 4/606) 976186 5H0RY 4 0168 AT RS 8 71 T
Trading | 158 | 11.250.48 | SOFR | Receive Floaling Vs. Pay Fixed Closing balance of 2803| 637.21 | 346864 | 260.07| 4575.02( 4,603.05 Provsion held? R ooe) | 131|138 - e 1o ivestments [7436132[ 3 52452] 206 s su420] aswt] 7407 sgaae] 1975038] kst 275874 npsr ] engsess
Trading |48 2.746.86 SOFR__| Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating provisions held Number of borrowers 203 70 - - % 1 Deposits | 1,356.30]19.02538[1245.44] 3 409] 22.070.82{20.15035] 73.866.27] 7102181 [ 1615 1.13361] 366.95] aagsas
Trading | 1 43134 | SONIA__| Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Net NPAs Sub-  fGross Amount Rorore) | 571 766 = T o 4% Borowings | 412|311 ssoss] s7oss| 7ee0] 20120] 40ma36] ao0s] ssmee| 4mos[4ses0n] maseno
Tradin 1 43134 | SONIA | Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floatin Opening Balance 928.90| 80781 -| 173671 standard ' : : : ’
g - - T8y 9 % m - Provision held (% crore) 1.44 145 - - 17.49 2557 Foreign [ 1/5464| 450.80( 160.07| 741.83) 930.90[ 1.91431) 845.62( 6,58461( 632032 470.99| 578.22| 20416131
Trading 6 35650 | SOFRVs. | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Floating Add: Fresh additions during the year 1,676.36 Currency
SOFR Less: Reductions during the year 221977) Number of borrowers 259| 183] 1 7 863 803 hssets”
Trading | 311 | 13,781.10 | Mod MIFOR| Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating Closing Balance 69153 | 50177 | 1,193.30 Doubtful[Gross Amount % crore) g;:g E?; gﬂgg lgggg 12;;(73 gfgg Forsgn | 30T sal] Tsissn| 7| a1 2zt s 2ea n| ]
Trading | 91 | 5,740.00 | Mod MIFOR | Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed Ratios Provision held (¥ crore) | 37. ' ' : : : Curency
Trading | 919 | 30,61229 | MIBOR | Receive Fixed V. Pay Floating Gross NPAlo Gross Advances (%) 1.78% Number of borrowers | 4811 3541 12 11 19 14s Libiites
- YTy - — - Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 037% Total  [Gross Amount ( crore)| 60.08 | 36.74 | 230.71 | 19839 [ 533.28 | 76072 - o ) - ; -
Trading | 1,889 | 58,990.94 MIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed : — — Listed equity investments in AFS have been considered at 50% (3596.23 crore) haircut
- < —— - Above numbers do not include standard asset provision on Advances (other than Provision held (% crore)] 40.57 | 15.01) 211.00 | 190.06 | 20409 | 218.86 RBI directi
as per irections.
Trading | 452 8,387.51 FBIL Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating L ! . .
provision for country risk and unhedged foreign currency exposures) amounting to . 15,051 crore of Standing Deposit Facility with RBI is considered.
Total 3,880 |134,487.28 % 1,449.75 crore as at 31 March, 2023 R'in crore) s rai i i icinat i i
~ - fanad d - - n A Funds raised through bills rediscounted and Inter Bank Participatory Certificate amounting
*Benchmark FBIL pertains to trades done in Rates FRA product. . i i Retail (excluding Total ¥15.653.46 ted off aqainst ad
10. Movement of Technical Write-offs and Recoveries: agriculture and MSME) ,003.40 crore are netied ol against advances.
The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Swaps (CCS) as on 31 March, 2024 i ; In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been
are set out below: R in crore) Particulars As on As on As on As on puting the a , P!
. - Year ended 315 March, | 31% March, | 31 March, | 31* March, made by the Bank’s Management.
i R in crore) Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 31stMarch, 2023: -
Nature No.x | Notional | genchmark Terms Opening balance of Technical / Prudential 1581.89 1.818.80 Number of borrowers 1,027 1,505 1,438 2,291 R in crore)
Principal written-off accounts as at 15 April ’ ’ Gross A t® 149.24 26514 493.99 826.21 Particulars | Day1| 2to7|8tofd| 15to| 3tdays| Over2| Over3| Over6| Overd| Over3| Over5|  Total
Trading | 4 365.73 EURIBOR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating 'Add: Technical / Prudential ‘: s duri Standard ross Amount R crore) - - . . days| days| 30| to2|months& | monthsd | months | year&| years& | years
: : : Technical / Prudential write-offs durin - isi U
Trading | 4 364.91 EURIBOR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed thovem: 9 93.39 Provision held* (X crore) 28.51 47.27 68.76 120.64 days| months| upto3|  uptos &/ upto3| upto5
Trading |3 270.82 FIXED Pay Fixed y Number of borrowers 10,841 7,365 11,139 7,579 months | months| upto| years| years
Trading | 3 | 2417 |  FIXED | Recelve Fixed Less: Recoverles / Reductions made from (481.09) (33030)| | supstandarg [ Gross Amount R crore) 10569 | 8041 [ 16492| 14201 —
- - - - - previously Technical / Prudential written-off — Advances” | 1,553.16(2,642.88| 3,06159) 5,074.61| 10,837.81{12,14090] 15,807.61(45,951.14{ 131,14129| 32,275.74| 59,37448] 319,861.21
Trading | 52 | 2,004.94 FIXED Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed accounts during the year Provision held (X crore) 47.78 41.87 66.71 68.89 -
Trading | 1 32.81 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Fixed Ciosine Bal YT o0 =i Number of borrowers 3500 23057 YT Y] imesnens 55764 g6 32326 1.0t 47318] 41372] 3667.30[ 1061174] 170837 sogetae] 2o ] 45019] ranpusos
Trading | 37 | 2,931.41 SOFR Receive Fixed Vs. Pay Floating osing Balance as at arc ,100. 581, Doubt [ Gross Amount oo TN T VR Ry 7703 Deposits 10,7 38[17.08746] 38 8] 8 29028 1673901 14526 0] 44171 54387.2] teagea 1] 18121 41099] 36309605
Trading | 4 | 1,117.69 SOFR Receive Floating Vs. Pay Fixed|  11. The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) of the Bank after considering technical Proviion held € oore) 3158 705 3126 59405 Borrowings | 36714488048  29598] 205038 140080] samee] sssasof 198855 30042] artno[ rgmne] zsatezn
Trading | 17 | 441.00 | SOFRVs. | Receive Floating Vs. write-off is 80.07% as at 31 March, 2024 (previous year 83.77%. Namber of b 15378 3027 7020 33720 Foreign | 251485| 190304| 52653{ 1921.9] 158560] 1885.48) 2480.0( 20910( 2798%6| T7a%5| 25142) teeeten
EURIBOR | Pay Floating 12 ¢ tration of NPAS: umber of borrowers i ’ , , Currency
Trading | 2 | 1,00086 | SOFR Vs Receive Floating Vs - Loncentration o St « ) Total Gross Amount (% crore) 409.50 751.69 | 1,233.57 | 1,747.54 /:559_15
T ' . ' in crore isi oreign | gTa87| 37953| 166.33| 26596 23355 341.68| 152896 173882 7.328.M| 87590| 47886| 1433038
TORF | Pay Floating : _— Provision held (R crore) | 21127 | 459.65 | 66693 |  883.58 e | |
Total 127| 8,771.34 Particulars 31March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 *Restructuring as defined as per applicable regulations. Liabilities
*Above notional principal does not include trades done with GIFT-City branch since Total Exposure to top twenty NPA accounts* 610.61 653.47 # - does not include provisions made over regulatory requirement as on 31 March, 2024 L’;se'reggfgi’gc’g;i:rmem in AFS have been considered at 50% (X598.68 crore) haircut as
it gets zeroed at bank level however, only count of trades done is specified. amounting to ¥ 43.08 crore (previous year ¥ 82.50). -
T:e overniaht Net apen position as at 3 1}; March. 2024 is T 142 78pcrore (previous Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest 11.58% 11.33% Discl he sch for MSME ing of ad A Funds raised through bills rediscounted and Inter Bank Participatory Certificate amounting
i ?v331|gz1 Crore)p positi s i . previou NPA exposure to total Gross NPAs isclosure on the scheme for sector —restructuring of advances 3 5,682.10 crore are netted off against advances.
3t M h 2023: - (*) Above represents Gross NPA As at 31 March, 2024: Rin crore) In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been
are : 13. RBI vide its circular dated 1% April 2019, has directed banks shall make | No. of accounts restructured [ Amount | made by the Bank's Management.
(R in crore) suitable disclosures, wherever either (a) the additional provisioning [ 650" [ 396.44 | 22. Exposures:
Sr. Particulars Currency Interest rate requirements assessedl by RBI excegd 5 percent (lprlevious yearAexceed * Disclosure given is at borrower level (a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector*:
No. Derivatives* | Derivatives 10 percent) of the published net profits before provision and contingency . i  in crore)
1 | Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) for the reference period or (b) the additional Gross NPAs identified by |AS at 31 March, 2023: | Rin Cfore)l Asat
n RBI exceed 5 percent (previous year exceed 10 percent) of the published No. of accounts restructured Amount Particulars y m
a) For hedglng — — incremental Gross NPAs for the reference period, or both. There has been | 960" | 630.78] - 31" March, 2024 31 March, 2023
b) For trading 310,875.58 91,083.25 no divergence observed by RBI for the financial year 2022-23 (previous * Disclosure given is at borrower level a)l Direct exposure 72,926.43| 70,670.46
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KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED

Tel.:

As at « % 1 crore on account of levying interest from disbursement due date / loan
Particulars 31 March, 31March, agreement and not from the date of first disbursement of the loan contrary
2024 2023 to the terms & conditions of sanction.
i |Residential Mortgages — 45,407.61 46,438.51 » ¥ 0.95 crore on account of charging foreclosures charges for the loans
Lending fully secured by mortgages on recalled by the Bank.
residential property that is or will be occupied + %0.005 crore for 3 instances in relation to exchange of soiled notes / adjudicate
by the borrower or that is rented; (Includes mutilated notes as detected during incognito visits undertaken by RBI.
Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion Year ended 315t March 2023
in priority sector advances as at 31: March, « Z.0.30 crore on account of delayed credit of eligible amount to the Depositor
2024 1,836.47 crore and as at 31+ March, Education and Awareness Fund within the period prescribed.
2023 X 1,441.90 crore). Exposure also . 2030  fail dit (shad I of th
includes non-fund based (NFB) limits % 0.30 crore on accoun?o ailure to_cre it (sl adow reversal) of the amount
— - involved in the unauthorised electronic transactions to the customers’ account
ii Eorg.mer(:lal Ree;l Esbtate - 27,518.82 24,231.95 within period prescribed.
ending ~secure v mqngaggs _on + %0.45 crore on failure to maintain/ apply margin on advances to stock brokers.
commercial real estates (office buildings, ) X )
retail space, multi-purpose commercial » Penal interest of ¥ 0.017 crore for default in maintenance of Cash Reserve
premises, multi-family residential buildings, Ratio (CRR) on an average basis for a fortnight.
multi-tenanted  commercial  premises, + %0.002 crore for 2 instances in relation to exchange of soiled notes / adjudicate
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land mutilated notes as detected during incognito visits undertaken by RBI.
acquisition, development and construction, 29. There are no Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be
etc.). Exposure also includes non-fund consolidated as per accounting norms) (previous year Nil).
:)asez: (NF?)'”T/iltsrt Sacied S 30. Bancassurance Business:
iii | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities - - .
(MBS) and other securitised exposures- R in crore)
Residential Sr. Nat £l Year ended
'Ces' enta e - - No. ature ot income 31" March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
- Commercial Real Estate - - — —

B) [ Indirect Exposure 331334 5.924.40 1 |For seII!ng life |n.surance pollmesl . 691.84 380.18
Fund based and non-fund based exposures 3313.34 5.924.40 2 | For selling non life insurance policies 77.99 32.04
on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing 3 | For selling mutual fund products 278.01 245.84
Finance Companies (HFCs). 4 | Others _ _

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (a+b) 76,239.77| 76,594.86 This Income has been reflected under Commission, exchange and brokerage under

* On limit basis or outstanding basis whichever is higher Other Income.

(b) Exposure to Capital Market*: 31. Floating Provisions:

(% in crore) (X in crore)
Sr. . Year ended
. As at Particulars " o
Particulars 31March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 No. T e P R 31March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
i, Direct investment in equity shares, convertible|  1,967.29|  2,362.01 (a)| Opening balance in the floating Nil Nil

y . N provisions account
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- - — - -
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not (b) | The quantum of floating provisions Nil Nil
exclusively invested in corporate debt;* made in the accounting year

ii. Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or 979.74 844.77 (c) | Amount of draw down made during Nil Nil
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for the accounting year

investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), (d) | Closing Balance in floating provisions Nil Nil
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and account
units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
ii. Advances for any other purposes where shares _ _ 32. Draw Down from Reserves:
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or In accordance with the RBI requirement there are no draw downs from
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as reserves during the year (previous year: Nil).
primary security; 33. a) Status of Shareholder Complaints:
iv. Advances for any other purposes to the extent 4,363.65 4,643.95 S, - Year ended
secured by the collateral security of shares or No. Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
convemble_bonds or converllbl_e debentures or_unlts (&) | No. of complaints pending at the beginning 0 2
of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary of the year
security other than shares / convertible bonds / - - -
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented (b) | No. of complaints received during the year 23 35
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances; (c) | No. of complaints redressed during the 23 37
v.  Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers 2,604.48 2.449.04 year
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers (d) | No. of complaints pending at the end of 0 0
and market makers; the year
vi. Loans sanctioned to corporates against the _ _ b) Summary information on complaints received by the bank from
security of shares / bonds / debentures or customers and from the Offices of the Banking Ombudsman (OBOs):
other securities or on clean basis flor meeting S - 31March, | 31 March,
promoter’s contribution to the equity of new No Particulars 2024 2023

— co‘mpames in anticpation qf ralsmg resourees, Complaints received by the bank from its customers(*)

vii. Bridge loans to companies against expected — - . - —
equity flows / issues; 1 Number of complaints pending at beginning 11,218 8,195

viii. Underwriting commitments taken up by the 581.62 1.293.16 of the year
banks in respect of primary issue of shares or ’ 2 Number of complaints received during the year | 292,085| 235,655
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 3 Number of complaints disposed during the year| 286,885| 232,632

_ Uf"ts Of_ equity oriented mutual funds; _ 3.1] Of which, number of complaints rejected 125,105| 109,209

ix. Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; 1,900.40 1,090.94 by the bank

x. All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both 1,735.62 30.54 4 Number of complaints pending at the end of 16,418 11,218

registered and unregistered) will be deemed to the year
be on par with equity and hence will be reckoned * No of complaints reported are excluding cc redressed in 0 & 1 day
fot pompllance .th the .(:aplta| market exposure Maintainable complaints received by the bank from OBOs
ceilings (both direct and indirect) — - - . -
xi._Others (Financial Guarantees) 293.09 219.92 5| | fumber of maintainable complaints received by 56| 40
e bank from S

Total Exposure to Capital Market* 14,425.89 12,934.33 - -

#The above amount excludes shares/convertible bonds aggregating to 51 (?ffti’ent?a:?iet; o;coosmplamts resolved in favour 252 2267

% 10.52 crore (previous year ¥ 27.74 crore) acquired due to conversion of Y

debt to equity under restructuring process. As per para 20 of DBR.No.BP. 5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through 3,164 2,654

BC.101/21.04.048/2017-18 dated 12" February, 2018, the above amount is exempt conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by BOs

*from're‘gulatc?/y ce///ngs/re.str/ctrmv. on gap/tal m.arkf-:ft exposure. 53] Of 5, number of complaints resolved after Nil Nil

On limit basis or outstanding basis whichever is higher. passing of Awards by BOs against the bank

(c) Risk category wise country exposure: - o " "
As per extant RBI guidelines, the country exposure of the Bank is 6 thm:aetrgftAwardtshumtrrr]\pletrEented wnh:ndthe Nil Nil
categorized into various risk categories listed in following table. stipulated time (other than those appealed)

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically

_ _ (X in crore) mentioned in BO Scheme 2021 (Previously BO Scheme 2006) and covered within
Risk Category Exposure Provision Exposure Provision the ambit of the Scheme.
(net) as at 31t | held as at 31¢ | (net) as at 31| held as at 31 *Data is as received from CEPD, RBI.
March, 2024 | March, 2024 | March, 2023 | March, 2023 ) ) .
— Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers
Insignificant 9,976.36 - 8,255.85 - - -
Grounds of complaints, | Number of | Number of | % increase/ | Numberof | Of5,
Low 45275 - 425.56 - (i.e. complaints relating to) | complaints | complaints | decrease in |complaints | number of
Moderately Low 64.09 - 2.74 - pending | received | the number |pending at | complaints
Moderate — — — — atthe | duringthe | of complaints | the end of | pending
Moderately High _ _ _ _ beginning year received_over the year | beyond 30
High 38.83 — — — of the year the pree:rlous days
Very High - — - — 1 2 3 y4 5 3
Total 10,532.02 - 8,684.15 - 31 March, 2024
Exposure is given as net exposure basis the definition given in circular dated ATM/ Debit Cards 1,126 80,267 0.3%]| 5,312] 3,687
19" February, 2003 Internet Banking/ Mobile
Concentration of deposits: Banking/ E-Banking 5,686 | 63,287 (6)%| 1,693 978
(% in crore) Credit Cards 924| 31,345 77%| 6,051 4,575
. As at Account opening/ difficulty
Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 in operation of accounts 660| 15,641 (1)% 320 17
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 41,269.42 29,947.17 Levy of charges without prior
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest 9.19% 8.25% notice/ excessive charges/
depositors to total deposits of the Bank foreclosure charges 365| 12,561 69% 350 140
K Others 2,457 | 88,984 88%| 2,692| 1,044
Concentration of advances™: Total 11,218 292,085 24%| 16,418] 10,541
(X in crore)
As at 31¢ March, 2023
Particulars 31 March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 ,I‘\'II'M/ Dtegn (f:rd/sM = 3,088 | 80,053 12%| 1,126 187
nternet Banking/ Mobile
Total Advances of twenty largest borrowers 47,885.53 42,999.39 Banking/ E-Banking 3,501| 67,304 33%| 5686| 1,883
Percentage of advances to twenty largest 7.10% 7.37% Credit Cards 302| 17,687 51% 924 350
borrowers to total advances of the bank Account opening/ difficult
* Advances have been computed based on credit exposure i.e. funded and non-funded in operation of agccounts y 297| 15,770 6% 660 22
limits including derivative exposures where applicable. The sanctioned limits or out: fing, - -
whichever are higher, have been reckoned. However, in the case of fully drawn term loans, Le\{y of charggs without prior
here there i P drawal of tion of th tioned limit. Bank h Koned notice/ excessive charges/
:;ee;ilstearne(;;noasscz,peecg‘;iet-e;azv:u?eanypo ion of the sanctioned limit, Bank has reckone foreclosure charges 12| 7.449 21% 365 5
T Bank s compile he Gt fthis disclosure from its internal MIS syst Others 895 47.392| 10%| 24571 256
e Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its interna system. Total 8.195| 235,655 19% | 11,218| 2,703

Concentration of exposures**:

(X in crore)
. As at
Particulars 31"March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ 55,876.33 49,375.62
customers
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest 7.78% 8.01%

borrowers/customers to total exposure of the
bank on borrowers/customers

** Exposures represents credit, derivatives and investment exposure as prescribed
in Master Circular on Exposure Norms DBR.No.Dir.BC. 12/13.03.00/2015-16
dated 15'July, 2015.

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal

MIS system.

Disclosure on Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress:

In accordance with Resolution Framework for COVID-19 announced by RBI

on 6" August, 2020 and 5" May, 2021, the Bank has implemented one-time

restructuring for certain eligible borrowers and such borrowers are classified
as Standard in accordance with the above framework.

The disclosure requirements as required by RBI circular dated
6" August, 2020 (Resolution Framework 1.0) and 5" May 2021 (Resolution
Framework 2.0) as at 31 March 2024 is given below:

Type of borrower | Exposure to accounts |  Of (A), Of (A) Of (A) | Exposure to accounts
classified as Standard | aggregate | amount | amount | classified as Standard
consequent to debtthat | written off |  paid consequent to

implementationof | slipped | duringthe | bythe | implementation of

resolution plan- intoNPA | half - year# | borrowers | resolution plan-
Position as atthe | during the during the | Position as at the end

end of the previous | half-year half- of this half - year

half- year (A) year*

Personal Loans 88.19 1.50 | 0.09 |33.22 53.47
Corporate persons* 36.60 0.03 0.03 | 6.01 30.56
Of which, MSMEs 29.56 — - | 4.34 25.22
Others 61.47 | 0.06 | 0.00° | 8.51 52.90
Total 186.26 | 1.59 | 0.12 [47.74 136.93

* As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

#represents debt that slipped into NPA and was subsequently written off during the half-year.

A includes change in balances on account of interest and net of increase in exposure
during the period.

SAmount less than ¥ 50,000/-.

The factoring exposure of the Bank as at 31 March, 2024 is X 4,710.44

crore (previous year: X 2,243.88 crore).

During the year, the Reserve Bank of India has levied a penalty of ¥ 3.96

crore (previous year X 1.07) on the Bank for the following:

Year ended 31t March 2024:

« ¥ 1 crore on account of failure to carryout annual review / due diligence
of service provider.

« X 1 crore on account of failure to ensure that customers are not contacted
after 7 pm and before 7 am.

34.

35.

Note: The master list for identifying the grounds of complaints is provided in Appendix 1 as
prescribed in Master Circular on Strengthening of Grievance Redress Mechanism in Bank
(CEPD.CO.PRD.Cir.No.01/13.01.013/2020-21; dtd 27" January, 2021.)

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal MIS system.

Marketing and Distribution (excluding Bancassurance business)

(% in crore)
Sr. Nature of Income Year ended
No. 315tMarch, 2024 | 31%*March, 2023
1_[Referral Fees 389.12 339.00
2 | Arrangers Fees 185.60 225.01
3| Income on distribution of Sovereign Gold Bond 3.67 0.83
4 | Other Income 7.15 8.37

Above has been reflected under Commission, exchange and brokerage under Other Income.

Disclosures On Remuneration

A. Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Information relating to the composition and mandate of the

Remuneration Committee:
The Nomination & Remuneration committee comprises of
independent directors of the Bank. Key mandate of the Nomination
& Remuneration committee is to oversee the overall design and
operation of the compensation policy of the Bank and work in
coordination with the Risk Management Committee to achieve
alignment between risks and remuneration.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) will be, inter
alia, reviewing and tracking the implementation of the Compensation
Policy of the Bank. The NRC will comprises of at least 3 Non-executive
Directors, out of which at least two third of the members should be
independent directors and should include at least one member from
the Bank’s Risk Management Committee of the Board. (RMC).

Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration
processes and the key features and objectives of remuneration
policy:

Objective of Banks’ Compensation Policy is:

b

« To maintain fair, consistent and equitable compensation practices
in alignment with Bank’s core values and strategic business goals;
To ensure effective governance of compensation and alignment
of compensation practices with prudent risk taking;

To have mechanisms in place for effective supervisory oversight
and Board engagement in compensation;

To ensure that the Compensation practices are within the regulatory
framework stipulated from time to time by RBI.

The remuneration process is aligned to the Bank’s Compensation
Policy objectives.

Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into
t in the r ation pra It should include the nature
and type of the key measures used to take account of these risks:
In order to manage current and future risk and allow a fair amount of time to
measure and review both quality and quantity of the delivered outcomes,
a significant portion of senior and middle management compensation is
variable. Further reasonable portion variable compensation is non- cash
and deferred, over a period of 3 years or longer.

[
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In case the employee is retiring within next 2 years, cash to non-cash
ratio may change in favor of more cash (including deferred cash) and
the vesting schedule may be shorter.

In addition, remuneration process provides for ‘malus’ and ‘clawback’
option to take care of any disciplinary issue or future drop in performance
of individual/ business/ company.

d

Description of the ways in which the bank seeks to link
performance during a performance measurement period with
levels of remuneration:
Individual performances are assessed in line with business/
individual delivery of the Key Result Areas (KRAs), top priorities of
business, budgets etc. KRAs of Line roles are linked to financials,
people, service and process (Quality) and compliance parameters
and KRAs of non-Line Roles have linkage to functional deliveries
needed to achieve the top business priorities.
Further remuneration process is also linked to market salaries / job
levels, business budgets and achievement of individual KRAs.
A discussion of the banks’ policy on deferral and vesting of variable
remuneration and a discussion of the bank's policy and criteria for
adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting:
A discussion on Policy on Deferral of Remuneration basis last
amendment effective 22" July, 2023
Employees have been broadly classified into following categories:
« Category | - Comprising MD & CEO and Whole Time Directors (WTDs).
« Category Il — Material Risk Takers (MRTs). These include
employees whose actions may have material impact on the risk
exposures of the bank and who satisfy both - qualitative and
quantitative criteria, as given below:
o Qualitative Criteria: Employees in the grade M10 and above
o Quantitative Criteria: Fixed Cost to Company (FCTC) is above
% 1.25 Crore p.a.
This excludes employees under Category .

€

« Category Il — Risk control and compliance employees —
comprising staff in grade M9 and above in the following Control
functions;

(o]

Risk & Policy function

Financial Control including group consolidation;

Compliance;

Internal Audit;

Back-office Operations

Vigilance

Legal

Secretarial

HR

Investor Relations

CSR

« Category IV: Other employees - This includes all employees, not
explicitly covered in the first three categories.

Following principles are applied for deferral / vesting of variable

remuneration in accordance with RBI guidelines and Bank’s

compensation policy:

Category | & Il

At least 50% of Total Pay, should be variable for arriving at the

total compensation for the year

The Cash component of the Variable Pay will not exceed 50%

of the Fixed Pay

The total variable payout shall be limited to a maximum of 300%

of the fixed pay.

In case variable pay is up to 200% of the fixed pay, a minimum of

50% of the variable pay; and in case variable pay is above 200%,

a minimum of 67% of the variable pay should be via non-cash

instruments.

Regardless of the quantum of pay, a minimum of 60% of the total

variable pay must invariably be under deferral arrangements.

Further, if cash component is part of variable pay, at least 50% of

the cash bonus should also be deferred.

However, in cases where the cash component of variable pay

is under ¥ 25 lakh for a year, deferral requirements would not

be necessary.

The deferral period should be a minimum of three years. This

would be applicable to both, the cash and non-cash components

of the variable pay.

The compensation will be approved by the Nomination and

Remuneration committee. Additionally, for Category |, the same will

be further approved by RBI.

Category lll

The total variable payout shall be limited to a maximum of 300%

of the fixed pay.

However, in cases where the cash component of variable pay

is under ¥ 25 lakh for a year, deferral requirements would not

be necessary.

The deferral period should be a minimum of three years. This

would be applicable to both, the cash and non-cash components

of the variable pay.

Approval authority: MD & CEO or as delegated by MD & CEO, will

approve the variable pay.

For adjusting deferred remuneration before & after vesting:

Malus: Payment of all or part of amount of deferred variable pay
can be prevented.

Clawback: Previously paid or already vested deferred variable pay
can also be recovered under this clause.

Malus and clawback may be applied for following circumstances:

« Fraud, misfeasance, breach of trust, dishonesty, or wrongful
disclosure by the employee of any confidential information
pertaining to the bank or any of its affiliates;

Willful misinterpretation / misreporting of financial performance
of the bank;

Material failure in risk management controls or material losses due
to negligent risk-taking which are attributable to the employee,
whether directly or indirectly;

Any misconduct pertaining to moral turpitude, theft, misappropriation,
corruption, forgery, embezzlement or an act of a felonious or criminal
nature;

Non-disclosure of material conflict of interest by the employee or
any misuse of official powers;

An act of willful, reckless or grossly negligent conduct which is
detrimental to the interest or reputation of the bank or any of its
affiliates, monetarily or otherwise;

Material breach of Code of Conduct, any Non-Disclosure
Agreement, regulatory procedures, internal rules and regulations
or any other such instance for which the NRC, in its discretion,
deems it necessary to apply malus or / and clawback provisions;
Besides the above there can be other circumstances when malus
may be applied. In deciding the application of malus / clawback to
any part or all of variable pay or incentives (whether paid, vested
or unvested), the NRC will follow due process and adhere to the
principles of natural justice and proportionality.

f) Description of the different forms of variable remuneration
(i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and other forms) that the bank
utilizes and the rationale for using these different forms:
Depending on the nature of the business/function/ role, the risk
involved, the time horizon for review, various forms of Variable Pay
may be applicable.

The components of such variable pay will include:

« Cash — this may be paid at intervals ranging from Monthly,
Quarterly, half-yearly and annual. The Monthly/ Quarterly /
Half Yearly Variable Pay will be under the role and preapproved
business specific incentive schemes. This may be payable within
one year of grant.

Long Term Incentive Pay (LTIP): This shall be granted to

employees, in the form of Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and

/ or Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) and / or Deferred Cash.

This shall be granted on a discretionary and reasonable basis,

to motivate employees, create shareholder value by aligning

interest of employees with the long-term interests of the Bank.

LTIP may also be granted from time to time with the objective of

retaining employees.

o ESOPs/ SARs will be linked to Kotak Mahindra Bank Stock price

and will vest over a period of time.

Black Scholes Model will generally be applied for arriving at the value

of the units to be granted. However, Bank may choose any other

model with the approval of NRC within the regulatory framework.

ESOPs / SARs will be approved by the NRC. The quantum of

ESOPs/ SARs will be reasonable and the formulation of the ESOP

series, the coverage, the vesting period and their pricing schedule,

etc. will also be decided by the NRC as per SEBI guidelines.

o Deferred Cash may paid over a period of 3 to 5 years.

O OO0 O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOoOOo
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B. Quantitative Disclosures:

a) Number of meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee held during the financial year and remuneration
(sitting fees) paid to its members during the financial year.

During the financial year ended 31%t March, 2024, 14 meetings
(previous year 8 meetings) of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee were held. Members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were paid, for attending the meetings
held during the financial year, a sitting fee of ¥ 75,000 per meeting
[previous year X 50,000 per meeting (for the meetings held before
22" October, 2022) and % 60,000 per meeting (for the meetings
held on or after 22" October, 2022)].

Number of employees having received a variable remuneration
award during the financial year.

As per FY24 policy for the year ended 31 March 2024 (“FY2024 policy”):
Quantitative disclosure restricted to one CEO* & two Whole Time
Directors as Category | employees and Seventy Seven Category |l
employees as Material Risk Takers. For employees who have moved
to a group company or retired or separated as well as new joiner
awards up to the date in the Bank are included.

*Plus 2 CEOs during the year.

As per FY23 policy for the year ended 31t March 2023 (“FY2023 policy”):
Quantitative disclosure restricted to CEO & four Whole Time Directors
as Category | employees and Fifty Nine Category Il employees as
Material Risk Takers. For employees who have moved to a group
company or retired or separated as well as new joiner awards up to
the date in the Bank are included.

All quantitative disclosures are as per FY2024 policy which is
applicable from 22" July, 2023.

b

36.

37.

38.
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c) Number of employees and total amount of sign-on/ joining
bonus made during the financial year.

Particulars Year ended
31%t March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
No of employees 7 5
Cash (Cr) Nil Nil
ESOPs (equity shares) 217,400 15,820
SARs (rights) 51,813 296,350

d) Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, if any.
| Year ended 31¢March, 2024 | Year ended 31¢* March, 2023 |
Nil [ Nil
e) Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split into
cash, types of share-linked instruments and other forms.
As at

Particulars

Cash (Deferred)
Outstanding SARs 829,064 rights 650,239 rights
Outstanding ESOPs 859,823 equity shares | 779,707 equity shares
f) Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the financial year.

31stMarch, 2024
X 35.24 crore

31%tMarch, 2023
% 29.39 crore

Year ended
31March, 2024 31March, 2023
X 12.2 crore % 7.20 crore
< 42.25 crore % 19.24 crore
g) Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards for the financial
year to show fixed and variable, deferred and non-deferred.

Fixed Pay

Cash (Deferred)
Payment towards SARs

Year ended
315tMarch, 2024 31%t March, 2023
X 155.13 crore < 118.60 crore

Total fixed salary

Variable Pay

Year ended
31tMarch, 2024 31¢t March, 2023

Deferred Variable Pay*
Cash (Deferred)
SARs

ESOPs

Non Deferred

variable pay*

% 20.73 crore
415,361 rights
434,647 equity shares
 26.25 crore

3 16.67 crore
484,740 rights
449,142 equity shares
% 22.84 crore

$ Details relating to variable pay pertains to remuneration awards for the
financial year 2022-23 awarded in FY2024. Remuneration award for the
year ended 31 March, 2024 are yet to be reviewed and approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained
remuneration exposed to ex post explicit and / or implicit adjt

Nil (previous year Nil)

h

i) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to
ex- post explicit adjustments.
Nil (previous year Nil)
j) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to
ex- post implicit adjustments.
Nil (previous year Nil)
k) Number of MRT identified.
82 (previous year 64)
1)  Number of cases where malus has been exercised.
Nil (previous year Nil)
m) Number of cases where clawback has been exercised.
Nil (previous year Nil)
Number of cases where both malus and clawback have been
exercised
Nil (previous year Nil)
The mean pay for the bank as a whole (excluding sub-staff) and
the deviation of the pay of each of its WTDs from the mean pay.

n

o,

Mean pay for the Bank as a whole for all employees who were in
employment for the whole of FY2023-24 and FY2022-23 was % 0.12 crore
(previous year X 0.11 crore).

Ratio of pay of each WTD to the mean pay for the bank as a whole

Ratio
Director Year ended
31stMarch, 2024 | 31stMarch, 2023
Mr Uday Kotak 3.53X 0.04X
Mr Dipak Gupta 67.40X 49.64X
Mr K.V.S. Manian 50.18X 47.80X
Mr Gaurang Shah — 45.72X
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram 54.63X 19.38X
Mr. Ashok Vaswani 13.40X NA

Notes:

1. Pay includes Fixed pay + variable pay paid during the year + perquisite
value as calculated under the Income Tax Act, 1961, (excluding perquisite
value of Stock Options).

2. Stock Appreciation Rights are awarded as variable pay. These are settled
in cash and are linked to the average market price/closing market price
of the Bank’s stock on specified dates. Cash paid out during the year is
included for the purposes of remuneration.

3. Remuneration of Mr. Uday Kotak includes NED commission for FY2023-24,

4. Mr. Dipak Gupta’s remuneration for the FY 2023-24 is including one time
settlement of retirement benefit.

5. Ms. Shanti Ekambaram remuneration for the FY2022-23 is for 5 Months
(Appointed as WTD effective Nov'22).

6. Mr. Ashok Vaswani’s remuneration is from 15 Jan 2024 till 315 Mar 2024.

Intra — Group Exposures

(X in crore)
Particul As at

articulars 31 March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023

(a)| Total amount of intra-group exposures 6,624.16 6,041.96

(b) | Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures 6,620.09 6,036.98

(c)| Percentage of intra-group exposures to total 0.92% 0.98%
exposure of the bank on borrowers / customers

(d) [ Details of breach of limits on intra-group NA NA
exposures and regulatory action thereon, if any.

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal
MIS system.

Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund)

(X in crore)

Particulars Year ended
31'March, 2024 | 31<March, 2023
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 356.42 303.00
Add: Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the year 67.51 56.22
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards claim 11.93 2.80
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund 412.00 356.42

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure of borrowers:

The Bank recognises the importance of the risk of adverse fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates on the profitability and financial position of borrowers who are
exposed to currency risk. Currency induced credit risk refers to the risk of
inability of borrowers to service their debt obligations due to adverse movement
in the exchange rates and corresponding increase / decrease in their book
values of trade payables, loan payables, trade receivables, etc. thereby
exposing the Bank to risk of default by the borrower. In this regard, the Bank
had put in place requisite policies & processes for monitoring and mitigation of
currency induced credit risk of borrowers. These include the following:

a) Currency risk of borrowers on account of un-hedged foreign currency
exposures (‘UFCE") is duly considered and analysed in credit appraisal notes.

b) Quarterly monitoring of un-hedged foreign currency exposures of borrowers.

c) Risk classification of borrowers having un-hedged foreign currency
exposures, into Low / Medium / High, as per internal norms, based on
potential loss / EBID ratio. Potential loss means the loss which may
be arise over a one year horizon by adverse movement of exchange
rates; this is computed as UFCE amount multiplied by the annual
volatility factor.

d) Incremental provisioning (over and above provision applicable for
standard assets) is made in Bank’s Profit and Loss Account, on borrower
counterparties having UFCE, depending on the potential loss / EBID
ratio, in line with stipulations by RBI. Incremental capital is maintained
in respect of borrower counterparties in the highest risk category, in line
with stipulations by RBI. These requirements are given below:

| Provisi |

Potential Loss / EBID Inci | Capital

ratio Requirement (computed Requirement
on the total credit
exposures reckoned
for standard asset
provisioning)

Up to 15% Nil Nil
More than 15% to 30% 20 bps Nil
More than 30% to 50% 40 bps Nil
More than 50% to 75% 60 bps Nil
More than 75% 80 bps 25 per cent increase

(Most risky) in the risk weight

e) In case of borrowers exposed to currency risk where declarations for
foreign currency payables / receivables (UFCE declarations) are not
submitted, provision for currency induced credit risk is made as per
RBI stipulated rates mentioned below:

« 10 bps in cases where limits with banking system are ¥ 50 crore
or less;

» 80 bps in cases where limits with banking system are more than
% 50 crore.

f)  Further, where annual certification from statutory auditors of UFCE
data is not submitted, such borrowers are treated as UFCE declaration
not submitted cases and provision is computed as per point (e) above.

g) Exemption allowed by RBI are excluded from UFCE provision
computation, including specified all India financial institutions,
multilateral agencies, domestic & foreign sovereigns, and other
exemptions. Further, 100% FD backed exposure is not reckoned as
exposure as per RBI definition and thus not reckoned by the Bank
for UFCE provision computation. Similarly, LCBD and BG/LC backed
exposures are considered as exposure to LC/ SBLC issuing banks and
not to borrower entity.

h) Management of foreign exchange risk is considered as a parameter for
internal risk rating of borrowers.
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Provision held for currency induced credit risk as at 31 March, 2024 Total Total ¢. Retail Banking 384,257.91 310,374.20 B. Other Related Parties:
is ¥ 73.55 crore. (previous year ¥ 62.85 crore). Incremental Risk Adjusted Adjusted 4. Other Banking busi N .
weighted Assets value considered for the purpose of CRAR calculation Value Value - Other Banking business - - Nature of relationship | Related Party
in respect of currency induced credit risk as at 31t March, 2024 is 13 [TOTAL HQLA 84,712 86,305 Sub-total 802,872.51 667,726.04 Individual having Mr. Uday S. Kotak, Promoter along with the persons /
X 3,154.68 crore (previous year ¥ 1,393.73 crore). 14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 75155 74905 Less : Inter-segmental Assets 203,032.03 178,234.99 significant influence | entities forming part of the Promoter Group, holds 25.90%
39. a) Liquidity Coverage Ratio 15 |Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) M2.72% 15.02% Total 599,840.48 489,491.05 over the enterprise o_f t_he paid-up :hare capital of Kotak Mahindra Bank
Rin crore) y g : : Add : Unallocated Assets 516.57 371.43 Limited as on 31* March, 2024.
Average Q4 20232024 | Average Q3 20262024 | ) ?:a':at"’e ":3“':5;"’:?’:“"" LCR,b §onitori of suffciency of Bank Total Assets as per Balance Sheet |  600,357.05]  489,862.48 Associates / Others | Infina Finance Private Limited
- - e Reserve Bank of India has prescribed monitoring of sufficiency of Bank’s ] PR Phoenix ARC Private Limited
Number of working days in the quarter — Ll P 8 — liquid assets using Basel Ill — Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR). The LCR is 4.|Segment Liabilities NG v;zya oo
Particulars o ol Weiml?ted otel WeiOtha(ed aimed at measuring and promoting short-term resilience of Banks to potential a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre|  134,765.70 93,987.32 —
Value Vaglue Value Va%ue liquidity disruptions by ensuring maintenance of sufficient high quality liquid b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 218,547.17 202,922.48 Key Management M'i U??yss'tKOtsk -;\gggaglng Director & CEO
; - ; upto 1% September
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) assets (HQLAs) to survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days. c. Retail Banking 353,357.46 287,429.54 Personnel (KMP) Nﬁm Execu‘t)ive Director w.e.f. 2" September 2023
High Quality Liquid Assets The ratio comprises of high quality liquid gssets (HQLAs) as numgrlator d. Other Banking business _ _ Mr. Dipak Gupta - Joint Managing Director
1 |Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 119,711 118,818 and net cash outflows in 30 days as denominator. HQLA has been divided Sub-total 706.67033 584.339.32 (upto 31 December 2023)
Cash Outflows into two parts i.e. Level 1 HQLA which comprises of primarily cash, excess ub-tota dhs 1999 Mr. Ashok Vaswani — Managing Director and CEO
> TRewmi d tsandd T i CRR, SLR securities in excess of minimum SLR requirement and a portion of Less : Inter-segmental Liabilities 203,032.03 178,234.99 (w'ef 19 January 2024)
etail deposits and deposits from sma "
businesspcusmmers O?Which. mandatory SLR as permitted by RBI (under MSF and FALLCR) and Level 2 Total 503,638.30|  406,104.35 Mr. KVS Manian — Joint Managing Director
J - HQLA which comprises of investments in highly rated non-financial corporate " o Mr. G Shah - Whole-time Direct
(i) | Stable deposits 40923|  2,046| 40,083 2,003 bonds and listed equity investments considered at prescribed haircuts. Cash Add : Unallocated liabilities 79.29 20818 ( r.t z;:r‘aggt ba 2-022;) e-time irector
: - upto 31% October
(ii) |Less stable deposits 201,581| 20,158| 195,223 19,522 outflows are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various Add : Share Capital & Reserves & surplus 96,639.46 83,459.95 Ms Shanti Ekambaram — Deputy Managing Director
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: categories or types oflliab.ilities by the outﬂow run-off rates apd cash inﬂows Total Capital & Liabilities as per 600,357.05 489,862.48 (w.e.f. 1% November 2022)
- - n - are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories Balance Sheet - - - —
(i) | Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - of contractual receivables by the rates at which they are expected to flow in 5. [Canital E ™ Enterprises over Aero Agencies Private Limited (formerly known as Aero
m - - . .| Capital Expenditure i i A ies Limited)
(ii) [Non-operational deposits 120,099| 74,115 120,801 74,669 The Bank has i . which KMP / relatives | Agencies Limi
I terparti implemented the LCR framework and has consistently T BM 186. 122. . -
— (all counterparties) maintained LCR well above the regulatory threshold. The average LCR for the a. Treasury, U and Corporate Centre 86.35 68 OT KMP haye control /| Kotak anld Company I?’nvate ,lelteq )
(iii) | Unsecured debt 4,016 4,016 3,933 3,933 quarter ended 31¢ March, 2024 was 124.92% which is above the regulatory b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 57.75 65.17 significant influence quaf Flnar.mlal Sennc?s anatelemnte.d .
4 | Secured wholesale funding 968 2 180 2 requirement of 100%. For the quarter ended 31t March, 2024 average Level c. Retail Banking 630.10 562.99 Asian Machinery & Equipment Private Limited
5 |Additional requirements, of which 1 HQLA stood at 95.10% ( % 113,839 crore.) of the total HQLA. d. Other Banking business - - Insurekot Sports Private Limited
(i) | Outflows related to derivative exposures | 28,659 28,659| 28,883| 28,883 Apart from LCR, Bank uses various stock liquidity indicators to measure Total 874.20 750.84 Kotak Trustee'Company anatle lelt.Ed,
and other collateral requirements and monitor the liquidity risk in terms of funding stability, concentration risk, — — - . Cumulus Trad.lng CQmpany Erlvate Limited
(ii) [ Outflows related to loss of funding on - - - - dependence on market borrowings, liquidity transformation, etc. The Bank 6. | Depreciation / Amortisation Palko Properties Private Limited
debt products maintains a diversified source of funding in terms of depositors, lenders a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 118.25 90.11 Kotak Chemicals Limited
(iii | Credit and liquidity facilties 3102 336 2773 289 and various fundir_\g ins_truments. This is_evident th_rough low depositor and b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 4755 33.81 Kotak Ginning & Pressing Industries Private Limited
- — lender concentration with top 20 depositors contributing 9.19% of Bank’s Kotak Commodity Services Private Limited
6_|Other contractual funding obligations 9.024] 9024| 8590 8590 total deposits and top 10 lenders contributing 3.52% of Bank’s total liabilities. ¢. Retail Banking 448.99 337.81 Harisiddha Trading and Finance Private Limited
7_|Other contingent funding obligations 208184]  9,330) 203218 9,055 Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank is the primary governing body d. Other Banking business - - Puma Properties Private Limited
8 |Total Cash Outflows 147,686 146,946 for Liquidity Risk Management supported by Balance Sheet Management Total 614.79 461.73 Business Standard Private Limited
Unit (BMU), Risk M t D t t (RMD), Fi d ALCO - - - - i i i imi
Cash Inflows SS;)p(o t Grz)uplsBMUai‘:?r?:;irt]ral rZZ?)rsirt]:)er; of(funds) witlhni:rt]r?ee E?annk andis Segmental Information is provided as per the MIS available for internal ilL:‘snge:standard inlr;elPrltvalt_g L,'tm"jted
- - i ich i i i i ied Auto Accessories Private Limite
9 |Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 5,566 10{ 10,405 5 vested with the responsibility of managing liquidity risk within the risk appetite reporting purposes, which includes certain estimates and assumptions Uday S Kotak HUF
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 61,638| 51,305| 55,600/ 46,809 of the Bank. Bank has incorporated Basel IlI Liquidity Standards - LCR and RBI's Master Direction on Financial Statements - Presentation and Disclosures, Suresh A Kotak HUF
- NSFR as part of its risk appetite statement for liquidity risk. requires to divide the 'Retail banking' into (a) Digital Banking (as defined in )
11 [Other cash inflows 1,081 541 1,388 694 40. Frauds RBI circular on Establishment of Digital Banking Units dated April 7, 2022) and KF Trust (f?rmerly kngwn as USK Benefit Trust II)
12 | Total Cash Inflows 51,856 47,508 : The Bank h Hed 896 ) 706 fraud involvi (b) Other Retail Banking segment. The Bank has two DBUs which commenced Kotak Family Foundation
Total Total § ed an astre;f)o e | kh(pre‘\jnoubs yeazj ; catshes)f'rau ,CTSGS invo \gng operations during the quarter ended 31 December, 2022. Accordingly, the Helena Realty Private Limited
Adjusted Adjusted ;:f M amﬁ;r(\)zg one ? ta; 93 901\/e uring the |nanm; 73?26 ende segmental results for retail banking are subdivided as under: Doreen Realty Private Limited
Value Value arc amounting to 91 crore (previous year -40 crore). For March 31, 2024: Renato Realty Private Limited
The Bank has recovered / expensed off / provided the entire amount where or Marc s : ) ) o
13 |TOTAL HQLA 19,711 118,818 necessary. & in crore) Pine Tree Estates Private Limited
14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 95,830 99,438 Details of fraud provisioning made in more than one financial year: Particulars S S S t S Meluha Developers‘Prlvatg L.|m|ted
e > = Quantyco Realty Private Limited
15 |Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 12692% 119.49% Rin crore) Revenuefor | Resulsfor |  Assets Liability Xanadu Properties Private Limited
- — n yearended | year ended as at asat
.
Number of working days in the quarter 69 6 ‘other reserve’ Retail Banking 27,83108 | 5732.75 | 384,257.91 | 353,357.46 Ll“‘e_ NO?“ E.T‘eTrp”stes (upto 31% October 2022)
- - - - - anian Family Trus
Particulars voahted] Wegnted unweihted| Weighted N N N NIl (i) Digital Banking 153619 | 11836 6060 | 1558565 B Diea Aray Trost (upto 31+ December 2023)
Valie | Vale | Value | Value 41. Dividend ) N (ii) Other Retail Banking | 26,204.89 |  5,614.39 | 384,197.31 | 337,771.81 Brij Disa Parthav Trust (upto 31 December 2023)
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) The Board of Directors of the Bank have a proposed a dividend of ¥ 2.00 Kotak Mahindra G Empl Welfare Trust
High Quality Liquid Assets per share having a face value ¥ 5 for the year ended 31s' March, 2024 3. Disclosures: otak Manindra Broup Employee VVeltare frus
- — (previous Year X 1.50 per share). Dividend will be paid after the approval of a. The Bank has taken various premises and equipment under operating TM_L Beneflt Trust. )
1 [Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 117,322 102,187 the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. lease. The lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account Brij Disa Foundation (upto 31+ December 2023)
Cash Outflows 42. Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium (% in crore) are X 661.70 crore (previous year X 672.27 crore). The sub-lease income Amrit Lila Enterprises Private Limited
2 |Retail deposits and deposits from small 5 recognised in the Profit and Loss Account is ¥ 12.90 crore (previous year Manians F?m”)’ Trust Il
business customers, of which: Nc; Particulars 31tMarch, 2024| 31*March, 2023 % 11.21 crore). USK Benefit Trust Il
(i) [ stable deposits 38,014] 1901 36398 1,820 i) | Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 454.48 378.01 b. The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating KUd"; ';::JSSteetShIPbSe;‘ggzs Private Limited
(il | Less stable deposits 187,351| 18,735 178229 17,823 ii) | Arrears in payment of DICGC Premium _ _ Iease)—l "t°‘ ltar}er than one year 'StT ?Bot-:f) crore (PfeV!O;SZYgg;zg"Bg (sv:{:ﬁ{i Famfls ?fﬂsfiw ot )1 “ November 2022)
— — — - - crore), later than one year but not later than five years is ¥ 2,009.28 crore -ef.
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: 43. Imp ion of IFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) (previous year ¥ 1,575.85 crore) and later than five years ¥ 911.40 crore Shivkaran Trust (w.e.f. 15 November 2022)
(i) | Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - The Ministry of Finance, Government of India, had vide its press release dated (previous year X 770.25 crore). USK Capital Partners (w.e.f. 2" January 2024)
(ii) | Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) | 117,751|  72,107| 106,623| 64,521 |1: 8" JanluaRry, 2016 Sotuthgedd thglFr;ggmap for lr:rllleénenftlon of Intgma(t;orljal The lease terms include renewal option after expiry of primary lease Relatives of KMP Ms. Pallavi Kotak
iii) | Unsecured debt 4,420 4,420 3,194 3,194 inancial Reporting Standards ( ! ) converged In !an coounting Stan ar S period. There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There Mr. Suresh Kotak
() : - . : (“Ind AS”) for Scheduled Commercial Bank (excluding RRBs), Non-Bankin : :
7| Secured wholesale funding 122 2 2,485 2 ! ) - ! 9 ’ e 9 are escalation clauses in the lease agreements. Ms. Indira Kotak
Financial Companies and Insurance companies. The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") 4. Deferred Taxes: Mr. Jay Kotak
5 | Additional requirements, of which vide its circular dated 22" March, 2019, deferred the implementation of Ind AS for T o X . Mr' Dhawal Kotak
(i) [Outflows related to derivative exposures | 24,699 24,699 22,563 22,563 Scheduled Commercial Banks (“SCB”) till further notice pending the consideration Others” in Other Assets (Schedule 11 (V1)) includes deferred tax asset M : Aarti Chandari
and other collateral requirements of some recommended legislative amendments by the Government of India. The (net) of ¥ 322.70 crore (previous year X 371.43 crore). The components of s. Aart Lhandaria N
" - ) oot : ) the same are as follows: Ms. Aditi Arya (w.e.f. 7" November 2023)
(ii) | Outflows related to loss of funding on RBI has not issued any further notification on implementation of Ind AS for SCBs. Ms. Anita Gupta (upto 31% December 2023)
debt products The Bank has so far taken following steps for Ind AS implementation: R in crore) Ms. Urmila Gupta (upto 31% December 2023)
(iii) | Credit and liquidity facilities 3.627 446 3,078 280 |. Formed Steering Committee for Ind AS implementation. The Steering Particulars of Asset/ (Liability) 315‘MarchY;032; g:ﬁ:arch 2023 Mr. Arnav Gupta (upto 31*' December 2023)
6 |Other contractual funding obligations 6782|  6,782| 5574| 5574 Committee headed by the Joint Managing Director ("JMD’) comprises Provision Tor NPA and General brovision 23477 23787 Mr. Parthav Gupta (upto 31 December 2023)
- N — tatives from Finance, Risk, Information Technology and Treasury. ovision 1o a eneral provisions . - Mr. Prabhat Gupta (upto 31¢ December 2023)
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 195,440 8,702| 188,564 8,432 representa o ' ; i Expenditure allowed on payment basis 99.37 122.15 P P
! . i i The Committee closely reviews progress of Ind AS implementation in the P — payi : - Ms. Jyoti Banga (upto 31! December 2023)
8 |Total Cash Outflows 137,794 124,209 Bank and provides guidance on critical aspects of the implementation. Deprec.latlon 32.64 23.97 Ms. Seetha Krishnan
Cash Inflows II. The Bank is currently in the process of implementing an IT Solution for Deduction u/s. 36(1){viii) of the Income (244.02) (212.56) Ms. Lalitha Mohan
N IndAS reporting. Further, there may be new regulatory guidelines and Tax Act, 1961 Ms. Shruti Manian
9 _|Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 8,307 0] 191 7 clarifications for Ind AS application, which the Bank will need to suitably Net Deferred Tax Asset 322.70 371.43 Mr. Shashank Manian
10 |Inflows from fully performing exposures 47,064 39,625  41,700| 34,880 incorporate in its implementation. 5. Provisions: Mr. Ramesh Krishnan
11 | other cash inflows 1024 512 1316 658 44, Disclosure on amortisation of expenditure on account of enhancement Given below is the movement in provisions recognised by the Bank: mi Xar}:athihGr?palakrisr?an (W~e-f-21§;Ap’” 2022)
12 [Total Cash Inflows 20147 35,545 in family pension of employees of banks a) Credit card & debit card reward points: Ms. D§ a SSha h(upt:) 3315‘%ct:)b;r 20022)
, , Pursuant to the revision in family pension payable to employees of the The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, movement in S i ah (upto s‘co o )
Total Total Bank covered under 11th Bi-Partite settlement and Joint Note dated ; 9 tabl - pe M Ms. Manasi Shah (upto 31 October 2022)
Adjusted Adjusted 11" November, 2020, the Bank has recognised the entire additional liability actua;lally_ dtetermlned provision for credit card and debit card account Ms. Mahima Shah (upto 31 October 2022)
Value Value of ¥ Nil in the Profit and Loss Account during the year ended 31% March, reward points: ) Mr. Chetan Shah (upto 315;October 2022)
13 [TOTAL HQLA 117,322 102,187 2024 (previous year Nil). There is no unamortised expenditure in the R in crore) m: ghgt;‘;?x:;i(?wz ?11 S‘?\lccisgfnrbiezzzo)ﬂ)
i i Yo ded .G. ef.
14 |Total Net Cash Outflows 97,645 88,665 Balance Sheet on account of Family Pension. Particulars T 204 |31 Mareh 2023 Ms. Shobha Srivastava (w.e.f. 1% November 2022)
15 |Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 120.15% 52| 45 Items exceeding 1% of Total Assets/ Total Income A — . e e Veena Vaswani (w.e.f. 1% January 2024)
- : a) Details of items under Others (including provisions) (Schedule 5 — Opening provision for reward points 68.26 28.51 -
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Other Liabilities and Provisions) exceeding 1% of total assets of the Provision for reward points made 267.06 171.87 R in crore)
(X in crore) Bank is Nil. (previous year Nil). during the year Items / Related Party Sub /.\sso- Key | Enterprise | Relatives |  Total
Average Q4 20222023 | Average Q3 2022-2023 b) Details of items under Others (Schedule 11 — Other Assets) exceeding Utilisation/ write-back of provision for (211.20) (132.12) sg:’l'anr-y ((:)I:I:i:sl M’a“n:ngte- wmvlzL ';aanaeL
Number of working days in the quarter 66 69 1% of total assets of the Bank is Nil (previous year Nil). reward points panies Per- KNP! mengt
Particulars Total Total Total Total c) Details of items under Miscellaneous Income (Schedule 14 — Other Income) Closing provision for reward 124.12 68.26 sonnel | Relative | pgp.
u fted | Weighted | Unweighted | Weighted exceeding 1% of total income of the Bank is Nil. (previous year Nil) ints* of KMP
Value Value Value Value g 1% - (P y . points have sonnel
(average) | (average) | (average) | (average) d) Details of items under Other expenditure (Schedule 16 — Operating * This amount will be utilised towards redemption of the credit card & debit control |
High Quality Liquid Assets Expenses) exceeding 1% of total income of the Bank are given below: card accounts reward points. significant
i b) L I: influence
1| Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 94,801 87,406 Rin crore) ) Lega ) S
Sr. Nature of expense Year ended (% in crore) Liabilities
Cash Outfloyvs ‘ No.| P 31 March, 2024 Particulars 315March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 Deposits 3,685.84| 48.73| 61.02] 107.84| 174.02| 4,077.45
2 Retgll deposits and deposw?s from small 1 |Professional Fees 1,955.94 Opening Provision 41.44 43.78 i (1,823.43)| (67.64)|(261.73)| (104.26)|(184.32) | (2,441.38)
business customers, of which: - — - Borrowings - - - - _ _
() [Stable deposits 35145 1757 34.061] 1703 2 |Brokerage Fees 770.58 Add: Addition during the year 0.51 0.70 0 0 0 0 0 A
_ P : : ’ . - Less: Reduction during the year (6.87) (3.04) Interest Payable 500|023 143 061 1697
(il) Less stable deposits 173,408| 17,341 169,013| 16,901 (in crore) ’ — . . . . .
- - st Year ended Closing Provision 35.08 41.44 Eo4] (010)] (.94 (1.00)] (050)[ (658)
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: : Nature of expense p . Other Liabilities 87.31 - -| 001 - 8732
m . - - — — — — No. 31%March, 2023 c) Fraud and Other Provisions: (72.32) 0 O (.01 O 72.3)
Operational deposits (all counterparties) 1 |Professional Fees 1647.68 ® in crore) e . . .
ii) | Non-operational deposits 100,655| 60,172 94,936| 57,145 - S .
0 (all counterparies) 2 _|Brokerage Fees 707.83 Particulars 31%March, 2024 | 31*March, 2023 Advances 40000] 2531] 001 131] 004 42667
(i) [Unsecured debt 1378] 1378 501 501 3 |Goods and Service Tax (GST) 509.47 Opening Provision 39.02 42.19 (779.83)| (40.31) ()| (0.92)] (4.45)| (825.51)
4 | Secured wholesale funding 3 3 Sxpense Add: Addition during the year 26.80 4.78 estments-Gross (zf '3243; 5%2) o @ <#§ g (4452113'245%2)
5 |Additional requirements, of which B. ?T:ER I_JISCLOS:RIiS:Sh Less: Reduction during the year (19.89) (7.95) Diminution on Investments - - - # - #
. Earnings per Equity Share: Closing Provisi 45.99 39.02 B - - -
(iy | Outflows related fo derivafive exposures | - 21,638| 21,636| 24,140 24,140 Year ended 8 e Commission Receivable 189 ég o o o o 189 (:s;
__|and other collateral requirements Particulars " - 6. Fixed Assets as per Schedule 10B include intangible assets relating to 102 63) &) B O () (102 63)
(ii) | Outflows related o loss of funding on - - - - 31%March, 2024 | 31*'March, 2023 purchased software and system development expenditure which are as follows: . : :
debt products Reconciliation between weighted shares i Others Receivable 132.65 0.23 - 0.02 - 132.90
(ii) | Credit and liquidity facilties 3193 295|  2996] 250 used in the computation of basic and diluted e nde‘(j in crore) Mo Far e (13356)| (0.39)] () ()] (0.03)] (133.98)
- — ’ h . on Funded Commitments
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 5489 5,489 5699 5,699 earlnlngs per share . Particulars 31" March, 2024 | 31" March, 2023 Bank Guaraniees o7 - - 113 - 220
7 | other contingent funding obligations 182,760 8,151 178,244| 7,960 Weighted average number of equity shares used | 1,987,326,015| 1,985,666,543 Gross Block (0.57) ) FIEE) O (1.70)
in computation of basic earnings per share Swans/ Forward contracts 200.00 _ _ _ —I™ 20000
8 _|Total Cash Outflows 116,224 114402 Effect of potential equity shares for stock 150,565 502,301 At cost on 31 March of the preceding year 887.69 71343 (l\\l’\gtﬁmal) [334.83) 3) A O] (1.65) (336.48)
Cash Inflows options outstanding Add: Additions during the year 141.46 212.24 Expenses
9_|Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 832 6 1,154 2 Weighted average number of equity shares used | 1,987,476,580 | 1,986,168,844 Less: Deductions during the year 8.42 37.98 Salaries/fees (Include ESOP) - -| 2405 -] 057] 2462
10 | Inflows from fully performing exposures 41,759| 34,406 44,710| 38,186 in computation of diluted earnings per share Total 1020.73 887.69 () ()] (23.66) ()] (045)] (24.11)
11 | Other cash inflows 809 405 1,067 534 Following is the reconciliation between basic D iation / Amortisati Interest Expense 98.22| 732 14.50 478) 1271 137.53
12 | Total Cash Inflows 34,817 38,722 and diluted eamings per share epreciation / Amortisation : : (32.50)| (440)| (44.30)| (3.09)| (8.77)| (93.06)
Total Total Nominal value per share 500 500 As at 31% March of the preceding year 625.90 549.80 Expenses for services received | 919.73 - - 2.69 - 92242
) ) . . - (551.44) B 0| (076) ()| (652.20)
A‘\ill;it:d A[\‘,’:lzfd Basic earnings per share 69.15 54.89 Add: ChargeAfor the )l/ear 159.06 109.77 Ir
13 |TOTAL HQLA 94 801 87,406 Effect of potential equity shares for stock options 0.00 0.02 Less: Deductions during the year 4.90 33.67 Dividend 308.90 - - - -] 308.90
14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 81,407 75,680 Diluted earnings per share 69.15 54.87 Depreciation to date 780.06 625.90 (242.27) () () () ()] (242.27)
: J - - 24 261 Interest Income 66.52 3.23 - 0.06 0.30 70.11
15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 116.45% 115.49% Profit for the year after tax (X in crore) 13,781.58 10,939.30 Net Block 0.67 61.79 (104.85)] (4.05)| (0.17)] (0.14)] (0.35)] (109.56)
Average Q2 0222023 | Average Q1 2022:2023 Less : Preference dividend including tax (¥ in crore) 38.51 40.50 Capital commitments for purchase of software and system development Income from services 1,208.03]  0.06 # 004 #| 1,208.13
Number of working davs in th . ” P Earnings used in the computation of basic and 13,743.07 10,898.80 expenditure are ¥ 80.13 crore (Previous year ¥ 91.10 crore). rendered (724.77)] (0.11)] (0.01)] (0.04)| (0.01)| (724.94)
P":_ erlo Wworking cays In the quarter ol o Tl ol diluted earnings per share (X in crore) 7. Related Party Disclosures: Other Transactions
articulars ighted | Weighted | Unweighted |Weighted ing: As per Accounting Standard -18, Related Party Disclosure, the Bank’s Sale of Investment 1,260.31 = = = = 1,26031
g g g g 2. Segment Reporting: (377.25) 0 Q Q O @377.25)
Val Vall Vall Val . . i i . - w W " w 2
(av:r:;e) (av:r:;e) (av:r:;d (aVSr:ZE) The Summary of the operating segments of the Bank are as gl\;;r'! below: ) fla::nﬁ:;hj;z: iiii?z?:;zl:):' Purchase of Investment 1,731.57 - - - - 1,731.57
in crore . :
High Quality Liquid Assets (1,161.82) () () () ()](1,161.82)
1| Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) 84,712 86,305 sr. Particulars 31stMarch, | 31stMarch, Nature of relationship | Related Party Loan Disbursed During the Year | 1,556.58 - - - -| 1556.58
| |Cash Outflows No. 2024 2023 Subsidian C - - —— (1,294.02) () () () (-)](1,294.02)
2 [Retail deposits and deposits from small 1.| Segment Revenue ubsiciary Lompanies EZ::E g::;’:sifsimfegm"ed Loan Repaid During the Year | 1,926.58] _15.00 - - [ 1,041.58
blusmess custome.rs, of which: a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 10,122.25 6,923.67 Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited (1,074.02)| (15.00) (6] (G ()](1,089.02)
(i) [Stable deposits 33,190 1,660 32,115| 1,606 - X ” o Assignment Portfolio Buyout 1,736.16 - - - -] 1,736.16
(i) [Less stable deposits 164.832| 16.483]  161514] 16.151 b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 22,788.95 18,130.83 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited During the year &) 0 ) ) B )
3 | Unsecured wholesale funding of which: c. Retail Banking 27,831.08 19,179.15 Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited N Dividend paid - - 7695 023 053] 7771
(i) |Operational deposits (all counterparties) - - - - d. Other Banking business - - Kotak Mah!ndra Asset Management VCO.mpany Limited () ()] (56.37)] (0.14)] (0.39)] (56.90)
i) [ Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) | _ 96,357| 56,987  99.977| 57,552 Sub-total 60,742.28 44,233.65 Kotak Mahindra Trustee Company Limited Reimbursement to companies 28.07 - - B | 2807
Kotak Mahindra (International) Limited
(i) | Unsecured debt 92| 952 564 564 Less : Inter-segmental revenue 4,670.27 2,899.75 o Mo d'a (JKeT.a '9”2) mie @ O 0 0 o] 39
4| Secured wholesale funding 1 - Total 56,072.01 21.333.90 otak Mal in ra (UK) Limite Reimbursement from companies | 141.35|  0.27 - - -| 14162
5 |Additional requirements, of which 2. | Seament Results Kotak Mahindra Inc. (131.42)] (0.43) () () ()| (131.85)
(i) [Outflows related to derivative exposures 21,971 21,971 18,054 18,054 - 19€d Kotak Alternate Assets Managers Limited (Formerly Purchase of Fixed assets 0.55 _ _ _ _ 0.55
and other collateral requirements a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 4,807.18 3,906.35 Known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) 0.47) 0 0 0 ol o)
(ii) (?ug{lowsdrelined to loss of funding on b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 7,473.79 7,072.95 Kotak Mahindra Trusteeship Services Limited Sale of Fixed assels 0 17 = = = ~ 0 17
ebt products — _ _ — c. Retail Bankin 5,732.75 3,411.69 imi y y
(i) | Credit and liquidity facities 2962] 243|286 233 o B Kotak Ifrastructure Debt Fund Limited (48 G O 6L O (48
! =2 : . . er banking business - - Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited Swaps/ Forward contracts 724.80 2.84 4.50 4.32| 2461 761.07
8 _[Other contractual funding obligations 6.146| 6146] 6166 6166 Sub-total 18,013.72|  14,390.99 Kotak Mahindra Financial Services Limited 90200 () (690)] (421)] (26.02)] (938.13)
; ;):::Ir ézz:ngir:;l::wn:mg obligations 168,532 117159:; 161,654 1077?; Total Profit Before Tax 18,013.72 14,390.99 Kotak Mahindra Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Limited Guarantees/ Lines of credit 10.55 - - - _ 10.55
Cash Inflows - : Provision for Tax 4,232.14 3,451.69 Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited ___ (0.80) () () () ()| (0.80)
9_|Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 3,399 6,759 Total Profit After Tax 13,781.58 10,939.30 IVY Product Intermediaries Limited It')tthab:!lt:ls'i'
9. . - . - o L er liabilities
10 |Inflows from fully performing exposures 43,046| 35,970 38,180| 31,511 3.|Segment Assets BSS Microfinance le.ned Other Payable
11 | Other cash inflows 1,663 832 2243 1122 a. Treasury, BMU and Corporate Centre 179,075.58 133,506.32 Kotak Ka.rma Foun.datlon .(wv.e.f. 26" Jun 2023) Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 016 _ _ _ _ 016
12 [Total Cash Inflows 36,802 32,633 b. Corporate / Wholesale Banking 239,539.02|  223,845.52 Sonata Finance Private Limited (w.e.f. 28" Mar 2024) (2.79) () () () 6 @79
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(X in crore) (X in crore) (X in crore) Detail of activity under SARs is summarised below:
Items / Related Party Sub- Asso- | Key Enterprise |Relatives | Total Items | Related Party Sub- Asso-  |Key Enterprise |Relatives | Total Items / Related Party Sub- Asso-  |Key Enterprise |Relatives | Total Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
sidiary ciates/  |Manage- | over of Key sidiary ciates/ | Manage- | over of Key sidiary ciates/  |Manage- | over of Key 31t March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Com- Others | ment which Manage- Com- Others | ment which Manage- Com- Others | ment which Manage- " A
panies Per- KMP | ment panies Per- KMPI | ment panies Per- KMPI | ment Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,252,174 623,855
sonnel ~ |Relative |Per- sonnel  |Relative | Per- sonnel  |Relative |Per- Granted during the year 1,351,301 870,541
of KMP [sonnel of KMP |sonnel of KNP |sonnel o :
have have have Addlltlons/ (Reduction) due to transfer of 9,571 28,888
control | control / control / emp oyeesv
significant significant significant Settled during the year 431,501 193,696
influence influence influence Forfeited during the year 161,174 77,414
BSS Microfinance Limited 77.86 - - - - 77.86 V. Other Tr i G | Lines of Credits Outstanding at the end of the year 2,020,371 1,252,174
(61.31) () () () (] (61.31) Sale of | Kotak Alternate Assets 10.50 - - - -l 10.50 Fair value of Empl tock opti
Kotak Securities Limited 195 - - - - 1.95 Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund |  150.00 - - - -| 150.00 Managers Limited (0.55) ) &) 0 Ol (055 air value ot Employee stock options
B2 6l 0l 6l o] 6% |Lnitd @079 (] 0] @] () (5070) [Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 0.05 - - - - 005 Igli;aéﬁ;’:iugc‘:;lzes Egﬁgﬁsssg'j:;m%“; t':k?:é"lfr‘:;egcggl}:ftg:‘ti r(r’rf1 grant
Kotak Mahindra Capital ~ - - - - - Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 205.00 - - - -| 205.00 Company L.|m|ted S (@) (6] (G) 0 G (S) conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair value of the cash-
Company Limited ___ (0.01) () () () ol ) (35.00) () () () ()] (35.00 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited - - - - - - settled options is remeasured at each Balance Sheet date. The following table
Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 0.89 - - - - 0.89 Kotak Mahindra Investments 100.00 - - - -| 100.00 (0.25) () () () (- (0.25) lists the inputs to the model used for equity-settled and cash-settled options:
(3.62) () () () () (362) Limited () () () () () () Note: 2028 2023
Sonata Finance Private Limited 3.55 - - - - 3.55 Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 675.44 - - - -| 6754 1. Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures. Year ended 31 March - -
() () () () () () (66.68) () (=) () ()| (66.68) 2. The above does not include any transactions in relation to listed securities done on _ , Equity-settled | Castvsettied | Equity-settied | Cash-settied
Kotak Mahindra General 142 - - - - 142 Kotak Securities Limited 54.31 - - - -] 5431 recognised stock exchange during the year. However above includes transactions Exercise Price ¥ 1823-1939 0-1801)  1,798-1,900 01,801
Insurance Limited (0.37) () () () (] (037) i i (24.88) ) () () ()| (24.88) done on NDS with known related parties. Weighted Average 192750 1825.07 1782.25 1735.68
Others 1.48 - -| 001 - 1.49 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 75.56 - - - -l 7556 3. #in the above table denotes amounts less than 50,000 Share Price ¥
(0.31) () ()] (0.01) () (0.32) Company Limited () () () () () () 4. Remuneration paid to KMPs is pursuant to approval from RBI (excluding value of Expected Volatility 16.79%-32.42% | 11.25%-25.27% | 26.57%-36.85% | 14.24%-33.18%
II. Assets: Purchase of Investments employee stock options exercised during the year). Historical Volatility | 16.79%3242% | 1.25%-2521% | 26.57%-36.85% | 14.24%33.16%
Investments . - 895.25 - - - —| 895.25 - - - - 5 p . . . . .
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance | 155720 - - - 58720 Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 257.21) o A 0 O @s57.21) Maximum Balance outstanding during the year i Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period)
Company Limited (1,557.20) o O ) ()](1,557.20) Kotak Infrastructure Debt 60.00 - - - -| 60.00 R in crore) - At the grant date 1.25-4.42 125431
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 146.37 _ _ _ | 14637 Fund Limited (360.00) () () (=) (-)| (360.00) Items / Related Party Subsidia.ry Associates | Key Enterpri_se Relatives _As at 31 March 0.02-3.84 0.02-4.04
X X X X Kotak Mahindra Prime 555.32 - - - - 555.32 Companies |  Others | Management| over which of Key - -
(€446 ()} 0 (6] ()] (654.46) Personnel | KWPI | t Risk-free interest rate | 7.01%-7.26% | 6.89%7.19% | 5.76%-7.77% | 6.79%-7.32%
. - imi ersonne anagement S 01%-7.26% | 6.89%-7.19% | 575%-7.77% |  6.79%-7.32%
BSS Microfinance Private Limited |  138.66] | - - -] 1asse| |Limited E16n] O 6 Bl ()] 61961 Relve | poe — - 0 n -
(138.56) B o o O] (138.56) K.Ot‘?k Mahindra Investments 25.00 - - - - 25.00 of KIP Expected dividend rate 0.08% |  0.08%-0.09% 0.06% 0.06%
Kotak Mahindra Investments 488.03 - - - —-| 488.03 Limited - () () () () () () have The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data and the
Limited (587.33) ) ) ) ()| (587.33) Kotak Mahindra General 195.00 - - - - 195.00 control Bank expects the volatility of its share price may not differ from historical volatility. The
- ~ ~ - - Insurance Limited (225.00) () () () ()| (225.00) significant measure of volatility used in the Black-Scholes options pricing model is the annualised
Kotak Mahindra General 875.00 875.00 - nfl o €
Kotak Karma Foundation 1.00 - - - - 1.00 influence standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over
Insurance Limited (680.00) ) ) () (-)| (680.00) — : f ’ i } . f
149 91.49 () () () () () () Liabilities a period of time. For calculating volatility, the daily volatility of the stock prices on the
Kotak I_nﬂfastruclure Debt - = - - - - Loan Disbursed During the Year Deposits’ 8,514.67 347.49| 311.72] 269.00] 207.31 National Stock Exchange, over a period prior to the date of grant for equity settled
Fund Limited 324.79 324.79 g
und Limite (324.79) () () ) ()| (324.79) - - _ _ - _ (6,199.33)| (768.74)|(2,553.73)| (180.63)| (248.59) options and remeasurement date for the cash settled options, corresponding with
Sonata Finance Private Limited 537.12 - - - -| 53712 Kotak Mahindra Prime 450.02 450.02 g ) ; ! ° ] I
: . Limited (800.02) 0 0 0 O ©0.02) Borrowings' _ _ _ _ _ the expected / residual life of the share-linked instruments has been considered.
o 1] I C | N | B () e T . : . . : : - - - - - Effect of the employee share-based tpl the Profit and Loss Account
Kotak Securities Limited 956.56 _ — _ — 956.56 ect of the emp_oyee S _are ased payment plans on the Profit and Loss Accoun
Kotak Alternate Assets 228.24 - - - - 228.2 iabilities? and on the financial position:
Others 172.90 - - # - 172.90 Kotak Mahindra Investments 150.00 - - - -| 15000 Assets v Sod 31 March 2024 2023
(190 @ 6] @ ([ (7t |Limied a0 @] 6l 0l O] #9400 agances 135192] 4282  004]  144] 558 car enee Sk -
Diminution on investments Loan Repaid During the Year (948.94)|  (55.31)] (462)] (3.79)| (8.24) Total Employee compensation cost pertaining to 168.02 99.77
Business Standard Private Ltd. - - - # - # Kotak Mahindra Investments |  245.00 - - - -] 245.00 Investments-Gross' 5,401.88 - - # - Share'baseq payment pla‘.”.S .
() () (- (#) () #) Limited (249.00) (- () 8] ()] (249.00) (5,164.90) _ ® #) #) Compensation cost pertaining to equnt_y-settled 25.44 2418
[ ission Receivable Kotak Securities Limited 956.56 - - - - 956.56 Commission Receivable? 189.89 _ _ _ _ ebmployee share-based payment plan included
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 176.85 - - - -| 176.85 () (- () ) g O (102.63) - - ~ N a. 0\{el . :
Company Limited ©903) @ @ O] (] ©803)] [Phoenix ARC Private Limited om0 o] o o 1500 [omerAssetsr 21962 050 T oot z Liapity for employee stock options outstanding 14044 12178
Kotak Mahindra General 13.04 - - - =] 1304 ()| (15.00) 0 0 ()] (1500 (21570)]  (065)] (0.04)] (0.03)] (0.09) Y -
Insurance Limited @60 @l Ol O () 460)] [Kotak Mahindra Prime 725.02 - - - - 72502 Non Funded Commitment Deferred Compensation Cost 61.15 6148
Others Receivable Limited (825.02) (- () () ()] (825.02) Bank Guarantees' 11.07 _ _ 113 _ Closing balance of liability for cash-settled options 163.11 99.10
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 16.32 - - - - 16.32 Assigl t Portfolio Buyout (1.02) - -l (113) - Expense arising from increase in intrinsic value of 77.22 31.69
(30.59) ) (O] ) ()| (30.59) During the year Swaps / Forwards' 696.99 2.84 3.64 1.06] 1821 liability for cash stock appreciation plan
Kotak Securities Limited 13.74 - - - - 13.74 Sonata Fi Privat _ _ _ 1.030.05 _ 4.79 6.61 17.57
(14.51) ) O ) O (1451 Li?i?e?j fnance Frivate 1'736'1_(; ‘ 0 0 0 1’736'23 Note: (. ) (4.19) 681] ( ) Had the Bank recorded tr:he compensation cost for all share-linked instruments
Kotak Alternate Assets 34.86 _ _ _ _ 34.86 Dividend Paid . . . . . . granted on or'belfore 31" March 2021 on the basis of fglr valuation method
e 1 Maximum balance is determined based on comparison of the total daily outstanding instead of intrinsic value method, employee compensation cost would have
Managers Limited (23.94) 0 (u] u] ()] (2394 Mr. Uday Kotak - -| 7665 - -| 7665 balances during the financial year. been higher by % 2.41 crore (previous year ¥ 5.20 crore) and the profit after
Kotak Mahindra Investments 6.71 - - - - 6.71 () ()] (56.20) () ()| (56.20) 2. Maximum balance is determined based on comparison of the total outstanding tax would have been lower by ¥ 1.81 crore (previous year ¥ 3.89 crore).
Limited (7.69) ) ) (] () (769 Mr. Dipak Gupta - - 007 - - 0.07 balances at each quarter end during the financial year. Consequently the basic and diluted EPS would have been % 69.14 (previous
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 23.87 - - - - 23.87 (=) ()] (0.07) () () (0.07) 3. Flgures in brackets represent previous year’s figures. year X 54.87) and % 69.14 (previous year ¥ 54.85) respectively.
Company Limited (20.56) 0 O B O (20.56) Ms. Shanti Ekambaram _ _ 0.20 _ _ 0.20 4. #in the above table denotes amounts less than ¥50,000/-. 9. Empl Benefit
Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund 041 - - - - 0.41 () () () () () () 8. Employee Share Based Payments: o mployee Benetits . . . .
Limited B - B B Mr. Gaurang Shah _ _ _ _ _ - The Shareholders of the Bank had passed a Special Resolution in the i The Bank has recognised the following amounts in the Profit and Loss
(9.54) ) ) () () (954) g S| sed | C
BSS Microfinance Limited 9.63 _ _ _ _ 963 () (O] (0.10) () () (0.10) General meeting dated 29" June, 2015 and 22" December 2023, to grant Account towards contributions to Provident Fund and Other Funds.
(19.38) ) ) B O (19.38) Mr. KVS Manian _ T 002 _ _ 0.02 options to the eligible employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries. Pursuant (Xin crore)
Sonata Finance Private Limited 2'62 2'62 ) B B Q 3] B to these resolutions, the Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2015 &
- - - - - - Vis. Pallavi Kok - ~ ~ o7 017 Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2023 have been formulated Particulars Year Ended
. () ) ) () () () : - ; and adopted respectively. The Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 31% March, 2024 | 31* March, 2023
Kotak Mahindra Asset 5.83 - - - - 583 : (] O G €| ©12)] (012) 2015 is operational only to the extent of treatment of options granted till Provident Fund 282.02 23548
Management Company Limited (3.63) ) ) ) O 363 Ms. Indira Kotak (—) (-) (-) (-) (00-232(; (00-232‘; 227 December, 2023 and Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2023 is Superannuation Fund 120 117
Kotak Mahindra General 9.50 - - - - 9.50 . w v - currently in force. -
Insurance Limited 2.26) A H H 0 2.26) Others _ ~ ~ 023 0.06 029 - . New Pension Fund 12.84 10.51
Phoenix ARC Private Limited = I N I T~ O Q[ @] 04 0o 019 A DIFC Employee Workplace 0.70 072
oenix rivate Limite ol o ‘33) 0 0 0 0 33) Dot ts to " The Bank has granted options to employees of the Group vide various Savings Scheme (DEWS)
v : - w v - employee stock option schemes. During the year ended 315t March, 2024, N .
Kotak Mahindra Capital 6.59 - - - - 6.59 Kotak Mahindra Capital 0.96 - - - - 0.96 the following schemes were in operation: ii. Gratuity
Company Limited (1.34) () (=) (=) () (1.34) Company Limited (#) (=) () () () (#) - The gratuity plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested domestic
Others 2.58 # - 002 - 2.60 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 6.84 _ _ _ _ 6.84 Particulars Plan 2015 Plan 2023 employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on
(0.10)] (0.06) () ()] (0.03) (0.19) (639) o o 0 5 (6.39) Date of grant Various Dates Various Dates respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the Bank
Non Funded Commitment Kotak Securiies Limited 12’ m - = - - 12‘ m Date of Board Approval Various Dates Various Dates subject to a maximum of X 0.20 crore. There is no ceiling on gratuity
Bank Guarantees y y Date of Shareholder’s approval 29" June, 2015 | 22" December, 2023 paygble to dlrgctors and cgrtaln categories of employees subject to
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 030 030 (11.45) (-) (-) (-) (-)|  (11.45) Number of opfi o 21080953 108.417 service regulations and service awards.
I I u - - - - - B ,080, 3 . . .
Company Limited (0.25) () ) ) ) (0.25) Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 0.23 - - - - 0.23 urrber of options grante - Eaui Eaui Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of present value of defined
5 . . Company Limited . : X X Method of Settlement (Cash / Equity) quity quity benefit obligation for gratuity benefits is given below.
Kotak Securities Limited 0.02 0.02 ompany Limite (0.58) G [G) (§) ( (0.58)
otak Securities Limite ( . ) —) (— (— (— . ) Kook Altormat Asset 136 136 Vesting Period 0.01 —4.16 years 1.03 - 3.40 years (in crore)
0.02 (- -) -) -) (0.02 otak Alternate Assets - - - - - . - - —
Aero Agencies Private Limited - - - 100 - 1.00 Managers Limited (0.25) () () () () (0.25) Exercise Period 0'03, ! yéar 9'50 yﬁear Particul As at
g 0 0 O [00) 0 [1.00) Kotak Mahindra Invesiments 168 188 Vesting Conditions Graded / Cliff vesting | Graded / CIiff vesting articulars 315 March, 2024 | 31¢ March, 2023
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.25 - - - -l o025] Limited 149 0l 0 O 0] a9 The details of activity under Plan 2015 have been summarised below: Change in benefit obligations
(0.25) (-) (=) (=) () (0.25) Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 4.40 _ _ _ _ 4.40 " " Liability at the beginning of the year 522.55 515.20
Kotak Alternate Asset Managers 050 = = 013 — 0.63 5 5 Year ended 31 Mar.ch, 2024 | Year ended 31 Mar.ch, 2023 Current Service cost 9054 7727
Limited 0.05) ) O (013 0 0.18) (3.62) () () ) () (3.62) Number of | Weighted | Number of | Weighted nt n n 20.35 3619
: w . : v - Others 0.10 - - - - 0.10 Particulars Shares Average Shares Average nterest cos| : .
Swaps | Forward contracts (0.15) ) ) ) ) (0.15) Exercise Exercise Actuarial Losses / (Gain) 17.39 (7.71)
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 100.00 - - - —-| 100.00 : : Price(%) Price(%) -
(234.83) ) ) B O] (234.83) Reimt from . Past Service Cost 4.32 —
Kotak Mahindra Investments 100.00 - - - —| 100.00 Kotak Mahindra Capital 1053 - - - - 1053 Outstanding at the 3,573,225 | 1,642.98 4,270,658 | 1,485.35 Liability assumed on acquisition / 0.31 0.61
e beginning of the year Settled on divestit
Limited (100.00) ) () () ()| (100.00) Company Ltd (10.34) () () () ()] (10.34) g th 11124 7 Ta7a 24| 180aa (Settled on divestiture)
Others - - - - - -| [ Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 39.32 - - - - 3032 Granted during the year 112,490) 1,939.00} 1,474, 80447 Benefits paid (95.03) (99.01)
O 0 0 Of (16 (165 @880 o 0o O O (@ss8) Forfeited during the year 206,273 | 1.804.14] 137,475 1.611.54 Liability at the end of the year 580.43 522.55
ll. Expenses: Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 15.57 _ _ _ _ 15.57 Exercised during the year 1,364,316 | 1,460.33|1,894,822| 1,413.62 Change in plan assets
Sglgrilessl fee)s (Include Company Limited (16.42) ) ) ) 0] (1642 Expired during the year 415,397 | 1,768.94| 139,560| 1,670.66 Fair value of plan assets at the 502.57 572.43
ESOP/SARs PR " L
Kotak Securities Limited 31.76 - - - - 31.76 Outstanding at the end of beginning of the year
2,699,729 1,825.57(3,573,225| 1,642.98
Mir. Uday Kotak - -| 040 - = 040 RN Ol 0l e the year T ’ T ’ Expected return on plan assets 32.83 38.66
() () (#) () ) (#) ’ . . i : ;
MIr. Gaurang Shah . - ~ - . - Eotgré\/lamndra Investments 7.76 - - - - 7.76 aotutth(:;f;:?j i??r‘]/:;;:rfmsabb 334.878| 1,579.64| 835.480| 1,439.84 gctuaf:al Gzln / (Losses) (9654;5) Egggli
imite (8.12) () ) () () (812 enefits pai . .
ul Q] (6.27) u] () (527) - Weighted average remaining ot
Mr. KVS Manian _ T 672 _ _ 6.72 Kotak Mahindra Asset 9.90 - - - - 9.90 contractual lfe (in years) 1.65 1.46 Employer contributions 127.70 31.00
() (O] (7.82) () O] (782 Management Company Limited | (11.76) ) ) () ()| (11.76) - yeo Fair value of plan assets at the end
- N - Weighted average fair value 632.92 502.57
Mr. Dipak Gupta - -| 837 - - 8.37 Kotak Alternate Assets 10.27 - - - - 10.27 of options granted 509.70 490.13 of the year
() ()| (8.22) () ) (8.22) Managers Limited (9.64) () () ) ()| (9.64) (X in crore)
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram - -| 673 - - 6.73 Kotak Mahindra Asset M: 4.06 - - - - 4.06 The details of activity under Plan 2023 have been summarised below: As at
O 0 @® Al Q] 238) | (sngapore) Ple Linited o o ¢ ; ; Reconciliation of present value of the—- ;
Wr AShok Vaswan I N I I B Y E< tng:\A : 12 Goneral (45’007 j L B B (45'007 : Y““’""“‘f“ “March, 2024 V““’""“‘f“ “March, 2023 obligation and the fair value of the plan assets | 31" March | 31° March,
otak Mahindra Genera I _ _ _ _ ! Number of | Weighted | Number of | Weighted
M. Jay Kotak ('_) (._) (_) ('_) 0 27) 0 27) Insurance Limited (4.19) 6 ) @) [QIICAL) Particulars Shares | Average | Shares | Average Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 632.92 502.57
- O @0l O 04)] (4 |Ohes a2l o2rp o o) -] 739 b by Liabilly at the end of the year 580.43|  522.55
Expenses for services i (696)] (043)] () O O (739 Outstandina atth (Net Liabilities)’ Net Asset included in “Others” 52.49|  (19.98)
i Purchase of Fixed Assets utstanding at the . A ”
received - e beginning of the year _ _ _ _ under “Other Liabilities & Other Asset
Kotak Securiies Limited 082 = = - = 082 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.07 - - - - 0.07 9 9 y -
: ' o 0l o a0 B Granted during the year 108,417 | 1,823.00 Z _ Expense recognised for the year
(078) () u] u] () (078) Kotak Mahindra G | _ _ _ _ _ _ - - Current Service cost 90.54 77.27
i | _ _ , _ otak Manindra enera Forfeited during the year - _ _ _
Eolak Mahﬂndrta é.lfe Insurance (211557;) 5 5 5 5 (21155792) Insurance Limited (0.14 () () () () (0.14 Exorcised durina T Interest cost 40.35 36.19
ompany Limite - B R B B ] - - ~ — - - ~ xercised during the year - - - - Expected ret | " >
Kotak Mahindra General 318 ~ = — — 318 thgk Mahindra Investments _ . xpec.ed ref l‘Jrn on plan assets (32.83) (38.66)
Limited 0.09 8 B s . 0.09 Expired during the year - - - _
Insurance Limited 3.49) 0 0 0 Ol (349) (0.09) ) () () () (0.09) g the y Actuarial (Gain) / Loss (47.46) 32.80
- - Kotak Mahi Life | 0.17 - - - - 0.17 i ;
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 1.35 - - - - 1.35 otak Ma 'F‘dfa fle Insurance Outstanding at the end of 108.417 | 1.823.00 Past Service Cost 432 _
2 0l Al 0l 0 e o omeanlntd @09 B G 0 O (009 the year ' ’ - - Net gratuity expense recognised in
Aero Agencies Private Limited — _ T 26s _ 264 Kotak Securities Limited G 10‘) (_‘) (_‘) (_‘) (_‘) i 10‘) Otutth of th(; a?(tnr\]/e exercisable ~ ~ ~ ~ Schedule 16.1 54.92 107.60
X R X X - : at the end of the year
: : _ () Q) ()| (0.68) () (0.68) Kotak Alternate Assets 0.30 = ~ - = 030 Actual return on plan assets 97.69 (1.84)
Business Standard Private Limited - - - 0.05 - 0.05 Managers Limited 0 0 0 0 3 0 Weighted average remaining [ in crore)
Ol 0 0l 0o Ol (008 Kotak Mahindra Capil - - - = = - contractual life (in years) 244 - Asat
BSS Microfinance Limited 895.03 - - - - 895.03 Company Limited (0.04) O O O 0 (0.04) Weighted average fair value 47770 ~ Reconciliation of the Liability recognised in 31 March, | 31 March,
SonaFi Private Limied (523.01) () () 6] ()] (523.01) Kotak Mahindra Trusteeship 0.01 - - - - 0.01 of options granted : the Balance Sheet 2024 2023
onata Finance Frivate Limile 242 = = - = 242 Services Limited (0.01) () () () ()| (0.01) The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised - P—
Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of 19.98 (57.23)
: - o 1N I © | I () | Kotak Mahindra Asset 0.01 - - oo during the year was ¥1,842.83 (previous year ¥1,772.38). the year : '
Kotak Mahindra (UK) Limited 0.09 - - - - 0.09 Management Company Limited #) () () () () # The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are: -
(0.03) (=) (=) (=) () (0.03) Sale of Fixed Assets Expense recognized 54.92 107.60
Others 1.1 - - - - 1.1 Kotak Mahindra General 4 _ - - - # 31%t March, 2024 Liability assumed on acquisition / 0.31 0.61
- (#) 6) ol ol 0 #) Insurance Company Limited “ “ “ ) ) “ Range of exercise Number Weighted average | Weighted average (Settled on divestiture)
IV. Income: prices (3) of options remaining exercise price (3) Employer contributions (127.70) (31.00)
Dividend Kotak Alternate Assets 0.01 - - - - 0.01 - b
et M Limited outstanding | contractual life of Net (Asset) / Liabilit (52.49) 19.98
Kotak Mahindra Capital 34.36 - - - - 34.36 anagers Limite (463(31) 0 0 (@] (6] (463(?1) options (in years) Y : :
imi Kotak Mahindra Trusteeshi . - - - - . I £ detail "
Company Limited (34.36) () () Q] ()] (34.36) Services Limited p 0 0 0 O 0 0 1.201-1,300 10,020 0.28 1.240.89 In of plan
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 117.88 - - - - 1788 Kotak Mahindra Investment 015 ~ ~ ~ ~ 015 1301-1.400 172514 025 1341.00 The plan assets are invested in insurer managed funds. Major categories of
Company Limited (88.41) () () () ()] (88.41) otak Mahindra Investments - - d . . - = plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Limited (0.03) O ) ) O (©0.03) _
_ _ _ _ _ _ 1,701-1,800 786,518 1.65 1,798.00
Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund - - 31t March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
. Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance - - - - - - s s
Limited (0.09) ) B ) (] (009 Company Linited ) a a 0 o o 1,801-1,900 774,484 1.48 1,814.32 % %
Kotak Mahindra Asset o 11.75 - - - - 11.75 Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 0.01 _ _ _ _ 0.01 1,901-2,000 1,062,610 2.08 1,939.00 LIC managed funds * 0.34% 0.31%
Management Company Limited (74.50) () () () ()| (74.50) (0.02) () () ) () (0.02) " iti 7 9
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 8.91 _ _ _ _ 8.91 Kotak Securities Limited 4 - - = = 4 31st March, 2023 Government securities 24.88% 32.87%
(8.91) () () () () (8.91) () () ) ) () ) Range of exercise Number Weighted average | Weighted average Bonds, debentures and other fixed 14.70% 35.65%
Kotak Securities Limited 36.00 - - - - 36.00 Swaps/ Forwards/ Options prices 3) o?lft:t’;tr:?iril:g con{zgfl:::"ligfe of exercise price (3) income instruments
(36.00) (-) (-) (-) (-)| (36.00) Contracts (National) options (in years) Money market instruments 4.62% 19.55%
I"czme ;rom services Kotak Mahindra International Ltd # - - - - # 901-1.000 75321 073 1.000.00 Equity shares 55.46% 11.62%
rendere #) () () () () (#) - : . =
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance | 728.63 - - - —|72863| |Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited | 136.21 - - - - 136.21 1,001-1,100 10,000 0.25 1,050.00 Total 100.00% 100.00%
Company Limited (407.35) (V) 0 0 ()| (407.35) (533.63) 0 0 () ()] (533.63) 1,201-1,300 20,040 1.03 1,240.89 # In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded
Kotak Mahindra General 82.13 - - - - 8213 Kotak Mahindra Investments 0.03 - - - - 0.03 1,301-1,400 738,312 0.72 1,341.00 with Life Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of each major category
Insurance Company Limited (35.79) () () () 0] 3579 Limited (100.00) () () ) ()| (100.00) 1,401-1,500 442,832 0.25 1,460.00 of plan assets, the percentage or amount for each category to the fair value of
Kotak Securities Limited 217.85 - - - -| 21785 Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance 17.45 - - - -l 1745 1,701-1,800 1,224,120 2.08 1,798.00 plan assets has not been disclosed.
E R R B Company Limited 26.82 - - - - 26.82 R
. (166.32) A 0 O ()| (166.32) pany (26.82) ) ) () ()| (26.82) 1,801-1,900 1,062,600 1.83 1,809.20 Actuarial assumptions used
Kotak Mahindra Capital 15.05 - - - - 15.05 Kotak Alternate Assets 18.43 - - - - 18.43 Stock ation right
Cormpany Limited 893 O 0l O O] ©93)] |ManagersLimited ©50] @[ 0 O 0] @50 ock appreclation rights Discount rate 7.15% - 7.18% p.a. (previous year 7.30% - 7.39% p.a.)
- Kotak Mahi A 854 _ _ _ _ 8.54 At the General Meeting on 29" June, 2015, the shareholders of the Bank -
Kotak Mahindra Asset 19.68 - - - - 19.68 otak Mahindra Asset ; - had passed Special Resolution to grant SARs to the eligible employees of Salary escalation | 5.50% - IBA, 7% - (others) p.a. (previous year 5.50%
Management Company Limited | (16.51) () ) () ()] (16.51) Management Company Limited | (10.30) ) ) ) ()] (1030) the Bank and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to this resolution, Kotak Mahindra rate (IBA) and 12% in year 1 inclusive and 7% thereafter
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 37.46 - - - -l 3746 Kotak Mahindra Capital 76.61 - - - - 7661 Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2015 had been formulated and adopted. (others) p.a.)
(37.09) (-) (-) (-) ()| (37.09) Company Limited (15.09) () () ) (- (15.09) Subsequently, the SARs have been granted under this scheme. The Board Expected return 7.50% p.a. (previous vear 7.00% p.a
Kotak Alternate Assets 65.28 - - - - 65.28 Kotak Securities Limited 36713 _ _ _ | 367413 of Directors of the Bank have formulated and adopted the Kotak Mahindra on F:)Ian assets S0%pa.(p ¥ 0% pa)
Managers Limited (41.83) () ) ) ()] (41.83) (206.57) ) B 0 ()| (206.57) Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2023 effective from 1t December 2023 - - - - - -
BSS Microfinance Limited 2673 _ _ _ _ 2673 - - - - in place of SARs Scheme 2015. SARs Scheme 2015 is operational only to The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation,
'(# P ) ) '# BSS Microfinance Limited 0.14 - - - - 0.14 the extent of treatment of SARs granted till 30" November 2023. take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
o 5 22) 0 02 (-; 0 (()4 <_# 15(32) (0.09) ol () 0) b (009) The SARs are settled in cash and vest on the respective due dates in a graded Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on expectation of the
ers - > - > Others 0.25 2.84 4.50 432 24.61 36.52 manner as per the terms and conditions of grant. The contractual life of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Fund
(10.95)] (0.11)] (0.01)| (0.04)] (0.01)] (11.12) () ()] (5.90)] (4.21)] (26.02)] (36.13) SARs outstanding range from 1.00 to 4.13 years. during the estimated term of the obligations
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Experience adjustments

KOTAK MAHINDRA BANK LIMITED

Tel.: +91-22-6166 0001

(X in crore)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:. Details of CSR Expenditure 31st March, 2024/ 31% March, 2023
Riin crore) Amount of expenditure incurred*
Gratuity Year ended 31° March, Contribution to Kotak Education Foundation 32.12 22.74
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Contribution to Other Initiatives 87.61* 72.10
Defined benefit obligation | 580.43 | 522.55 | 515.20 | 497.48 | 455.85 Accrual towards unspent obligations
Plan assets 632.92|502.57 | 572.43| 546.65| 412.45 (Shortfall) in relation to:
- Ongoing project 111.08** 93.11
Surplus / (deficit) 52.49((19.98)| 57.23| 49.17|(43.40) Ofher than ongoing project Ni Ni
Experience adjustments 12.97 7.66( 2261 12.62| 41.19 Total 230.81 187.95
on plan liabilities Amount required to be spent as per
Experience adjustments | 64.85|(40.51)| 34.10| 60.28|(36.81) Section 135 of the Act 230.24 187.41
on plan assets Amount of cumulative unspent at the end 184 55 168.34
The Bank expects to contribute ¥ 53.71 crore to gratuity fund in financial of the year ) )
year 2024-2025. Amount spent during the year on
The above information is as certified by the actuary and relied upon by (i) Construction / acquisition of any asset 28.318 22.47"
the auditors. (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 91.42 72.36

iii. Pension

Pension liability relates to employees of Eivbl.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation for pension benefits is given below.

10.

1.

12.

*Includes administrative overheads and impact assessment cost and excludes
% 6.27 crore (unutilised funds) which was refunded by implementing agencies in
April 2024.

**Includes X 6.27 crore (unutilised funds) which was refunded by implementing

(Xin crore) agencies in April 2024.
As at $ For funding capital assets which are held in the books of the implementing partner
Particulars 31stMarch, | 31¢tMarch, organizations / beneficiaries / public authorities. Includes advances paid against
2024 2023 construction /acquisition of Capital assets and doesn’t include amount spent on
Funded Funded creation/acquisition of Capital assets out of Unspent CSR accounts of previous
Change in benefit obligations financial years.
Liability at the beginning of the year 1912.65 190931 A does not include advances paid against construction / acquisition of Capital assets
— . s s and amount spent on creation/acquisition of Capital assets out of Unspent CSR
Transfer of |I¢’:l1bI|ItIeS funded during the year - - accounts of previous financial years.
Current Service cost 74.28 63.16 Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act:
Interest cost 135.35 134.04
nterest cos . X
R in crore]
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 171.29 40.67 _ _ ( )
Past Service cost - — Financial Balance as at Amount Amount spent Balance as at
Benefits paid (181.90) (234.53) Year 15t April required during the year 31t March
—— - - ) In Separate to be Fromthe [From Separate| . In Separate
Liability at the end of the year 211167 1912.65 With the | CSR Unspent | spent during| Company | CSR Unspent Coﬁltgn CSR Unspent
Cl.range in plan assets _ Company|  account year |Bankaccount| account PaNY | account
:’haew \;aaI:Je of plan assets at the beginning of 187326 1 953.43 FY 23-24] - _ 218.39 | 107.31 _ 111.08° _
Y — — FY 22-23/93.11* - - - 56.15 - 36.96**
Expected return on plan assets 126.45 133.47
- - FY21-22| - 70.86° - - 34.36 - 36.50
Actuarial Gain / (loss) 13.37 11.27 Y 2223 237 437 Nil
Benefits paid (181.90) (234.53) - -
e *The amount was transferred to Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Unspent Account FY
Employer contributions 48.13 9.62
Fairpva’:ue = l;n”a'ssets e 2022-23 in April 2023 and includes refund of T 2.96 crore received in April 2023.
the year P 1,879.31 1,873.26 ** Includes refund of ¥ 0.007 crore received in April 2024.
R *#The amount was transferred to Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Unspent CSR Account
.
Rin crore) FY2023-24 on 29" April 2024. Also includes an amount of ¥ 6.27 crore which was
Reconciliation of present value of the As at refunded by implementing agencies in April 2024.
obligation and the fair value of the plan |31+ March, | 31*March, S Includes % 0.29 crore (unutilised funds) received from implementing agencies in
Assets 2024 2023 April 2023.
Funded Funded ) ) ) )
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 187931 1873.26 Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect
— = 2 . of other than ongoing projects:
Liability at the end of the year 2,111.67 1,912.65 (% in crore)
Net Asset / (Liability) included in “Others” -
under “Other Assets” / “Other Liabilities” (232.36) (39.39) Balance Amsoum gezoFsﬂe: Amoun(ti Amount Balance
A unspent in Specified Fun require: spent unspent
CE:X‘:fT]SteS :iCOngTd for the year 7428 63.16 as at of Schedule VIl of the to be spent during as at
InLtJe : 0 zzst ce cos 135'35 134'04 1t April 2023 Act within 6 months | during the year|  the year 31¢t March 2024
res . . - -
Expected return on plan assets (126.45) (133.47) Nil - 8.87 8.687 Nil
Actuarial (gain) / loss 157.92 29.40 Notes:
— - - 1. The amount required to be spent is Board approved CSR Project Budget for Other
Effect of the limit in Para 59(b) - - than Ongoing (Annual) CSR Projects for FY2023-24,
Net pension expense recognized in Schedule 16.1 241.10 93.13 2. The amount spent does not include CSR Administrative Overheads Expenditure
Actual return on plan assets 139.81 144.74 0f % 2.99 crore and impact assessment cost of % 0.56 crore
(X in crore) Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act:
As at (Xin crore)
Particulars 31=tMarch, | 31 March, Unspent/
2024 2023 Bal A unutilised Bal
Reconciliation of the Liability Funded | Funded e .'"°d";“b Amountsoent | CSREMOUTE ance
recognised in the Balance Sheet excess spent | required tobe | Amount SPeNt | y,cferreq to Total EXCesS spen
— — 39.39 712 asat spent during | during the year Unspent CSR as at
Net (Asset) / Liability at the beginning of the year : (44.12) 194April 2023 | the year et 31 March 2024
Expense recogvjizeld 241.10 93.13 FY 2023.24
Employer contributions (48.13) (9.62) 1.42 230.24 11973 | 111.08 | 230.81 1.99
Effect of the limit in Para 59(b) - - * Include CSR Administrative Overheads Expenditure of ¥ 2.99 crore and impact
Net (Asset) / Liability is include_d iq _“(_)thers” 232.36 39.39 assessment cost of X 0.56 crore.
under “Other Assets” / “Other Liabilities’ 13. Tier Il Bonds
Inv t details of plan t: a) Lower Tier |l Bonds outstanding as at 31t March, 2024 and as at 31 March
The plan assets are invested in a fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation 2023 is X Nil.
of India. In the absence of detailed information regarding plan assets of the b) Upper Tier Il Bonds outstanding as at 31tMarch, 2024 and as at 31 March
fund, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or 2023 is X Nil.
amount for each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed. c) Interest Expended-Others (Schedule 15(Ill)) includes interest on subordinated
Actuarial assumptions used debt (Lower ands Upper Tier I1) % Nil (previous year X 21.33 crore).
As at 14. Details of payments of audit fees
Particulars 31stMarch, | 31% March, (X in crore)
2024 2023 . Year Ended
Discount rate 719% p.a.| 7.39% p.a. Particulars 31% March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023
Salary escalation rate 5.50% p.a.| 5.50% p.a. Statutory Audit fees 3.69 3.44
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% p.a.| 7.50% p.a. Other Matters 0.47 0.44
Inflation 10.00% p.a. | 10.00% p.a. Total 4.16 3.88
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, 15. Description of Contingent Liabilities:
take accountl of inflation, sepiority, promotion and other relevant factors like Sr.| Contingent Liability* Brief Description
settlement with employee unions. ) 1. [ Claims not This includes liability on account of Direct and
Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average acknowledged as Indirect tax demands and legal cases filed
long term rate of return expected on investments of the Fund during the debts against the Bank
estimated term of the obligations 9 i
Experience adjustments The Bank is a party to various legal proceedings
A ts for th t foll . in the normal course of business. The Bank does
mounts for the current year are as follows: ) not expect the outcome of these proceedings
Rin crore) to have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s
Pension Year ended 31%t March, financial conditions, result of operations or cash
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 flows. In respect of appeals filed by the Income
Defined benefit obligation | 2,111.67[1,912.65|1,909.31(1,891.94|1,600.48 Tax department with higher authorities, where
Plan assets 1,879.31]1,873.261,953.43[1,872.491,514.35 the matter was settled in favour of the Bank at
Surplus / (deficit) (232.36)] (39.39)| 44.12| (19.45)| (86.13) :\;‘:;gz’earg{;‘;'t'ai‘fgﬁfgf} ;’;dtg';i’ig‘n‘]"‘gﬁ’rmg
E:%T:ﬁ“;iiﬁgjeftmems 133.49| 14078) 248.33| 199.72 440.57 difference, no contingent liability is envisaged
by the Bank.
Experience adjustments 13.37 11.27| 34.13| (1.52)| (7.85) > v Y - -
on plan assets - | Liability on account | The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts
- on f nfi - of outstanding with inter Bank participants and with its
The Bzaé)nzlze;gggtsto contribute X 228.21 crore to pension fund in financial forward exchange customers. Forward exchange contracts are
. year B : contracts commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at
iv. Compensated absences a future date at the contracted rate.
The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of 3. | Guarantees on As a part of its Banking activities, the Bank
accumulated leaves of the employees of the Bank is given below: behalf of issues guarantees on behalf of its customers.
(X in crore) constituents Guarantees generally represent irrevocable
. As at assurances that the Bank will make payments in
Particulars 315t March, 2024 315t March, 2023 the event of customer failing to fulfill its financial
Total actuarial liability 153.11 129.40 or performance obligations.
Assumptions: 4. [Acceptances, These includes:
Discount rate 715% -7.18% - 4.27% 7.30% - 7.39% - 3.52% endorsements and |« Documentary credit such as letters of
(DIFC) p.a. (DIFC) p.a. other obligations obligations, enhance the credit standing of
the customers of the Bank.
Salary escalation rate 5.50% (IBA), 5.50% (IBA), : .
y 7.00% (Othue(rs) a)nd 3% 7.00% (Outraers))and « Bills re-discounted by the Bank and cash
: (DIFC) p.a 'SfV (DIFC) p.a collateral provided by the Bank on assets
pa. ° p-a. which have been securitised.
v. Long Service Award « Underwriting commitments in respect of Debt
The actuarially determined liability in respect of Long Service Award of Syndication.
the employees of the Bank is given below: 5. | Other items for These include:
R in crore) which the Bank is « Liabilities in respect of interest rate swaps,
Particulars As at contingently liable currency swaps, forward rate agreements,
31t March, 2024 | 31t March, 2023 futures and options contracts. The Bank
Total actuarial liability 10.41 9.49 enters into these transactions with inter Bank
Assumptions: participants and its customers. Currency
Discount rate 7.15%-7.19% p.a.| 7.30%-7.39% p.a. Swaps are commitments to exchange cash
Provisions and Contingencies flows by way of interest/principal in one currency
against another, based on predetermined
Breakup of “Provisions and Contingencies” (including write-offs; net of ragtes Interest rate swaps are Eommitments to
write-backs) shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss A.ccount: exchange fixed and floating interest rate cash
(in crore) flows. The notional amounts that are recorded
Particul Year Ended as contingent liabilities are amounts used as
articutars 315 March, 2024 | 31% March, 2023 a benchmark for the calculation of interest
Provisions for Investments (including NPI)** 79.22 (21.05) component of the contracts.
Provision towards NPA 1,486.46 507.69 « Liability in respect of Capital commitments
Provision towards Unhedged Foreign 10.71 (11.09) relating to fixed assets and undrawn
Currency Exposure commitments in respect of investments.
Provision towards Standard Assets 97.65 140.42 . Amounlt Transferred to RBI under the Depositor
General Provision — Covid-19 (124.90) (159.55) Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund).
Deferment Cases * Also refer Schedule 12 — Contingent Liability
Provision for country risk exposure - (4.79) 16. Small and Medium Enterprises:
Provision for Current Tax 4,183.40 3,412.17 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Provision for Deferred Tax 48.73 39.52 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and
Other Provision and Contingencies 24.60 5.36 Medium enterprises. Following is the disclosure as applicable:
Total Provisions and Contingencies 5,805.87 3,908.68 R in crore)
As at
*Provision in respect of security receipts of ¥ 64.91 crore for the year ended Sr. Particulars 31 March, | 31 March.
31t March, 2024 was re-classified as Non Performing Investments (NPI). The No. 2024 ' 2023 ’
same was earlier accounted as Mark to Market Loss under “Other Income”. Such 1 | Princioal t due t i istered 181 Nil
reclassification has no impact on the result of the respective periods. :gc:p; aﬂg;ﬂg D Lf:t ° ns duFr)pr:qe risr‘] i:]eglsnerei " : !
*Includes provision of € 33.13 crore on applicable Alternate Investments Funds :s a? ea?' end cta emaining unpa
(AIF) Investments in accordance with RBI circular dated 19" December, 2023 and y
27" March, 2024. 2 |Interest due to suppliers registered under the 0.03 Nil
The Bank held an aggregate COVID-19 related provision of ¥ 387.45 crore zﬂrfxi?dﬁ(: tin:ure?::zlgg :tnp:;? grr:dpnnmpal
as of 31t March, 2023. Based on the improved outlook and on actual pp y
colllectlons, the Bank has;eversed provisions ampuntlng tox 124.9l0Acrore 3 | Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered 28.58 7.09
guzrgnzg the year endegﬁjM Ma;cr;§20§4 and continues to hold provision of under the MSMED Act, where delay is beyond
-55 crore as at arch, . the appointed day during the year
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“Bank”) recognises its responsibility to bring 4 |Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of Nil Nil
about a positive change in the lives of the communities through its business MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
operations and Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”) initiatives. the MSMED Act, where delay is beyond the
Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure: appointed day during the year
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Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Nil Nil
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, where delay is beyond the appointed day
during the year

6 |Interest due and payable towards suppliers 0.31 0.05
registered under MSMED Act, for principal
payments already made

7 | Further interest remaining due and payable for 0.05 Nil
earlier years

8 |Total amount of interest remaining due and 0.39 0.05

unpaid at the end of the current financial year
(sum of items in Sr. no. 2,6 & 7)

The Bank, as part of its normal banking business that is conducted ensuring
adherence to all regulatory requirements, grants loans and advances, makes
investment, provides guarantees to and accept deposits and borrowings from
its customers, other entities and persons.

Other than the transactions described above which are carried out in the
normal course of business, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or deposits or any
other sources or kinds of funds) by the Bank to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or
invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Bank ("Ultimate Beneficiaries").
The Bank has also not received any funds from any parties (Funding Party)
with the understanding that the Bank shall whether, directly or indirectly lend
orinvest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

. The Bank has acquired 100% of the issued and paid up capital of Sonata

Finance Private Limited, a Non-Banking Finance Company — Micro Finance
Institution registered with the RBI for a total consideration of ¥ 537.12 crore.
With this acquisition, Sonata has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Bank w.e.f. 28" March, 2024.

. The Bank and Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited (‘KGI”)

have entered into definitive agreements for a transaction with Zurich
Insurance Company Limited (“Zurich”), whereby Zurich will acquire 70%
stake in KGI by way of a combination of primary and secondary acquisitions
in a single tranche, for a total consideration of approximately ¥ 5,560 Crore
(“Transaction”). Transaction would be subject to fulfilment of customary
conditions precedent, including the receipt of regulatory approvals from
the Reserve Bank of India and the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India. Upon completion of the Transaction (subsequent to receipt
of all requisite approvals), KGI will cease to be a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
of the Bank.

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014
the Bank has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
that have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the audit
trail feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except for six of the accounting software where
audit trail has not been enabled at the database level to log any direct data
changes. Also in respect of one cloud based accounting software, the Service
Organization Control Report does not cover whether audit trial was enabled
or not for direct data changes at the database level.

. The Bank has received an order from the Reserve Bank of India dated 24th

April 2024, directing the Bank to cease and desist, with immediate effect
from (i) onboarding new customers through the Bank’s online and mobile
banking channels and (ii) issuing fresh credit cards. The order was based,
inter alia, on the deficiencies observed by the RBI in their IT Examination of
the Bank.

These directions shall be reviewed by RBI upon satisfactory remediation
of the observations. The Bank has taken concrete steps to adopt new
technologies to strengthen its IT systems and will continue to work with
RBI to swiftly resolve balance issues at the earliest. The Bank believes that
these directions will not materially impact its overall business. The Bank
has evaluated the order and assessed no material impact on its financial
statements and internal financial controls over financial reporting for the year
ended 31¢ March 2024.

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified wherever
necessary to conform to current years’ presentation.

As per our report of even
date attached.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (‘the Bank’), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Standalone Profit and Loss Account,
and the Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes
to the standalone financial statements including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (‘the Standalone
Financial Statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements
give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and circulars and guidelines issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI’), in the manner so required for banking
companies and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 March
2024 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(‘SAs’) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Identification of and Provisioning against Non-performing Assets
(‘NPAs’):

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 March 2024:

% 376,075.27 Crores

Provision for NPAs as at 31 March 2024: X 4,004.21 Crores

Refer Schedule 9, Schedule 17(C)(2) and Schedule 18(A) - Note 9 and Note 11

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Key audit matter

The Bank is required to comply
with the Master Circular issued
by the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI’) on ‘Prudential Norms

for  Income  Recognition,
Asset  Classification  and
Provisioning pertaining
to Advances’ (the’ IRAC
norms’) and amendments

thereto which prescribes the
guidelines for identification
and classification of Non-
performing Assets (‘NPAs’)
and the minimum provision
required for such assets.
The Bank is also required
to apply its judgement to
determine the identification
and provision required
against NPAs considering
various quantitative as well as
qualitative factors.

Our audit procedures included the

following:

« Understood the process and controls,
and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls, including
Information Technology based
controls, and focused on the following:

= Approval of new lending facilities in
accordance with the Bank’s credit
policies.

Performance of annual
renewal of loan accounts.
Monitoring of credit quality which
amongst other things includes
the monitoring of overdue loan
accounts, drawing power limit and
pending security creation; and
Identification and classification of
NPAs in accordance with IRAC
norms, other regulatory guidelines
issued by the RBI and consideration
of qualitative aspects.

review/

9.

The identification of NPAs is
also affected by factors like
stress and liquidity concerns
in certain sectors.

The provision for identified
NPAs is estimated based
on ageing and classification
of NPAs, value of security,
recovery estimates etc. and
is also subject to the minimum
provisioning norms specified
by RBI.

As the identification of and
provisioning against NPAs
requires considerable level
of management estimation,
application of various
regulatory requirements and
its significance to the overall
audit, we have identified this
as a key audit matter.

* Tested the Bank’s
identification of loans with default
events and/ or breach of other
qualitative factors, and for a sample
of performing loans, independently
assessed as to whether there was a
need to classify such loans as NPAs.

®* On a test check basis, verified the
accounts classified by the Bank as
Special Mention Accounts (‘SMA’) in
RBI's Central Repository of Information
on Large Credits (‘CRILC’).

* With respect to provisions recognised
towards NPAs, we reperformed the
provision calculations on a sample
basis taking into consideration the
value of security, where applicable,
the IRAC norms and NPA policy of
the Bank, and compared our outcome
to that prepared by the management
and tested relevant assumptions and
judgements which were used by the
management.

process for

Financial Reporting

Information Technology (‘IT’) Systems and Controls impacting

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

The IT environment of the
Bank is complex and involves
many independent and
interdependent IT systems
used in the operations of
the Bank for processing and
recording a large volume
of transactions. As a result,
there is a high degree of
reliance and dependency
on such IT systems for the
financial reporting process
of the Bank.

Our audit procedures with respect to this
matter included the following:

In assessing the controls over the IT
systems of the Bank, we involved our
technology specialists to understand the
IT environment, IT infrastructure and IT
systems.

We evaluated and tested relevant IT
general controls and IT application
controls of the ‘in-scope’ IT systems
identified as relevant for our audit of
the standalone financial statements and
financial reporting process of the Bank.

On such ‘in-scope’ IT systems, we

have tested key IT general controls and

evaluated the same with respect to the

following domains:

® Program change management, which
includes that program changes are
moved to the production environment
as per defined approvals and relevant

Appropriate IT  general
controls and IT application
controls are required to
ensure that such IT systems
can process the data
as required, completely,
accurately, and consistently

for reliable financial segregation of environment is ensured.
reporting. * User access management, which
We identified certain key includes user access provisioning, de-

provisioning, access review, password
management, sensitive access rights
and segregation of duties to ensure
that privilege access to applications
and its related operating system
and databases in the production
environment were granted only to
authorized personnel.

IT systems (‘in-scope’ IT
systems) which have an
impact on the financial
reporting process, and the
related control testing as a
key audit matter because of
the high level of automation,

significant .number of |« Other areas under the IT control
systems being used by environment which includes backup
the Bank for processing management, business  continuity,
financial transactions, and | disaster recovery drill in-line with the

the complexity of the IT
architecture.

bank’s disaster recovery plan, incident
management, batch processing and
monitoring.

As described in Note
21 of Schedule 18B to | We also evaluated the design and
the standalone financial tested the operatirjg leffectiveness
statements, a supervisory of .key IT appllcatlon controls
. within ~ key business processes,
action was  undertaken ; . X
X which included testing automated
against the Bank under . .
calculations, automated accounting

Section 35A of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 by the
Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’)
subsequent to the year end
on 24 April 2024 arising from
an IT examination conducted

procedures, system interfaces, system
reconciliation controls and key system
generated reports, as applicable.

Where control deficiencies were identified
related to internal controls over financial

reporting, we tested compensating
by the RBI, and the related | controls or performed alternative audit
reports containing its | procedures, where necessary.
observations was issued by | we evaluated the management's
the RBI. assessment of the observations

noted by the RBI arising in their IT
examination report and the impact of
those observations on the standalone
financial statements and on internal
controls with reference to financial
statements and also communicated
with those charged with governance
and sought their assessment of the
impact of the observations.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Bank’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under
the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The accompanying Standalone Financial Statements have been approved
by the Bank’s Board of Directors. The Bank’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, and provisions of section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the
RBI from time to time (‘RBI Guidelines’). This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the RBI guidelines for safeguarding of the assets
of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors
are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

Standalone Financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management;

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15. In our opinion, The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and section 133 of the Act and the relevant
rules issued thereunder.

16. As required by sub-section (3) of section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our
audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been
within the powers of the Bank;

c) Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key
applications integrated to the core banking system, the audit is carried
out centrally as all the necessary records and data required for the
purposes of our audit are available therein. We have visited 128
branches to examine the records maintained at the branches for the
purpose of our audit.

17. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are
not applicable to the Bank by virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949. Accordingly, the reporting under Section 197(16) of the
Act regarding payment/ provision for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act, is not applicable.

18. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those
books; except for the matters stated in paragraph 18(h)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended);

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act

read with relevant Rules issued thereunder, to the extent they are not

inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by the RBI;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors

as on 31 March 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors,

none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters

connected therewith, reference is made to our remarks in paragraph

18(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 18(h)

(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements of the Bank and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements — Refer
Schedule 12 (1), Schedule 17C — Note 13 and Schedule 18B - Note
15 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Schedule
12 (Il), 12 (Va) and 12 (Vb), Schedule 17C — Note 10, Note 11 and
Note 13 and Schedule 18B — Note 10 and Note 15 to the Standalone
Financial Statements;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

Bank, during the year ended 31 March 2024;

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Schedule 18B — Note 17
to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Bank to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Bank (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Schedule 18B — Note 17
to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been
received by the Bank from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the year ended 31 March 2024

by the Bank is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Bank

has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account

that have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
audit trail feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, except for six accounting
software having Oracle or MySQL or SQL database, where the
audit trail has not been enabled at the database level to log any
direct data changes. Further, the Bank has used an accounting
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software hosted by third-party service providers for maintaining
its books of account and in the absence of service organization
controls auditors’ report for the financial year, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail feature of the aforesaid software at
the database level was enabled and operated throughout the year.
Based on our procedures performed, for the accounting software
other than the aforesaid databases where the question of our
commenting does not arise, we did not notice any instance of the
audit trail feature being tampered with.

For KKC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunveriji & Co LLP)
Firm Registration Number:
105146W/W100621

Gautam Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 117348
UDIN: 24117348BKBZWK9832

Place: Mumbai
Date: 04 May 2024

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the

Standalone Financial

Statements of Kotak Mahindra Bank

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Referred to in paragraph 18(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date

Independent Auditor’s Report on the

Internal Financial

Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (‘the Bank) as at and for the year ended
31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements of the Bank as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Bank’s business, including
adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial
Controls with Reference to the Standalone Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial
controls with reference to the standalone financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) issued by the ICAI
and prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements includes obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s
internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial
Standalone Financial Statements

6. A Bank's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements.

Controls with Reference to the

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
the Standalone Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with
reference to the Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to the Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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